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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
WESTERN DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN 

SOUTHERN DIVISION 
 
JEFFREY RYAN FENTON,    ) 
    Plaintiff,  ) 
       ) No. 1:23-cv-1097 
-v-       ) 
       ) Honorable Paul L. Maloney 
VIRGINIA LEE STORY, et al.,    ) 
    Defendants.  ) 
       ) 
 

ORDER ADOPTING IN PART AND REJECTING IN PART REPORT AND 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
 Plaintiff Fenton filed this lawsuit without the assistance of counsel.  In addition to the 

complaint, Plaintiff filed a document titled “motion to maintain venue” (ECF No. 7).   The 

Magistrate Judge reviewed the complaint and the motion and, on December 13, 2023, issued 

a report recommending that this Court deny Plaintiff’s motion and dismiss the lawsuit 

because Plaintiff filed it in the wrong location (ECF No. 8).  The Court will adopt in part and 

reject in part the report and recommendation. 

 After being served with a report and recommendation (R&R) issued by a magistrate 

judge, a party has fourteen days to file written objections to the proposed findings and 

recommendations.  28 U.S.C. § 636(b)(1); Fed. R. Civ. P. 72(b)(2); W.D. Mich. LCivR 

72.3(b).  A district court judge reviews de novo the portions of the R&R to which objections 

have been filed.  28 U.S.C. § 636(b)(1); Fed. R. Civ. P. 72(b)(3).  Only those objections that 

are specific are entitled to a de novo review under the statute.  Mira v. Marshall, 806 F.2d 

636, 637 (6th Cir. 1986) (per curiam).   
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 On January 19, 2024, Plaintiff filed more than a dozen documents and several digital 

media exhibits (ECF Nos. 14-30).  Several of the new filings include 100 or more pages (ECF 

Nos. 18, 19 and 25). The Court has reviewed the newly filed documents.   The Court has 

paid careful attention to ECF No. 14 (Objection) and ECF No. 15 (Declaration in support 

of Objection). 

 1.  Plaintiff filed his objection after the 14-day deadline.  Plaintiff contends he did not 

receive the report and recommendation until December 27, 20191 (ECF No. 15 

PageID.2226).  Using the December 27 date, Plaintiff’s fourteen-day deadline to file 

objections expired on January 10, 2024.  In an abundance of caution, the Court has 

considered Plaintiff’s objections. 

 2.  Discretion to Dismiss Lawsuit.  The Magistrate Judge explained that, for lawsuits 

filed in the wrong venue, the district court exercises its discretion when deciding whether to 

transfer or to dismiss the action.  Plaintiff asserts that the authority cited by the Magistrate 

Judge involved lawsuits subject to the screening under 28 U.S.C. § 1915(e), which does not 

apply because he paid the full filing fee.  

 The Court agrees with Plaintiff.  At this point in the litigation, the Court lacks authority 

to dismiss this lawsuit for improper venue.  Ordinarily, a defendant must raise improper 

venue by motion prior to a responsive pleading.  See Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(3).  The failure 

to raise improper venue in the first motion constitutes a waiver of the defense.  Fed. R. Civ. 

P. 12(h)(1).  Plaintiff is not a prisoner and he paid the filing fee and, therefore, his complaint 

 
1  The Court assumes Plaintiff received the R&R in 2023, not 2019.   
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cannot be screened under 28 U.S.C. § 1915(e).  See Apple v. Glenn, 183 F.3d 477, 479 (6th 

Cir. 1999); Benson v. O’Brian, 179 F.3d 1014, 1017 (6th Cir. 1999).  Following Supreme 

Court authority, the Sixth Circuit permits a district court to sua sponte dismiss a complaint 

when the allegations are completely frivolous and utterly devoid of merit.  Velarde v. Biden, 

No. 23-1465, 2023 WL 8317823, at *1 (6th Cir. Nov. 14, 2023) (citing Apple, 183 F.3d at 

479).  This exception, when a cause of action is totally implausible, permits a court to dismiss 

the action sua sponte because the lawsuit does not present a case or controversy under Article 

III, meaning that the court lacks subject matter jurisdiction.  Id.  The Magistrate Judge’s 

conclusion that the lawsuit was filed in the wrong forum does not address the merits of 

Plaintiff’s causes of action and, therefore, does not fall under the exception identified in 

Apple. 

 While the Court will reject the portion of Report and Recommendation and the 

Magistrate Judge’s recommendation that this lawsuit be dismissed without prejudice, the 

Court must recognize the wisdom in the Report and Recommendation.  The complaint 

contains no allegations that would lead to the conclusion that the Western District of 

Michigan is a proper venue for this lawsuit.  See 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b).  Section 1391(e)(1) 

provides an exception permitting the plaintiff to file the lawsuit where the plaintiff resides, 

but only when a defendant is an officer or employee of the United States acting in his or her 

official capacity and the lawsuit does not involve real property.  The exception does not apply 

here.  More problematic, Plaintiff resides in the Eastern District of Michigan, not the 

Western District of Michigan.  Plaintiff’s desire to avoid the federal courts in Tennessee 

simply does not provide a sufficient basis for venue in Michigan.   
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 3.  Motion to Maintain Venue.  The Magistrate Judge recommends denying the 

motion because venue is not proper.  Plaintiff objects.  Among other reasons, Plaintiff 

contends he was told by court personnel that he could file the lawsuit in Lansing.  Plaintiff 

insists he was not told that the lawsuit might be dismissed if it was filed in the wrong venue.  

The Court overrules this particular objection.  Plaintiff cannot rely on court personnel for 

legal advice.  See, e.g., Knopp v. JPMorgan Chase Bank & Co., No. 16c6669, 2016 WL 

4158958, at *1 (N.D. Ill. Aug. 5, 2016) (“But personnel in the Clerk’s Office are not lawyers, 

and they are certainly not in a position to give legal advice.”); Roosevelt Land. LP v. 

Childress, No. 2006 WL 1877014, at *2 (D.D.C. July 5, 2006) (“Failure to follow the rules 

cannot be excused by blaming court clerks.  The clerk of court is neither obligated nor 

authorized to provide legal advice to pro se litigants.”).  The website for the United States 

District Court for the Western District of Michigan contains a Frequently Asked Questions 

(FAQ) section associated with the Local Rules menu.  One FAQ explicitly states that Clerk’s 

Office Staff cannot give legal advice. Plaintiff’s frustration, while understandable, does not 

provide a sufficient basis to ignore the role of the Court.  The Court, not clerk staff, makes 

legal determinations.    

The Court agrees with the Magistrate Judge that Plaintiff’s motion to maintain venue 

should be denied.  Plaintiff filed the lawsuit in the venue of his choosing.  At this point in the 

litigation, Plaintiff’s choice of venue is not subject to challenge.  The Court lacks the authority 

to dismiss the lawsuit for improper venue.  And, Plaintiff has not served any of the defendants 

with the complaint. Defendants, therefore, have not been provided with notice of this lawsuit, 
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notice of the motion to maintain venue, and have yet had any opportunity to challenge venue.  

Accordingly, the Court will deny the motion to maintain venue without prejudice.   

 

Consistent with the explanation above, the Court ADOPTS IN PART AND 

REJECTS IN PART the Report and Recommendation (ECF No. 8).  The Court adopts the 

portion of the Report and Recommendation denying Plaintiff’s motion to maintain venue 

(ECF No. 7) and will do so without prejudice.  The Court rejects the portion of the Report 

and Recommendation dismissing this lawsuit because the Court presently lacks the authority 

to raise venue as a concern.  IT IS SO ORDERED.  

Date:      January 25, 2024       /s/  Paul L. Maloney  
         Paul L. Maloney 
         United States District Judge 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

WESTERN DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN FILED- LN 
March 25, 2024 4:07 PM 

CLERK OF COURT 
U.S. DISTRICT COURT 

JEFFREY RYAN FENTON, WESTERN DISTRICTOFMIC~ GA.Pl 
BY: eod FILED BY:t/tf)_/') 1/> 

PLAINTIFF CASE NO. l:23-cv-1097 
v. 

VIRGINIA LEE STORY ET AL., 

DEFENDANTS 

DECLARATION ABOUT PROFESSIONAL AND JUDICIAL MISCONDUCT 

DURING MY 8/1/2019 HEARING IN CHANCERY COURT 

Plaintiff brings this testimony pursuant to 28 U.S. Code§ 1746. 

!,Jeffrey Ryan Fenton, declare under oath as follows: 

1. My name is Jeffrey Ryan Fenton. 

2. I am the Plaintiff in this federal lawsuit (CASE NO. 1:23-cv-1097). 

3. I am a citizen of the United States of America. 

4. I was born in 1969 at Fairchild Airforce Base, in Washington State. 

5. I am domiciled in Genesee County, Michigan. 

6. My mailing address is 17195 Silver Parkway, #150, Fenton, MI 48430-3426. 

7. My phone number is (615) 837-1300. 
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PRO SE LITIGANT - MERITS RULE OVER TECHNICALITIES 

8. I am acting in a pro se1 capacity in this lawsuit, due to my poverty, entitled to a liberal 

reading and less stringent standards since it was prepared without assistance of counsel. See 

Haines v. Kerne0 etal., 404 U.S. 519, 92 S. Ct. 594 (1972). 

QUALIFIED AMERICAN WITH DISABILITIES ACT LITIGANT 

9. I am a qualified ADA party with disabilities affecting my communication and 

cognitive functions, which make researching and drafting legal pleadings exceptionally slow and 

challenging. 

10. I request any considerations which the court can allow to help me participate in, be 

protected by, and benefit from the federal judiciary. 

11. I suffer from several cognitive disabilities: Obsessive-Compulsive Personality 

Disorder (OCPD) DSM-5 301.4 (F60.5), Generalized Anxiety Disorder (GAD) DSM-5 300.02 

(F4Ll), Attention-Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD) DSM-5 314.01 (F90.2), Circadian 

Rhythm Sleep Disorder (CRSD) Non-24-Hour Sleep-Wake Disorder (Non-24) DSM-5 307.45 

(G47.24). 

12. Medications that I take regularly can only control these affiictions, not cure them. 

13. Due to my disabilities, it is extremely difficult for me to concisely write long 

documents without losing focus and experiencing significant sprawl, causing repetition, countless 

1 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-35, PageID.1960 
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rewrites, and bloated documents. For this reason, I am trying to file multiple short declarations to 

concisely address specific topics, to help communicate more effectively, for the benefit of all 

parties. 

DECLARATIONS INCLUDED BY REFERENCE HEREIN AND THROUGHOUT 

14. This declaration shall include a master list of other declarations which I have 

written in this lawsuit, which shall be periodically updated, both in court and online, to have the 

most comprehensive and complete set of facts available in this case. 

15. Every declaration and the facts therein written by me and mentioned in this 

document are incorporated herein by reference and made a part of this declaration. 

16. Similarly, this declaration and the facts herein, along with those contained in my 

other declarations cited in this list, are all incorporated by reference and made a part of all my 

declarations that refer to this "Fenton Master Declaration and List of Declarations to Date". 

17. As a result of my disabilities, my principal loss of cognitive function is that I 'm 

extremely slow in performing any significant and/or challenging task. Further exacerbated by an 

inability to effectively "multi-task" high-value projects, meet pressing demands, or lose all that I 

love in my life as a consequence. 

18. Deadlines are extremely stressful, and often even frantic for me. Typically, the final 

48-hours before a critical court deadline, I become extremely anxious, my mind starts racing and 

my thoughts become fragmented. To explain how it feels, I'd compare it to standing outside in the 

middle of a blizzard. I can completely forget what I'm working on and get lost in the multiple 

windows on my computer screen, to no avail. 
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19. It is common for me to rewrite pleadings for the court 50+ times, in an attempt to 

communicate the depth and the breadth of the cruel, fraudulent, criminal, and unconstitutional 

damages which I have experienced to date, because so far, it doesn't appear that a single word of 

my testimony on Court records has ever been used to my benefit. 

MY IDGHEST VALVES: TRUTH & AUTHENTICITY 

20. TRUTH is my highest value in life. 

21. AUTHENTICITY is my second highest value. (Which I define as truth in 

relationships.) 

MY PSYCHOLOGICAL BENT TOW ARDS TRUTH DESPITE THE CONSEQUENCES 

22. By the clinical definitions of Obsessive-Compulsive Personality Disorder, one of my 

most defining disabilities, coupled with my personal values and belief system, I am far more likely 

to be honest and tell the truth regardless of the consequences to myself or anyone else, than most 

people in society. 

23. Therefore, the fact that not one court to date has used one word of my testimony to 

my benefit outside the court process itself, is not only unconstitutional and wreaks of foul play, but 

it is also purely illogical, because I bring the most reliable, uncompromised, unadulterated, and 

trustworthy testimony regarding the preceding Tennessee litigation. Whether the court accepts 

that or not, that is a psychological fact about who I am. 

24. On top of that, I have gone to great pains to provide the courts with a wealth of 

evidence by which to substantiate my testimony, beyond any reasonable margin of error. 
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25. According to Merck Manuals Professional Edition (online), in their section of 

psychiatric disorders, they state the following2 about "Obsessive-Compulsive Personality 

Disorder", which I have been accurately diagnosed3 with and suffer from: 

26. "Obsessive-compulsive personality disorder is characterized by a pervasive preoccupation 

with orderliness) perfectionism) and control (with no room for flexibility) that ultimately slows or interferes 

with completing a task. )) 

27. ((These patients may be overzealous) picky) and rigid about issues of morality) ethics) and 

values. They apply rigid moral principles to themselves and to others and are harshly self-critical. They 

are rigidly deferential to authorities and insist on exact compliance to rules) with no exceptions for 

extenuating circumstances. )) 

28. Ironically, I'm the one who honors and submits to the law by psychological disorder. 

29. Show me someone else in this group who is honestly "overzealous, picky, and rigid 

about issues of morality, ethics, and values". That is me, and I'm tired of my testimony being 

ignored, while my life has been destroyed by repugnant lies which could never survive cross 

examination. 

30. Which is exactly why Chancery Court cast fraudulent "default" judgements 

against me, after driving me out of Tennessee to survive their harsh bias orders, instead of allowing 

"discovery" to begin and having the court hear and decide anything at all based upon the truth. 

2 Imps:// rico. jefffenton.com/ evidence/tn-ada-disabilities-exploited-for-advantage-ocpd-merck. pdf 

3 https:/ / rico. jefffenton.com/ evidence/2020-07-08 _ tnsc-coa-ada-request-for-modification.pdf 
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MYBELOVED 

31. Ms. Fawn Fenton (hereinafter "Ms. Fenton", "wife", and "ex-wife") and I were 

together for fifteen years, thirteen during which we were married. 

32. On August 1, 2019, in the court room of Judge Michael Weimer Binkley in the 

Williamson County Chancery Court, the following took place: 

UNCONSTITUTIONAL: NO OPPORTUNITY TO SA VE MY PROPERTY 
INTERESTS OR TO MITIGATE MY LOSSES 

33. After a pre-trial conference in the back of the Chancery Court I told my counsel 

Charles "Marty" Duke that I could borrow money from my mother to bring our mortgages current 

and to keep them current (roughly $8k, less than I collectively spent on counsel for that day), 

provided I could continue living in my home. 

34. After telling Mr. Duke this, I asked if that might be possible. 

35. Defendant Story overheard me and answered me directly by stating, "No. It's 

already too far along in the bankruptcy." 

36. That was unconstitutional, a violation of bankruptcy law, as well as a violation of 

due process. 

37. Upon information and belief, I believe that this statement by defendant Story was 

also factually false. I see no such finding, judgment, or documentation in the bankruptcy record to 

support this claim. The bankruptcy court pretended to sell the marital residence based upon the 

orders from the Chancery Court, while Chancery Court played much of the same game, as if 

compelled to sell the marital residence to accommodate the bankruptcy, while neither court had 
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the lawful jurisdiction and authority to force the sale of the martial residence, without discovery 

and full due process oflaw, which they both refused. 

38. I was strategically deprived of lawful notice and "adequate protection 11 required by 

the bankruptcy court, while I was also denied any opportunity to save my property or to attempt to 

mitigate my losses in my property interests prior to the forced deprivation of my property by the 

Chancery Court. 

DEFENDANT STORY'S FRAUDULENT NARRATIVE AND SMEAR CAMPAIGN 

(I) STORY'S LIE: UNABLE TO GET MR. FENTON SERVED 

1. On page-44 in lines 5-7 of the transcript of evidence5 from the 8/1/2019 hearing in 

Chancery Court, defendant Story stated, "Mrs. Fenton filed for divorce back in '18, and she was 

unable to get Mr. Fenton served." 

2. That statement by defendant Story was false. 

3. I was served on October Pt, 2018. I responded to that service by filing an 

"ANSWER & COUNTER-COMPLAINT FOR DIVORCE" in Williamson County Chancery 

Court docket #47426, on October 30th, 20186• 

4. By stating this, defendant Story violated Tenn. R. Sup. Ct. 3.3 - Candor Toward 

the Tribunal: "(a) A lawyer shall not knowingly: (1) make a false statement of fact or law to a 

tribunal." And Tenn. R. Sup. Ct. 3.4 - Fairness to Opposing Party and Counsel: "A lawyer shall 

◄ Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 22, PagelD.2821 
5 https://rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-08-01_ chancery-hearing-transcript.pdf (Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF 
No. 1-24, PagelD.1184 ~ ECF No. 1-25, PagelD.1225), Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 22, PagelD.2818-2862 
6 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2018-10-30 _ husbands-answer-counter-complaint-4 7426.pdf 
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not: ( e) in trial, (2) assert personal knowledge of facts in issue except when testifying as a witness." 

5. Defendant Story's statements of fact were not only false, but she knew that they 

would be "in issue'>, because she intentionally spoke in a manner by which to assassinate my 

character before the court. Hence by the Tennessee Supreme Court's Rules of Professional 

Conduct, defendant Story was prohibited from even making these statements in open court. 

(2) STORY'S LIE: THE PROBLEM WITH A PRIVATE REAL TOR 

6. On the bottom of page-47 in lines 21-25 of the transcript of evidence8 from the 

8/1/2019 hearing in Chancery Court, defendant Story stated, "The problem with the private 

realtor is that Mr. Fenton posts these kind of documents that are -- this is the do not enter my 

property, and I'll hand you a copy of that." 

7. That statement was absolutely false. 

8. By making this statement, defendant Story violated the Tennessee Supreme 

Court's Rules of Professional Conduct by " testifying as a witness", without any firsthand 

knowledge, while making entirely false and bias statements to mislead the court. 

9. Defendant Story violated Tenn. R. Sup. Ct. 3.4 - Fairness to Opposing Party and 

Counsel: "A lawyer shall not: ( e) in trial, (1) allude to any matter that the lawyer does not 

reasonably believe is relevant or that will not be supported by admissible evidence; or (2) assert 

personal knowledge of facts in issue except when testifying as a witness; or (3) state a personal opinion 

7 Case l:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 22, PagelD.2821 

8 https://rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-08-01 _ chancery-hearing-transcript.pdf (Case 1 :23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF 
No. 1-24, PagelD.1184 - ECF No. 1-25, PagelD.1225), Case l :23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 22, PagelD.2818-2862 
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as to the justness of a cause, the credibility of a witness, the culpability of a civil litigant or the guilt 

or innocence of an accused". 

10. I was a licensed real estate agent9 in the State of Tennessee for 16 ½ years, with 

access to hundreds of millions of dollars' worth of Middle Tennessee real estate, without one single 

complaint filed against me throughout my entire career. Contrary to defendant Story's narrative, 

my real estate license remained current for over a year after this divorce. 

11. I was a highly skilled and capable residential real estate listing agent. I was able to 

market and sell properties in Middle Tennessee for top-dollar, as good if not better than anyone 

else that either I or my wife had knowledge of and experience working with. 

12. If ever my wife and I had reached terms by which we could have sold our home 

amicably together10
, then I would have removed any signage which might have hindered the full 

sales potential of our property. It is both obscene and completely unsubstantiated to suggest 

otherwise. 

13. An "impartial tribunal" cannot refuse to afford me the slightest "benefit of the 

doubt" in every circumstance. 

9 https:// rico.jeflTenton.com/ evidence/2004-12-09 _ through_ 2021-07-25 _ tn-real-estate-license.pdf 
10 https://rico.jeflTenton.com/ evidence/2019-01-28 _ verbal-agreement-needed-in-writing-for-closing.pdf 
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(3) STORY'S LIE: MR. FENTON WAS AVOIDING SERVICE 

14. On the top of page-511 in lines 1-5, of the transcript of evidence12 from the 8/1/2019 

hearing in Chancery Court, defendant Story stated, "It was made as part of the exhibits when we 

filed for divorce in 2019. Mr. Fenton was avoiding service.,, 

15. That statement was false. I never knowingly avoided service for a divorce in 2019. 

16. By stating this, defendant Story violated Tenn. R. Sup. Ct. 3.3 - Candor Toward 

the Tribunal: "(a) A lawyer shall not knowingly: (1) make a false statement of fact or law to a 

tribunal.» And Tenn. R. Sup. Ct. 3.4 - Fairness to Opposing Party and Counsel: "A lawyer shall 

not: (b) falsify evidence, counsel or assist a witness to offer false or misleading testimony; or ( e) in 

trial, (1) allude to any matter that the lawyer does not reasonably believe is relevant or that will not 

be supported by admissible evidence.» 

17. Defendant Story knew that this was a "non-issue», she mentioned it for no reason 

other than to abusively defame my character to bias the court against me. 

( 4) STORY'S LIE: HUSBAND FAILED TO LIST HOUSE AS AGREED 

18. On page-513 in lines 9-14 of the transcript of evidence14 from the 8/1/2019 hearing 

in Chancery Court, defendant Story stated, "In 2018, when they made this agreement, if she 

dropped the divorce he would agree to put the house on the market. It never got on the market. It 

11 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 22, PageID.2822 
12 https:/ /rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-08-0 l _ chancery-hearing-transcript.pdf (Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF 
No. 1-24, PageID.1184 ~ ECF No. 1-25, PageID.1225), Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 22, PageID.2818-2862 
13 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 22, PageID.2822 
1
• https://rico.jefffenton.com/evidence/2019-08-0l _ chancery-hearing-transcript.pdf (Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF 

No. 1-24, PageID.1184 ~ ECF No. 1-25, PageID.1225), Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 22, PageID.2818-2862 
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was he's got to fix this, he's got to fix that. It was one excuse after another ... " 

19. This statement was false. 

20. By stating this, defendant Story violated Tenn. R. Sup. Ct. 3.3 - Candor Toward 

the Tribunal: "(a) A lawyer shall not knowingly: (1) make a false statement of fact or law to a 

tribunal." And Tenn. R. Sup. Ct. 3.4 - Fairness to Opposing Party and Counsel: "A lawyer shall 

not: (b) falsify evidence, counsel or assist a witness to offer false or misleading testimony; or ( e) in 

trial, (1) allude to any matter that the lawyer does not reasonably believe is relevant or that will not 

be supported by admissible evidence." (Unfortunately a recurring tactic by defendant Story.) 

21. It wasn't my fault that our home was never listed on the market for sale, it was my 

wife's fault, because she refused to put her own words, from our "Verbal Settlement 

Agreement15
", in writing16 and sign it. 

22. While the closing agent we were working with required a simple signed agreement 

between Ms. Fenton and myself, stating how the proceeds from the sale of our home would be 

divided and dispersed between us, before she was willing to allow Ms. Fenton to use a Specific 

Power of Attorney, which I had obtained in good faith, to allow Ms. Fenton to list and sell our home 

while only requiring my participation on the final closing documents. 

23. Selling our home was contingent upon our alimony agreement, because I needed 

the financial means to purchase or rent myself replacement housing. I never volunteered to render 

myself homeless, while it is wholly unreasonable for defendant Story to even suggest such. 

15 https:/ /www.rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2018-10-2 7 _ verbal-settlement-agreement.pdf 

16 https:/ /rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2019-01-28 _ verbal-agreement-needed-in-writing-for-closing.pdf 
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24. This wasn't about me being difficult, asking for a lot, or trying to "take advantage" 

of my wife, in any way. It was a pragmatic matter of me needing food and shelter, as well as being 

entitled to food and shelter, otherwise nobody had a lawful or ethical right to deprive me of the 

food and shelter which I already had. Yet unconscionably they did, with careless disregard for my 

life, liberty, and property. 

(5) STORY'S LIE: WIFE "HAD TO" FILE BANKRUPTCY BECAUSE HUSBAND 
FAILED/REFUSED TO SELL THEIR HOUSE AS AGREED 

25. On page-517 in lines 13-15 of the transcript of evidence18 from the 8/1/2019 hearing 

in Chancery Court, defendant Story stated, "It was one excuse after another, and here we are 

sitting a year later, and now my client had to file bankruptcy." 

26. This statement was obscenely false. 

27. Ms. Fenton never "needed" to file bankruptcy'9• It was entirely a fraudulent 

rouse20, planned for the date when she knew over a year in advance that her employer planned to 

retire and close their architecture firm 21• Purely to evade her financial responsibility22 of paying me 

$1,750 per month in alimony23 for a duration of 6-years, as repeatedly agreed24
• 

17 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 22, PageID.2822 

18 https://rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-08-01 _ chancery-hearing-transcript.pdf (Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF 
No. 1-24, PageID.1184 - ECF No. 1-25, PageID.1225), Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 22, PageID.2818-2862 

19 https:/ / rico. jefffen ton.com/ evidence/2021-01-26 _ trustees-final-account-and-distribution-report. pdf 
20 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-04-26 _ ausbrooks-story-fraudulent-bk-petition. pdf 

21 https: / / rico. jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-04-26 _ bankrupcy-planned-for-when-employer-retires.pdf 
22 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/ 2018-09-14 _fair-settlement-offer-by-wife-with-tax-truth. pdf 
23 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2018-07-12 _ arons-and-associates-divorce-planning. pdf 

2
• https:/ /rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2018-10-27 _ verbal-settlement-agreement.pdf 

ht tps:/ / rico. jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-01-08 _ wifes-claims-about-alimony-and-lawyers. pdf 
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28. Largely because of the Trump Tax Reform25, which made it so that Ms. Fenton 

could no longer write-off alimony payments, since we were unable to finalize our divorce by 

December 31"\ 2018, as we had both hoped. 

29. In a series of text messages26 with Ms. Fenton on December 22"\ 2018, discussing 

the financial impact of the Trump Tax Reform on Ms. Fenton's net income, she stated in part, 

"Correct, my tax situation is going to suck for a very long time ... 90k gross - 31k taxes - 21k 

alimony = 38k net. Plus or minus ... Someday when alimony is done, I can get a job making only 

$43k gross and have same net of+/- $38k. » 

30. The other major incentive for Ms. Fenton to file for bankruptcy, was because the 

mortgages were in her name, but she had abandoned our marital residence27 and rented herself an 

apartment in April of 201828
• As such, she had no lawful means of forcing me to move out of our 

marital residence or to compel its sale. Unfortunately, she had already decided that our marital 

residence was a financial burden on her, so she no longer wanted to keep our home29
, despite the 

tremendous loss we would both suffer from selling our home during that season30
• 

31. We had invested hundreds of thousands of dollars into improvements31
, and the 

market needed time for property appreciations to catch up and surpass our investments. This 

25 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2018-12-31 _ divorce-deadline-for-trump-tax-reform. pdf 
26 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2018-12-22 _projected-gross-taxes-alimony-net. pdf 
27 https://rico.jefffenton.com/evidence/2018-04-23 _ wife-locked-plaintiff-out-of-financial-accounts.pdf 
28 https://rico.jeflfenton.com/evidence/2018-05-02_family-budget-living-apart.pdf 
29 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2018-10-09 _ wife-does-not-want-to-keep-marital-residence. pdf 
30 https:/ /rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2019-10-10 _ chancery-no-proceeds-from-forced-auction.pdf 
31 https://rico.jefffenton.com/evidence/1986-sunnyside-property-improvement-highlights.pdf 
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happened dramatically over the four years to follow32
, appreciating roughly a hundred thousand 

dollars per year33
• But we both knew there was no way that we could sell our home in 2019 without 

suffering an extreme financial loss34
, which we had no means of compensating for or recovering 

from. 

32. Upon information and belief, unfortunately my wife's counsel coached her to 

secretly default upon our mortgage payments (which she had promised to pay35 and had been 

paying), followed by secretly filing for bankruptcy, while falsifying her bankruptcy petition36 to 

conceal my cash investment37 and ownership interests in our equally deeded38 marital residence39 

as tenancy by the entirety4°, as well as her domestic support obligations41
, paid up to and even a 

month after her fraudulent federal bankruptcy petition42 was filed. 

33. Neither me nor my two lawful roommates/tenants43 were ever given notice44 about 

Ms. Fenton's fraudulent federal bankruptcy filing, nor about the bad-faith motion by her counsel 

32 https://rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2022-01-03 _ 1986-sunnyside-brentwood-tn-appreciation.pdf 
33 https://rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2023-05-31 _ 1986-sunnyside-brentwood-tn-appreciation.pdf 

34 https://rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-10-10 _ chancery-no-proceeds-from-forced-auction.pdf 
3s https://rico.jefffenton.com/evidence/2018-05-02_ family-budget-living-apart.pdf 
36 https://rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-04-26 _ ausbrooks-story-fraudulent-bk-petition.pdf 
37 https://rico.jefffenton.com/evidence/2011-04-29 _ 1986-sunnyside-premarital-assets-invested.pdf 
38 https:/ /rico.jefffenton.com/evidence/2011-04-29 _ 1986-sunnyside-brentwood-tn-deed.pdf 
39 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/ 1986-sunnyside-brentwood-tn-2019-property-taxes. pdf 

◄0 https:/ / rico. jefffenton.com/ evidence/2011-04-29 _ fenton-marital-residence-tenancy-by-entirety. pdf 

◄ 1 https://rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-05-16 _ support-email-wife-never-mentioned-bankruptcy.pdf 
42 https://rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-04-26 _ ausbrooks-story-fraudulent-bk-petition.pdf 
43 Imps:// rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2018-08-30 _ wifes-budget-for-husband-keeping-home. pdf 

https:/ / rico. jefffenton.com/ evidence/ 2019-03-26 _ fenton-sunnyside-roommate-lease-merriman.pdf 

littps:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-04-09 _ fenton-sunnyside-roommate-lease-garcia. pdf 
44 https:/ /rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2022-03-15 _ ustp-bk-fraud-referral-confirmed-no-notice.pdf 
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to sell our marital residence. 

34. The height of absurdity in this action is the fact that in the end Ms. Fenton only 

received "bankruptcy relief' of $44,079.09 worth of claims discharged45 (after defendant Story's 

alleged debt was subtracted, since her fees were never necessary and purely procured 

unconscionable fraud.) 

35. Upon information and belief, the cost of Ms. Fenton's combined counsel for her 

bankruptcy and vexatious divorce actions must have surpassed, or at least rivalled, her alleged 

"bankruptcy relief" obtained through this absolutely unnecessary and legally unjustifiable 

fraudulent federal bankruptcy filing and forced liquidation of our marital residence46
• 

36. While irresponsibly discarding roughly two-hundred and fifty thousand dollars 

worth of our investment (including our premarital retirement funds) and equity as of the closing of 

the forced auction on October 3l5C, 2019. We have further lost roughly four hundred thousand 

dollars more in appreciation since47
• 

37. Yet defendants Story had the nerve to blame this absolutely unnecessary 

bankruptcy scam which she and defendant Ausbrooks engineered, upon me. To my own 

substantial detriment of course. This is completely unreasonable and obscenely absurd. 

◄s https:/ / rico. jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2021-01-26 _ trustees-final-account-and-distribution-report. pdf 

'
6 https://rico.jeflfenton.com/evidence/2019-10-10 _ chancery-no-proceeds-from-forced-auction.pdf 

•
1 https://rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2022-01-03 _ l 986-sunnyside-brentwood-tn-appreciation.pdf 
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(6) STORY'S LIE: HUSBAND IS AT FAULT FOR WIFE'S CREDIT CARD DEBTS 

38. On page-548 in lines 17-23 of the transcript of evidence49 from the 8/1/2019 hearing 

in Chancery Court, defendant Story stated, "She's paying $48,000 in credit card debt, and this 

credit card debt is in her name, but the genesis of those cards, I have a history of the cards where 

Mr. Fenton would transfer balances from his credit cards to a credit card in her name, and then she 

became in a horrible financial situation." 

39. In this statement defendant Story indirectly said or "insinuated" something which 

is "materially misleading", that was intentionally deceptive and demeaning to further bias the 

court, which was substantially false (if not entirely), and met the Tennessee Supreme Court's own 

definition for "fraud" and "fraudulent". 

40. This point touches upon one of the most egregious issues of fraud committed on 

both the Chancery and Bankruptcy Courts in the associated cases by Ms. Fenton's counsel, the 

idea that we financially operated in marriage as if two independent and separate persons. That 

could not have been more false. 

41. Ms. Fen ton and I lived under the spiritual, financial, and legal principle50 of « the 

two becoming one atmarriage 11
1 referred to as "Tenancy by Entirety 11

• Throughout the entire duration 

of our marriage. All of our income, assets and debts were always held as one "tenancy by entirety". 

Regardless of whose name any were technically in. Those choices were strategically for the benefit 

' 8 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 22, PagelD.2822 

•
9 https:/ /rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2019-08-01 _ chancery-hearing-transcript.pdf (Case 1 :23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF 

No. 1-24, PagelD.1184 - ECF No. 1-25, PagelD.1225), Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 22, PagelD.2818-2862 
50 https:/ /bwp.tnble.org/wp-content/uploads/2019 /09 /Property-Law.pdf 
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of both of us, whether for preferential interest rates, risk mitigation, etc ... Most things were a matter 

of whether we held them in our "left pocket" vs our "right pocket". Not whether they were 

"hers" or "mine". (There were some very minor sentimental and premarital exceptions.) 

(7) STORY'S LIE: HUSBAND HACKED WIFE'S EMPLOYER, SO HE WAS FIRED 

42. On page-651 in lines 1-3 of the transcript of evidence52 from the 8/1/2019 hearing 

in Chancery Court, defendant Story stated, "She is an architect, works for a firm, and Mr. Fen ton 

was the IT person for the firm, and he hacked the emails so he lost that job." 

43. That statement was false. 

44. I don't even know how to "hack" a computer or network. 

45. I voluntarily terminated my contract working for Ms. Fen ton's employer53, because 

I was fed-up feeling like he was taking advantage of both myself and my wife, while not keeping his 

promises, being extremely cheap, and having poor financial integrity. 

46. Ms. Fenton told me many times that in regard to contracts bid on by her company, 

including significant government and education contracts, that her boss would low bid jobs to 

"win" or be awarded the contracts. Then later down the road, her employer would use add-ons, 

change orders, or something substantially similar, to charge them enough for what they ultimately 

wanted. 

47. Ms. Fenton told me many times, that one of her employers' favorite sayings was, 

51 Case l:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 22, PageID.2823 

52 https://rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-08·01 _ chancery-hearing-transcript.pdf (Case l:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF 
No. 1-24, PageID.1184 ~ ECF No. 1-25, PageID.1225), Case l:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 22, PagelD.2818-2862 
53 lmps://rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2017-04-27 _ voluntarily-terminated-contract-with-wifes-firm.pdf 
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"If we don 1t lie to them1 then someone else will. 11 

48. Ms. Fenton told me many times that her employer playfully said, chanted, or sang 

those words in their office. 

49. That is a philosophy and business model which both I and my ex-wife found 

repulsive. 

50. Ms. Fenton told me many times that her employer was "slow pay" with many 

industry professionals, and that some of her favorite engineers and other trade professionals she 

had worked with in years past, refused to work for her employer, because of his failure to timely 

pay them. 

51. I also experienced problems with being nickel and <limed and timely paid by her 

employer, though less than other professionals, since my wife was essentially her boss's 

"operations manager" and "lead architect". 

52. My wife's employer (Mr. Ken Adkisson) promised her a partnership for years, 

when business was slow after the 2007-2008 market crash, to persuade Ms. Fenton not to leave 

their company and seek employment at a larger firm. Yet I never saw him make good on any of 

those promises to her, except after I confronted him in an email54 on March 28th , 2017, after he 

gave Ms. Fenton her annual payroll review on March 2211\ 2017, with exactly a zero percent raise. 

53. I found that highly insulting on her behalf, knowing the prosperity of the company 

during that season, combined with the critical role my wife played in that firm, and the weight she 

5
' Imps:/ /rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2017-04-06 _ wifes-belated-raise-after-protest.pdf 
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carried on her shoulders to meet demanding deadlines, often working significant amounts of 

unrewarded overtime, adding more stress into our home life. 

54. After I confronted Mr. Adkisson about his failure to show his appreciation for my 

wife, and the value she provides both to his company and his life, on April 6th, 2017, Mr. Adkisson 

gave Ms. Fenton a thirteen percent raise55
, in the amount of $10,154.64 per year increase in her 

salary. 

55. Unfortunately, after Mr. Adkisson gave my wife the raise, he began talking trash 

about me around their office, upsetting my wife, at which point I had my fill of working for 

Adkisson & Associates Architects, Inc. 

56. On April 271", 2017, I emailed56 Mr. Ken Adkisson and I voluntarily terminated my 

IT contract with their firm, while assisting their company in a peaceful transition to a new IT firm 

or vend er of their choice, without ever causing any damage to their office computers or network. 

57. At 4:01pm on April 271
", 2017, Mr. Ken Adkisson emailed me back57 in response to 

my termination notice and stated, "Thank you Jeff, we certainly appreciated your efforts. Good 

luck in the future." 

58. I saved Adkisson & Associates Architects Inc. tens-of-thousands of dollars, by 

prolonging the life of outdated systems and software with preventative maintenance and upgrades, 

rather than replacements, with almost no downtime since I performed my work overnight, while 

55 https://rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2017-04-06 _ wifes-belated-raise-after-protest.pdf 
56 https://rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2017-04-27 _ voluntarily-terminated-contract-with-wifes-firm.pdf 
57 https: / / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/ 2017-04-27 _ voluntarily-terminated-contract-with-wifes-firm. pdf 
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only charging them a fraction of" standard industry rates" which they paid both before my employ 

and after. 

59. To say or insinuate that I did anything malicious to this company is obscene. 

(8) STORY'S LIE: HUSBAND IS A "SELF-TAUGHT COMPUTER GENIUS" 

60. On page-658 in lines 3-6 of the transcript of evidence59 from the 8/1/2019 hearing 

in Chancery Court, while referring to me, defendant Story stated, "He is very intelligent. He has 

a high school education, but he is a self-taught computer genius." 

61. This statement was false. 

62. I have only a "hobby" skill level in computers. 

63. I ' m not any sort of" genius" nor have I ever been accused of such. 

64. I was told that I scored 100 on an IQ test as a teenager, which to my understanding 

is baseline average. 

65. I have a number of vocationally challenging disabilities60
, including Obsessive 

Compulsive Personality Disorder (OCPD), Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD), 

and Generalized Anxiety Disorder (GAD), which significantly hinder my vocational pursuits more 

than any intelligence factor could ever benefit me. 

66. In large part, this means that I am extremely slow, studied, and repetitive in the 

work that I perform. I am a perfectionist who values doing things "right", over speed, at all costs. 

58 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 22, PagelD.2823 
59 https://rico.jefffenton.com/evidence/2019-08-01 _ chancery-hearing-transcript.pdf (Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF 
No. 1-24, PagelD.1184 - ECF No. 1-25, PagelD.1225), Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 22, PagelD.2818-2862 
60 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2020-07-08 _ tnsc-coa-ada-request-for-modification.pdf 
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While being unable to effectively "multi-task" more than one significant task, pursuit, or project 

at a time. 

67. In a text message61 from my wife on January 23, 2019, Ms. Fenton stated in 

significant part, "I used to always think of you like you were riding a stationary exercise bicycle; 

peddling furiously, working so hard, but going nowhere." 

68. This has never been for any lack of work or effort on my part. 

69. In another text message62 from my wife on February 91
", 2019, Ms. Fenton stated, 

"I don't know how to answer your question right now. I hate it when you ask me to choose what 

you "should" work on, since you can't multi task." 

70. Those two texts reveal my wife's two most significant pet-peeves about both my 

disabilities and my vocational potential. We both expected that with her MIT education and her 

advanced accreditations as a licensed professional architect, with that she had two to three times 

the vocational potential of what I could ever realistically reach. I never misrepresented my potential 

or my worth either. 

71. Most of my vocational experience is in working in food service and in running large 

commercial printing presses. In the United States the commercial printing industry has almost all 

but become extinct over the past twenty years. For me to be able to qualify for any reasonably 

rewarding job, I need to obtain some sort of technical certification or skill first, where there are 

meaningful opportunities within the geography that I have now been forced to live. 

61 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-01-23 _ riding-an-exercise-bicycle-peddling-furiously. pdf 
62 https:/ / rico. jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-02-09 _ wife-hates-that-plaintiff-can-not-multi-task. pdf 
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72. I had probably 20x the vocational opportunities63 , living in my home in Brentwood 

Tennessee, then I have now in Michigan, or than I expect will ever be within my reach again. 

73. My primary vocational experience working with computers for money was in my 

contract with Ms. Fenton 's architecture firm, but despite the outstanding service I gave them and 

the amount of money I saved their firm, because of the divorce neither my ex-wife nor her employer 

will provide me with a reference, which leaves me both with no education and no vocational 

experience to speak of. 

74. The only way I was able to obtain the IT contract for Ms. Fenton's architecture 

firm was because of her employment, trust, and role in that company. Combined with the fact that 

I knew what their problems were as well as how much they had paid for completely unsatisfactory 

solutions. 

75. Armed with that knowledge and nightly access due to my wife's trust and role in 

the company, I was able to meet their needs (which were otherwise unmet, extremely cost 

prohibitive, for essentially emergency triage IT services upon complete failure), while performing 

"hobby" level routine maintenance and service, preventing failures, while prolonging the life of 

their equipment. Plus, I only charged approximately one third of typical industry rates. 

76. I doubt that I could even qualify for an entry level IT job with another company 

without first going back to school to obtain some sort of technical certification. Even then, with my 

age and disabilities, my potential is quite limited. 

63 Imps:/ /rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/201 7-2021 _ census-brentwood-tennessee-v-fenton-michigan.pdf 
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(9) STORY'S LIE: WE'VE GOT AT AX LIABILITY FROM 2016 

77. On page-664 in lines 12-13 of the transcript of evidence65 from the 8/1/2019 hearing 

in Chancery Court, defendant Story stated, " . .. we've got a tax liability from 2-2016, standing out 

there." 

78. Followed in line 17 by defendant Story stating, "So we have woes, IRS woes." 

79. Those statements were both false66
• 

80. Those statements were both literally the opposite of the truth. 

81. Again, defendant Story materially misrepresented the financial structure of our 

family, pretending that our finances were separate while fraudulently concealing the fact that any 

monies previously paid to the IRS or owed to the IRS for back tax years, were equally Ms. Fen ton's 

and mine, to gain or lose, not either one of us independently. 

82. There was a planned tax credit on our account for 2016 with the IRS, never a 

liability of any sort. The IRS even paid me $174.43 in interest for our 2016 tax credit in 2021, 

when the IRS reopened after being locked-down for COVID-19. 

83. For more evidence to substantiate my claims, please see Ms. Fenton's own words 

from a settlement offer that she made me67
, when she was still operating in good faith, before hiring 

def end ant Story. 

64 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 22, PagelD.2823 

65 https://rico.jeflTenton.com/ evidence/2019-08-01 _ chancery-hearing-transcript.pdf (Case 1 :23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF 
No. 1-24, PagelD.1184 - ECF No. 1-25, PagelD.1225), Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 22, PagelD.2818-2862 

66 Imps:// rico. jeflTenton.com/ evidence/2016-2017 _ fenton-family-irs-tax-credit-refunds-with-interest. pdf 
67 https:/ / rico.jeflTenton.com/ evidence/2018-09-14 _ fair-settlement-offer-by-wife-with-tax-truth.pdf 
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84. I received a tax refund from the IRS for 2016 in the amount of $5,619.36. "Color" 

it as you like, that is definitely not a "tax liability" as falsely testified by defendant Story in open 

court on 8/1/2019. 

(10) STORY'S LIE: MS. FENTON COULD PROBABLY BE AN INNOCENT SPOUSE 

85. In response to defendant Story's fraudulent claims about an outstanding tax 

liability, on page-768 of this same transcript of evidence69, in lines 7-8, defendant Binkley asked, "Is 

the IRS going to be intercepting this money?" 

86. Followed shortly thereafter on the same page, defendant Binkley asked in lines 20-21, 

"Any possibility she could be an innocent spouse?" 

87. On page-770 in lines 23, 25 and line 1 of page-8, of the transcript of evidence71 from 

the 8/1/2019 hearing in Chancery Court, defendant Story stated, "She could probably, but ... at 

this point, your Honor, she just needs the burden of all the debt off her mentally ... " 

88. That statement was false. 

89. That statement is a fraudulent misrepresentation of many things, including the 

financial structure of our family, the source of her indebtedness, as well as our standing with the 

IRS, my good skills and stewardship in the management of our income taxes, and my good 

character in general as a person and husband who was an equal partner. 

68 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 22, PagelD.2824 

69 https:/ /rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-08-01 _ chancery-hearing-transcriptpdf (Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF 
No. 1-24, PagelD.1184 - ECF No. 1-25, PagelD.1225), Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 22, PagelD.2818-2862 

;o Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 22, PagelD.2824 

71 https://rico.jefffenton.com/evidence/2019-08-01_ chancery-hearing-transcript.pdf (Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF 
No. 1-24, PagelD.1184 - ECF No. 1-25, PagelD.1225), Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 22, PagelD.2818-2862 
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90. I received a tax refund from the IRS for 2017 in the amount of $3,112.62. Which I 

amicably split with Ms. Fenton72 in good faith, while trusting her to mail me a check for $1,556.00 

(which she did) after I endorsed the $3,112.62 check from the IRS and mailed it to her, along with 

a letter to her bank, authorizing her to cash our joint check from our 2017 income tax refund. 

91. Moreover, I received an interest statement from the IRS for the $174.43 in interest 

paid to me by the IRS. 

92. Managing our income taxes is one of my best skills and attributes, admitted openly 

by my ex-wife prior to this charade. Yet defendants Story and Binkley colored it to fraudulently 

belittle and defame my character beyond belief, with absolutely no regard for the truth or the rules 

of professional conduct. 

93. Defendant Story's motive is clear, as is defendant Binkley's bias, in the fact that he 

refused/failed to do his job and provide a tribunal free of misconduct, discrimination, harassment, 

and abuse, where both parties had an equal opportunity to be fairly heard, considered, protected, 

and to benefit from the judicial process. 

(11) STORY'S LIE: PROJECTED SALES PRICES, USING A DISHONEST 
BAIT & SWITCH TACTIC 

94. On page-473 in lines 11-12 of the transcript of evidence74 from the 8/1/2019 hearing 

in Chancery Court, defendant Story stated, "We believe that house should sell in the neighborhood 

72 

73 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 22, PagelD.2821 

74 https:/ / rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2019-08-01 _ chancery-hearing-transcript.pdf (Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF 
No. 1-24, PagelD.1184 ~ ECF No. 1-25, PagelD.1225), Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 22, PagelD.2818-2862 
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of 414,000 we hope." 

95. This statement was used to deceive the court, as part of a "bait and switch" scheme 

by defendant Story. $414,000 was the estimated retail "as is" market sales price for the property, 

ifit were listed on the market with a real estate agent. But that is not how defendant Story demanded 

that the property be sold. 

96. By stating this, defendant Story violated Tenn. R. Sup. Ct. 8.4 - MISCONDUCT: 

"It is professional misconduct for a lawyer to: (c) engage in conduct involving dishonesty, fraud, 

deceit, or misrepresentation". 

97. On page 875
, lines 14-15, defendant Story stated, "We really believe the only thing 

we can do, your Honor, is to auction this house." 

98. By stating this, defendant Story violated Tenn. R. Sup. Ct. 3.4 - Fairness to 

Opposing Party and Counsel: "A lawyer shall not: (e) in trial, (1) allude to any matter that the 

lawyer does not reasonably believe is relevant or that will not be supported by admissible evidence; 

or (2) assert personal knowledge of facts in issue except when testifying as a witness; or (3) state a 

personal opinion as to the justness of a cause, the credibility of a witness, the culpability of a civil 

litigant or the guilt or innocence of an accused". 

75 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 22, PagelD.2825 
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I THINK WITHOUT RESERVE,JUST LET IT GO 

99. To which defendant Binkley asked in lines 18-19, "Could this be with reserve or 

without reserve?)) 

100. Defendant Story answered in lines 20-2176, "I think without reserve, just let it go." 

101. While that decision was likely to produce a final sales price which was 25-35% below 

the price of a typical market sale. As such, defendant Story's projected sales price should have been 

adjusted to be in alignment with the relief that she requested, but it was not. It was instead 

strategically deceptive, and hence a "bait and switch" fraud on the court. 

102. This also shows both defendant Story's position as well as that of her client Ms. 

Fenton toward the marital residence, "just let it go." That was exactly what they did, without 

being of any benefit whatsoever to either of the property owners, which I believe was the 

defendant's expectation and goal from the start. 

103. Ms. Fenton was willing to forfeit the property to evade the financial responsibility 

of mortgage payments and alimony. 

104. The defendants were interested in stealing the property and siphoning as much 

equity, professional fees and opportunity out of it as possible, which they did. 

76 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 22, PageID.2825 
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(12) STORY'S LIE: PRETENDING THERE WAS A JUSTIFIABLE BENEFIT TO THE 
COURT FORCING THE SALE OF OUR PROPERTY, WHEN THERE WAS NOT 

105. Since all that they wanted was to discard and be alleviated of the financial 

responsibility of the property, the court should have allowed me to continue living in my home and 

to take over the mortgage payments and bills associated with the property, as I had requested. 

106. That property was the sum total of both my life savings and my premarital 

retirement funds, as well as the same for my ex-wife. 

107. Defendant Story proposed the forced sale to the court while providing a retail "as 

is" market price, but in the end, she demanded a wholesale auction with no minimum price. That 

is fraud. 

108. The purpose of this was to make it sound as if there would be some benefit to myself 

and my wife if the court forced the sale of our home. When in fact, it did not place a dollar into 

either of our pockets, while forcibly rendering myself unnecessarily homeless and destitute, while 

liquidating and discarding the only asset of real value in both of our lives, besides my wife 's 

education and vocational potential, with no means of compensating for or recovering from such an 

overwhelming loss. 
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(13) STORY'S LIE: THE PROBLEM WITH A PRIVATE REAL TOR 

109. On the bottom of page-477 in lines 21-25, of the transcript of evidence78 from the 

8/1/2019 hearing in Chancery Court, defendant Story stated, "The problem with the private 

realtor is that Mr. Fenton posts these kind of documents that are -- this is the do not enter my 

property, and I'll hand you a copy of that." 

110. That statement was absurdly false. 

111. This was part of defendant Story's "fraudulent narrative" and smear campaign to 

assassinate my character, to abusively bias the court against me, absent of truth, facts, and 

honorable testimony. 

112. By making this statement, defendant Story violated the Tennessee Supreme 

Court's Rules of Professional Conduct by testifying as a witness, without any firsthand knowledge, 

while making entirely false and bias statements to mislead the court. 

113. Defendant Story again violated Tenn. R. Sup. Ct. 3.4 - Fairness to Opposing Party 

and Counsel: "A lawyer shall not: (e) in trial, (1) allude to any matter that the lawyer does not 

reasonably believe is relevant or that will not be supported by admissible evidence; or (2) assert 

personal knowledge of facts in issue except when testifying as a witness; or (3) state a personal 

opinion as to the justness of a cause, the credibility of a witness, the culpability of a civil litigant or 

the guilt or innocence of an accused". 

114. Defendant Binkley not only allowed defendant Story to abusively bias the court with 

77 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 22, PagelD.2821 
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harassing and fraudulent claims without meaningful merit, but defendant Binkley assisted 

defendant Story in her vexatious and unethical tactics, depriving me of any chance to be heard by 

an equal and impartial tribunal. 

115. I was a licensed real estate agent in the State of Tennessee for 16 ½ years, with 

access to hundreds of millions of dollars' worth of Middle Tennessee real estate, without one single 

complaint filed against me throughout my career. 

116. I was a highly skilled and capable residential real estate "listing agent". I was able 

to market and sell properties in Middle Tennessee for top-dollar, as good if not better than anyone 

else who my wife and I had knowledge and experience working with. 

117. If ever my ex-wife and I had reached terms by which we could sell our home 

amicably together, then I would have removed any signage which might have hindered the full sales 

potential of our property. It is both obscene and unsubstantiated to suggest otherwise. 

(14) STORY'S LIE: IT'S A TOXIC MARRIAGE 

118. On page-879 in line 6, of the transcript of evidence80 from the 8/1/2019 hearing in 

Chancery Court, defendant Story stated, "It's a toxic marriage." 

119. That statement was false. 

120. In truth, it was a "toxic divorce", because in the end Ms. Fenton and her counsel 

refused to operate honestly in good faith or allow any division by which we both had a fair chance 

; 9 Case l:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK , ECF No. 22, PagelD.2825 
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at rebuilding our lives. 

121. Once again, this was defendant Story "testifying as a witness" to something which 

she was never a witness to. That is a repeated theme throughout each hearing. 

122. Regardless of whether or not defendant Story's claimed "merits" contain any truth 

or not (while most did not), the language used by defendant Story to harshly bias the court against 

me was a clearly unethical violation of the State of Tennessee's Rules of Professional Conduct, 

because it was unfair to the opposing party and counsel, 81 while being prejudicial to the administration 

ofjustice.82 

123. My wife would have never stayed with me for fifteen years (thirteen married and 

two prior) if we had a "toxic marriage". Especially since she made the majority of the money in our 

family and could have easily left me anytime that she wanted. 

124. Ms. Fenton was not bound by anything other than the life, liberty, and happiness 

which she found in our marriage. 

125. It is unreasonable to believe otherwise, based solely upon her testimony or that of 

her attorney, after the relationship had ended, as part of contested divorce action, where critical 

decisions affecting her financial future hung in the balance. 

126. Discovery was needed to fairly substantiate any such claims, while meaningful 

81 Tenn. R. Sup. Ct. 3.4 - Fairness to Opposing Party and Counsel: "A lawyer shall not: (e) in trial, (1) allude to any matter that 
the lawyer does not reasonably believe is relevant or that will not be supported by admissible evidence; or (2) assert personal 
knowledge of facts in issue except when testifying as a witness; or (3) state a personal opinion as to the justness of a cause, the 
credibility of a witness, the culpability of a civil litigant or the guilt or innocence of an accused". 
82 Tenn. R. Sup. Ct. 8.4 - Rule 8.4 - MISCONDUCT: " It is professional misconduct for a lawyer to: (c) engage in conduct 
involving dishonesty, fraud, deceit, or misrepresentation; (d) engage in conduct that is prejudicial to the administration of justice". 
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evidence needed to be produced from throughout the term of our marriage, not just since Ms. 

Fenton had abandoned our marital residence and decided to get a divorce. 

127. Furthermore, no such production of evidence should have been taken as if a matter 

of fact by the court without allowing the other party [me] to produce evidence of my own, to cross 

examine their claims, and to be equally heard before reaching any substantial conclusions about 

facts which were clearly disputed and so critical to the outcome of the case. 

128. The court never allowed discovery to begin. Defendant Story never honestly, 

ethically, or fairly introduced, discussed, or argued any real issues from our marriage, which 

subsequently lead to our divorce. 

129. It was entirely a smear campaign. An unethical character assassination, intended to 

cloud the facts and the laws while I was illegally deprived of my critical and essential property 

interests, needed to simply survive and rebuild any sort of financially independent life again. In 

stark violation of the State of Tennessee's Rules of Judicial and Professional Conduct. 

(15) STORY'S LIE: IT'S BEEN UNBELIEVABLY DIFFICULT JUST DEALING 
WITH MR. FENTON 

130. On page-883 in lines 6-8, of the transcript of evidence84 from the 8/1/2019 hearing 

in Chancery Court, defendant Story stated, "It's been unbelievably difficult just dealing with Mr. 

Fenton to even get him served." 

131. That statement was false. 
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132. Defendant Story repeatedly and abusively served me, over and over, to bully, 

intimidate, harass, stalk, and abuse me via the courts, as she continued throughout the entire case. 

133. By stating this, defendant Story violated Tenn. R. Sup. Ct. 3.3 - Candor Toward 

the Tribunal: "(a) A lawyer shall not knowingly: (1) make a false statement of fact or law to a 

tribunal." And Tenn. R. Sup. Ct. 3.4 - Fairness to Opposing Party and Counsel: "A lawyer shall 

not: (b) falsify evidence, counsel or assist a witness to offer false or misleading testimony; or ( e) in 

trial, (1) allude to any matter that the lawyer does not reasonably believe is relevant or that will not 

be supported by admissible evidence." 

134. This was also a "non-issue", being mentioned by defendant Story to fabricate a 

fraudulent court record, in alignment with her fraudulent narrative, which was based upon her 

fraudulent misrepresentation of my person and my character, as well as the circumstances which 

gave rise to our divorce. 

135. Regardless of whether anything defendant Story said in court was in fact true or 

false (while I'm providing clear evidence here that most was false), almost every sentence she 

spoke was a flagrant violation of the Tennessee Supreme Court's Rules of Professional Conduct. 

136. Upon information and belief, everything done in the Chancery Court was literally a 

"strategic distraction" to cloud the ruling facts and laws being violated by the courts and counsel. 

137. Attorney Story continued violating the State of Tennessee 's Rules of Professional 

Conduct throughout almost every sentence she spoke during this hearing on 8/1/2019. 

138. If necessary, I will try to document each and every violation, but it is obscenely 

overwhelming. At what point is defendant Story deemed a discredited liar by the court, so that I 
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no longer must prove every single sentence of my testimony, for fear of my case being dismissed 

for lack of meaningful merits? Once again, I beg the court to intervene and help the obviously 

injured party receive justice, instead of allowing Ms. Story's crimes to continue to be covered-up 

because I'm simply incapable of procedurally defeating her without the court prioritizing my 

natural human and constitutional rights over technicalities and procedures, while demanding that 

any definition for justice include honesty, truth, honor, and good-faith pleadings. 

139. The court is likewise charged with the responsibility to take action and discipline 

both attorney and judicial misconduct, while I have gone to tremendous pains to provide the court 

with an abundance of irrefutable evidence clearly showing defendant Story has unquestionably lied 

over and over and over. I am likewise in the process of proving to the court that the other 

defendants in this case, with only a few exceptions, have been made aware of the attorney and 

judicial misconduct in my case, and have violated their oaths of office, along with the codes of 

conduct requiring the courts to self-police and report misconduct by other officers of the court. I 

tried everything known within my power for years struggling to obtain the slightest cure, simply so 

I could move forward with my life, obtain the vocational training and employment needed to begin 

rebuilding my life, so that I not end up homeless or be a liability upon my family or the government, 

neither of which was ever an issue until the defendants herein ambushed me. Unfortunately, most 

of the people named in this complaint absolutely refused me the most miniscule humanitarian 

consideration, as eventually you will see, so I have been left with no choice but to litigate as if my 

life depends upon it, because it literally does. 
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TENNESSEE SUPREME COURT RULES OF JUDICIAL CONDUCT 

TENN. R. SUP. CT. I.I - COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAW 

140. A judge shall comply with the law, including the Code of Judicial Conduct. 

TENN. R. SUP. CT. 1.2 - PROMOTING CONFIDENCE IN THE JUDICIARY 

141. A judge shall act at all times in a manner that promotes public confidence in the 

independence, integrity, and impartiality of the judiciary, and shall avoid impropriety and the 

appearance of impropriety. 

TENN. R. SUP. CT. 2.2 - IMPARTIALITY AND FAIRNESS 

142. A judge shall uphold and apply the law, and shall perform all duties of judicial office 

fairly and impartially. 

► [1] To ensure impartiality and fairness to all parties, a judge must be objective 

and open-minded. 

TENN. R. SUP. CT. 2.3 - BIAS, PREJUDICE, AND HARASSMENT 

143. (A) A judge shall perform the duties of judicial office, including administrative 

duties, without bias or prejudice. 

144. (B) A judge shall not, in the performance of judicial duties, by words or conduct 

manifest bias or prejudice, or engage in harassment, including but not limited to bias, prejudice, or 

harassment based upon race, sex, gender, religion, national origin, ethnicity, disability, age, sexual 

orientation, marital status, socioeconomic status, or political affiliation, and shall not permit court 

staff, court officials, or others subject to the judge's direction and control to do so. 
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145. (C) A judge shall require lawyers in proceedings before the court to refrain from 

manifesting bias or prejudice, or engaging in harassment, based upon attributes including but not 

limited to race, sex, gender, religion, national origin, ethnicity, disability, age, sexual orientation, 

marital status, socioeconomic status, or political affiliation, against parties, witnesses, lawyers, or 

others. 

► [1] A judge who manifests bias or prejudice in a proceeding impairs the fairness 

of the proceeding and brings the judiciary into disrepute. 

TENN. R. SUP. CT. 2.4 - EXTERNAL INFLUENCES ON JUDICIAL CONDUCT 

146. (A) A judge shall not be swayed by partisan interests, public clamor or fear of 

criticism. 

147. (B) A judge shall not permit family, social, political, financial, or other interests or 

relationships to influence the judge's judicial conduct or judgment. 

► [1] An independent judiciary requires that judges decide cases according 

to the law and facts, without regard to whether particular laws or litigants 

are popular or unpopular with the public, the media, government officials, 

or the judge's friends or family. Confidence in the judiciary is eroded if 

judicial decision making is perceived to be subject to inappropriate outside 

influences. 

TENN. R. SUP. CT. 2.5 - COMPETENCE, DILIGENCE, AND COOPERATION 

148. (A) A judge shall perform judicial and administrative duties competently, promptly 

Page 36 of82 

Initials: ~ 

https://rico.jefffenton.com/evidence/2019-08-01_hearing-professional-and-judicial-misconduct.pdf Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK (FENTON v. STORY et al.) 

Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK   ECF No. 33,  PageID.3345   Filed 03/25/24   Page 36 of 49



and diligently. 

TENN. R. SUP. CT. 2.6 - ENSURING THE RIGHT TO BE HEARD 

149. (A) A judge shall accord to every person who has a legal interest in a proceeding, or 

that person's lawyer, the right to be heard according to law. 

150. (B) A judge may encourage settlement of disputed matters in a proceeding but shall 

not act in a manner that coerces any party into settlement. A judge who participates in a judicial 

settlement conference shall not preside over the trial or any other contested issue in that matter. 

► [1] The right to be heard is an essential component of a fair and impartial 

system of justice. Substantive rights of litigants can be protected only if 

procedures protecting the right to be heard are observed. 

TENN. R. SUP. CT. 2.8 - DECORUM, DEMEANOR, AND COMMUNICATION WITH 

JURORS 

151. (A) A judge shall require order and decorum in proceedings before the court. 

152. (B) A judge shall be patient, dignified, and courteous to litigants, jurors, witnesses, 

lawyers, court staff, court officials, and others with whom the judge deals in an official capacity, 

and shall require similar conduct of lawyers, court staff, court officials, and others subject to the 

judge's direction and control. 

TENN. R. SUP. CT. 2.9 -EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS 

153. (A) A judge shall not initiate, permit, or consider ex parte communications, or 

consider other communications made to the judge outside the presence of the parties or their 
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lawyers, concerning a pending or impending matter, except as follows: 

154. (1) When circumstances require it, ex parte communication for scheduling, 

administrative, or emergency purposes, which does not address substantive matters, is permitted, 

provided: 

155. (a) the judge reasonably believes that no party will gain procedural, substantive, or 

tactical advantage as a result of the ex parte communication; and 

156. (b) the judge makes provision promptly to notify all other parties of the substance 

of the ex parte communication, and gives the parties an opportunity to respond. 

TENN. R. SUP. CT. 2.12 - SUPERVISORY DUTIES 

157. (A) A judge shall require court staff, court officials, and others subject to the judge's 

direction and control to act in a manner consistent with the judge's obligations under this Code. 

► [1] A judge is responsible for his or her own conduct and for the conduct of 

others, such as staff, when those persons are acting at the judge's direction or 

control. A judge may not direct court personnel to engage in conduct on the 

judge's behalf or as the judge's representative when such conduct would violate 

the Code if undertaken by the judge. 

TENN. R. SUP. CT. 2.15 - RESPONDING TO JUDICIAL AND LA WYER 

MISCONDUCT: 

158. (A) A judge having knowledge that another judge has committed a violation of this 

Code that raises a substantial question regarding the judge's honesty, trustworthiness, or fitness as 

a judge in other respects shall inform the appropriate authority. 
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159. (B) A judge having knowledge that a lawyer has committed a violation of the Rules 

of Professional Conduct that raises a substantial question regarding the lawyer's honesty, 

trustworthiness, or fitness as a lawyer in other respects shall inform the appropriate authority. 

160. (C) A judge who receives information indicating a substantial likelihood that 

another judge has committed a violation of this Code shall take appropriate action. 

161. (D) A judge who receives information indicating a substantial likelihood that a 

lawyer has committed a violation of the Rules of Professional Conduct shall take appropriate 

action. 

► [1] Taking action to address known misconduct is a judge's obligation. 

Paragraphs (A) and (B) impose an obligation on the judge to report to the 

appropriate disciplinary authority the known misconduct of another judge or a 

lawyer that raises a substantial question regarding the honesty, trustworthiness, 

or fitness of that judge or lawyer. 

► [2] A judge who does not have actual knowledge that another judge or a lawyer 

may have committed misconduct, but receives information indicating a 

substantial likelihood of such misconduct, is required to take appropriate action 

under paragraphs (C) and (D). 

CANON 3 (B)(3) 

162. A judge should take or initiate appropriate disciplinary measures against a judge or 

lawyer for unprofessional conduct of which the judge may become aware. 

163. Had defendant Binkley obeyed his oath of office, the federal Canons, and the 
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Tennessee Supreme Court's Rules of Judicial Conduct, he would have required defendant Story to 

stop slinging bias, harassment, and abuse around his court room. He would have prohibited her from 

"testifying as a witness)) to nearly everything that she said in court, when she clearly was a witness 

to none of it. He would have corrected her and/ or disciplined her when she made completely false 

statements about matters of law. He would have never decided to order the forced deprivation of my 

property during the very first hearing, before discovery began. Without allowing my counsel even one 

week to prepare my defense, due to the negligence of my prior counsel who failed to perform, at 

absolutely no fault of my own. Especially when the court knew that such an order would literally 

render me homeless, destitute, unemployed, and unemployable, while discarding hundreds of thousands 

of dollars) worth of my critical and essential, hard earned and irreplaceable property interests, 

without affording me an opportunity to save my property interests, or at the very least to mitigate my 

losses in my property interests, prior to the forced deprivation of my life's work, investments, and 

wealth, without one dollar to my benefit. 

164. Had defendant Binkley acted ethically and legally, he would have exercised care, 

caution, and adequate protection for my property interests and my only stream of income, at that 

time. As well as over my tenants legitimate leasehold property interests. Allowing all the affected 

parties to perform discovery and be fully heard before harming a single one of us. He would not 

have exercised jurisdiction over property, which the state courts were specifically prohibited from 

exercising jurisdiction over, by federal law, because it had been included in a federal bankruptcy 

estate, while the property was core to the bankruptcy filing itself. All which defendant Binkley 

reasonably should have known. 
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165. Especially when the bankruptcy was filed and the estate formed 39-days before any 

action was filed in the Chancery Court, clearly giving the federal courts both original and exclusive 

jurisdiction over the marital residence. These were routine matters oflaw, which the "members of 

the court" all reasonably should have known) while I believe they did, but they refused to respect and 

obey the law. 

166. Had defendant Binkley obeyed his oath of office, he would have demonstrated 

respect for my constitutional rights, bankruptcy laws, and care or interest in me obtaining a fair 

divorce and having an opportunity to rebuild my life and survive without becoming geographically 

displaced by hundreds of miles or becoming a financial liability upon my family or the government. 

Neither had ever been the case previously, and neither should have been the case moving forward, 

but some care and justice was needed to protect me. 

167. Had defendant Binkley obeyed the State of Tennessee's Rules of Judicial Conduct, 

he would have required defendant Story to speak in court, in a manner which complied with the 

Tennessee Supreme Court's Rules of Professional Conduct, thereby maintaining a neutral, unbiased, 

and impartial atmosphere in the court, where honest issues could be heard and justice were possible. 

Unfortunately, he did not. 

168. I'm going to skip ahead now, in hopes of not losing the attention of the reader, to 

point out an even more significant problem during this hearing, than strategic misconduct and 

fraudulent character assassination. 
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0 FALSE CLAIM OF LAW: WE DIDN'T SIGN A LEASE - WE DIDN'T AUTHORIZE 

ANY RENTERS - THE RENTERS NEED TO GO 

E-1 (9:8-12): 

8 with. So he's going to say that he doesn't have 

9 anyplace to live85, and that he has renters86• He has 

10 gotten renters in there. Well, we didn't sign a 

11 lease87• We never authorized any renters88 to be in 

12 that house. I think the renters need to go. 

169. Defendant Story's statement, «J think the renters need to go. 11 is a clear violation of 

Tenn. R. Sup. Ct. 3.4 - Fairness to Opposing Party and Counsel (e) in trial, (3) state a personal 

opinion as to the justness of a cause1 the credibility of a witness, the culpability of a civil litigant or the 

guilt or innocence of an accused,,. 

IT DOES NOT MA TIER WHAT DEFENDANT STORY THINKS 

170. It does not matter what defendant Story "thinks,,, she is not allowed to project her 

opinions in court. It is the judge's job solely to make conclusions oflaw. 

171. Defendant Story clearly sought to (and succeeded at) influencing judge Binkley by 

means prohibited by law. By violating the Rules of Professional Conduct and slinging her 

85 See attached exhibit Tenn. Code§ 39-16-507, Tenn. Code§ 39-16-503, Tenn. Code§ 29-41-101 §§ 106, 3, along with Which 
is TRUE, without me being forced out of the State of TN, which is illegal & unethical since SHE summoned me to participate in 
multiple legal actions. Yet they still do. Filing DEFAULTS! 

86 Which is TRUE, and my ONLY Source of Provision by which to be able to remain in Tennessee, at this specific juncture. After 
my ex-wife stopped all support, without NOTICE, at Story's que. 
87 Fraudulently implying that I could not legally enter a lease without my ex-wife's permission and signature. Which is a false 
representation of MATTERS OF LAW. 
88 Again, fraudulently misrepresenting real estate deed laws and landlord tenant laws. 
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substantially fraudulent character assassination about myself around the court, while forcefully 

stating her opinions, which is expressly prohibited. While Judge Binkley refused or failed his 

judicial supervisory duties to correct her and allowed her misconduct to continue. 

172. Tenn. R. Sup. Ct. 3.5 - Impartiality and Decorum of The Tribunal: A lawyer shall 

not: (a) seek to influence a judge) juror, prospective juror, or other official by means prohibited by law". 

173. What defendant Story said there was even more seditious than seeking to influence 

the judge by a prohibited means with her opinion, while weaving strategic deception into her 

statement. 

WHY DID DEFENDANT STORY TESTIFY FOR ME? 

174. In lines 8 and 9 defendant Story stated, " ... So he's going to say that he doesn't have 

anyplace to live, and that he has renters. He has gotten renters in there." 

175. Why is defendant Story dominating the narrative in the hearing to the point of 

testifying on my behalf? She appears to be trying to control the statements of facts which are put 

on the record, but she is not allowed to assert personal knowledge of facts involving me and my 

testimony. This is obscenely inappropriate and another violation of Tenn. R. Sup. Ct. 3.4 -

Fairness to Opposing Party and Counsel: A lawyer shall not: (e) in trial) (2) assert personal knowledge 

of facts in issue except when testifying as a witness." 

176. Had defendant Story not been a close family friend of defendant Binkley, and had 

defendant Binkley performed his judicial supervisory duties in alignment with his office, by 

requiring defendant Story to comply with the Tennessee Supreme Court's Rules of Professional 

Conduct, while maintaining an impartial atmosphere in the court, to promote equality and fairness, 
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while preventing harassment and abuse under color of law, defendant Binkley had an ethical 

responsibility and duty to stop defendant Story's almost non-stop misconduct before him in court. 

177. Lastly, in the few sentences above, defendant Story also strategically planted 

deception into the court record, when she stated, "He has gotten renters in there. Well, we didn't 

sign a lease. We never authorized any renters to be in that house. I think the renters need to go." 

178. Defendant Story incorrectly implied that I had no legal right to obtain 

roommates/renters in my home, without Ms. Fenton 's permission and signature on their leases. 

179. That implication is not only false and in bad faith, but it is based upon a false 

representation "about a matter of law". (Which is even further misconduct, that the judge should 

have never allowed in court, further proving judicial bias and/or collusion.) 

180. Defendant Story does this many times throughout this case, but that doesn't make 

her tactics lawful or ethical. 

FRAUD 

181. At the least offensive level, defendant Story's implication is that one spouse 

(myself, the husband) lacks the authority to lawfully execute a lease agreement for marital property 

owned by both husband and wife, without the approval and signatures of both spouses. 

182. That is false. 

183. This is where I believe that defendant Binkley became "guilty by association", if he 

wasn't already a party to defendant Story's conspiracy against my rights and property. In hindsight 

though, I'm forced to conclude that he probably was. 

184. Clearly nothing lawful or ethical took place after this point in docket #48419B. 
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TENNESSEE LANDLORD TENANT ACT 

► T.C.A. § 66-28-101. Short title. This chapter shall be known and may be cited 

as the "Uniform Residential Landlord and Tenant Act." 

► T.C.A. § 66-28-102. Application - Preemption. 

► (a) This chapter applies only in counties having a population of more than 

seventy-five thousand (75,000), according to the 2010 federal census. 

► (b) This chapter applies to rental agreements entered into or extended or 

renewed after July 1, 1975 ... 

► T.C.A. § 66-28-103. Purposes - Rules of construction. 

► (a) This chapter shall be liberally construed and applied to promote its 

underlying purposes and policies. 

► (b) Underlying purposes and policies of this chapter are to: 

► (1) Simplify) clarify) modernize and revise the law governing the rental of 

dwelling units and the rights and obligations of landlord and tenant; 

► (2) Encourage landlord and tenant to maintain and improve the quality of 

housing; 

► (3) Promote equal protection to all parties; and 

► (4) Make uniform the law in Tennessee. 
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► (c) Unless displaced by this chapter, the principles of law and equity, 

including the law relating to capacity to contract, health, safety and fire 

prevention, estoppel, fraud, misrepresentation, duress, coercion, mistake, 

bankruptcy, or other validating or invalidating cause supplement its 

prov1s1ons. 

► ( d) This chapter being a general chapter intended as a unified coverage of 

its subject matter, no part of it is to be construed as impliedly repealed by 

subsequent legislation if that construction can reasonably be avoided. 

► ( e) In the counties in which this chapter applies, this chapter occupies and 

preempts the entire field of legislation concerning the regulation of landlords and 

tenants. The governing body of a county subject to this chapter shall not 

enact or enforce regulations that conflict with, or are an addition to, this 

chapter. (But that is what defendants Story and Binkley unlawfully did.) 

► T.C.A. § 66-28-104. Chapter definitions. 

► (A) "Owner" means one (1) or more persons,jointly or severally, in whom 

is vested: 

► (i) All or part of the legal title to property; or 

► (ii) All or part of the beneficial ownership and a right to the present use 

and enjoyment of the premises; (Which was unequivocally me, because my 

wife had abandoned our marital residence roughly a year prior, while I was 

known to be the party in possession of our home.) 

Page 46 of82 

Initials: ~ 

https ://rico .jefff e nton.com/evidence/2019-08-0 1 _hearing-prof essional-and-j ud icial-misconduct. pdf Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK (FENTON v. STORY et al.) 

Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK   ECF No. 33,  PageID.3355   Filed 03/25/24   Page 46 of 49



I NEVER NEEDED MS. FENTON'S PERMISSION OR SIGNATURE 
TO EXECUTE A LEASE FOR ROOMMATES 

185. I never needed Ms. Fenton's permission, agreement, or signature to execute legally 

binding lease agreements for portions of our marital residence, while I also lived there. These were 

roommates which I had prior to knowing anything about Ms. Fenton's plans to secretly file 

bankruptcy, seeking to liquidate and discard our home, or hiring attorneys again toward another 

contested divorce action. 

186. Ms. Fenton had assured me that she was done with attorneys, as is evident in her 

text message from January 8th, 2019, below: 

9:47 fl ii!, i;;;J .!. i:. s;;: ,, 94% ■ 9:46 fl Ii!, .!. Pu 

0 

Fawn Fenton 

What happened? Why did 
you suddenly decide I am 
trying to get out of paying 
your alimony? (Which isn't 
true, I have always intended 
to pay you as we discussed.) 
Your mood swings are so 
weird. I thought, based upon 
our emails, that we were 
not going to harrass each 
other with legal contracts. 
As I said, the terms of your 
alimony will be immortalized 
in the final divorce filing, 
which we will do after 
the house sells. I don't 
understand why you are 
suddenly freaking out for no 
reason. 

J an 6, 2019 

You agreed to put it writing 
before I leave, now you are 
pretending you never agreed 
to that and refusing. 

Q Type a message 

f- Fawn Fenton 

0 

Please confirm. 

Your refusal to communicate 
would confirm the opposite 
again, which would result 
in me needing to divert 
from packing to prepare for 
another surprise attack from 
you legally. 

Thanks. 
Jeff 

Jan 7, 2019 

I don't know wtf you're talking 
about, "legal battle'. I am not 
wanting anything to do with 
lawyers, I can't afford any 
more, it's a waste of time and 
money. 
Regarding leaving a few 
cameras and wireless etc, I 
guess that's fine, I don't see 
why not. 

Jan 8. 2019 

G;J Type a message 
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187. There was no legal action pending or expected at the time when I obtained 

roommates in good faith, to try to alleviate my wife of some of her financial responsibilities, while 

providing me with needed income, to help me cash-flow during that season. 

188. Defendant Story continued to testify in bad faith during the 8/1/2019 in Chancery 

Court: 

f) FALSE CLAIM OF LAW: ESCAPE CLAUSE & PROPERTY OWNER 

E-1 (10:11-16): 

11 MS. STORY: I feel sure we have an 

12 escape clause89 because my client didn't sign the 

13 lease. She is the owner of the property90. 

14 THE COURT: Is she the only titled91 

15 owner? 

16 MS. STORY: Both of them. 

17 THE COURT: Okay. 

189. This is outright fraud upon the court by defendant Story, while defendant Binkley 

recognized her fraudulent claims of law, but failed or refused to correct her misconduct or to 

require defendant Story to comply with the Tennessee Supreme Court's clear Rules of 

89 No "escape clause" is legally required, and even ifit were, that would not void the entire lease. 

90 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2011-04-29 _fenton-marital-residence-tenancy-by-entirety.pdf 

https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2011-04-29 _ 1986-sunnyside-premarital-assets-invested. pdf 

https:/ / rico. jefffenton.com/ evidence/2011-04-29 _ 1986-sunnyside-brentwood-tn-deed. pdf 

https:/ / rico. jetlfenton.com/ evidence/ 1986-sunnyside-brentwood-tn-2019-property-taxes.pdf 

https:/ / rico.jetlfenton.com/ evidence/1986-sunnyside-property-improvement-highlights.pdf 

91 AH! The crux of the LIE upon both the Chancery and Bankruptcy Courts, in harmony! 
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Professional Conduct throughout this hearing. 

190. In addition to defendant Story's fraudulent claim that Ms. Fenton is "the owner of 

the property», without mentioning my equal or greater investment in and ownership of our equally 

deeded marital residence as "tenants by the entirety», she is again making false claims "about 

matters oflaw». 

191. Defendant Story stated, "I feel sure we have an escape clause because my client 

didn't sign the lease." 

192. Again, defendant Story leveraged the authority of her office as a powerful respected 

"member of the court,,, to falsely imply that an "escape clause,, is required by law, due to Ms. 

Fenton 's ownership interest in our marital residence. While that claim is not only false, it is almost 

the exact opposite of the law. 

193. I've already shown the portions of the State of Tennessee's Landlord and Tenant 

Act which show that I never needed my ex-wife's permission or signature to execute completely 

lawful binding lease agreements with my roommates. Now let me address this fraudulent claim 

about an "escape clause». 

194. An "escape clause,, would in effect let the landlord out of his obligations to the 

tenant in the contract, by some predetermined metric or condition. Such a condition could protect 

the landlord but would offer no protection whatsoever to the tenants. 

19 5. There is no duty or requirement that a lease agreement have an "escape clause,, . 

In fact, there are provisions which are expressly prohibited by the Tennessee Landlord Tenant Act 

from being in a lease, which provide landlords with too much freedom to "escape», without 
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providing tenants with adequate protection in their lease. 

196. To understand the ruling principals of law here, one must look to the Rules of 

Construction: 

► T.C.A. § 66-28-103. Purposes - Rules of construction. 

► (a) This chapter shall be liberally construed and applied to promote its 

underlying purposes and policies. 

► (b) Underlying purposes and policies of this chapter are to: 

► (1) Simplify, clarify, modernize and revise the law governing the rental of 

dwelling units and the rights and obligations of landlord and tenant; 

► (2) Encourage landlord and tenant to maintain and improve the quality of 

housing; 

► (3) Promote equal protection to all parties; and 

► ( 4) Make uniform the law in Tennessee. 

► (c) Unless displaced by this chapter, the principles of law and equity, 

including the law relating to capacity to contract, health, safety and fire 

prevention, estoppel, fraud, misrepresentation, duress, coercion, mistake, 

bankruptcy, or other validating or invalidating cause supplement its 

prov1s1ons. 
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► ( d) This chapter being a general chapter intended as a unified coverage of 

its subject matter, no part of it is to be construed as impliedly repealed by 

subsequent legislation if that construction can reasonably be avoided. 

197. One of the main purposes of the State of Tennessee's Landlord and Tenant Act is 

to provide uniformity and security to both the landlord and the tenant, while having a concise set 

of codes covering the different aspects of law which are involved in a landlord and tenant 

relationship. 

198. For anything which is not specifically spelled out in this code, the presumption must 

be to remain in harmony with the declared purposes of this chapter, while protecting both the 

property interests and rights of both the landlord and tenant equally. 

199. I believe that the two sections which most directly address the concept of an 

"escape clause" are those of "prohibited provisions" and "unconscionabilit,y". 

► T.C.A. § 66-28-203. Prohibited provisions. 

► (a) No rental agreement may provide that the tenant: 

► (1) Authorizes any person to confess judgment on a claim arising out of 

the rental agreement; 

► (2) Agrees to the exculpation or limitation of any liability of the landlord 

to the tenant arising under law or to indemnify the landlord for that 

liability or the costs connected with such liability. 
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► (b) A provision prohibited by subsection (a) included in an agreement is 

unenforceable. Should a landlord willfully provide a rental agreement 

containing provisions known by the landlord to be prohibited by this 

chapter, the tenant may recover actual damages sustained. The tenant 

cannot agree to waive or forego rights or remedies under this chapter. 

200. The final sentence of which pretty well encapsulates what no "escape clause" can 

lawfully include: The tenant cannot agree to waive or forego rights or remedies under this chapter. 

201. Yet the defendants in this case denied and refused myself and my tenants our lawful 

and equitable property interests, rights and remedies, through fraud on the court(s), by members 

of the court(s). Using false claims oflaw, in a State court which had no lawful jurisdiction to hear 

or decide property interests included in a federal bankruptcy estate, prior to any action being filed 

in State court. While our property interests were core to the bankruptcy action, without which the 

bankruptcy would have never been filed. Yet I was unlawfully deprived of notice and participation 

in the bankruptcy court, because the bankruptcy court could not lawfully deprive me of my 

property interest or force the sale of our property, because it failed to meet the requirements in 11 

u.s.c. § 363. 

SAVINGS CLAUSE 

202. Though my leases didn't include an "escape clause" (which isn't required), they 

did include a "savings clause", to protect the interests of both the landlord and the tenant in the 

event a court found some term or portion of the lease agreements objectionable. 
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203. In section 23 of my lease agreements92
, they state, "SAVINGS CLAUSE If any 

provision of this Lease Agreement is determined in a court oflaw to be in conflict with any Federal, 

State or Local Statute or Ordinance, the nullity of that specific provision shall not affect the other 

provisions of this Lease Agreement which can be given effect in the absence of the nullified 

provision, and to this end the provisions of this Lease Agreement are severable." 

204. This "SAVINGS CLAUSE" was in alignment with the State of Tennessee's 

Landlord and Tenant Act, as codified in the section titled "Unconscionability": 

► 66-28-204. Unconscionability. 

► (a) If the court, as a matter oflaw, finds: 

► (1) A rental agreement or any provision thereof was unconscionable when 

made, the court shall enforce the remainder of the agreement without the 

unconscionable provision, or limit the application of any unconscionable 

provision to avoid an unconscionable result; or 

► (2) A settlement in which a party waives or agrees to forego a claim or 

right under this chapter or under a rental agreement was unconscionable 

at the time it was made, the court shall enforce the remainder of the 

settlement without the unconscionable provision, or limit the application 

of any unconscionable provision to avoid the unconscionable result. 

92 https:/ / rico. jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2019-03-26 _ fenton-sunnyside-roommate-lease-merriman.pdf 

https:/ / rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/ 2019-04-09 _ fenton-sunnyside-roommate-Iease-garcia.pdf 
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► (b) If unconscionability is put into issue by a party or by the court upon its 

own motion, the parties shall be afforded a reasonable opportunity to 

present evidence as to the setting, purpose, and effect of the rental 

agreement or settlement to aid the court in making the determination. 

► (c) A provision in a rental agreement that authorizes a landlord to hold a 

tenant in breach of the rental agreement in accordance with § 66-28-

SOS(f) is not unconscionable and is fully enforceable. 

205. Unlike the demands of defendant Story in Chancery Court on 8/1/2019, this lease 

agreement was not "voidable". In fact, this "Savings Clause" would lawfully survive almost any 

legal attempt to nullify this lease agreement, due to some unconscionable term or omission. 

206. The codified law above states explicitly even if there were any credence to 

defendant Story's claims about the lease containing some unconscionable term, the court was 

required to: "the court shall enforce the remainder of the agreement without the unconsdonable 

provision" 

207. This was not a discretionary matter for the court. The Williamson County 

Chancery Court along with defendants Story and Binkley intentionally misrepresented and 

violated both State and Federal laws, while completely ignoring/denying my constitutional rights 

along with my lawful and equitable property interests. 

208. There is one more absolutely false representation of law made by defendant Story 

during this hearing, which needs to be mentioned. Rather than correcting defendant Story's clearly 

fraudulent claims of law, defendant Binkley instead sat listening to her from the bench, while he 
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nodded his head up and down and grunted sounds of agreement with defendant Story's lies. 

E) FALSE CLAIM OF LAW: OBVIOUSLY, HE CANNOT BIND A NEW OWNER TO 

COMPLY WITH THIS LEASE SO THAT IS A VOIDABLE CONTRACT 

209. During the 8/1/2019 hearing in Chancery Court, as evident on pages 27 and 28 of 

the original certified transcripts of evidence from that hearing, defendant Story fraudulently stated 

the following in regards to my lease agreements with my two tenants/roommates who were living 

with me and helping me pay the bills: 

10 MS. STORY: -- that he did, and it 

11 says sale. Under the sales provision that any 

12 time during this lease, if the landlord decides to 

13 sell, if landlord sells this property or places 

14 it up for sale, whether voluntarily or by court 

15 order, or in any way the ownership of this 

16 property or rights to sell this property are 

17 conveyed to another party, whether by foreclosure 

18 or other legal process -- which is going to happen 

19 soon if we don't get it on the auction block 

20 within 30 days or so -- during the term of 

21 tenancy, this tenancy per this agreement, the 

22 assuming owner or controlling party and their 

23 agents and assigns must continue to comply in 

24 full with the terms of this lease. 

25 Well, obviously he cannot bind a new 

1 owner to comply with this lease, so that is a 

2 voidable contract. There's no way that that 

Page 55 of82 

Initials:~ 

https://rico.jefffenton.com/evidence/2019-08-01_hearing-professional-and-judicial-misconduct.pdf Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK (FENTON v. STORY et al.) 

Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK   ECF No. 34,  PageID.3364   Filed 03/25/24   Page 6 of 33



3 tenant could go after the assuming owning or 

4 controlling party or their agents. 

210. These are basic property rights and contract law. A lease is bound to the property, 

not just the property owner. Anytime that a property owner sells a property which is encumbered 

by a lease, at the time of the sale, the owner must disclose the lease to all potential buyers. Then 

whoever purchases that property purchases the lease along with it and is bound to the terms of that 

lease) for the duration of that lease) the same as the original owner was. 

211. I didn't even need to include that language in the lease, and it was still protected, 

because that is the law of the land. 

212. There are very few exceptions. The lease survives bankruptcy, it even survives 

foreclosure, because of the federal Protecting Tenants at Foreclosure Act (PTFA). There are very 

few exceptions, and those that exist clearly did not apply here. 

213. Defendants Binkley and Story knew that all day long, yet judge Binkley allowed 

defendant Story to make absolutely false egregious claims about matters oflaw, where he not only 

allowed her misconduct, but he participated in her misconduct, by making illegal court orders 

based upon completely false and fraudulent claims oflaw. 

214. At this point, there can be no question about "errors)). 

215. Judge Michael W. Binkley was bias or worse and chose to not only allow but to 

participate in attorney and judicial misconduct. Which clearly exceeded the threshold to 

automatically disqualify judge Binkley per Tenn. R. Sup. Ct. 2.ll(A)(l) & 28 U.S.C. § 455(a), 

(b)(l) from hearing the case and having any lawful authority over any matter thereafter, in docket 
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#48419B. 

TENN. R. SUP. CT. 2.11 - DISQUALIFICATION 

216. (A) A judge shall disqualify himself or herselfin any proceeding in which the judge's 

impartiality might reasonably be questioned, including but not limited to the following 

circumstances: 

217. (1) The judge has a personal bias or prejudice concerning a party or a party's lawyer, 

or personal knowledge of facts that are in dispute in the proceeding. 

28 U.S.C. § 455 - DISQUALIFICATION OF JUSTICE,JUDGE, OR MAGISTRATE 

JUDGE 

218. (a) Any justice, judge, or magistrate judge of the United States shall disqualify 

himself in any proceeding in which his impartiality might reasonably be questioned. 

219. (b) He shall also disqualify himself in the following circumstances: 

220. (1) Where he has a personal bias or prejudice concerning a party, or personal 

knowledge of disputed evidentiary facts concerning the proceeding; 

THE LEVEL OF MISCONDUCT IS COMPLETELY "UNREASONABLE" 

221. It doesn't matter if defendant Binkley or Story admit this or not, because to claim 

otherwise at this point is unconscionably unreasonable. 
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TENNESSEE SUPREME COURT TERMINOLOGY 

222. For clarification on how the Tennessee Supreme Court defines "reasonable)) and 

other similar terms, the following is copied directly from the "terminology)) section of Tenn. R. 

Sup. Ct. 1.0: 

223. (a) "Belief" or "believes" denotes that the person involved actually supposed the 

fact in question to be true. A person's belief may be inferred from circumstances. 

224. (f) "Knowingly," "known," or "knows" denotes actual awareness of the fact in 

question. A person's knowledge may be inferred from circumstances. 

225. (h) "Reasonable" or "reasonably," when used in relation to conduct by a lawyer, 

denotes the conduct of a reasonably prudent and competent lawyer. 

226. G) "Reasonably should know," when used in reference to a lawyer, denotes that a 

lawyer of reasonable prudence and competence would ascertain the matter in question. 

EVERYTHING IN CHANCERY #49419B IS VOID AND MUST BE VACATED 

227. The Chancery Court violated my rights and the law when it ordered my home to be 

liquidated (by absolute action with "no minimum"), without one penny to my benefit nor to the 

benefit of my ex-wife, to my knowledge. 

228. The Chancery Court orders by Judge Binkley are obscenely bias, based upon false 

and fraudulent representations oflaw, with no good faith authority or jurisdiction to be spoken of. 

229. Williamson County Chancery Court docket no. 48419B was a series of felony 

crimes committed against me, my tenants, and my family, under the color of law, without an 

honest, good faith, or honorable purpose in true pursuit of justice, as is required of all legal 
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pleadings by the federal rules of civil procedure. 

230. The primary basis for everything in this case was "fraud on the court(s) by members 

of the court( s) ", which as a matter of law rendered everything in this docket void. 

231. The court had no lawful jurisdiction or authority to exercise in these matters which 

was not disqualified for their disrespect for the codes of conduct, the judicial canons, the state and 

federal constitutions, along with both state and federal laws. 

232. Everything that took place in the docket, after this point, was only that much more 

obscenely cruel and criminal, hence there is no way that the court could have retained any lawful 

judicial authority under Judge Michael W. Binkley. 

233. Everything in docket #48419B is void and must be vacated as a matter oflaw. 

There is no lawful jurisdiction, authority, or discretion, upon which to sustain any order in this 

docket. 

234. The fact that I have been fighting for justice or even the most remedial cure for over 

four years now, is an unconscionable miscarriage of justice which shall forever scar me and those I 

love. 

THE VIOLATIONS OF CONDUCT EXIDBITED IN THE MOTION TO SELL THE 
MARITAL RESIDENCE IS OBSCENE ... 
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TENN. CODE§ 39-16-507 - COERCION OR PERSUASION OF WITNESS93 

235. "(a) A person commits an offense who, by means of coercion, influences or 

attempts to influence a witness or prospective witness in an official proceeding with intent to 

influence the witness to: (3) ... to be absent from an official proceeding to which the witness has 

been legally summoned. (b) A violation of this section is a Class D felony." 

236. I was geographically dislocated by 577 miles during the 8/29/2019 hearing in 

Chancery Court, based upon both attorney and judicial misconduct, fraud, combined with 

obstruction of justice. 

23 7. Defendants Binkley and Story refused to use my sworn testimony and evidence 

which I filed on the chancery Court record on 8/29/2019. Furthermore denying me any 

opportunity to be heard, while using fraudulent protective orders to prevent my ex-wife and I from 

communicating, while holding my constitutional rights hostage to threaten my safety and freedom 

while extorting my silence about the misconduct by the courts and counsel, and retaliating against 

me for disclosing the misconduct to the Tennessee Court of Appeals. 

238. Due to Ms. Fenton's physical and mental health during this season, there were 

times when she was willing to negotiate towards a settlement in good faith, and others where she 

refused at all costs. Toward the end of 2018 we had reached a point where she was not being 

combative and spoke honestly with me again. On October 9th
, 2018, Ms. Fenton sent me an email94 

which stated as follows: 

93 https://law.justia.com/ codes/tennessee/2019 /title-39 /chapter-16/part-5/section-39-16-507 / 
94 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2018-10-09 _ wife-does-not-want-to-keep-marital-residence. pdf 
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239. "At this point, to be honest, I do not really even want to keep the Sunnyside house. 

If the house is not sold, then I will be stuck paying for the very-expensive bills that come with the 

house, AND I will still have a ton of credit card debt from this divorce. I am emotionally burnt out, 

and Ken is making zero steps towards any transition plan for the company, so in a year or two I'd 

really like to take a less stressful job. I need life to be simpler to help me recover emotionally and 

financially after all of this upheaval. But I will be trapped as long as I'm saddled with the house+ 

alimony+ credit card debt. I don't know ifl can realistically handle the stress level of being forced 

to make a high salary only to give it all away every month for many years into the future." 

240. Though she did agree to our "Verbal Settlement Agreement95" after this on 

October 27th, she ultimately returned to this position after being required to put her words in 

writing and sign her name. She simply froze and refused to move forward. During one of my visits 

with her at her apartment, she conceded that the alimony agreement was what had stopped her 

from signing our verbal settlement agreement so that we could move forward with amicably selling 

our home. To add insult to injury, defendant Story blamed this failure to perform upon me, while 

I did everything within my power to try to persuade her to proceed with our plans, but she refused. 

241. Like an animal that is frozen in fear and doesn't know which way to run, she just 

stopped. She wanted to remain friends, but she wasn't interested in talking with me anymore about 

either selling our home or the divorce. 

242. I knew that she was stalling to wait for her employer's retirernent96
• I shared that 

95 https://www.rico.jefifenton.com/evidence/2018-10-27 _ verbal-settlement-agreement.pdf 
96 https:/ / rico.jefifenton.com/ evidence/2018-08-30 _wife-notifies-about-employers-retirement. pdf 
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with Attorney Mitchell Miller during 2018, that was how we met. I didn't want to force her hand, 

but I was trying to figure out how to protect myself and even more importantly, how to protect my 

mother from losing all the money which she had loaned me during this tragic season. I had a gut 

feeling that Ms. Fenton was going to take a professional nosedive once her employer retired, to get 

a job making substantially less money, to then proceed with a divorce, so that I wouldn't be 

awarded nearly as much money in alimony. 

243. I discussed this with Attorney Mitchell Miller, who recommended that I file for the 

divorce myself in 2018, to force Ms. Fenton into court while she still had a high income. He 

emphasized that ifl acted first by filing for a divorce and afterwards she took a substantial pay cut, 

the court would frown upon that, as it would appear that she was intentionally trying to evade 

alimony. 

244. I knew that he was right, I knew that she was no longer able to deal with me in good 

faith, even though she was being nice and wanted to remain friends after our divorce. She told me 

that she no longer wanted to talk about our divorce or selling our home .. . to stick to talking about 

cute critters97
• 

245. That was why I had sought out and contacted Mr. Miller. I had a feeling that the 

"rug" was going to be "pulled out from beneath me" once again, and I wanted to protect myself, 

but not at the expense of hurting her. I refused. I didn't want to force more out of her than she 

was willing to give. I didn't want to force the person that I love the most in the world to divorce 

97 https:/ / rico. jefffenton.com/ evidence/ 201 9-02-09 _ holding-pattem-with-wife-stick-to-cute-critters.pdf 
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me, even ifit was financially to my advantage. I decided that I needed to find another way to protect 

myself, which was what I tried when I rented out two bedrooms, in hopes of becoming more 

financially independent before her boss retired and Ms. Fenton's career took a nose dive. 

246. In time my wife eventually admitted to me why she had refused to go forward with 

our "Verbal Settlement Agreement", and that was because she was physically and emotionally 

exhausted, she knew that her employer was getting ready to retire and close their architecture 

firm98, and she wanted to take a break from the highly demanding job which she had maintained for 

many years, while she even spoke of possibly working part-time for a season. 

247. Our "Verbal Settlement Agreement" was contingent upon my wife paying me 

$1,750 per month in transitional alimony (which can't be modified) for a duration of 6-years, as 

we were advised was "fair" by Sandy Arons MBA, the collaborative divorce financial expert we 

hired, who set our financial expectations for what was "fair" with all factors considered99• Instead 

I was paid nothing, but this required they all but kill me, and so they did. 

MS. FENTON SUFFERED FROM SERIOUS CATASTROPHIC HEAL TH 
CONDITIONS WHICH WERE EXPLOITED BY HER COUNSEL 

248. Ms. Fenton honestly suffered serious catastrophic health conditions for 

approximately the last three years of our marriage. Prior to that she had successfully managed 

having narcolepsy for about a decade using a one-of-a-kind sleep medication called "Xyrem100
", 

98 https:/ / rico. jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2018-08-30 _ wife-notifies-about-employers-retirement. pdf 
99 https:/ / rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2018-07-12 _ arons-and-associates-di vorce-planning. pdf 
100 https://www.xyrem.com/ 
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which costs about $11,000 per month, but was thankfully covered by our insurance. 

Unfortunately, when also affiicted with an early and severe case of menopause, she experienced 

extreme emotional instability and profuse sweating at night, disturbing her sleep and causing her 

life to become less and less manageable. 

249. On February 6th, 2019, I sent Ms. Fenton a text asking, "You sleeping any better?" 

250. On February 61
", 2019, Ms. Fenton sent me the following text messages101 in 

response: 

251. "Nope. I just had an appointment today with my sleep doc at the Frist clinic ... He 

is upping my Adderall prescription, but other than xyrem, there isn't much to make me sleep 

better.» 

252. "I also have been emailing with my GYN ... Going to quit the hormones for now, 

they have more negative side effects and aren't really helping. Going to try to let my body detox for 

a month or two, then might try xyrem again later.» 

253. "No, haven't taken xyrem at all for about 2 weeks now. Very tired, sleeping only in 

short 1-2 hour increments, but the night sweats are much milder without the xyrem. » 

254. "My theory is that the root cause of the night sweats is menopause, but for some 

reason the sweating is much worse during deeper sleep. Xyrem effectively wasn't doing its job 

anymore ... Even on strong dose of xyrem, I would wake up drenched after like 1 hour.» 

255. "The sweats have been terrible ... On the xyrem, I would totally drench my clothes 

10 1 https:/ / rico.jefiTenton.com/ evidence/2019-02-05 _ menopause-narcolepsy-night-sweats-not-stalker. pdf 
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and all bed sheets about every 1 to 2 hours. Would wake up soaked, change all clothes and strip bed 

and change all sheets ... Go back to sleep, and then wake up sopping wet again like another hour 

later. Could go through this like 4x per night. Wet clothes and linens hanging up everywhere." 

256. "So NOT taking the xyrem, I usually only have one episode of sweating per night, 

towards early morning, like between 3:am - 5:am. And it's less sweating ... Still have to change 

clothes and sheets, but it's not as bad. And for most of the night I can at least be comfortable, even 

ifl'm not sleeping well." 

257. "Yup, there 1s no good solution right now. My sleep 1s trashed either way. 

Menopause sucks ass." 

258. "My sleep doc says "well, at least it's temporary", and I said yeah, I might get better 

in another 6 to 8 years ... " 

259. To which I replied and tried to lighten the mood by texting, "I think we need special 

institutions you can drop your wife off at for a decade, not allow her to use any sharp objects or 

credit cards, and an orderly comes in hourly and changes your sheets." 

260. To which Ms. Fenton responded to by texting, "That sounds kind of good right 

now." 

261. My wife's counsel exploited her fragile state while also exploiting my known and 

fully disclosed disabilities as they robbed us both of the sum total of both our life's savings, 

including our premarital retirement funds and even proceeds from our premarital homes, which 

had been invested into our beautiful Brentwood marital residence, worth over $900k today. 

262. They used fraudulent "default" protective orders, while refusing to use hundreds 
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of pages of sworn testimony along with clear and convincing evidence, which I already had filed on 

Chancery Court record, showing that the charges were obscenely false. 

263. They lied in court on 8/29/2019 about allowing me to participate in the next 

hearing over the phone, while they wrongfully evicted me from my home, forcing me to become 

geographically dislocated by 600 miles, simply to survive the misconduct by the courts and counsel. 

264. After having forcibly rendered me physically unable to participate in the hearing in 

person, because I had no shelter or provision remaining within the State of Tennessee, after the 

court wrongfully evicted first my tenants (my only stream of income in that moment due to the 

misconduct by the courts and counsel) followed by the wrongful eviction of myself, at the very 

beginning of my "divorce" proceeding, before discovery even began. (This was a « Class D Felony'' 

crime by defendants Binkley and Story, as codified below.) 

TENNESSEE PROPERTY LAWS - TENANCY BY THE ENTIRETY102 

a) Tenancy by the entirety is based on the concept that those who are married are not separate 

persons; rather, they "are but one person." Tindell v. Tindell, 37 S.W. 1105, 1106 (Tenn. Ct. App. 

1896) (quoting Den v. Hardenbergh, 10 N.J.L. 42, 45 (1828)); see Taul v. Campbell, 15 Tenn. (7 

Yer.) 319, 333, 15 Tenn. 318 (1835) (noting that a husband and wife "take but one estate, as a 

corporation would take, being by the common law deemed but one person"). 

b) Co-tenants in a tenancy by the entirety do not hold their interest by moieties (by parts), they 

hold by the entirety: "Each is not seised of an undivided moiety, but both are ... seised of the 

102 https://bwp.tnble.org/wp-content/uploads/2019 /09/Property-Law.pdf 
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whole. They are seised, not per my et per tout [by the half and by the whole], but solely and simply 

per tout [by the whole]." Tindell, 37 S.W. at 1106 (quoting Den, IO N.J.L. at 45). 

c) Accordingly, "When property is held in a tenancy by the entirety, upon the death of one 

spouse, the survivor continues to own the whole in fee simple," Bryant at 400, and the laws of 

descent and distribution do not apply. Grahl v. Davis, 971 S.W.2d 373, 378 (Tenn. 1998) (citing 

Sloan v. Jones, 192 Tenn. 400,241 S.W.2d 506,509 (Tenn. 1951)). 

d) Because spouses in a tenancy by the entirety are treated as one person, when the property 

is real estate, a spouse in such a tenancy cannot sever it unilaterally by transferring a portion of the 

property without the assent of the other spouse - doing so would destroy the other spouse's 

ownership interest in the whole. See Bryant 522 S.W.3d 392,401 (citing Tindell, 37 S.W. at 1106). 

But see In re Estate of Fletcher 538 S.W.3d 444 (Tenn. 2017), which held that when funds are 

withdrawn from a bank account held by a married couple as tenants by the entirety, such funds 

cease to be entireties property. 

e) This means that a deed of trust/mortgage signed by one spouse only does not create an 

encumbrance on the real property except as to the signer's right of survivorship. A judgment lien 

does not become a lien on the real property ( even when recorded as required under Tennessee 

law). Under Tennessee law, however, a creditor of one spouse may get a lien on the survivorship 

interest of such debtor -spouse. See In re Walls, 45 Bankr. 145 (Bankr. E.D. Tenn. 1984). 

265. Ms. Fenton and I fluidly transferred debts amongst our credit lines, both secure and 

unsecure, revolving and term, to wherever the debts made the most financial sense for us both at 
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any given time. (The lowest fees, the best interest rates, while trying to group associated charges 

for entity specific tax purposes and business write-offs.) This changed in different seasons of our 

marriage, depending upon our family's income, debts, goals, and challenges. 

266. We did not make any financial decisions of significant consequence without us both 

being in agreement, at the very least, at the point and time when the decisions were made. 

26 7. If any credit card balances were transferred from cards in my name to cards in Ms. 

Fenton 's name (which was certainly no more the case than vice versa), it was done openly with her 

knowledge and consent at the time, and unquestionably did not account for very much of Ms. 

Fen ton's total credit card liabilities at the time of our divorce. 

268. Transferring debts from credit cards in my name onto credit cards in Ms. Fen ton's 

name certainly did not push her into bankruptcy as fraudulently implied by defendant Story. 

269. Upon information and belief, I do not recall any credit card transfers during 2018 

or 2019. While we had almost completely paid off the credit cards in Ms. Fen ton's name toward 

the end of 2017, with less than $5,000 outstanding, if my memory serves me correctly, prior to two 

vacations that Ms. Fenton took to Las Vegas Nevada and Pahrump Nevada at the end of 2017, 

followed shortly thereafter by her unilateral decision to get a divorce. 

270. The majority of debts on the credit cards in Ms. Fenton 's name were due to her 

prematurely electing to rent a second Brentwood residence, immediately after announcing that she 

wanted to get a divorce, rather than waiting until we had a financially responsible exit strategy for 

our marriage, along with a sustainable transition strategy into separating our lives, mcome, 

property, and debts. 
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271. On the evening of April 22"\ 2018, Ms. Fenton abandoned our marital residence. 

272. Overnight from April 22nd into April 23rd, Ms. Fenton changed the account 

credentials and contact information on all the income, banking, and credit accounts which our 

family actively used at that time, to block my access. 

273. Ms. Fenton moved into an apartment she rented within a few days, where at some 

point she changed her mailing address with our mortgage companies from our marital residence to 

her new apartment, where she alone would receive any notices sent by the banks. (I was not 

informed about this.) Absent being provided with ethical and legal notice by Ms. Fenton, our 

mortgage companies, or the courts, I had no means of knowing or finding out, roughly a year later, 

when she (I believe at the advice of her counsel), decided to quit paying our mortgage payments. 

274. I was in fact never notified by anyone when Ms. Fenton quit paying our mortgage 

payments. 

275. I was in fact promised by Ms. Fenton that she would continue paying our mortgage 

payments until we reached a settlement agreement, or until her first 14-month lease expired at her 

apartment, or until further notice. I was never lawfully or ethically notified that Ms. Fenton would 

not or could not pay our mortgages anymore. 

276. I was in fact never given an opportunity to make up for Ms. Fenton's shortfall with 

our mortgage companies to save my multiple critical and even essential property interests. 

277. Both Ms. Fenton 's decision to default upon our mortgage payments (which she was 

then responsible for and had blocked my access to), as well as her decision to file for bankruptcy, 

were all done secretly, without any lawful or ethical notice to me. 
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278. Despite placing the whole of my life's savings, proceeds from my premarital 

property and even my premarital retirement funds in jeopardy, by secretly defaulting upon our 

mortgage payments and filing for bankruptcy while specifically including our property in her 

bankruptcy estate and requesting to sell it in her bankruptcy filing, yet I was never provided any 

notice, hearing, nor an adversarial proceeding by the bankruptcy court, as was required by the 

Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure and multiple sections of federal bankruptcy laws. 

279. In bankruptcy case 3:19-bk-02693, on Ms. Fenton's "Chapter-13 Plan", filed 

secretly by her counsel on 4/26/2019, in Doc 2, Page 5 of 5, there is a section titled "Part 9: 

Nonstandard Plan Provisions", which states in important part: 

► "Debtor moves for permission to sell real property located at 1986 Sunny Side 

Drive Brentwood, TN 37027 Williamson County, within 180 days of 

confirmation with no payments being made in the interim. The liens of Bank of 

America, NA and BanCorp South shall be satisfied in full and all remaining 

proceeds after Debtor's homestead exemption and costs of sale shall be paid to 

the Chapter 13 Trustee for the benefit of the estate." 

280. There are several problems with the language above, but the fact that I was never 

even notified that the whole of my real property, my only real asset, my financial independence, 

and my wealth was all at stake yet not one single party, mortgage company, officer of the court, or 

court provided me with ethical and lawful notice that they were in the process of negotiating the 

liquidation/forfeiture of said property while I was a clearly deeded owner who was listed on the tax 

records is unconscionable. 
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281. I was in fact never given notice by any mortgage company or attorney on their 

behalf, nor by Ms. Fenton, nor by the bankruptcy court or the trustee as is required by the Federal 

Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure and multiple federal bankruptcy laws. 

282. While there was no action pending in the state courts at the time when the 

bankruptcy was filed and the bankruptcy estate was then formed, so there could be no expectation 

that another court might hear the property deprivation, since the bankruptcy was filed 39-days 

before the divorce was filed, the bankruptcy counsel, trustee, and judge were required to comply 

with the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure and subsequent federal bankruptcy laws. 

283. Short of an unlawful conspiracy spanning both Federal and State courts, there 

would be no expectation that another court might alleviate the responsibility of the bankruptcy 

trustee and the bankruptcy court of providing me and my two lawful roommates/tenants with 

"notice and a hearing" in either Federal District Court or in Federal Bankruptcy Court, 

specifically not in a state court, because the federal courts had both original and exclusive 

jurisdiction, since the bankruptcy filing preceded the divorce filing by 39-days. Additionally, the 

deprivation of the marital residence was "core" to the bankruptcy action, and was in fact one of 

the primary purposes for the bad faith fraudulent bankruptcy filing. 

284. The bankruptcy court, counsel, and trustee, likewise failed to initiate (or provide 

me with an opportunity to initiate) an "adversarial proceeding" as required in the F.R.B.P. Rule 

7001. This was required for multiple reasons: 
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► For the bankruptcy trustee to obtain possession of the marital residence, 

which was required by law before the court could sell my marital 

residence. 

► Because our marital residence was lawfully in my possession and Ms. 

Fenton had abandoned the property on April 2211
\ 2018. 

285. I can think of no reason short of a conspiracy spanning federal and state courts that 

the Bankruptcy Trustee would have failed to provide me and my two lawful tenants/roommates 

with notices and hearing in either Federal Bankruptcy Court or in Federal District Court as 

required by the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure Rule #7001 and subsequent bankruptcy 

laws (such as 11 U.S.C. § 363(h)(3), amongst others). 

286. Ms. Fenton later changed the address with our creditors, including our mortgage 

companies, from our marital residence to her apartment, where she alone had access to the mail. 

287. Absent Ms. Fenton providing me with legal and ethical notice about the state of our 

mortgage payments, I literally had no other means of finding out, except had her counsel and the 

bankruptcy court acted legally and ethically, after they entered the picture, but none of them did. 

288. I was only given short-term access to one credit card at a time after this point, for 

my consumable expenses which she offered to pay, since she was our family's primary 

breadwinner, and our only breadwinner (by her own priorities) at the time when she unexpectedly 

elected to get a divorce and abandoned our home. 

289. This was a preventative action on her part, not based upon any financial 

irresponsibility, impropriety, or betrayal on my part. I never cheated on or betrayed Ms. Fenton's 
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trust in any way throughout our 13-year marriage. I was "all in" and I lost everything. 

290. On April 24th
, 2018, Ms. Fenton officially "moved out" of our marital residence 

with two men and a truck who assisted her. 

291. On May 51\ 2018, Ms. Fenton presented me with a budget that she had created, 

insisting that she could afford to support both our marital household, including both mortgages, 

utilities, my consumable expenses and our pre-existing bills, along with a new Brentwood 

apartment for herself, entirely with her income as a licensed professional architect. 

292. Ms. Fenton even promised me at that time that she would pay for attorneys to 

represent us both throughout our divorce, which frankly made no sense to me. 

293. The next most significant source of unbudgeted expenses and probably debts during 

2018-2019, (most of the final year of our marriage, I had no access to any of our income and credit 

lines in Ms. Fenton's name, because she changed the account credentials and contact information 

to lock me out immediately upon vacating our marital residence. 

TENNESSEE SUPREME COURT'S DEFINITION FOR 

"FRAUD" OR "FRAUDULENT" 

1. Per Tenn. R. Sup. Ct. 1.0 -TERMINOLOGY, here is the Tennessee Supreme Court's 

definition of "fraud": "(d) "Fraud" or "fraudulent" denotes an intentionally false or misleading 

statement of material fact, an intentional omission from a statement of fact of such additional 

information as would be necessary to make the statements made not materially misleading, and 

such other conduct by a person intended to deceive a person or tribunal with respect to a material 

issue in a proceeding or other matter." 
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"ABUSIVE CIVIL ACTIONS" (T.C.A. TITLE-29, CHAPTER-41) 

2. Defendant Story used abuse of process, also referred to as "stalking by way of the 

courts"; codified by the State of Tennessee in Title 29, Chapter 41, under Abusive Civil Actions103
, 

to literally terrorize me under the color of law, with the power of the court. While refusing to 

subjugate her actions to the rule of law, the court rules, the federal and state rules of conduct, 

without honor, honesty, good-faith, or truth. Purely to exercise more domination and power over 

me than her office is ethically or lawfully allowed. 

3. I reported defendant Story's abusive misconduct to defendants Binkley1°4, 

Beeler105, Yarbrough106, Ausbrooks107, Anderson, Anderson, Clement, Bennett, McBrayer, 

Hivner108 Coke109 Garrett"0 the State Admin Office'" Appellate Court112 Chancery Court113 

' ' ' ' ' ' ' 

103 https://law.justia.com/codes/tennessee/2019 /title-29 /chapter-41/ 
1
0< https://rico.jefffenton.com/evidence/2019-08-29 _ husbands-one-and-done-answer-to-all.pdf 

105 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-29, PagelD.1665 ~ ECF No. 1-30, PagelD.1793 

106 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-29, PagelD.1665 ~ ECF No. 1-30, PagelD.1793 
10 1 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-29, PagelD.1665 ~ ECF No. 1-30, PagelD.1793 
108 h ttps: / / rico. jefff en ton .com/ evidence/ 20 22-02-0 l _ affida vi t-binkley-story-fraud-bias-void-orders. pdf 

https://rico.jefffenton.com/evidence/2020-07-0S_ tnsc-coa-ada-request-for-modification.pdf (Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM­
RSK, ECF No. 1-30, PagelD.1749-1752) 

109 https:/ /www.rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2020-02-13 _ tnsc-aoc-ada-gc-john-coke-transcript.pdf 

https:/ / www .rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/ 2020-02-13 _ tnsc-aoc-ada-gc-john-coke-phone-call.mp3 
11° Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-29, PagelD.1698 
111 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-29, PagelD.1718-1721 
112 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-29, PagelD.1684-1691 

Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-30, Page!D.1749-1752 
113 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-08-30 judgment-wrong-emergency-call-to-court.mp3 

Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-18, PageID.766 ~ ECF No. 1-22, PagelD.1038 
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Supreme Court114
, BPR115

, the Williamson County Sherriff's Office116
, the Williamson County 

District Attorney's Office117
, the Tennessee Bureau of Investigations118

, the Federal Bureau of 

Investigations119
, the Acting United States Trustee for Region 8120

, over the Federal Judicial 

Districts of Kentucky and Tennessee121
, one of the bankruptcy trustees 122

, and a Department of 

Justice USTP Trial Attorney123
, who was assigned to the bankruptcy fraud referral I submitted. 

4. Nobody to date has told me that anything I experienced in Williamson County 

Chancery Court or in the related case in the United States Bankruptcy Court for Middle District 

of Tennessee, was ethical or legal. They have all simply refused to get involved, intervene, or hold 

the bad actors accountable. Unconscionably, nobody to date has been willing to force defendant 

Story to obey the law, state and federal constitutions, and/or comply with the court's rules of 

11
• Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-27, PageID.1370- ECF No. 1-28, PagelD.1664 

https:/ / rico. jefffenton.com/ evidence/2021-01-19 _ fenton-seeking-help-tnsc-coa-aoc-bpr-fbi-ustp. pdf 
115 Case l :23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-29, PageID.1699-1703 

Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-29, PagelD.1709-1715 

116 https:/ /rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence//2023-12-13 _ wcso-racketeering-official-oppression.pdf 
117 https://tennesseeda.org/district-21/ 

118 https://www.tn.gov/tbi.html 
119 https://www.fbi.gov/ contact-us/ficld-offices/memphis/ about 

https:/ I rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/ 2021-12-02 _ fbi-mark-shafer-binkley-story-corruption.pdf 

https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2021-12-02 _ fbi-mark-shafer-binkley-story-corruption.mp3 
120 https://www.justice.gov/ust/ ust-regions-r08 

https:/ / rico. jefffenton.com/ evidence/ 2022-03-15 _ ustp-bk-fraud-referral-confirmed-no-notice. pdf 

https:/ / rico. jefffenton.com/ evidence/ 2019-04-26 _ ausbrooks-story-fraudulent-bk-petition. pdf 
121 https://www.linkedin.com/in/paul-ustp-randolph-0872b642 
122 https:/ / rico. jefffenton.com/ evidence/2020-07-02 _ bk-trustee-john-mclemore-call-declaration. pdf 

https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2020-07-02 _ ch 7-bk-trustee-john-mclemorc-phone-call.mp3 
123 https://rico.jefffenton.com/evidence/2022-03-10 _ doj-ustp-mcgan-scliber-bk-fraud-referral.mp3 

Case l :23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-30, PagelD.1760-1761 
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professional conduct. The courts have a responsibility to obey the law, help the injured party, and 

vacate void judgments. This is not within the discretionary purview of the courts to ignore. 

VEXATIOUS SERVICE (STALKING BY WAY OF THE COURTS) 

FIRST SERVICE 

5. I was served via standard mail, no signature required, on June 1 St", 2019. 

6. I hired attorney Brittany Gates to represent me in the matter, just a few days later 

onJune 19t", 2019. 

7. As confirmed in an email124 to me from Attorney Britany Gates on 6/19/2019, 

"I've reached out to Virginia and we've scheduled a call for tomorrow." 

8. Defendant Story still had me served two more times on 6/20/2019, while she also 

filed a «Motion to Deem Husband Served with Reasonable Efforts)) in the Chancery Court at 9: 17am 

on 6/20/2019. This was after defendant Story knew I had already accepted service and she had 

even spoken with my attorney, Brittany Gates, the day prior. 

SECOND SERVICE (MOTION TO DEEM HUSBAND SERVED) 

9. At approximately 4:20pm on 6/20/2019, defendant Story's paralegal Heidi Macy 

served me directly ex parte via email 125
. Despite the fact that defendant Story had already been 

contacted by my counsel the day prior, knew I had already received and accepted service, and that 

it was inappropriate to communicate with litigants ex parte instead of through their counsel. 

124 https://rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/ 2019-06-19 _ hired-attorney-gates-who-notified-story.pdf 
125 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-06-20 _ abusive-civil-action-by-story-exparte-service.pdf 
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10. After rece1vmg defendant Story's ex parte email service126 on 6/20/2019, I 

emailed127 defendants Story and Yarbrough, along with Attorney Gates and Ms. Heidi Macy 

confirming that I had received service via regular USPS "snail mail", as was evident in having 

hired Attorney Brittany Gates to represent me. I communicated that "I have no desire to postpone 

these proceedings and am not trying to interfere in any way." Further stressing that I "have not 

been attempting to avoid service in this matter" (as falsely accused), so there was absolutely no 

need for a hearing to prove that I have been served. (This was all abusive overkill.) 

THIRD SERVICE (PLUS A FRAUDULENT "PROTECTIVE ORDER") 

11. Roughly an hour after I sent defendants Story and Yarbrough this email confirming 

my receipt of service, I was served ( divorce papers) yet again. This time by four deputies from the 

Williamson County Sheriff's Office128
, along with a completely unnecessary "Order of Protection 

Ex Parte" based upon a coached, unsigned personal statement129
, allegedly by my wife, filed by 

Story's firm, which was almost entirely false and fraudulent. 

12. Here is the audio recording130 of me being served by the Williamson County 

Sherriff's Office at my home on 6/20/2019, at roughly 7:15pm. Listen to how I sound in this audio 

recording talking with the Sheriff's Deputies, as compared to defendant Story's false and 

fraudulent claims about me. I am not the abusive monster or social misfit that defendant Story 

126 https://rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-06-20 _ abusive-civil-action-by-story-exparte-service.pdf 
127 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-06-20 _ notification-to-story-husband-accepted-service. pdf 
128 https:/ /rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-06-20 _ wcso-exparte-order-of-protection-service.mp3 
129 https://rico.jefffenton.com/evidence/2019-06-20 _ wifes-false-unsigned-personal-testimony-for-op.pdf 
130 https://rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-06-20 _ wcso-exparte-order-of-protection-service.mp3 
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colored the court records to pretend. Defendants Binkley and Beeler never showed any interest in 

the truth or justice though, while they catered to defendant Story's every abusive demand. 

THE TRUTH ABOUT MY PERSON 

13. I have never laid a hand on my wife in anger, nor have I ever threatened to. Never 

in my adult life have I been arrested or charged with any crime. I have no history of violence, 

domestic disputes/ disturbances, or instability of any sort. I never even received a single traffic 

citation during my 25 peaceful years as a hardworking, taxpaying, Tennessee resident. I've held 

multiple jobs requiring intense state and federal background checks, including by the FBI, the 

Department of Homeland Security, the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department, and others. 

14. I responsibly held a concealed weapons permit in the State of Tennessee for over 

fifteen years without incidence. 

15. I was a licensed real estate agent in the State of Tennessee for 16 ½ years, with 

access to hundreds-of-millions of dollars' worth of real estate, without one single complaint or 

professional impropriety of any kind. 

16. Prior to this my wife wanted to remain friends after our divorce, and even attended 

a counseling session with me131, a few months earlier for that exact purpose. We never terminated 

communication as defendant Story pretended. We weren't at odds as defendant Story pretended 

either. We were on relatively good terms, considering our circumstances, while I had gone above 

and beyond to ensure her quiet peaceful enjoyment of her life and her apartment which she had 

131 https:/ /rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2019-01-22 _ wifes-birthday-and-counseling-together.pdf 

Page 78 of82 

lnitials:¢s:::::, 

https://rico.jefffenton.com/evidence/2019-08-01_hearing-professional-and-judicial-misconduct.pdf Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK (FENTON v. STORY et al.) 

Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK   ECF No. 34,  PageID.3387   Filed 03/25/24   Page 29 of 33



chosen, after leaving me132
• 

THE STORY VS THE TRUTH (THE TRUTH NEVER HAD A CHANCE) 

17. Attorney Story fabricated an almost exclusively fraudulent narrative, while 

leveraging this fraudulent "Order of Protection Ex Parte '' to assassinate my character in front of her 

close family friend and presiding judge Michael W. Binkley, before he ever met me. 

18. This was purely heavy-handed abuse of process to bully me, intimidate me, and 

overwhelm me, while falsifying the court records to defame my character and bias the court against 

me. Sowing defamatory fiction rather than fact directly into the court records, when in fact this 

should all have never been allowed on court record, because it was never needed and was not filed 

in good faith, for the purposes claimed, in the pursuit of justice as is required by the Federal Rules 

of Civil Procedure of all pleadings. 

STEALING MY HOME133 (MOTION TO SELL THE MARITAL RESIDENCE134
) 

19. A few weeks later I was hit by another vexatious "legal" attack by defendants Story 

and Yarbrough, to force the sale of my marital residence 135
, when the Chancery Court didn't even 

have the lawful jurisdiction to hear or decide that matter, because it was part of a federal bankruptcy 

estate, filed and formed 39-days prior to any action being filed in Chancery Court, while also being 

core to that bankruptcy action. This gave the federal courts both original and exclusive jurisdiction 

132 https:/ / rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2019-02-05 _ menopause-narcolepsy-night-sweats-not-stalker .pdf 

133 https://rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2023-05-31 _ 1986-sunnyside-brentwood-tn-appreciation.pdf 
134 https://rico.jeflfenton.com/evidence/2019-07-17 _ chancery-motion-to-sell-marital-residence.pdf 
135 Imps:// rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2019-07-17 _ chancery-motion-to-sell-marital-residence.pdf 

Page 79 of82 

Initials: ~ 

https://rico.jefffenton.com/evidence/2019-08-01_hearing-professional-and-judicial-misconduct.pdf Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK (FENTON v. STORY et al.) 

Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK   ECF No. 34,  PageID.3388   Filed 03/25/24   Page 30 of 33



over my home. Under the circumstances, the state courts were specifically prohibited from 

exercising jurisdiction over my marital residence, to ensure that my property interests were 

provided adequate protection as required by the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure and 

subsequent federal bankruptcy laws. 

20. Unfortunately, that was the purpose of the conspiracy between the state and federal 

courts, in this case, to strategically circumvent the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure and 

multiple sections of bankruptcy codes, which protected my property investments, interests, and 

rights. 

21. 11 U.S.C. § 363(h) 136
: "Notwithstanding subsection (f) of this section, the trustee 

may sell both the estate's interest, under subsection (b) or ( c) of this section, and the interest of 

any co-owner in property in which the debtor had, at the time of the commencement of the case, 

an undivided interest as a tenant in common, joint tenant, or tenant by the entirety, only if - (3) 

the benefit to the estate of a sale of such property free of the interests of co-owners outweighs 

the detriment, if any, to such co-owners." 

22. It was physically impossible for the forced sale of my home to be of greater benefit 

to the bankruptcy estate than losing it would be a detriment to me. 

23. Had the bankruptcy rules been followed in proper form, and the laws obeyed, 

neither state nor federal courts could lawfully deprive me of my home or property interests. 

136 https://rico.jefffenton.com/evidence/2020-07-02 _ bk-trustee-john-mclemore-call-declaration.pdf 

https:/ / rico. jefffenton.com/ evidence/2020-07-02 _ bk-trustee-john-mclemore-recorded-call.mp3 
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RICO "COLOR OF LAW" CONSPIRACY AGAINST MY RIGHTS & PROPERTY 

24. There was a RICO "color oflaw" conspiracy137 against my rights and my property 

which spanned the Williamson County Chancery Court through the United States Federal 

Bankruptcy Court for the Middle District of Tennessee, involving two law firms who represented 

my wife in bad faith during 2019, STORY, ABERNATHY AND CAMPBELL, PLLP and 

ROTHSCHILD & AUSBROOKS, PLLC. 

25. This included a civil conspiracy and criminal misconduct involving the fo llowing 

people: Virginia Lee Story, Kathryn Lynn Yarbrough, Michael Weimar Binkley, Elaine Beaty 

Beeler, Sara Rebecca Baxter, Mary Elizabeth Maney Ausbrooks, Alexander Sergey Koval, Henry 

Edward Hildebrand III, Charles M. Walker, Thomas Earl Eugene Anderson, Roy Patrick Marlin, 

and Samuel Forrest Anderson. 

26. This has all been substantiated in previous federal filings of this lawsuit. For the 

sake of reducing redundancy, I 'm not going to delve very deeply here into the jurisdiction over the 

marital residence or the conspiracy between the state and federal courts (and the members 

therein), within this declaration. Please refer to the documents cited below for more sworn 

testimony, combined with clear and convincing evidence, on the different aspects of the felonies 

committed by the defendants herein. 

137 https:/ / rico.jeflTenton.com/ evidence/2024-01 • 12 _ irrefutable-proof.of-criminal-conspiracy. pdf 
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DECLARATION 

Pursuant to 28 U .S. Code § 17 46, I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and 

correct, except as to matters herein stated to be on information and belief, and as to such matters, 

I certify as aforesaid that I verily believe the same to be true. 

Executed on March 25, 2024 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

WESTERN DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN FILED- LN 

JEFFREY RYAN FENTON, 

March 25, 2024 4:07 PM 
CLERK OF COURT 

U.S. DISTRICT COURT 
WESTERN DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN 

BY: eod FILED BY: 1,o '3}~ 
PLAINTIFF CASE NO. l:23-cv-1097 

V. 

VIRGINIA LEE STORY ET AL., 

DEFENDANTS 

DECLARATION OFF ACTS ABOUT FENTON FAMILY FINANCIAL STRUCTURE 

AND ROLES DURING MARIAGE, ENTIRETY PROPERTY, EDUCATION, 

VOCATIONAL EXPERIENCE, AND FINANCIAL CAPACITY 

Plaintiff brings this testimony pursuant to 28 U.S. Code§ 1746. 

!,Jeffrey Ryan Fenton, declare under oath as follows: 

1. My name is Jeffrey Ryan Fenton. 

2. I am the Plaintiff in this federal lawsuit (CASE NO. 1:23-cv-1097). 

3. I am a citizen of the United States of America. 

4. I was born on Fairchild Airforce Base, in Washington State, during 1969. 

5. I am domiciled in Genesee County, Michigan. 

6. My mailing address is 17195 Silver Parkway, #150, Fenton, MI 48430-3426. 

7. My phone number is (615) 837-1300. 
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8. Ms. Fawn Fenton (hereinafter "Ms. Fenton", "wife", and "ex-wife") and I were 

together for fifteen years, thirteen during which we were married. 

PRO SE LITIGANT - MERITS RULE OVER TECHNICALITIES 

9. I am acting in a pro se1 capacity in this lawsuit, due to my poverty, entitled to a liberal 

reading and less stringent standards since it was prepared without assistance of counsel. See 

Hainesv. Kerner_, eta!., 404 U.S. 519, 92 S. Ct. 594 (1972). 

QUALIFIED AMERICAN WITH DISABILITIES ACT LITIGANT 

10. I am a qualified ADA party with disabilities affecting my communication and 

cognitive functions, which make researching and drafting legal pleadings exceptionally slow and 

challenging. 

11. I request any considerations which the court can allow to help me participate in, be 

protected by, and benefit from the federal judiciary. 

12. I suffer from several cognitive disabilities: Obsessive-Compulsive Personality 

Disorder (OCPD) DSM-5 301.4 (F60.5), Generalized Anxiety Disorder (GAD) DSM-5 300.02 

(F4Ll), Attention-Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD) DSM-5 314.01 (F90.2), Circadian 

Rhythm Sleep Disorder (CRSD) Non-24-Hour Sleep-Wake Disorder (Non-24) DSM-5 307.45 

(G47.24). 

1 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-35, PageID.1960 
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13. Letters from my doctors2, along with a declaration regarding my disabilities3, are on 

file in this federal lawsuit. 

14. Medications that I take regularly can only control these afflictions, not cure them. 

15. Due to my disabilities, it is extremely difficult for me to concisely write long 

documents without losing focus and experiencing significant sprawl, causing repetition, countless 

rewrites, and bloated documents. For this reason, I am trying to file multiple short declarations to 

concisely address specific topics, to help communicate more effectively, for the benefit of all 

parties. 

DECLARATIONS INCLUDED BY REFERENCE HEREIN AND THROUGHOUT 

16. To increase efficiency while reducing redundancy in this lawsuit, this declaration 

and the facts herein are made a part of every other declaration written by me in this lawsuit, which 

is included, named, or referenced in my "Fenton Master Declaration and List of Declarations to 

Date4
" . 

17. Similarly, every declaration and the facts therein written by me and mentioned in 

my "Fenton Master Declaration and List of Declarations to Date" are incorporated herein by 

reference and made a part of this declaration. 

18. My "Fenton Master Declaration and List of Declarations to Date" will be 

periodically updated both in court and online, to have the most comprehensive and complete set 

2 https:/ / rico. jeflTenton.com/ evidence/2020·07-08 _ tnsc-coa-ada-request-for-modification.pdf (Case 1 :23-cv-01097-PLM­
RSK, ECF No. 1-30, PagelD.1749-1752) 
3 https://rico.jeflTenton.com/evidence/fenton-declaration-of-disabilities.pdf 

• h ttps: / / rico. j eflTen ton .com/evidence/ fen ton-master-declara tion-and-list-of-declara tions-to-da te. pdf 
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of facts available in this case. 

BRENTWOOD, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TENNESSEE 

19. According to Wikipedia5: "Williamson County6 is ranked as the wealthiest county 

in Tennessee, as well as among the wealthiest counties in the country. In 2006 it was the 17th­

wealthiest county in the country according to the U.S. Census Bureau7, but the Council for 

Community and Economic Research ranked Williamson County8 as America's wealthiest county 

(1st) when the local cost of living was factored into the equation with median household income. 

In 2010, Williamson County is listed 17th on the Forbes list of the 25 wealthiest counties in 

America." 

BRENTWOOD MARITAL RESIDENCE WORTH $900,000+ TODAY 

(ONLY OWED $300,000 ON OUR MORTGAGES) 

20. My wife and I owned a beautiful home located at 1986 Sunnyside Drive9, 

Brentwood 10, TN, 37027. (Hereinafter "marital residence", "property", or "home.") I invested 

everything that I had into the purchase and renovation of our home11 (including all my premarital 

retirement funds along with proceeds from my own premarital duplex). Further complimented by 

nearly a decade of my "sweat equity," including thousands of hours of labor, making and 

5 https:/ / en.m. wikipedia.org/wiki/Williamson _ County,_ Tennessee 
6 https://williamsoncounty-tn.gov/ 
7 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2017-2021 _ census-brentwood-tennessee-v-fenton-michigan. pdf 
8 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-12, PagelD.497-500 
9 https://rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2011-04-29 _ 1986-sunnyside-brentwood-tn-deed.pdf (Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, 
ECF No. 1-12, PagelD.485, 494-512) 
10 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/ 1986-sunnyside-brentwood-tn-2019-property-taxes.pdf 
11 https:/ /rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2011-04-29 _ 1986-sunnyside-premarital-assets-invested.pdf 
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supervising roughly $200,000 of improvements12 to our property. 

REDFIN 11 1-844-759·7732 Buy • Rent • Sell • Redlin Premier Mortgage • Real Estate Agents • Feed 

~ Search Overview Property details Sale & tax 1ustory Pullhc racts Schools Cl1111ate Q ravo11te (? Cd,t Facts 

• LAST SOLD ON rrn 14, 2020 roR 5540,000 

1986 Sunny Side Dr, Brentwoocl, TN 37027 

$889,718 4 2.5 
Recif1n Estimate Beds Baths 

2,640 
Sq Ft 

Estimated salo price 

$846,000 - $1.0IM 

LOCATED AT THE NEXUS OF GREEN HILLS, BRENTWOOD, GRASSLAND, FRANKLIN! 
SURROUNDED BY HUNDREDS OF ACRES OF PROTECTED WOODLANDS!!! 

21. We purchased our marital residence on April 291
\ 2011, for $350,00013

• Together 

we had roughly $550,000 invested into our home, while improvements to the property were also 

my primary work product for much of the time between 2011-2018, during which my wife built 

12 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/ 1986-sunnyside-property-improvement-highlights.pdf (Case 1 :23-cv-01097 -PLM­
RSK, ECF No. 1-12, PageID.508-511) 
13 https:/ /rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2011-04-29 _ fenton-marital-residence-tenancy-by-entirety.pdf (Case 1:23-cv-01097-
PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-27, PagelD.1416-1431) 
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her career in architecture, doubling her vocational value14
• 

22. That home is currently worth $900,00015 and was our sole asset and retirement 

investment, while the Chancery Court forced the liquidation of the property for just $324,36016
• 

Suspiciously, exactly what was due on the mortgages, plus the auctioning fees and closing costs, 

without one dollar to myself or to Ms. Fenton (to the best of my knowledge), for our life's savings, 

thousands of hours of work, the sum total of both our premarital retirement funds, and all of our 

investments since. 

23. The money my wife and I invested into our home wasn't to raise its curb appeal or 

add flashy trims which could realize immediate returns upon investment, if sold. We invested into 

the core features of the home, replacing the roof, remediating mold, removing and replacing all 

electrical and mechanical systems for improved health, safety, efficiency, and comfort. The work 

performed on the property was done with the expectation that we would live there for the next 

twenty years, not for a quick flip. 

24. It was not possible in 2019 for us to sell our home, either by auction or on the 

market, without losing a substantial amount of money, which we had no means of compensating 

for or recovering from. However, over the next few years, the property nearly doubled in value, 

14 https://rico.jefffenton.com/evidence/2017-04-06 _ wifes-belated-raise-after-protest.pdf 
15 https:/ /rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2022-01-03 _ l 986-sunnyside-brentwood-tn-appreciation.pdf (Case 1 :23-cv-01097-
PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-12, PageID.485, PageID.494-510) 

https://rico.jefffenton.com/evidence/2023-05-31 _ 1986-sunnyside-brentwood-tn-appreciation.pdf 
16 https://rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-10-29 _ 1986-sunnyside-real-estate-deed-fraud.pdf 
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due to its location, as we had expected. The market needed time, the property needed to be held 

for at least another year or two. Had the sale not been illegally forced, the property has appreciated 

at roughly $100,000 per year, for the past four consecutive years. 

FINANCIAL STRUCTURE OFF AMIL Y: TENANCY BY ENTIRETY 

25. Ms. Fenton and I lived under the spiritual principle of "two becoming one at 

marriage", referred to in legal terms as "tenancy by the entirety17 ", throughout the entire duration 

of our marriage. (Despite the deceptive narratives by her counsel, which began after Ms. Fenton 

chose to get a divorce.) 

26. All of our marital income, assets, property, and debts were always held as one 

"tenancy by the entirety18
". Regardless of whose name they were technically in. Those choices 

were strategically for the benefit of us both. Whether for preferential interest rates, risk mitigation, 

etc... Account ownership, positions, and titling were equally for both of our benefit. Everything 

was a matter of whether our family held and carried it "in our left pocket" or "in our right pocket". 

27. Except for an insignificant amount of premarital and/or sentimental property, 

nothing was a matter of" hers" or "his". Such language had more to do with respect and planned 

usage, than actual ownership interests or rights. 

17 https:/ /rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2011-04-29 _ fenton-marital-residence-tenancy-by-entirety .pdf 
18 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-13, PagelD.541-542 
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WIFE'S EDUCATION - VOCATIONAL EXPERIENCE- FINANCIAL CAPACITY 

28. Ms. Fenton was voluntarily the primary breadwinner19 in our family since 2011. 

This came as no surprise, she is an MIT educated, licensed Tennessee Professional Architect (ID 

Number: #102945), who is a "LEED Accredited Professional", certified by the U.S. Green 

Building Council, as well as a "Certified Document Technologist" by the Construction 

Specifications Institute. She has significant commercial and institutional leadership experience, 

working in industry, government and education, with a $116,50020 annual compensation package 

toward the end of our marriage. 

~ ASSACHUSETTS NSTITUTE OF ECHNOLOGY 
ll'O~ lllr IUC:0\1\UND.\UO~ or tm fAl1 LO 

111.1\l!n'rm,HMON 
c...,.., 
..rown 

BACllil OR 0~ SCIL~CI. ,~ 
ART AND DESIGN 

Mln<1r 111 Germon 
IN kf_C()G..'11110S or rl\OI IOl~Cf IN nil G[Nlf!Al ANO 11ll !-rlO \l 
\lVDtfS \:,.O I XI a(l'ir\ ~ • SC~ll O I\ ~\ID INirtT\.ltt IOJ.SlOt OlUll 
<,I\IIS TIii\ DAV u:,r,or,, tltr SJAl,. OJ THC l~STITltTI AT C'A\IUJDf',1 
I~ TIIF COMMONWFALl ll Of MASSACIIVSLn~ 

19 https:/ /rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2018-07-12 _ arons-and-associates-divorce-planning.pdf (Case 1 :23-cv-0 1097-PLM­
RSK, ECF No. 1-27, PageID.1444) 
20 https:/ /rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2017-04-06 _ wifes-belated-raise-after-protest.pdf 
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29. Throughout our marriage Ms. Fenton prided herself as being a "code junkie", often 

needing to research building codes and wrestle with codes officials in multiple levels of 

government. Here is a quote copied directly from her Linkedln profile: "She excels at technical and 

codes analysis, specifications writing, and detailing. '' This became particularly helpful when she 

decided to begin researching how to get, what she considered to be, the most financially 

advantageous divorce. Unfortunately, ethics and fairness weren't critical elements to her, in the end. 

THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OP ARCHITECTS 

DECLARES TIIAT 

IS AOMrr nmro ARClllTllCT ME!.MBERSHIP IIAYINO DBBN POUND BLIOIBLB 

BY AllTllORITY OFTIIB BOARD OP DIRECTORS 

ANO lS BNTTil.fiD TO llXERCISR AND ENJOY ALL THB RIGlrTS AND PRIVll.EGES 

OPTIIIS CATEOORYOP MEMBERSHIP AS PRESCRIOEO lN THB BYLAWS. 

DATED MAkOI U, lDOi 

30. In truth, that was an exception to Ms. Fenton 's normally honest, kind, and generous 

character. Someone would be hard pressed to find people who would speak poorly about her, while 
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I have no desire to and have tried throughout our divorce to help mitigate the damages for both of 

us. Unfortunately, the courts and Ms. Fenton's counsel have staunchly refused any remotely 

ethical or even humane division between us, our property, and our debts. Without so much as 

hearing our case. 

8I'Nrt~ Or' 'l'ENN~t:t; 
6lul.c !)Onrd or 

: i\n:hilccluml and 
i 1·:nsi nccri '18 t:xnm i ncrs 

/ Be il known Lhot 
'Fawn 

lmvin,I\ duly qualified l:dorc 
U1e ix)of\1 ol' i\rchileclurnl nnd 
[n8inccrins Examiners. 
Lo pmcl.icc 

f\QClilTl~CTUQE 
in U1is sllit.e. 
is hereby ~rnnlcd 1-c8isl.ml.ion 
lo so prnc1icc, under Lhe 
oulhonty vested in Lhe Mid 
Board by Chapter 263 Public 
i\ct,_1, 1979 or U1c 
&lnlc orTenna,;)ICe 

.~~ 
-~v-
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31. My wife and I had a verbal interim agreement that she would continue to pay our 

mortgage payments until (at least) one of the three conditions below were satisfied: 

1.) Until we successfully executed a marital dissolution agreement (MDA) and 

obtained a divorce. 

► At which point we expected her to begin paying me "transitional 

alimony" of approximately $1,75021 per month, for a duration of 6-

years, as we were told was "fair" with all factors considered, by 

divorce financial expert and collaborative divorce professional 

Sandy Arons22
, MBA, whom we hired to help us. 

► Ms. Arons credentials: MBA, Certified Divorce Financial Analyst, 

Certified Financial Divorce Practitioner, Certified Financial 

Divorce Specialist, Financial Counselor & Mediator. 

► This was calculated at 22.5% of her gross income for a term equal to 

half the duration of our marriage. We were married for 13 years. 

► We negotiated several different alimony structures, some where she 

continued to pay the mortgage payments for six years23 in lieu of 

alimony, others where she paid me alimony and I could pay the 

mortgage payments24
, and others still where we sold our home and 

21 https://rico.jeflfenton.com/evidence/2018-10-27 _ verbal-settlement-agreement.pdf 
22 https:/ /rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2018-07-12 _ arons-and-associates-divorce-planning.pdf 
23 https:/ / rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2018-09-14 _ fair-settlement-offer-by-wife-with-tax-truth. pdf 

i< https:/ / rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2018-08-30 _ wifes-budget-for-husband-keeping-home. pdf 
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split the proceeds then she paid me $1,75025 per month in 

"transitional alimony", so I could afford and obtain my own 

replacement shelter. 

2.) Until the first 14-month lease of her apartment was completed on June 22"\ 

2019. (There was no expectation that her support would terminate at this 

point, this was just as far out as we could see in the beginning of our separation, 

when she rented her apartment, so she committed at least through this 

duration.) 

3.) Until further notice. (There was really no articulation of this option to cease 

paying the mortgage payments or any support, but certainly her support was 

promised until we reached some equitable division of our property, debts, and 

marriage.) 

► If for any reason she could not meet her financial obligations then 

she unquestionably owed me notice in advance, so I would have an 

opportunity to prevent a default. 

► The sum total of both of our life's savings and both of our premarital 

retirement funds26 were invested into our mutually purchased and 

25 https://rico.jeflfenton.com/evidence/2018-10-27 _ verbal-settlement-agreement.pdf 
26 https:/ /rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2011-04-29 _ 1986-sunnyside-premarital-assets-invested. pdf 
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equally owned Brentwood martial residence27, deeded28 to us both as 

"tenants by the entirety29,, . 

► Plus Ms. Fenton locked me out:3° of all of our mutually used banking, 

income, credit, and mortgage accounts as soon as she vacated our 

marital residence. She changed both the account credentials as well 

as our contact information. Our email address was changed to one 

which she alone had access to. She changed our address with the 

creditors and mortgage companies, from that of our marital 

residence to her new apartment, which I never had access to. 

► I fought, objected, and complained, but Ms. Fenton refused to 

continue operating transparently in good faith regarding our 

finances after she moved out. As a compromise, she provided me 

with a budget:31 along with varying amounts of support each month 

for my consumable expenses, while promising to keep all our bills 

associated with our home paid (mortgages, utilities, maintenance, 

etc .. . ). 

27 https://rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2023-05-31 _ 1986-sunnyside-brentwood-tn-appreciation.pdf 

https:/ / rico. jefffenton.com/ evidence/ 1986-sunnyside-brentwood-tn-2019-property-taxes. pdf 
28 Imps:/ /rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2011-04-29 _ 1986-sunnyside-brentwood-tn-deed.pdf 
29 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2011-04-29 _ fen ton-marital-residence-tenancy-by-entirety. pdf 
30 https:/ / rico. jefffenton.com/ evidence/2018-04-23 _ wife-locked-plaintiff-out-of-financial-accounts.pdf 
31 https:/ / rico. jefffenton.com/ evidence/2018-05-02 _ family-budget-living-apart. pdf 
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► Ms. Fenton met this obligation without fail until the defendants in 

this case entered our lives and got forcefully involved in the 

dissolution of both our property and our marriage. 

MY EDUCATION - VOCATIONAL EXPERIENCE - FINANCIAL CAPACITY 

ATLANTIC ENVELOPE COMPANY 

NASHVILLE TENNESSE 

32. Though my wife had none of these certifications when we met ( except her MIT 

education), while I actually made more money at that time as a blue-collar printing press operator 

(with just a high school education), working for Atlantic Envelope Company in Nashville. We both 

knew that with Ms. Fenton's education, experience, and the licenses which she eventually 
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obtained, that she would easily have twice the vocational and financial potential that I would. This 

was openly accepted as the expectation by us both before we got married. Our relationship was 

never about money, neither of us cared. We both brought different values from different 

backgrounds, with different skills, shared equally, for both of our benefit. 

Case 1 23-cv-01097•PLM.RSK ECF No. 1•27, Page:I0 1406 File(i 101131'23 P:.oe 37 of 150 
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33. I held a T ennessee Real Estate License32 (#295752) as an « Affiliate Broker", 

specializing in residential real estate for 16 ½ years, from December 91\ 2004, through July 251\ 

2021. As such, I owned a duplex33 and was a successful "landlord" prior to meeting my wife. Since 

32 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-12, PageID.513-517 
33 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-27, PageID.1406-1413 
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Ms. Fenton brought the skill of architecture to our family, together we both dabbled in real estate 

investing, property rehabilitation, purchased/sold a "flip", joined Real Estate Investors of 

Nashville (REIN), and developed solid experience owning/managing rentals with tenants. 

I was a LICENSED Real Estate Agent "Affiliate Broker"' 
In the State of Tennessee for SEVENTEEN (17) Years 
(until long after our divorce), with access to 
hundreds of millions of dollars worth of Inventory, 
without ever a single complaint or Issue of any sortl 
Everyone who worked with me: clients, lenders, 
property owners, investors, Inspectors, contractors, 
buyers, both unrepresented and with their agents, 
co-workers, paralegals and dosing attorneys, had 
only the greatest of respect for me and my work. 

Neither my ex-wife nor I know of anyone who gave 
people more for their money, or worked in their 
client's best interests, more than I did! 

c/oJEFFREY "JEFF" RYAN FENTON 
1986 SUNNYSIDE DRIVE 
BRENTWOOD, TN 37027 

....,. THSS II TOCUUFYTHAT AU RtOUIR.[M(Hl S 
Of THe ITAlE Of T!NNUSH HAY£ BE£N WT 

My marketing was second to none, as were my contract skills. 
My attention to detail and background In both printing, 
graphic arts, and amateur web design, brought compliments 
from competing agents who were recognized as the "best• 
from their Orms. I devoted two-weeks (BO+ hours) to 
marketing each and every listing I had, while most agents 
would never dream of Investing that much time. But I listed 
every house to SELL, and every house I did, for top.<follar 
with minimal time on the market, except for ONE condo, 
during my 17-Years. 

I quit working as a full-lime agent upon the realization that 
60% of the business was ~ the listing not gll!ng It. 
While a politlclan I am not 

Attorney Virginia Lee Story made me out to be• "monster" in 
Judge Michael W. Binkley's Court. with ZERO history to 
substantiate ANY of It, Just her WORD. She lied repeatedly 
about matters of Real Estate Law, Binkley never once 
corrected her or exercised his Judicial supervisory DUTY. 
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34. Although the real estate profession provided a meaningful secondary income for 

our family, as well as a substantial investment vehicle, the monthly income stream generated 

through residential property sales was too unreliable to provide a primary or sole source of income 

for me after the divorce. 

35. The primary industries which form the bulk of my vocational experience are the 

commercial manufacturing/printing industry (which has diminished significantly the past twenty 

years, while largely moving overseas), and the foodservice industry. 

THE BACCHANAL RESTAURANT 

CAESARS PALACE, LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 
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36. Despite the one flattering statement made about me by defendant Story, during the 

August 1st, 2019 hearing34
, "He is very intelligent. He has a high school education, but he is a self­

taught computer genius." This statement is completely false. I am not any sort of "genius". 

While my only "job" working in computers was for my ex-wife's architectural firm. The reason I 

was able to manage their computers was because her boss was a penny-pincher and before my 

involvement with my wife's firm, their computers were constantly neglected until there was an 

emergency. 

37. Prior to my involvement, when a computer "emergency" took place in Ms. 

Fenton's architectural office, they had to pay roughly 3x as much per hour (as I charged), for a 

different twenty-something tech to perform emergency triage on their network, while there was no 

continuity of service, and nobody performed preventative maintenance. 

38. I was able to save my wife's employer tens of thousands of dollars, over a decade of 

performing various IT tasks for them, while doing work that I enjoyed. In truth though, it paid 

very little for the amount of time that it took me, and I don't have the experience to obtain 

subsequent employment in that field, without formal vocational training and/or certification. 

3◄ Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-24, PageID.1189 (Said by Story during the 8/1/2019 hearing in Chancery Court, 
as shown on page-6, lines 4-6, of the Transcript ofEvidence. #48419B Trial Record Page-529.) 
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39. The truth about my vocational capacity is clearly evident in two text messages from 

my ex-wife, which encapsulate her two biggest "pet peeves" about my disabilities. These two "pet 

peeves" are also my two most significant vocational challenges: 

(1) Despite extraordinary efforts, being incredibly slow, meticulous, and repetitive in 

the performance of important tasks. 

► Text message35 from Ms. Fenton on 1/23/2019: "I used to always think of 

you like you were riding a stationary exercise bicycle)· peddling furiously) 

working so harcl but going nowhere. )) 

(2) Being unable to efficiently multi-task, especially multiple concurrent high-value 

tasks or challenges. 

► Text message36 from Ms. Fenton on 2/9/2019: "I hate it when you ask me 

to choose what you "should" work on) since you can't multitask. )) 

40. Which explains defendant Story's relentlessly aggressive tactics, strategically 

overwhelming me with three violent motions simultaneously, through which she took away my 

home, my marriage, my constitutional rights and freedoms simultaneously. (Essentially, my entire 

life, at that point.) All without one honest good-faith hearing, in a remotely fair and impartial 

tribunal, who actually had lawful jurisdiction to hear and dispose of the matters before it. 

35 Case l :23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-35, PagelD.1937 (https:/ / rico.jeflfenton.com/evidence/2019-01-23 _ riding-an­
exercise-bicycle-peddling-furiously.pdf) 
36 https://rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2019-02-09 _ wife-hates-that-plaintiff-can-not-multi-task.pdf 
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41. Upon information and belief, I believe that this single compliment by defendant 

Story regarding my vocational capacity was a rouse to make it appear less cruel and cloud the fact 

that I was being abruptly deprived of all financial support previously provided and promised after 

the divorce by Ms. Fenton. That due to the strategic bankruptcy, executed unconscionably by my 

wife ' s counsel, $1,750 per month of promised37 "transitional alimony38", for an agreed duration 

of 6-years, instantly evaporated. 

42. This provided me with precisely nothing to survive on, while the court wrongfully 

evicted my tenants39
, my last stream of income due to the crimes conspired against me by counsel, 

under false and fraudulent claims regarding matters of law. After which the defendants 

fraudulently took my home by force with just a five-day notice40, over a holiday weekend, at the 

end of which they had me wrongfully evicted from my own home, by four sheriff' s deputies like a 

dangerous felon, when I had done nothing wrong, except to trust them enough to enter their court. 

43. Outrageously, defendants Story and Binkley even refused to let me take my 

personal property with me, despite having stated the exact opposite in the prior hearing41, when I 

still had counsel to provide me some level of protection. 

44. Once I was prose everything changed, they took off the gloves, and literally took 

37 https://rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-01-28 _ verbal-agreement-needed-in-writing-for-closing.pdf 
38 Case l :23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-26, PagelD.1317-1318 
39 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-03-26 _f enton-sunnyside-roommate-lease-merriman. pdf 

https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/ 2019-04-09 _fen ton-sunnyside-roommate-lease-garcia.pdf 

•
0 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/evidence/2019-08-29 _ chancery-court-order-once-pro-se.pdf 

• 1 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/ 2019-08-01 _ chancery-court-order-with-counsel. pdf 
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turns "tag-teaming)) me together42, in court on 8/29/2019. After which they refused to vet and 

record the transcripts from that hearing correctly as such (instead burying the transcripts amongst 

hundreds of pages of my technical records, in Volume-4, Pages 495-52343
), because "justice)) 

without doubt failed "to meet the appearance of justice ))' despite the fact that presiding judge Binkley 

left the court room and actually procured the licensed court reporter himself, at which point I hired 

her. 

45. To this day no court has yet to acknowledge those " transcripts of evidence44
" from 

my 8/29/2019 hearing in Chancery Court as such, nor will they fix how they are recorded to be 

clear in the record, nor will they hold defendants Story or Binkley accountable for the lack of 

continuity between those transcripts and subsequent court order45 when compared to the 

preceding 8/1/2019 hearing transcripts46 and court order47, nor will they discipline or correct their 

•
2 https://rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2019-08-29 _ chancery-hearing-transcript-audio-markers.pd[ 

https:/ / rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/ 2019-08-29 _ chancery-hearing-audio-recording.mp3 

•
3 Case l :23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-24, PagelD.1154 - ECF No. 1-24, PageID.1183 

◄< Imps:/ /rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2019-08-29 _ chancery-hearing-transcript-audio-markers.pdf 

https:/ / rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2019-08-29 _ chancery-hearing-audio-recording.mp3 

•
5 h ttps:/ / rico. jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2019-08-29 _ chancery-court-order-once-pro-se. pdf 

•• https:/ /rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2019-08-01 _ chancery-hearing-transcript.pd[ 
47 https:/ / rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2019-08-01 _ chancery-court-order-with-counsel.pd[ 
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misconduct48
, no matter what pains I have gone to49 in an effort to substantiate my claims50 beyond 

any reasonable margin of" error". 

CRIMINAL RACKETEERING 

46. Racketeering is often described in simple terms as creating a problem, then selling 

the solution to that problem. That is exactly what took place in this case51• The problem that 

defendants created was a completely unnecessary, strategically engineered, fraudulent federal 

bankruptcy filing. The solution sold to Ms. Fenton by defendants was to deprive me of both my 

rights and my property under color of law, office, and official right, by a bias court, in a "fixed,, 

case52
, while depriving me of due and equal process. First extorting my property and then my 

silence53. No part of this was "legal" by any stretch of the imagination54• 

48 https:// rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2020-10-16 _ coa-emergency-motion-reporting-misconduct.pdf 

https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2020-10-28 _ motion-to-supplement-and-correct-the-record. pdf 
49 Case l:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-29, PagelD.1665-1681 

Case l:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-29, PagelD.1684-1691 

Case l:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-29, PagelD.1698 

Case l:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-27, PagelD.1370 ~ ECF No. 1-28, PageID.1664 

Case l:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-27, PagelD.1370 ~ ECF No. 1-29, PagelD.1683 

Case l:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-29, PagelD.1665 ~ ECF No. 1-30, PageID.1793 

so https://rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2020-02-13 _ tnsc-aoc-ada-gc-john-coke-transcript.pdf 

https:/ / rico. jefffenton.com/ evidence/2020-02-13 _ tnsc-aoc-ada-gc-john-coke-phone-call.mp3 

Case l:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-29, PagelD.1718-1721 
5 1 https://rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2023-12-13 _ wcso-racketeering-official-oppression.pdf 

https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2021-12-02 _ fbi-mark-shafer-binkley-story-corruption.mp3 

https:/ / rico. jefffenton.com/ evidence/2021-12-02 _ fbi-mark-shafer-binkley-story-corruption. pdf 
52 https:/ / rico. jefffenton.com/ evidence/ 2024-01-18 _ binkley-disqualification-for-bias-coercion. pdf 
53 https:/ /rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-10-21 _ order-of-protection-as-illegal-prior-restraint.pdf 
54 https://rico.jefffenton.com/evidence/2024-03-13 _ irrefutable-proof-of-criminal-conspiracy.pdf 

https: / / rico. jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-04-26 _ conspiracy-against-rights-under-color-of-law. pdf 
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4 7. The essence of the conspiracy against my rights and my property was to steal my 

home and extract as much value out of it as possible, through professional fees, and possibly even 

relationships with the investors who purchased my property. 

48. The first challenge was how to get me out of my home, while forcing it to the 

market. While my ex-wife 1s primary concern was about being stuck paying me $1,750 per month 

in "transitional alimony,, for a duration of 6-years as we had repeatedly agreed55. 

49. Because my ex-wife's employer was known to be retiring soon, her counsel decided 

to have her first default upon our mortgage payments, without providing me with any notice, and 

secondly for her to file for bankruptcy, because that would get her out of our agreed alimony (in a 

"fixed,, divorce). Producing a financial benefit of $126,000 for my ex-wife, while shedding 

whatever little bit of revolving debt she had at that time ($44,07956), were her two greatest stressors 

during that season. Evading those two financial responsibilities was of more significance to her 

during the midlife meld-down that she was experiencing57
, than what that decision would 

ultimately cost her in the long run, by forfeiting our property. 

50. Hence the bankruptcy fraud met my wife 's criteria for becoming willing to allow 

the defendants to do whatever they wanted with our beautiful Brentwood property, but first they 

had to figure out how to force me out of my home and take it from me. 

55 https://rico.jeflfenton.com/evidence/2018-10-27 _ verbal-settlement-agreement.pdf 
56 Case l:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-13, PageID.569-576 (After subtracting out defendant Story' s outstanding fees, 
because witl1out this scam tllere would be no need for defendant Story or her exorbitant fees.) 
57 https:/ / rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2019-02-05 _ menopause-narcolepsy-night-sweats-not-stalker. pdf 
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51. The reality is that despite the bankruptcy court having both original and exclusive 

jurisdiction over my marital residence, because it was included in my wife's bankruptcy estate by 

special request of her counsel, they knew that they could neither evict me ( or my two lawful 

tenants/roommates, with written binding one year lease agreements) from my home, nor could 

the federal district or bankruptcy courts compel the sale of my marital residence, because it was 

physically impossible to meet the criteria required by federal bankruptcy law. 

52. 11 U.S.C. § 363(h)58: "Notwithstanding subsection (f) of this section, the trustee 

may sell both the estate's interest, under subsection (b) or ( c) of this section, and the interest of 

any co-owner in property in which the debtor had, at the time of the commencement of the case, 

an undivided interest as a tenant in common, joint tenant, or tenant by the entirety, only if - (3) 

the benefit to the estate of a sale of such property free of the interests of co-owners outweighs 

the detriment, if any, to such co-owners." 

53. It was physically impossible for the forced sale of my home to be of greater benefit 

to the bankruptcy estate than losing it would be a detriment to me. 

54. This was obvious, which is why they didn't obey the law in the bankruptcy court, 

by providing me and my tenants with notice and hearings in either Federal Bankruptcy Court or in 

Federal District Court, as bankruptcy rules and law requires. 

58 https:/ / rico. jefffenton.com/ evidence/2020-07-02 _ bk-trustee-john-mclemore-call-declaration. pdf 

https:/ / rico. jefffenton.com/ evidence/2020-07-02 _ bk-trustee-john-mclemore-recorded-call.mp3 
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5 5. The Counsel in both courts only did what they knew would guarantee their 

predetermined outcome (regardless of any rules or laws). Hence, they accomplished their goals by 

passing the deprivation of my rights and my property from the federal courts in Tennessee to the 

state courts, even though the state was specifically prohibited from exercising jurisdiction. Still 

defendants Story and Binkley could guarantee their predetermined outcome, which they did. 

56. Then everything in the Chancery Court was a fraudulent character assassination, 

spearheaded by the fraudulent "order of protection ex parte59", the day after I received service for 

the divorce and began asking questions about the secret bankruptcy, I was unlawfully deprived 

notice about and ambushed with. 

57. The whole thing was a scam. The bankruptcy fraud relieved my ex-wife of being 

forced to pay alimony for 6-years. The Chancery Court fraud wrongfully evicted both me and my 

two lawful tenants/roommates from my home, giving possession of it to my ex-wife, her counsel, 

the auctioneers, and the bankruptcy court. 

58. I was rendered immediately homeless and destitute, with only a five-day notice over 

a holiday weekend, escorted off my property by four sheriff's deputies60, like a dangerous felon, 

without even allowing me to take my bed with me, after 25 years of being a hardworking, tax paying, 

59 https://rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-06-20 _ wcso-exparte-order-of-protection-service.mp3 

https://rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2023-12-13 _ wcso-racketeering-official-oppression.pdf 

60 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/ 2019-08-29 _ chancery-court-order-once-pro-se.pdf 

https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-08-30 _judgment-wrong-emergency-call-to-court.mp3 
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peaceful Tennessee resident, without so much as a single traffic citation. 

59. My health insurance was terminated without notice, my meds were cut off, and I 

was left to die. 

60. Then to ensure my silence they decided to threaten my life while revoking my 

freedom, despite the fact that I told them that their "order of protection" was interfering with my 

ability to pass background checks and get a job, to simply try to move forward and support myself. 

61. On page 3, lines 16-21 of the transcript of evidence6 1 from the August 1st, 2019, 

hearing, defendant Story stated: 

16 MS. STORY: Because what we don't 

17 want to do is have something go down on his 

18 record that's going to affect his employability, 

19 because he needs to get a job ASAP, so as long as 

20 we have the protection, the order of protection 

21 under the ex pa rte, we are good with that. 

62. As stated by defendant Story above, she didn't want to do anything to harm my 

vocational potential as long as I was a potential "alimony risk" for my ex-wife, because I needed to 

get a job ASAP. That lasted until the moment I crossed over the state line. 

63. The deal between my prior counsel and defendant Story was, if I allowed them to 

keep the ex parte throughout the litigation, they would dissolve it upon the final decree of divorce, 

without it ever becoming a full order of protection, and without us needing to have a trial over it. 

61 https:/ /rico.jefffenton.corn/ evidence/2019-08-01 _ chancery-hearing-transcript.pdf 
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64. The order was always malicious, fraudulent, and abusive, based upon obscenely 

false claims, filed in bad faith, for ulterior purposes. 

65. My wife is a highly trained firearms and self-defense expert62• 

66. If anything ever happened legitimately worthy of depriving my freedom and holding 

my civil rights hostage for years, it was also worthy of an arrest and full equal and due process of 

law. No such thing ever happened, it was all fraudulent character assassination, one of the many 

tools of the trade employed by defendants Story and Binkley, for empowering a rouge judge to 

overstep his lawful jurisdiction and authority under the guise of protecting someone from harm, 

while trampling my rights and extorting my silence63
, about the misconduct of the court and 

counsel. 

6 7. I had no plans of bothering my ex, so I thought it was of no consequence, while I 

asked for a "no contact" order against Ms. Fenton in return. I didn't understand how they would 

abuse the ex parte and use it for ulterior motives. This is just one example of many how every 

action I have taken in court has been honorable, respectable, and done in good-faith. 

Unfortunately, I never found any good-faith in return. 

68. Once my counsel was released, defendant Story didn't keep any of her agreements 

62 https://rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-10-21 _ order-of-protection-as-illegal-prior-restraint.pdf 
63 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/ 2021-03-21 _ knox-news-binkley-threatens-prior-restraints. pdf 

https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2021-03-21 _ knox-news-binkley-threatens-prior-restraints.mp4 
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with my prior counsel64
, nor her promises to me in open court on 8/29/201965

• 

69. Defendants Story, Binkley, the Chancery Court, the Court of Appeals, none of 

them have shown the slightest bit of care of interest in whether I can ever pass a pre-employment 

background check again66 so that I can qualify for the same types of employment which I have 

qualified for without issue throughout my life. That is cruel and criminal ADA interference. 

70. Then when I reported the misconduct by defendants Story and Binkley to the 

Tennessee Court of Appeals67
, the Chancery Court retaliated against me and added five more 

years68 onto their fraudulent out of state default "order of protection", without notice or hearing, 

as "official oppression", Hobbs Act "extortion". To keep a noose around my neck to continue 

coercing my silence about the crimes by the courts and counsel against me, though absolutely 

repugnant of any pretense oflaw and justice. 

71. At fifty years old, having been independent all my life, they clenched down on 

everything that I owned like it belonged to them. I have evidence they pursued this literally past 

the point of being of any financial benefit to any party, purely out of cruelty, domination, to scare 

me, and to punish me. Again, without ever a meaningful chance to be heard or defend myself, 

while they literally ignored hundreds of pages of my sworn testimony and evidence which I filed in 

64 https:/ / rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/ 2019-08-05 _ attorney-agreement-extending-answer-deadline. pdf 
65 https:/ / rico. jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2019-08-29 _ chancery-hearing-transcript-audio-markers. pdf 

https:/ / rico. jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2019-08-29 _ chancery-hearing-audio-recording.mp3 
66 https:/ /rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2021-01-19 _ tnsc-immunity-disorder-strike-expunge-op.pdf 
67 https:/ / rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2020-10-16 _ coa-emergency-motion-reporting-misconduct.pdf 
68 https:/ / rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2019-10-21 _ order-of-protection-as-illegal-prior-restraint. pdf 
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Chancery Court on 8/29/2019. 

72. While that filing69 included an ad hoc divorce answer and counter complaint, as well 

as an answer for the fraudulent order of protection, and the forced motion to sell my marital 

residence. Hence, it was physically impossible to have any good-faith "default judgments,, levied 

against me in docket #48419B. Yet they remain, while I have fought for four years to get one honest 

person of authority to obey the law, their oath of office, and the State of Tennessee's Rules of 

Judicial Conduct. 

73. While I told both defendant Story7° as well as the Court of Appeals about all of this, 

while filing clarifications71
, yet still not one word of my hundreds of pages of pleadings filed on 

Chancery Court record on 8/29/2019 has been used to my benefit. That is not reasonable. 

74. I witnessed both defendants Binkley and Story with my "ONE-AND-DONE", 

250+/- pages of pleadings72 in their hands during open court on 8/29/2019, while they promised 

to address my filing in the next hearing. 

69 https://rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2019-08-29 _ husbands-one-and-done-answer-to-all.pdf (Case 1 :23-cv-01097-PLM­
RSK, ECF No. 1-18, PagelD.766 ~ ECF No. 1-22, PagelD.1038) 
70 https:/ / rico. jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2020-05-05 _ notified-story-about-her-fraudulent-affidavit.pelf 

https:/ / rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2020-10-30 _ storys-objection-to-correcting-the-court-record. pdf 
71 https:/ / rico. jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2020-10-28 _ motion-to-supplement-and-correct-the-record. pdf 
72 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-18, PagelD.766 ~ ECF No. 1-22, PageID.1038 

https:/ / rico. jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2020-10-28 _ motion-to-supplement-and-correct-the-record.pdf 
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75. On page 24, lines 1-7 of the transcript of evidence from the August 29th, 2019 

hearing, defendants Story and Binkley stated: 

·1· · ······MS. STORY:· Since he probably will be 

·2· ·moving to Michigan, I would be amenable to him 

·3· ·attending the final hearing by telephone if he doesn't 

·4· ·want to drive back.· And I can tell you, I will try to 

·S· ·accommodate him in any way I can. 

·6· • • • • • • • THE COURT:· I know you will.· You already 

·7· ·have. 

76. Defendant Story told me in court that she would allow me to participate in the 

following hearing over the phone, because they both knew that as a result of them wrongfully 

evicting me from my home (five days after this hearing), they were dislocating me to the State of 

Michigan, to stay with my elderly mother, to obtain emergency replacement shelter and provision. 

77. Defendants Binkley and Story stated during that 8/29/2019 hearing that the 

following hearing would address my exhaustive filing that day, which addressed every fraudulent 

claim against me to the best of my ability on short notice. 

78. Once again, after I crossed the state line, everything they had told me went right out 

the window. 

79. On top of that they destroyed my life and my ability to simply get a decent job from 

home to help support myself without becoming a complete financial liability upon my family or the 

State of Michigan, neither which was the State of Tennessee 's problem, even though they are 

ultimately responsible for everything which took place, and for denying me a cure for four obscene 
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years oflitigious torture. 

80. On October 2!51, 2019, defendants Story and Binkley changed their minds without 

notice, motion, or confirmation, chose not to allow me to participate in the hearing over the phone 

as told in court on 8/29/2019. Moreover, they decided not to consider any of my 250+/- pages of 

pleadings which they both held in their hands on 8/29/2019 and the court said it would address on 

81. Instead they colored the court records to appear as ifI had voluntarily chosen to sell 

my marital residence and render myself homeless, without one dollar to my benefit, then I chose 

to voluntarily relocate to the State of Michigan, after which I no longer was interested in defending 

my case in Tennessee, no matter what ill-fate awaited me as a consequence. 

82. Those claims by defendants Story and Binkley were about as obscenely false and 

fraudulent as possible. I already had a defense on record73 for everything, yet they refused to use 

it to my benefit, in violation of the State of Tennessee's Rules of both Professional and Judicial 

Conduct. 

83. In defendant Binkley' s default "Final Decree of Divorce" he stated, "Husband has 

not filed an Answer and has had two attorneys both of whom have withdrawn." 

84. That statement was false and both defendants Binkley and Story reasonably should 

73 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-08-29 _ husbands-one-and-done-answer-to-all.pdf (Case 1 :23-cv-01097-PLM­
RSK, ECF No. 1-18, PageID.766 ~ ECF No. 1-22, PagelD.1038) 
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have known that. 

85. Even if they did not, they had an ethical obligation to give me the benefit of all the 

facts to their knowledge which could help the tribunal make an informed decision and a just 

judgment, not to simply cast harsh punitive default judgements against me, because I lacked the 

money and power to stop them. 

86. They had my answers in their hands in court on 8/29/2019 and assured me that 

they would address my filings during that 10/21/2019 hearing. 

87. Defendant Binkley went on to say in his Final Decree of Divorce74
, "The Court 

finds, based upon the undisputed testimony of Wife, a witness for Wife as to the grounds for the 

divorce, the exhibits introduced in this cause, and the record as a whole, that the following shall be 

the Order of this Court." 

88. That is fraud on the court by officers of the court. That is falsifying government 

records. 

89. It is not reasonable that anyone could view the record in Williamson County Docket 

#48419B and concluded that wife's testimony was "undisputed". That is rife with fraud. 

90. Furthermore, nobody to date will inform me about who this mystery witness was 

and what their testimony was, which allegedly confirmed wife's grounds for divorce, which they 

74 https:/ /rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-10-21 _ chancery-final-decree-of-divorce.pdf 
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blamed upon me. 

91. When both Ms. Fenton and I requested a divorce based upon "irreconcilable 

differences", but that failed to demonize me enough for the obscenely harsh and punitive 

judgments which defendants Binkley and Story had predetermined and finally levied against me. 

92. Sometimes I fear they are going to give me a brain aneurysm this is so ridiculous, 

while I have had to write it over and over and over, and no court yet has heard my testimony and 

exercised the tiniest bit of honest, good-faith, reasonable, justice. 

93. None of which were "reasonable" with the truth known and the entire record 

compared for continuity, while fact checking75 defendant Story's claims of both fact and law 

throughout both transcripts76 of evidence. 

75 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-35, PagelD.1925 ~ ECF No. 1-36, PagelD.2006 

76 https://rico.jeflTenton.com/evidence/2019-06-04 _ wifes-complaint-for-divorce-48419b.pdf 

https:/ / rico. jeflTenton.com/ evidence/2019-08-01 _ chancery-hearing-transcript. pdf 

https:/ / rico. jeflTenton.com/ evidence/ 2019-08-01 _ chancery-court-order-with-counsel.pdf 

https:/ / rico.jeflTenton.com/ evidence/2019-08-29 _ chancery-hearing-transcript-audio-markers.pdf 

https:/ /rico.jeflTenton.com/evidence/2019-08-29 _ chancery-hearing-audio-recording.mp3 

https://rico.jeflTenton.com/evidence/2019-08-29 _ chancery-court-order-once-pro-se.pdf 

Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-35, PagelD.1925 - ECF No. 1-36, PagelD.2006 
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18 U.S.C. § 157 BANKRUPTCY FRAUD BY THE COURTS & COUNSEV1 

A person who, having devised or intending to devise a scheme or artifice to defraud and for 

the purpose of executing or concealing such a scheme or artifice or attempting to do so-

(1) files a petition under title 11, including a fraudulent involuntary petition under section 

303 of such title; 

(2) files a document in a proceeding under title 11; or 

(3) makes a false or fraudulent representation, claim, or promise concerning or in relation 

to a proceeding under title 11, at any time before or after the filing of the petition, or in relation to 

a proceeding falsely asserted to be pending under such title, shall be fined under this title, 

imprisoned not more than 5 years, or both. 

94. Ms. Fenton's fraudulent78 Chapter-13 Bankruptcy Petition was executed on 

4/26/2019 and filed in case 3:19-bk-0269379 by bankruptcy specialist, Attorney Mary Elizabeth 

Maney Ausbrooks80 (BPR# 018097), and Attorney Alexander Sergey Koval (BPR# 029541) 

both of ROTHSCHILD & AUSBROOKS, PLLC. 

95. This was filed in The United States Bankruptcy Court for the Middle District of 

77 https:/ / rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2019-04-26 _ ausbrooks-story-fraudulent-bk-petition. pdf 
78 https:/ / rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/ 2019-04-26 _ ausbrooks-story-fraudulent-bk-petition.pdf 

https:/ / rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/ 2019-04-26 _ bankrupcy-planned-for-when-employer-retires.pdf 
79 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-8, PageID.74 - ECF No. 1-11, PageID.478 
80 https:/ / rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2021-01-27 _ notified-ausbrooks-fraud-misconduct-damages.pdf 
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Tennessee. Located at 701 Broadway Ste 260, Nashville, TN 37203-3983. 

96. The Chapter-13 Trustee responsible was Attorney Henry Edward Hildebrand, 

III (BPR# 032168). The Federal Bankruptcy Court Judge presiding was Judge Charles M. 

Walker (BPR# 019884). 

97. This bankruptcy petition contained false and fraudulent information while it also 

failed to disclose critical information about my wife's domestic support obligations, both paid 

previously81
, still paid at that time82

, and promised to be paid in the future83 for several years to 

come. 

98. The fraudulent bankruptcy petition also lied about our property interests, failed to 

disclose that I in fact had lawful possession of our marital residence, requiring an "Adversarial 

Proceeding" per Rule #7001 of the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure and 11 U.S.C. § 36384
• 

99. My wife's counsel also failed to mention my two lawful tenants/roommates, with 

binding federally protected leasehold property interests, which would have even survived 

foreclosure with the federal "Protecting Tenants at Foreclosure Act" (PTF A), though I had access 

to the funds to prevent a foreclosure. 

81 https://rico.jetffenton.com/evidence/2018-05-02_ family-budget-living-apart.pdf 
82 https://rico.jetffenton.com/ evidence/2019-05-16 _ support-email-wife-never-mentioned-bankruptcy.pdf 
83 https://rico.jetffenton.com/evidence/2018-10-27 _ verbal-settlement-agreement.pdf 

https://rico.jetffenton.com/ evidence/2019-01-08 _ wifes-claims-about-alimony-and-lawyers.pdf 
8

' https:/ / rico. jetffenton.com/ evidence/ 2020-07-02 _ bk-trustee-john-mclemore-call-declara tion. pdf 

https:/ / rico.jetffenton.com/ evidence/2020-07-02 _ bk-trustee-john-mclemore-recorded-call.mp3 
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100. Let me be crystal clear, I was never notified by my ex-wife or anyone on her behalf 

that she could not afford or was having trouble paying our mortgage payments. 

101. I was never notified by my ex-wife or anyone on her behalf that she was going to 

default on our mortgage payments. 

102. I was never notified by my ex-wife or anyone on her behalf that she had defaulted 

on our mortgage payments. (Until months later after she had filed for bankruptcy, as well as the 

divorce, plus a motion to force the sale of our home, plus an order of protection "ex parte ,, , based 

upon false charges.) 

► We were communicating on friendly terms immediately before this ambush. 

► Ms. Fenton told me that she wanted to "remain friends" after our divorce just a 

few months earlier, without any known precipitating events to change that. 

► I can think of no good faith reason for her failing to warn me that the sum total of 

my life, s investments were in dire risk of total loss and forfeiture, yet this was all 

kept a secret from me by Ms. Fenton, the bankruptcy court, and her counsel. 

103. I was never notified by my ex-wife or anyone on her behalf that she was planning 

to file for bankruptcy. 

104. I was never provided legal notice by the bankruptcy counsel, the bankruptcy court, 

or the bankruptcy trustee, that the bankruptcy had been filed, that our mortgages were in default, 
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that our home was included in my wife's "bankruptcy estate", or that she and her counsel had 

specifically requested to sell our marital residence through the bankruptcy court. 

105. Entered on April 26, 2019, in Appendix D, Part 9, "Nonstandard Plan Provisions", 

the following request was included by defendant Ausbrooks85
: "Debtor moves for permission to sell 

real property located at 1986 Sunny Side Drive Brentwoo~ TN 37027 Williamson County, within 180 

days of confirmation with no payments being made in the interim. The liens of Bank of America, NA and 

BanCorp South shall be satisfied in full and all remainingproceeds after Debtor's homestead exemption 

and costs of sale shall be paid to the Chapter 13 Trustee for the benefit of the estate. 11 

106. To be clear, this language asked the bankruptcy court for permission to sell real 

property owned by Ms. Fenton and one other equally deeded party, me, as tenancy by the entirety. 

107. This can be easily verified by checking the property deed86 and/ or the property tax 

records87 on which I am clearly named, the same being the legal responsibilities of both defendants 

Ausbrooks and Hildebrand. 

108. Examining this request on its face, imploring no more than common sense and the 

most fundamental knowledge about natural and constitutional rights in the United States of 

America, this request does not appear that it could have reasonably been made in good faith by 

defendant Ausbrooks for at least the following two reasons: 

85 Case l:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-8, PagelD.144 
86 https://rico.jefffenton.com/evidence/ 2011-04-29 _ 1986-sunnyside-brentwood-tn-deed.pdf 
87 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/ l 986-sunnyside-brentwood-tn-2019-property-taxes.pdf 

Page 37 of 46 

Initials~ 

https://rico.jefffenton.com/evidence/fenton-family-finances-property-education-experience.pdf Case 1 :23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK (FENTON v. STORY et al.) 

Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK   ECF No. 37,  PageID.3434   Filed 03/25/24   Page 37 of 46



(1) Firstly, the request is seeking to sell the property owned by another­

and providing him nothing in return. 

(2) Secondly, the language is promising all the proceeds of the sale to benefit 

only the party making this request (and her creditors), without any 

language indicating if or how the proposed sale might be of any benefit to 

the other equally deeded and mutually interested property owner, me. 

109. That immediately wreaks of foul play, yet defendant Ausbrooks filed the motion, all 

while personally and professional certifying88 that her request was well grounded in law and made 

in good-faith and without bringing any of the obvious concerns and potential conflicts of interest 

to light. She failed to perform any due diligence to protect my property interest as well as those of 

my two lawful tenants/roommates, or to provide us with "adequate protection" as is required by 

the federal rules of bankruptcy procedure and the law89, while violating the constitution, my natural 

rights, and the rules of professional conduct. 

110. Defendant Ausbrooks was well aware that Ms. Fenton was still married. She also 

knew that the state of Tennessee is a "deed of trust" state, not a mortgage state, meaning that the 

name on a mortgage does not define who owns the property or holds legal title to it, but instead, 

that the property's deed of trust is the sole instrument. Furthermore, real property owned by a 

husband and wife in Tennessee is by default held as tenancy by the entirety90. Even if I wasn't 

88 F.R.B.P. Rule 9011 and 11 U.S. Code § 707 
89 https://www.law.cornell.edu/ uscode/text/ 11/363 
90 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-13, PagelD.541-542 
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named on the deed of trust-which I was-the property still can't legally be sold with a clear title 

without me signing a quit claim deed or some other instrument conveying or forfeiting my marital 

interest in the property. But if that was to be compelled by any court, it could not be lawfully or 

ethically done without due process. 

111. Choosing not to notify me91 or my two lawful tenants, defendant Ausbrooks had 

requested that all my lawful real property interests be usurped and liquidated, with the funds being 

disbursed entirely to others. Such thievery is clearly unethical and also illegal pursuant to 11 U.S. 

Code§ 707(b)(4)(C)92
: 

(1) The signature of an attorney on a petition, pleading, or written motion shall 

constitute a certification that the attorney has-

(i) performed a reasonable investigation into the circumstances that gave rise 

to the petition, pleading, or written motion; and 

(ii) determined that the petition, pleading, or written motion-

(I) is well grounded in fact; and 

(II) is warranted by existing law or a good faith argument for the extension, 

modification, or reversal of existing law and does not constitute an abuse 

under paragraph (1). 

9 1 Case I:23-cv-01097-PLM -RSK, ECF No. 1-13, PagelD.565-566 

https:/ / rico.jeflfenton.com/ evidence/2022-03-15 _ ustp-bk-fraud-referral-confirmed-no-notice.pdf 

92 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-34, PagelD.1894 
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112. The actions between the state and federal courts were conducted under the 

pretense of" legal" actions and under the guise of a divorce, except that none of the actions taken 

were actually legal in accordance with the rule of law-neither state nor federal, including their 

constitutions. Nor was any interest or care shown about any real merit involving my marriage or 

subsequent dissolution of that marriage through a divorce. In fact, discovery for our divorce was 

strategically prevented by defendants Chancery Court, Binkley, Beeler, and Story from ever 

getting started. 

113. Once defendants seized possession of my marital residence, they fraudulently 

terminated all litigation under the guise of" default" judgments93, claiming that I chose to relocate 

to Michigan and had no interest in participating further or defending my case94
• 

114. Those claims are, were, and have always been unequivocally false95
• I believe that 

any honestly impartial party who read my "handwritten note" in its entirety, which I left at my 

marital residence for my ex-wife, would conclude the same. 

115. I have reams of documentation to prove my intentions were to defend my case at all 

costs. While the fact that I am here four years later still fighting for justice, with thousands of pages 

of court filings to substantiate my efforts to date, should speak beyond any reasonable margin of 

"error". 

93 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019-10-21 _ chancery-final-decree-of-divorce. pdf 
94 https:/ / rico. jefffenton.com/ evidence/ 2019-10-21 _fraudulent-final-affidavit-by-virginia-story .pdf 
95 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2020-05-05 _ notified-story-about-her-fraudulent-affidavit. pdf 
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THE CHANCERY COURT WAS USED TO ILLEGALLY CIRCUMVENT 

THEFEDERALRULESOFBANKRUPTCYPROCEDURE&BANKRUPTCYLAW 

116. First and foremost, the Chancery Court had no lawful jurisdiction to hear any sort 

of issue that would have ultimately changed ownership of the marital residence because it had 

already been included in my ex-wife's bankruptcy estate on April 26, 2019. 

117. This was thirty-nine days before the first documents were filed in the Chancery 

Court on 6/4/2019, and ninety-seven days before I first stood before defendants Binkley and Story. 

118. Therefore, the federal courts had both original and exclusive jurisdiction over my 

marital residence, which could not have been lawfully abdicated to another court, since the 

bankruptcy was filed first and the sale of our marital residence was "core)) to the bankruptcy 

proceeding. 

119. In fact, the sale of our marital residence was one of the primary reasons that Ms. 

Fen ton's counsel filed the bad faith fraudulent bankruptcy action. 

120. The federal courts were required to provide both me and my two lawful 

tenants/roommates with "adequate protection" for our federally protected property interests 

throughout my ex-wife's bankruptcy. 

121. Of the three matters addressed by the Chancery Court- the forced deprivation of 

the marital home, the divorce, and the order of protection-the Chancery Court had no 

jurisdiction or authority to hear or act on the first, while the last two were done after defendants 

Binkley, Story, and the Chancery Court had committed multiple gross felonies against me, 
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horrendously violating my rights, disqualifying96 the same multiple times over from retaining any 

lawful jurisdiction or authority, whatsoever, in the matters. 

122. Without regard for the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure and subsequent 

Bankruptcy Laws, or the Constitution of the United States of America, the Chancery Court still 

usurped-or the bankruptcy court abdicated-jurisdiction97 over the marital home, in violation of 

28 U.S. Code § 1334(e)(l),98 which states: ((The district court in which a case under title 11 is 

commenced or is pending shall have exclusive jurisdiction-of all the property, wherever located, 

of the debtor as of the commencement of such case, and of property of the estate.,, 

123. Defendants Binkley and the Chancery Court ordered the ((sale" of my home in 

disregard of this federal law99• Of important note is the fact that the issue of whether to sell the 

marital home was never raised in the Chancery Court or in the bankruptcy court, but only how fast 

it could be sold. 

96 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/ 2024-01-18 _ binkley-disqualification-for-bias-coercion.pdf 
97 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-34, PageID.1882 (See e.g., In re Palmer, 78 B.R. 402, 405-06 (Bankr. E.D.N.Y. 
1987)) 
98 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-34, PageID.1882 
99 Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-35, PageID.1951-1953 
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UNCONSTITUTIONAL: NO OPPORTUNITY TO SA VE MY PROPERTY 
INTERESTS OR TO MITIGATE MY LOSSES 

124. On 8/1/2019, after a pre-trial conference in the back of the Chancery Court, I told 

my counsel Charles "Marty" Duke that I could borrow money from my mother to bring our 

mortgages current and to keep them current (roughly $8k, less than I collectively spent on counsel 

for that day), provided I could continue living in my home. 

125. After telling Mr. Duke this, I asked if that might be possible. 

126. Defendant Story overheard me and answered me directly by stating, "No. It's 

already too far along in the bankruptcy." 

127. That was unconstitutional, a violation of bankruptcy law, as well as a violation of 

due process. 

128. Upon information and belief, I believe that this statement by defendant Story was 

also factually false. I see no such finding, judgment, or documentation in the bankruptcy record to 

support this claim. 

129. The bankruptcy court pretended to sell the marital residence based upon the orders 

from the Chancery Court, while Chancery Court played much of the same game, as if compelled 

to sell the marital residence to accommodate the bankruptcy, while neither court had the lawful 

jurisdiction and authority to force the sale of the martial residence, without discovery and full due 

process of law, which they both refused. 

130. In addition to that, the bankruptcy action was on its face fraudulent, with false 

details about our property interests in our marital residence, as previously mentioned. 
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131. Any action planted squarely inside a fraudulent action in another court, especially 

for the express purpose of intentionally deceiving both courts while circumventing the rights and 

protections required to be obeyed in that court prior to the deprivation of the property is fraud 

sowed upon fraud and can beget nothing other than fraud compounded. 

132. In addition to that, the Motion to Sell the Marital Residence100 signed and 

submitted by defendant Yarbrough and argued in Chancery Court on August 1, 2019, by defendant 

Story, was highly harassing, abusive of process, and obscenely fraudulent. 

133. There are so many violations of the rules of professional conduct101
, judicial canons, 

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure, statutory laws, and state 

and U.S. Constitutions that the best way I know how to try to articulate it all is by heavily marking 

up102 each of defendant Story's and Yarbrough's filings to try to write in the truth inline with the 

obscene amount of fraud on the court filed in each and every document they drafted and filed in 

docket #48419B. Without one being done honestly, in good faith, in pursuit of justice, in 

compliance with the federal and state rules of court conduct. 

100 https:// rico.jefffenton.com/evidence/2019-07-17 _ chancery-motion-to-sell-marital-residence.pdf 
10 1 h ttps: / / rico. jefff en ton.com/ evidence/ tennessee-rules-of-j udi cial-and-prof essional-cond uct. pdf 
102 https:/ / rico.jefffenton.com/ evidence/2019 _ tn-court-motions-in-chronological-order. pdf 
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$44,079 OF ALLEGED "BANKRUPTCY RELIEF" 

134. The bankruptcy only reaped $44,079103 worth of alleged "bankruptcy relief' for 

Ms. Fenton in the end. While likely costing her more than that in combined counsel. Also 

forfeiting $250,000 in cash improvements and labor, that we had invested into our home, as of the 

day of the auction. Still another $400,000 of appreciation has been lost since. Because we had 

finally secured the investment of a lifetime, and we knew it, which was why we had invested 

$200,000 + I- in improvements to the property, after we purchased it in 2011. 

135. Those improvements were also my primary work product for much of 2011-2018, 

while Ms. Fenton's primary investment during that same period was in building her career in 

architecture. An asset which she got to keep and continue benefitting from, even after the financial 

collapse of our family. 

136. The truth is, that my wife, never needed to file bankruptcy1°4, and actually had a 

terribly difficult time "qualifying"105
, because she was a highly successful professional with a 

$116,500 annual compensation package106, before the counsel within this complaint got involved. 

137. Now both of our lives have been destroyed, to the financial benefit of solely 

outsiders; attorneys, auctioneers, real estate investors, and their "friends", who are reaping the 

103 Case l:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-13, PagelD.569-576 (After subtracting out defendant Story's outstanding fees, 
because without this scam there would be no need for defendant Story or her exorbitant fees.) 
104 Case l:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-13, PagelD.569-576 
105 Case l:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-8, PagelD.74 ~ ECF No. 1-11, PagelD.478 
106 Case l:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK, ECF No. 1-27, PagelD.1444 
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benefits of everything we spent our lives working for, saving, investing, and building, stolen from 

us both in the blink of an eye, under color of law, exploiting institutions of public trust and justice 

for felonious deprivation and criminal racketeering. 

138. The courts have a responsibility to fix this. I should not be destroyed for acting 

honestly in good faith, while submitting to the authorities which I am told that I must submit to. 

DECLARATION 

Pursuant to 28 U.S. Code§ 1746, I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and 

correct, except as to matters herein stated to be on information and belief, and as to such matters, 

I certify as aforesaid that I verily believe the same to be true. 

Executed on March 25, 2024 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

WESTERN DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN FILED- LN 
March 25, 2024 4:07 PM 

CLERK OF COURT 
U.S. DISTRICT COURT 

WESTERN DISTRICT O~ Hl~v 
JEFFREY RYAN FENTON, BY: eod FILED BY: :3 b 

PLAINTIFF CASE NO. l:23-cv-1097 
v. 

VIRGINIA LEE STORY ET AL., 

DEFENDANTS 

EXHIBIT: CONSPIRACY AGAINST RIGHTS UNDER COLOR OF LAW 

!,Jeffrey Ryan Fenton, declare as follows: 

1. My name is Jeffrey Ryan Fenton. 

2. I am the Plaintiff in this federal lawsuit (CASE NO. 1:23-cv-1097). 

3. Please file this exhibit in my case, so that I can reference it in my lawsuit. 

4. Thank you. 

Pursuant to 28 U.S. Code § 17 46, I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and 

correct. 

Executed 3/25/2024 

17195 SILVER PARKWAY, #150 

FENTON, Ml, 48430-3426 

JEFF.FENTON@LIVE.COM 

(P) 615.837.1300 
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CONSPIRACY AGAINST RIGHTS UNDER COLOR OF LAW 

U.S. BANKRUPTCY COURT, THE MIDDLE DISTRICT OF TENN 

WILLIAMSON COUNTY CHANCERY COURT AT FRANKLIN, TENN 

BK: #3:19-BK-02693 I TN: #M2019-02059-COA-R3-CV I WILCO: #48419B 

COUNSEL'S FINANCIAL & LEGAL LIABILITY FOR BANKRUPTCY CRIMES & 
EXCESSIVE COSTS (APPLICABLE) _______________ _ 1 

Story & Ausbrooks: Counsel's Liability for Excessive Costs (APPLICABLE). _________ ! 

Signature of an Attorney on Bankruptcy Petition, Pleading, or Written Motion shall Constitute a 
Certification (APPLICABLE) _ _______________ ______ 2 

Bankruptcy Attorney's Liability for Signing of Papers; Representations to the Court; Sanctions; 

Verification and Copies of Papers (APPLICABLE)----------------:--3 

FEDERAL RULES OF BANKRUPTCY PROCEDURE (VIOLATIONS) _______ 6 

FRBP Rule 7001: Scope of Rules of Part VII-ADVERSARY PROCEEDINGS: Required by Four 
Seperate Factors in my Ex-wife's Undisclosed Bankruptcy (VIOLATED) __________ 6 

FRBP Rule 9011: Bankruptcy Attorney's Liability for Signing of Papers; Representations to the 
Court; Sanctions; Verification and Copies of Papers (VIOLATED) _________ _ 8 

TITLE-11: BANKRUPTCY LAWS (VIOLATIONS) ____________ ll 

11 USC§ 363(h)(3): CAN ONLY SELL IF the Benefit to the Estate of a Sale of such Property Free 
of the Interests of Co-owners Outweighs the Detriment to such Co-owners (VIOLATED) ____ ll 

11 USC§ 363(b)(l): Tenants with Lawful Leasehold Interests and I were Due Notices & Hearings in 

FED BK Court or FED District Court, Shortly after Ex-wife Filed BK (VIOLA TED) _ ____ 13 

11 USC§ 363(e): Adequate Protection was Intentionally Circumvented by Refusing my Tenants and I 

Notice & Hearing in FED BK or District Court= FRBP 7001 (VIOLATED) ________ 11 

11 USC§ 363(h)(3): The Benefit to the Estate, of a Sale of such Property, Free of the Interests of Co­

owners, Outweighs the Detriment, if any, to such Co-owners. (Husband had NO Knowledge or Means 

of Knowing that ANY Mortgage Payments were Missed, since Ex-wife Promised to Pay & Controlled 

Access.) Husband lost over a Million-Dollar, post-tax, lifetime Property Interest, while being rendered 

Homeless, Broke & Destitute in TN. (I told Attorney Story that I could Borrow Money to bring the 

Mortgages Current, but she Insisted that it was "Already Too Far Along in the BK Process") On my first 

day in Court, on 8/1/2019, Before Discovery Began (VIOLATED) _ _ ________ 11 
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11 USC§ 363(h): Permits Sale of a Co-owner's Interest in Property IF the Benefit to the Estate 

Outweighs any Detriment to the Co-owners. (Benefit to the Estate is Determined by the Amount of 

UNSECURED Debts which can be Payed by the Sale, above and beyond the Mortgages Secured by the 

Property. This Sale ONLY paid the Mortgages. It was of NO such Benefit and FAILED to Meet the 

Criteria to Force the Sale.) "Burdonsome Asset" (VIOLATED) ______________ l4 

11 USC § 541: Property of Estate- Commencement of a Bankruptcy Case Creates an Estate. ___ 16 

11 USC§ 54l(d): Property in which the Debtor Holds, as of the Commencement of the Case 
(VIOLATED1-________________________ l8 

11 USC § 541: The House amendment provides that property of the estate will include whatever interest 

the debtor held in the property at the commencement of the case (VIOLA TED) ________ l9 

11 USC§ 541: Only the Debtor's Interest in such Property becomes Property of the Estate 
(VIOLATED), _ ______________________ 19 

11 USC§ 541: Both possessory interests and lease-hold interests are VALID interests which must be 
given consideration (VIOLATED) __________ ____________ 20 

11 USC§ 541: It is not intended to expand the debtor's rights against others more than they exist at the 
commencement of the case (VIOLATED) ________ ____________ 20 

11 USC§ 542: Turnover of Property-Husband was the ''Debtor in Possession" with two Tenant's 
who had Federally Protected Leasehold Interests. Husband had more premarital retirement funds 
invested into the purchase of the Marital Residence than Ex-wife (VIOLATED) ______ __ 21 

11 USC§ 707(4)(C): Signature of an Attorney on a Petition, Pleading, or Written Motion shall 
Constitute a Certification (APPLICABLE)-_____ ______________ 22 

11 USC§ 1203: Rights and Powers of Debtor-I was the Debtor in Possession, Fraudulently 
Denied Notice, Hearing in FED Court, and an Adversarial Proceeding (VIOLA TED) ___ ___ 23 

11 USC§ 1204(a): Removal of Debtor as Debtor in Possession-On request of a party in interest (had I 

not been denied lawful notice per FRBP-7001, I would have made such a request), the Court SHALL 

Order that the Debtor shall NOT be a "Debtor in Possession" for Cause, including Fraud, Dishonesty, 

Incompetence, or Gross Mismanagement of the Affairs (I was and remained the "Debtor in Possession" 

until Wrongfully Evicted on 9/3/2019, with only Five-Days Notice, by 4-Sherifl's Deputies, based upon 

Significant Attorney and Judicial Misconduct and Fraud Upon the Court by Officers of the Court during 

my Pro Se 8/29/2019 "hearing" in Chancery, without Reason Provided by Judge Michael W. Binkley. 

Transcripts of Evidence were hidden by Court in Volu _ ___ ___ 23 

11 USC § 1205: Adequate Protection-This ENTIRE Section Applies and was KNOWINGLY 

(VIOLATED) by the Egregious Conspiracy Against MY Rights, Under Color of Law, with the Knowing 
Disregard for Bankruptcy Rules & Laws_____ _ _________________ 23 
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11 USC§ 1206: Sales Free oflnterests-After Notice and a Hearing, in Addition to the Authorization 

contained in Section 363(t) = 363(h)3 MEANS TEST (F AILED) ___________ 24 

11 USC§ 1207: Property of the Estate _____________________ 24 

11 USC § 1208: Conversion or Dismissal-Any waiver of the right to dismiss under this subsection is 

unenforceable. (c) On request of a party in interest, and after notice and a hearing, the court may 

dismiss a case under this chapter for cause, including - (1) unreasonable delay, or gross 
mismanagement, by the debtor that is prejudicial to creditors; ______________ 24 

TITLE-IS: FEDERAL CRIMES IN THIS CASE (VIOLATIONS) _________ 25 

BANKRUPCY CRIMES (VIOLATED) __________________ 25 

18 USC § 152: Concealment of Assets; False Oaths, Claims; Bribery ____________ 25 

18 USC§ 153: Embezzlement Against Estate. ____________________ 26 

18 USC § 154: Adverse Interest and Conduct of Officers, ________________ 26 

18 USC § 156: Knowing Disregard of Bankruptcy Law or Rule __ __; _________ __;_27 

18 USC § 157: Bankruptcy Fraud ______________________ _ 27 

18 USC § 158: Designation of United States Attorneys and Agents of the F.B.I., ____ -,,--___ 28 

18 USC § 373 Solicitation to Commit a Crime of Violence (VIOLATED) ___ _____,,,....-~---- 29 

18 USC § 401: Power of a Court of the United States to have the Power to Punish by Fine or 

Imprisonment, or Both, at its Discretion, such Contempt of its Authority _ _________ 29 

18 USC§ 402: Contempts Constituting Crimes: Any Person Willfully Disobeying any Lawful Writ, 

Process, Order, Rule, Decree, or Command of any District Court of the United States _ _ ___ _ 29 

18 USC§ 241: Conspiracy Against Rights _____________________ 30 

18 USC § 242: Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law _______________ 30 

18 USC§ 195l(b)(l), (2): Hobb's Act "ROBBERY" & "EXTORTION"-The term "Extortion" 

means the obtaining of property from another, with his consent, induced by wrongful use of actual 
or threatened force, violence, or fear, or under color of official right (VIOLA TED) _______ 31 

18 USC § 19Sl(a): Hobb's Act Interference with Commerce by Threats or Violence (VIOLA TED) __ 
_______________________ ______________ 31 

Universal Declaration of Human Rights (TORTURE): To take everything that a man has, his 

only income, shelter, property, pre-marital retirement (by an entirely secret, fraudulent 
conspiracy between powerful Courts, without a single GOOD-FAITH motive or action), in 
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violation of every RULE OF LAW, then to further deprive me of my LIBERTY interest by 
DEFAULT, without the slightest lllNT of DUE PROCESS, after geographically displaced me by 

600 miles, is such an egregious overstep of any lawful authority or jurisdiction, I have literally 
experienced LITIGIOUS TERRORISM for OVER THREE-YEARS OF OUTRAGEOUS PAIN 

AND SUFFERING, beyond the scope of "TORTURE" as recognized by the Universal 
Declaration of Human Rights! (Of which you are hereby notified that you are a party to, having 
REFUSED me ANY ASSISTANCE!) ____________________ 32 

TITLE-28: JUDICIAL & JURISDICTIONAL (VIOLATIONS) _________ 33 

FEDERAL JURISDICTION: Absent Abstention by the Bankruptcy Court ofits Exclusive 
Jurisdiction over the Debtor's Property, the State Court may not Exercise Jurisdiction over 
Property of the Debtor or Property of the Bankruptcy Estate. _ _____________ 33 

28 USC§ 1334: Bankruptcy Cases and Proceedings-DISTRICT COURTS have Original & 
ExclusiveJURISDICTION (VIOLATED) ___ _______________ 34 

28 USC § 1335: Interpleader-The DISTRICT COURTS shall have Original Jurisdiction of any 
Civil Action oflnterpleader or in the Nature oflnterpleader Filed (VIOLATED) _______ 35 

28 USC§ 1927: Counsel's Liability for Excessive Costs-Bankruptcy Attorney Mary Beth 
Ausbrooks Liable & Divorce Attorney Virginia Lee Story Liable (amongst others) _______ 36 

TITLE-42: PUBLIC HEAL TH AND WELFARE (VIOLATIONS) _____ ~ ___ 37 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIBS ACT: VIOLATIONS ____________ 37 

42 USC§ 12202: State Immunity-Egregious ADA Violations of Disadvantaged and Vulnerable People 
(APPLICABLE) _ ____ __________________ 37 

42 USC § 12203( a): Prohibition Against Retaliation and Coercion (VIOLA TED) _______ 37 

42 USC§ 12203(b): Interference, Coercion, or Intimidation-Threats of Incarceration to Coerce my 

Signature on the "Listing Agreement" in Court on 8/29/2019. The Fraudulent 6-YEAR "ORDER OF 

PROTECTION" to EXTORT MY SILENCE (under color of official right, or law), while it was 

ENTIRELY FRAUDULENT, by DEFAULT JUDGMENTS after I was lawlessly RENDERED 

HOMELESS and DISLOCATED to the State of Michigan to SURVIVE, giving the State of Tennessee 

NO LAWFUL AUTHORY or JURISDICTION to FURTHER HARM ME! (My Ex-wife's FALSE 

Statement about me is NOT EVEN SIGNED, which by the FEDERAL RULES OF EVIDENCE means 
that it is TRASH!)________ _ _______________ 37 

42 USC § 12203: Attorney Virginia Lee Story outrageously harrassed and even had the AUCTIONEER 

Tommy Anderson spy on my elderly mother and I while, followed later by his THREATS ahd 

harrassment, followed by him coming to my home and pounding on the back door, about scaring my 

mother to death! To threaten we hurry up and move out, or else something not to my liking was going to 

happen! (We tried to hurry to comply with her demands, to pack my personal property once permitted 
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to come do so, while she had a hearing pending the next day to DISCARD it by using a FEDERAL BK 

Court Order to Supersede TN STATE LA W's "Personal Property Exemption" which I had lawfully 

filed in Chancery Court. (This was purely the manipulation of a FRAUDULENT FEDERAL BAN __ 
_________ _________________________ 37 

42 USC§ 12203: Attorney Virginia Lee Story tried to EXTORT thousands of dollars out of my elderly 

mother, while THREATENING to otherwise SELL or DISCARD my PERSONAL PROPERTY, 

which she and Blnkley FORCED me to leave at the PROPERTY under completely FRAUDULENT 

CLAIMS, intended to OBSTRUCT a TRIBUNMAL, while they TAG-TEAMED me during my PRO 
SE Hearing on 8/29/2019. ______________________ __ 37 

42 § 1981: Equal Rights Under the Law _____________________ 37 

42 § 1982: Deprivation of Property Under Color ofLaw __________ ______ 37 

42 § 1983: Deprivation of Rights under Color ofLaw _________________ 37 

42 § 1985: Conspiracy Against Rights ______________________ 37 

42 § 1986: Action for Neglect to Prevent ____________________ ,----37 

42 § 1988: Proceedings in Vindication of Civil Rights _ _ _ _________ __ ,--_ _ 37 

42 § 3631: Criminal Interference with Right to Fair Housing _ _ _____ _ __ ----,-____ 37 

HUD & FED (VIOLATIONS), _______________ -=----:--_ _ _ 38 

31 CFR Subtitle A § 5.18: How Does a Debtor Request a Special Review Based on a Change in 

Circumstances such as Catastrophic Illness, Divorce, Death, or Disability? (I was unlawfully 
DEPRIVED of any chance to even apply!) ______________ _______ 38 

31 CFR Subtitle A§ 5.18(a): Material change in circumstances. A debtor who owes a Treasury 

debt may, at any time, request a special review by the applicable Treasury entity of the amount 

of any offset, administrative wage garnishment, or voluntary payment, based based on materially 

changed circumstances beyond the control of the debtor such as, but not limited to, catastrophic 

illness, divorce, death, or disability. (Criminally deprived by CONSPIRCY between State and 
Federal BK COURTS of any CHANCE to apply for relief.) _ _ _____ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 38 

24 CFR Ch. V § 570.606: Displacement, Relocation, Acquisition, and Replacement of Housing. 

( a) General policy for minimizing displacement. (I was CRIMINALLY deprived of even NOTICE 

OF NEED, so that I could APPLY FOR ASSIST ANGE before fraudulently being rendered 

HOMELESS (with a FIVE-DAY NOTICE, under grossly FALSE CLAIMS, with zero provision 

without being GEOGRAPHICALLY DISPLACED by 600 MILES to simply SURVIVE the 

lawless actions of BOTH State and Federal Courts in what I believe was a RICO action!), _____ 39 

FEDERAL CML RIGHTS (VIOLATIONS) _______________ 42 
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The Federal BILL OF RIGHTS was Repeatedly and Carelessly Violated (I HAD ZERO RIGHTS 

IN THAT COURT, and any USE of that Court was to purely CIRCUMVENT my LAWFUL 
FEDERAL, Constitutional, and NATURAL RIGHTS to live through a secret conspiracy they 

strategically AMBUSHED ME with, to intentionally target, attack, and exploit my fully KNOWN 

and disclosed DISABILITIES for a STRATEGIC ADV ANT AGE and to be SADISTICALLY 
HARM ME beyond the BENEFIT to ANY PARTY, lawful or otherwise, proving the CRUEL & 

INHUMANE ACTIONS of this Conspiracy against LIFE, LIBERTY, PROPERTY, while 
absolutely demolishing my PURSUIT OF HAPPINESS, entirely by FRAUD and an aburd 

number of CRIMINAL FELONIES against me and my family, not the slightest of which can be 
lawfullyjustified. _____________________________ 42 

AmdtS.4.4.2.1: Deprivations of Liberty-The Court also appeared to have expanded the notion 
of "liberty" to include the right to be free of official stigmatization, and found that such 
threatened stigmatization could in and of itself require due process. ____________ 44 

14th Amendment and Due Process: I was screamed at on the phone in a recorded call with the 
Chapter 7 Bankruptcy Trustee, chastising me for asserting that my 14th Amendment 
Constitutional Rights were Violated! Even though he admitted he didn't see the full lawful process 

was completed, while refusing to tell me what or who had failed to obey the FRBP and bankruptcy 

LAW. Telling me instead that Bankruptcy Law is the Second most Complicated Section of Code in 
the USA, second only to TAX LAW, SO GOOD LUCK!, _______________ 45 
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§ 1926 TITLE 28-JUDICIARY AND JUDICIAL PROCEDURE Page 460 

attach thereto an affidavit, made by himself or 
by his duly authorized attorney or agent having 
knowledge of t he facts. that such item is correct 
a nd has been necessarily incurred in the case 
a nd t hat t he services for which fees have been 
charged were actually a nd necessarily per­
formed. 

(June 25, 1948. ch. 646, 62 Stat. 957.) 

1-i!S'l'ORICAL AND Rl>VISION NOTES 

Based on ti Lie 28. U.S.C .. 1940 eel .. §831 (R.S. §984: Jtme 
10. 1921. ch . 18. §304. 12 Stat. 24). 

Section as rev ised conforms Lo existing Federal Prac­
tice. See note to subdivision (cl) o f Ru l e 54 of the Fed­
eral Rules of Civil Prnceclure. For discussion as Lo ver ­
ification of bill of costs under exl sting practice, see-8 
Hughes. Federal Practice. Jurisdiction ancl Procedure­
Civil and Criminal. §6441. 

Words "Or a llowed by the General A ccounting Office" 
were omi tted as unnecessary. T hat office will not allow 
items in a tax bill for costs against the United States 
unless such bi II has been taxed by t he court. and the 
courL. under t his secti on. cannot tax as costs items in 
an unverified bl II. 

Changes were made In phraseology. 

§ 1926. Admiralty and maritime cases 

Except as otherwise provided by Act of Con­
gress, t he a llowance and taxation of costs in ad­
miralty a nd maritime cases sha ll be prescribed 
by rules promulgated by the Supreme Court. 

(June 25, 1948, ch. 646. 62 Stat. 957.) 

1-IISTOltlCAL AND R EVISION NO'J'ES 

This section was clraf tecl to maim possible t he prn­
mulgation of comprehensive ancl uniform rules govern­
ing costs in admiralty. Various enactments of Con­
gress. all over 100 years olcl. relate to particular fea­
tures of such matter. but do not set forth any compre­
hensive ancl uniform procedur e. See, for example. sec­
tions 818. 826. and 827 of ti tie 28. U .S.C .. 1940 eel. 

§ 1926. Court of Federal Claims 

(a) The Juclicial Conference of the United 
States sha ll prescribe from t ime to time the fees 
and costs to be cha rged a nd collected in the 
Uni ted States Court of Federal Cla ims. 

(b) The court a nd its officers shall collect only 
such fees a nd costs as the Judicia l Conference 
prescribes. The court may require advance pay­
ment of fees by rule. 

(June 25, 1948, ch. 646, 62 Stat. 957; Pub. L . 97-164, 
title I , § 139(p)(l ), Apr. 2, 1982, 96 Stat. 44; Pub. L. 
102--572, title IX, §902(b), Oct. 29, 1992. 106 Stat. 
4516.) 

1-IJS'l'OIUCAL AND REVISION NOTES 

Based on Litle 28, U.S.C .. 1940 eel .. §304 (M ar. 3. 1911, 
ch. 231. § 191. 36 Stat. 114'1). 

Fo1· distribution of other provisions of section 304 of 
title 28. U.S.C .. 1940 eel .. see Distribution Table. 

Changes were made in phraseology. 

AMENDMENTS 

1992-Pub. L. 102-572 substi tuLecl "Court o f l'ccleral 
Claims" for ·'Claims Court" as section catch line and 
"United States Court of Federal Claims" fo1· ,;Uni ted 
States Claims Court" in subsec. (al. 

1982-Pub. L . 97- 164 substituLecl "Claims Courv· for 
"Court of Customs and Paten t Appeals" as section 
caLchline and. in texL substi tuted provisions directing 
the Judici al Confer ence of the Uni ted States Lo pre­
scribe frnm time t o time the fees and costs to be 

charged and collectecl in the United States Claim s 
Court and directing the court and i ts officers to collect 
only such fees and costs as t he Judicial Confer ence pre­
scr i bes. with the court authorized to requ ire advance 
payment of fees by rule for provisions which had cli­
rectecl that fees and costs i n t he Court of Customs and 
Patent Appeals be fi xed by a table of fees adopted by 
such court ancl approved by the Suprem e Court. that 
the fees and costs so fixed not exceed t he fees and costs 
charged i n t he Supreme CoUL·t. and t hat the fees be ac­
counted for and paid over to the Treasury. 

EFFECTIVE DAT!, OF 1992 AMENDMENT 

Amemlment by Pub. L. 102-572 effective Oct. 29, 1992. 
see secti on 911 of Pub. L. 102-572. set ou t as a note 
under secti on 171 of this t iUe. 

EFFEC'l'IVE DA'l'I,; OF 1982 AirnNDMI,N'l' 

A mendment by Pub. L. 97- 16'1 effecti ve Oct. J. 1982. 
see section 402 of Pub. L . 97-161. set ou t as a note under 
section 171 of this titl e. 

COURT Fims FOit ELEC'l'ftONIC ACCESS TO I NI'ORMATION 

Judicial Conference to prescribe r easonabl e fees for 
collecti on by courts u nder this section for access to in­
formati on available t hrough automatic data processing 
equipment and fees to be clepositecl in Judiciar y Auto­
mation l'uncl. see section 303 of Pub. L. 102-140. set ou t 
as a note under secti on 1913 of thi s title. 

§ 1927. Counsel's liability for excessive costs 

Any attorney or o th er person admitted to con­
duct cases in any court of the United States or 
any T erritory thereof who so multiplies the pro­
ceedings in any case unreasonably and vexa­
t iously may be required by the court to satisfy 
personally the excess costs, expenses, and a t tor­
neys' fees reasonably incurred because of s uc h 
conduct. 

(June 25, 1948, ch. 646, 62 Stat. 957; Pub. L. 96--349, 
§3, Sept. 12, 1980, 94 Stat. 1156.) 

HISTORICAL AND REVISION NOTl>S 

Based on title 28, U.S.C .. 1910 eel., §829 (R.S. §982). 
Word "personally" was inserted upon authority of 

Motion Picture Patents Co. v. Steiner et al .. 1912. 201 F. 63. 
119 C.C.A. 401. Reference to "proctor·• was omi tted as 
covered by t he revised section. 

See definition of "court of t he United States" i n sec­
Lion '151 of this title. 

Changes were made in phraseology. 

AMl>NDMEN'l'S 

1980-Pub. L. 96-349 substi tu ted judicial authori zaLi on 
to require at torneys to satisfy excess cost.'l. expenses. 
and attorneys· fees reasonably incurred because of mul­
tiplication of proceedings for such prior authori ty to 
impose liability for incr eased costs based on mul­
tiplication of proceedings. 

§ 1928. Patent infringement action; discla imer 
not filed 

Whenever a judgment is rendered for the 
plaintiff i n a ny patent infringemen t action in­
volving a part of a patent and it appears that 
the patentee, in his specifications . claimed to 
be. but was not, the original a nd first inven tor 
or discoverer of any material 0 1· substant ial pa r t 
of the thing patented, no costs sha ll be included 
in such judgm ent, unless t he proper discla imer 
has been filed in the United States Paten t and 
Tradem ark Office prior to the commencement of 
t he action. 
(June 25, 1948, ch. 646, 62 Stat. 957; Pub. L. 
106--113, div . B. §1000(a)(9) [t i t le IV, §4732(b)(l7)]. 
Nov. 29, 1999. 113 Stat. 1536, 1501A- 585.) 

DOCUMENT PAGE: 1 
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§707 TITLE 11- BANKRUPTCY P age 190 

(D) Su bpa ragraphs (A) through (C) shall not 
apply, and the court may not dismiss or convert 
a case based on any form of means testing-

(i) if t he debtor is a disabled veteran (as de­
fined in section 3741(1) of t i t ie 38), and the in­
debtedness occurred primarily during a period 
during which he or she was-

(! ) on active duty (as defined in section 
lOl(cl)(l ) o r ti t le 10); or 

(II) performing a hom eland defense activ­
ity (as defined in section 901(1) or t i tie 32); or 

(ii) with respect to the debtor, while the 
debtor is-

(I) on, and during the 540-clay period begin­
ning immediately after the debtor is rn­
leased from , a period of active duty (as de­
fined in section lOl(d)(l ) of tit le 10) of not 
less than 90 clays: or 

(II) performing , and during t he 540-day pe­
riod beginning immedia tely after t he debtor 
is no longer performing, a homeland defense 
activity (as defined in section 901(1) of title 
32) performed for a period of not less t han 90 
days; 

if a fter September 11, 2001, t he debtor while a 
member of a reser ve componen t of the Armed 
Forces or a member of t he Na tiona l Gua rd, 
was called to such active duty or performed 
such homeland defense ac tivity . 
(3) In cons idering under pa ragraph (1) whether 

t h e granting of r elief would be an abuse of the 
provis ions of this chapter in a case in which the 
presumpt ion in paragra ph (2)(A)(i) does not a rise 
or is rebutted, the cour t sha ll conside r-

(A) whether t he debtor filed the petit ion in 
bad fai t h: or 

(B) t he tota lity of t he circums ta nces (in­
clucling whether t he debtor seeks to reject a 
personal services contract and the financ ial 
need for such rejection as sough t by the debt­
or) of the debtor's financia l si t ua tion dem­
onstrates a buse. 

(4)(A) The court, on its own initiative or on 
t he motion of a_party in interest in accordance 
with t he rocedures cl escribea in ru e 9011 of tlle 
F ederal Rules of Banlcruptcy Proceaw ·e, may 
order tile attorney for t11e c ebtor t o reimburse 
t he t rnstee for all reasona ble costs in prosecut ­
ing a mot ion filecl under section 707(bJ, inc lucling 
reasona ble attorneys· fees, if-

(i) a t rus tee files a mot ion for dism issal or 
conversion under this subsection ; and 

(ii) t he court-
(! ) grants such mot ion ; and 
(II) finds that t he action of the attorney 

for the debtor in filing a case under t his 
cha pt er violated rule 9011 of the Federal 
Rules of Ba nkruptcy P r ocedure. 

(B) If t he cour t finds t hat the attorney for t he 
clebtor violated rule 9011 of the • edera l Rules o,f 
Bank ruptcy Procedur e, the con.rt, on its own ini­
t iative or on the mot ion of a party in interest , 
in accpr cl ance with such Jrocedures, may order-

(i) t he assessmen t of an a ppropriate civil 
penalty against the attorney for the debtor ; 
and 

(ii) t he paymen t of such civil pena lty to the 
t rustee, t he United S tates t rustee (or the 
bankruptcy administrator, if any). 

(C) Th e signa tlU'e of an attorney on a pet ition, 
p!eacl,ing, or written motion sliall consti tute a 
cer tification t ha t toe a ttorney has-

(i ) performed a reasona ble investigation into 
the circumstances that gave rise t o the peti­
tion, pleading , or written motion: and 

(ii) determined that the petition, pleading, 
or written motion-

(! ) is well grounded in fact; and 
(II) is warranted by exis ting law or a good 

fa ith argun1ent for the ext ension , modifica­
t ion, or reversal of existing la w and does not 
cons titute an abuse under paragra ph (1). 

(D) T he signature of an a t torney on the peti­
t ion sha ll constitu te a certification t hat t he at­
torney has no knowledge a fter an inquiry t ha t 
t he informa tion in the schedules filed with such 
.i;wtit ion is incorrect. 

(5J(A) Exce_pt as provided in sub_illlragra_ph (B ) 
and subject to pa ragraph (6), t he court, on its 
own initiative or on the motion of a par ty in in­
terest, i.11 accordance with t he procea ures de­
scr ibecl in rule 9011 of t he Federal Rules of Bank­
ruptcy r'rocedure, may award a debt or a ll rea­
sonable costs (including· r eason a ble attorneys' 
fees) in con testing a motion filecl by a pa rty in 
in terest (ot her t han a t r us tee or United S ta tes 
trustee (01· ban kruptcy administra to1:, if any)) 
under this subsec tion if-

(i) the court does not gra nt the motion; and 
(ii) t h e court finds t hat-

(!) the position of the pa r ty that filed the 
mot ion viola ted rule 9011 of the Federal 
Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure; or 

(II) the attorney (if any) who filed the mo­
t ion did not comply with the requirem ents 
of cla uses (i) a nd (ii) of paragraph (4)(C), and 
the mot ion was made solely for the purpose 
of coercing a debt or into waiving a right 
guaranteed to the debtor under this title . 

(B) A sma ll business that has a cla im of a n ag­
gregate amount less than $1,000 1 sha ll not be 
subject to subparagraph (A)(ii)(I). 

(C) For purposes of this paragraph-
(i) the term "sm all business" means an un­

incorpora ted bus iness , par t nership, cor pora­
tion , associat ion, or organization that-

(!) has fewer than 25 full-time employees 
as determined on the date on which the mo­
tion is flied; and 

(II) is engaged in commer cia l or business 
ac t ivity; and 

( ii) t he number of employees of a wholly 
owned subsidiary of a corporat ion includes t he 
employees of-

(I) a pa rent corporat ion ; and 
(II) any other subsidiary corporation of the 

pa r en t corporation. 

(6) Only the judge or Uni ted Sta tes trus tee (or 
bankruptcy administrator, if any) may flle a 
motion under section 707(b), if the cwTent 
monthly income of t he debtor, or in a joint case, 
the debtor and the debt or's spouse, as of the 
date of t he order for relief, when mul t iplied by 
12, is equa l to or less t han-

(A) in the case of a debt or in a household of 
1 person, t he median family income of the ap­
plicable State for 1 earner; 

(B) in t he case of a debtor in a household of 
2, 3. or 4 individua ls, the highest median fam-
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Court and the Congress w111 thus be relieved of t he bur­
den of considering the large number of compl ex forms 
used In bankruptcy practice. The use of the Offici al 
Forms has generally been held subject to a · ' rul e of 
substantial compliance" and some of t hese rules. for 
example Rule 1002. speci fically state t hat t he filed doc­
ument need only "conform substantially" to the Offi ­
cial Form. See also Rul e 9005. T he second sentence r ec­
ogn izes the propriety of combining and r earranging Of­
fici al Forms to take advantage of technol ogical devel ­
opments and result ing economies. 

The Director of t he Admin istrative Office Is author­
ized to Issue additional fot·ms for the guidance of t he 
bar . 

NOTES OF ADVI SORY COMMl'l'l'EE ON RULES-1991 
AMENDMENT 

Rule 9029 (9009] ls amended to cl arify t hat local court 
rules may not pr oh ibi t or limit the use of t he Official 
Forms. 

COMMITTEE NOTES ON RULES-2008 AMENDMENT 

The r ul e ls amended to provi de t hat a pl an proponen t 
In a small busin ess chapter 11 case need not use an Offi­
cial Form of a plan of reorganizati on and disclosure 
statement. The use of t hose forms is optional , and 
under Rule 3016(d) the proponen t may submi t a pl an 
and discl osure statemen t In those cases t hat does not 
conform to the Official Forms. 

Changes Mcide After P1ibliccition. No changes were 
made after publication. 

COMMl'l"rEE NOTES ON RULES-2017 AMENDMENT 

This rule Is amended and r eorganized Into separate 
subdivisions. 

Subdivisi on (a) addresses per missi ble modificati ons 
to Official Forms. It requires t hat an Official Form be 
used wi t hout alteration. except when another rule. t h e 
Official For m I tsel f , or t he national instructions appli­
cable to an Official Form permi t altemtlon. The former 
language generally per mitting al terations has been de­
leted. but the rule preser ves t he ab!llty to make minor 
modifications to an Official Form that do not affect the 
wording or the order In which information Is presented 
on a form. Permissibl e changes Include t hose t hat 
merely expand or delete t he space for responses as ap­
propriate or delete inapplicable I tems so Jong as t he 
filer Indicates t hat no response Is Intended . For exam­
ple. when more space w!ll be necessary to completel y 
answer a question on an Official Form without an at­
tachm ent. the answer space may be expanded. Simi­
larl y. varying the width or orientati on of columnar 
data on a form for cl ari ty of presentation would be a 
permissible m i nor change. On the other hand. many Of­
ficial Forms Indicate on t heir face that certain changes 
are not appropriate. Any changes that contravene t he 
directions on an Offici al Form would be prohibited by 
t h is r ul e. 

T he creation of subclivlslon (b) and subdivision (c) ls 
stylistic. 

Rule 9010. Representation and Appearances; 
Powers of Attorney 

(a) AUTHORITY To ACT PERSONALLY OR BY AT­
TORNEY. A debtor , credi tor, equi ty secur ity hold­
er, indenture t rustee, commi ttee or other par ty 
may (1) appear in a case under the Code and act 
either in the en t ity's own behalf or by an attor­
ney authorized to practice in the court, and (2) 
perform any act not consti tu t ing the practice of 
law. by an authorized agent, attorney in fact, or 
proxy. 

(b) NOTICE OF APPEARANCE. An attorney ap­
pearing for a party in a case under the Code 
shall file a notice of appearance with the attor ­
ney's name, office addr ess and telephone num­
ber, unless the attorney's appearance is other­
wise noted in the record. 

(C) POWER OF A'ITORNEY. The a uthority of any 
agent, a ttorney in fact , or proxy to r epresen t a 
creditor for any purpose other than the execu­
t ion and filing of a proof of cla im or t he accept­
ance or rejection of a plan shall be evidenced by 
a power of attorney conforming substan t ia lly t o 
t he appropriate Officia l Form. The execution of 
any such power of attorney shall be acknowl­
edged before one of the officers enumerated in 28 
U.S.C. §459, §953, Rule 9012, or a person a uthor­
ized t o administer oaths under the laws of the 
state where the oath is administered. 
(As amended Mar . 30, 1987, eff. Aug. 1, 1987; Apr. 
30. 1991, eff. Aug. 1, 1991.) 

NOTES OF ADVl SORY COMMITTEE ON RULES-1983 

T his rule ls substant i ally the same as for mer Bank­
r uptcy Rul e 910 and does not purport to change prior 
holdings pr oh ibi ting a cor porat ion from appearing pro 
se. See /11 re Las Colinas Development Corp., 585 F .2d 7 
(1st Cir. 1970). 

NOTES OF ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON RULES-1987 
AMENDMENT 

Subdivision (c) l s amended to incl ude a r eference to 
Rul e 9012 wh ich is amended to author ize a bankr uptcy 
Judge or clerk to administer oaths. 

NOTES OP ADVISORY COMMI TTEE ON RULES- 1991 
AMENDMENT 

References to Official Form numbers i n subdivision 
(c) are deleted in anticipation of future revi sion and re­
number ing of the Official Forms. 

Rule 9011. Signing of Papers; Representations to 
the Court; Sanctions; Verification and Copies 
of Papers 

(a) SIGNATURE. Every petit ion, pleading, writ­
ten motion, and other paper, except a list, 
schedule, or sta temen t, 01· amendments thereto, 
sha ll be signed by a t least one attorney of 
r ecord in the attorney's ino.ividuaT name. A 
par ty who is not represented by an attorney 
shall sign a ll papers. Each paper shall state the 
signer 's address and telephone number, if any. 
An unsigned pa per shall be stricken unless omis­
sion of the signature is corrected prom_ptly after 
being called to the atten t ion of the attorney or 
party. 

(b) REPRESENTATIONS TO THE COURT. By pre­
sen t ing t o t he court (whether by signing, filing , 
submitting, or later advocating) a petition , 
pleading, written mot ion, or other paper , an at­
torney or unrepresen ted party is certifying that 
to the best of the person's knowledge, informa­
tion, and belief, formed after an inquiry reason­
able under the circumstance~- ' 

Q) i t is not being presentea for any ·m roper 
purpose, such as to harass or to cause unneces­
sary delay or needless incr ease in the cost of 
litiga t ion; 

(2) t he cla ims, defenses, and other legal con­
tentions ther ein a re warranted by existing law 
01· by a nonfrivolous a rgument for the exten­
sion, mooification, or reversal of existing law 
or the esta611shment of new law; 

(3J t he a llegations an other factual conten­
tions have evidentia ry support or, if specifi­
cally so iden t ifiea~ a re likely to have evi­
den t iary suppo1·t after a r easonable op_por-

' So In orlglnnl. The commn probnbly should not nppear. 
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tunity for further investigation or discovery; 
and 

(4) the denia ls of factual contentions are 
warrant ed on the evidence or. if specifically so 
identified, are reasonably based on a lack of 
information or belief. 
(c) SANCTIONS. f, after notice and a reasonable 

opportunity to respona, the court determines 
that subdivision (b) has been violatea, the court 
may, subject to the conditions stated Below, im­
pose an appropriate sanction u_pon the attor­
neys, law firms, or parties that have violated 
subdivision (6) or are responsible for the viola­
t ion. 

(1) How I nitiated. 
(A) By Motion. A motion for sanctions 

under this rule shall be made separa tely 
from other motions or requests and shall de­
scribe t he specific conduct a lleged to violate 
subdivision {o). I t sha ll be served as provided 
in Rule 7004. The motion for sanctions may 
not be filed with or presented to the couxt 
unless, within 21 days after service of the 
motion (or such other period as the court 
may prescribe), the challenged paper, claim, 
defense, contention, allegation, or denial is 
not withdrawn or appropriately corrected, 
except that this limitation shall not apply if 
t he conduct a lleged is the filing of a petition 
in violation of subdivision (b). If warranted, 
t he court may awanl to the par ty prevailing 
on the motion the r easonable expenses and 
attorney's fees incurred in presenting or op­
posing the motion. Absent except ional cir­
cumstances, a law fi)·m shall be held jointly 
responsible for violations committed by its 
partners, associates, and employees. 

(B) On Comt's Initiative. On its own initia­
tive, the court may enter a n order describing 
the s pecific conduct that a_ppears to violate 
subdivision (b) and directing an attorney, 
law firm , or garty to show cause why it has 
not violated subdivision (6) with 1·espect 
thereto. 
(2) Nature of Sanction; Limitations. A sanction 

imposed for violation of this rule sha ll be lim­
ited to what is sufficient to deter r epetition of 
such conduct or comparable conduct by others 
similarly situatea. Subject to the limitat ions 
in subparagraphs (A) and (B), t he sanction 
may consist of, or include, directives of a non­
monetary nature, an order to pay a penalty 
in to court, or , if imposed on motion and war­
ranted for effective deterrence, an order di­
recting payment to the movant of some or a ll 
of the reasonable a ttorneys' fees and other ex­
penses incurred as a direct result of the viola­
t ion . 

(A5 Monetary sanctions may not be award­
ed against a represented party for a viola­
tion of subdivision (]:>)(2). 

(B) Monetary sanctions may not be award­
ed on the court's initiative unless the court 
issues i ts order to show cause before a vol­
untary dismissal or settlement of t he claims 
made by or against the party which is, or 
whose attorneys a re, to be sanctioned. 
(3) Oraer. \Vhen imposing sanctionsJ the 

cou1·t shall describe the conduct determined to 
consti tu te a violation of this rule a nd expla in 
the basis for the sanction imposed. 

(cl) INAPPLICABILITY TO DISCOVERY. Subdivi­
sions (a) through (c) of this rule do not apply to 
disclosures and discovery requests, responses , 
objections, and mot ions that a re subject to the 
provisions of Rules 7026 through 7037. 

(e) VERIFICATION. Except as otherwise specifi­
cally provided by these rules, papers filed in a 
case under the Code need not be verified. When­
ever verification is required by tllese rules, an 
unsworn declaration as provided in 28 U.S.C. 
§ 1746 satisfies the requirement of verification. 

(f) COPIES OF SIGNED OR VERIFIED P A PERS. 
When these rules r equire copies of a signed or 
verified paper , it shall suffice if the original is 
signed or verified and the copies are conformed 
to the original. 

(As amended Mar. 30, 1987, eff. Aug . 1, 1987; Apr. 
30, 1991, eff. Aug. 1, 1991; Apr. 11, 1997, eff. Dec. 1, 
1997.) 

NOTES 0~' ADVISORY COMMl'J'l'EE ON RULES-1983 

Subdivisio11 (a). Excepted from t he papers which an at­
torney fot· a debt or must sign are llsts, scneilul es. 
statemen ts of financial affairs, statem ents of executory 
con tracts, Chapter 13 Statements and amendments 
thereto. Rule 1008 requires that th ese documents be 
verified by the debtor. Although t he peti t i on must al so 
be verified. counsel for t he debtor must sign t he peti­
tion. See Offici al F or m No. 1. An unrepresented par ty 
must si gn all papers. 

The last sen tence of thi s subdivision au t hori zes a 
bi:oad range of sanctions. 

The word "documen t" i s used In this subdiv ision to 
refer t o all papers which t he attorney or party Is re­
qulrecl t o sign. 

Subdivisio11 (b) extends to all papers flied in cases 
under t he Code t he policy of minimizing reliance on t he 
formalities of verification which Is r eflect ed in the 
thi rd sen tence of Rule 11 F .R.Civ.P. The second sen­
tence of subdivision (b) permits t he substitution of an 
unsworn declaration fo1• t he verification. See 28 U.S.C. 
§ 1746. Rules requiring verification or an affldav1 t are as 
follows: Rul e 1008. petitions. sch edul es, statem ents of 
financial affairs. Chapter 13 Statem ents and amend­
ment_§;~ Ule 2006®, list of mul t iple prox ies and state­
ment of facts and circumstances r egariling t heir acqui­
siti on : Rule 400l(cJ, motion for ex parte relief from 
stay: Rule 7065, incorporatingRul e 65(b) F.R.C v .P. gov­
emh:ig issuance of temporary restraining order: Rule 
8011(d), affidavit inJilll)port of emergency motion on ap­
peal. 

NOTES OF ADVISORY COMMITI'EE ON RULES-1987 
AMENDMENT 

'l'he st atement of Inten t i on of t he debtor under 
§521(2) of t he Code Is added to the documen ts which 
counsel Is not required to sign . 

NO'l'ES 0~' ADVISORY COMMl1' l'EE ON RULES- 1991 
A MENDMENT 

Subdivision (a) is amended to conform to Ru le 11 
F.R.Civ.P. where appropr iate, but al so to clarify t hat it 
applies to t he unnecessary delay or needless Incr ease in 
the cost of t he administrati on of th e case. Deletion of 
tbe references to specific statemen ts t hat are exc.luded 
from tb e scope of th is subdivi sion i s stylistic. As used 
in subdivision (a) of t his rule, "stateme1W' ls Llmitecl to 
t he statement of financial affairs and th e statem en t of 
Intention requil·ed to be flied unde1· Rule 1007. Del eti on 
of t he r eference to the Chapter 13 Statement is consist­
ent with t he amendment tortule 1007(b). 

NOTES OF ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON RULES-1997 
AMENDMENT 

This rule Is amended to conform to the 1993 changes 
to F .R.Civ .P. 11. For an explanati on of t hese amend-
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men ts. see t he advisor y committee note to t he 1993 
am endments t o F .R.Clv.P. 11. 

The "safe harbor•· provision contained in subd ivisi on 
(c)(l )(A). which prohibits t he filing of a motion for 
sanct ions unless t he challenged paper Is not wi t hdrawn 
or con ected with in a pr escribed tlme after service of 
t he motion . does not apply lf the challenged paper l s a 
peti t i on. The fil ing of a peti tion has immediate serious 
consequences. including the imposition of the auto­
matic stay un der §362 of the Code. which may not be 
avoided by the subsequent wlthdrawa.l of the petition. 
In addition, a petition for relief under chapter 7 or 
chapter 11 may not be withdrawn unless t he court or­
ders dismissal of the case for cause after noti ce and a 
heari ng. 

GAP Report on Rule 9011. T he proposed am endments to 
subdivision (a) were revised to cl arify that a party not 
represented by an attomey m ust slgn lists. schedules. 
and statemen ts. as well as other papers t hat are filed. 

Rule 9012. Oaths and Affirmations 

(a) PERSONS AUTHORIZED TO ADMINISTER 
OATHS. The following persons may administer 
oaths and affirmations and take acknowledg­
ments: a bankruptcy judge, clerk, deputy clerk, 
United States trustee, officer authorized to ad­
minister oaths In proceedings before the courts 
of the Uni ted States or under t he laws of the 
state where the oath is t o be taken, or a diplo­
matic or consular officer of the United States in 
any foreign country. 

(b) AFFIRMATION IN LIEU OF OATH. Wh en in a 
case under t he Code an oath is required to be 
taken a solemn affirmation may be accepted in 
lieu thereof. 

(As amended Mar . 30, 1987, eff. Aug . 1, 1987; Apr . 
30, 1991, eff. Aug. 1, 1991.) 

NOTES o~- ADVISORY COMMI'J'l'EE ON RULES-1983 

This rule Is derived from Rule 13(d) F.R.Civ.P. 
The provisions of former Bankruptcy Rule 912(a) re­

lating to who may administer oaths have been deleted 
as unnecessary. Bankruptcy j udges and the cl e1·ks and 
deputy clerks of bankruptcy courts are authorized by 
statute to admin ister oat hs and affirmations and to 
take acknowledgments. 28 U.S.C. §§ 459, 953. A person 
designated to pr eside at t he meeting of credi tors has 
authority under Rule 2003(b)(l ) to administer t he oath. 
Administration of t he oath at a deposition is governed 
by Rule 7028. 

NOTES OF ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON RULES- 1987 
AMENDMENT 

Subdivision (a) has been added to the rule to aut horize 
bankruptcy j udges and cl er ks to admini ster oaths. 

NOTES OF ADVISORY C0MMI'ITEE ON RULES-1991 
AMENDMENT 

This rule is amended to conform to the 1986 amend­
ment to §343 which proviaes t hat the United States 
trustee may administer the oath to t he debtor at t he 
§341 meeting. This rule al so allows the United States 
trustee to administer oaths and affirmations and to 
take acknowledgments In other situations. This 
amendment al so affects Rule 9010(c) relating to th e ac­
knowledgment of a power of attorney. 'rhe words 
"United States t rustee" include a deslgnee of th e 
United Stat es trustee pursuant to Rule 9001 and §102(9) 
of the Code. 

Rule 9013. Motions: Form and Service 

A request for an order , except when an a ppli­
cation is a ut horized by the rules, sha ll be by 
wri tten motion, unless made during a hearing. 
The motion sha ll state wi th par t icula rity the 

grounds t herefor, and sha ll set forth the relief or 
order sough t . Every written mot ion, other than 
one which may be considered ex pa r te, sha ll be 
served by the m oving pa rty within the time de­
termined under Rule 9006(d). The moving party 
sha ll serve tlle motion on: 

(a) the trustee or debtor in possession and on 
those entities specified by these rules; or 

(b) t he en tities the cour t directs if these 
rules do not require service or specify t he enti­
t ies to be served. 

(As amended Mar. 30, 1987, err. Aug. 1. 1987; Apr. 
16, 2013, err. Dec. 1, 2013.) 

NOTES OF ADVISOltY COMMITTEE ON RULES-1983 

T hi s rule Is derived f r om Rule 5(a) and Rule 7(b)(l) 
F .R.Civ.P . Except when an application ls speci fically 
au t horized by t hese r ules. for example an application 
un der Rule 2014 for approval of the em pl oyment of a 
professional , all r equests for court action must be made 
by motion. 

COMMITTEE NOTES ON RUL ES-2013 AMENDMENT 

A cross-reference to Rule 9006(d) i s added to t h is r ule 
to call attention to the time limits for the service of 
motions, suppo1·tlng a fflclavi t s, and wri tten responses 
to motions. ul e 9006(d) prescribes time Jlmits Lhat 
appl y unless oth er limits are fixed by these r ules, a 
court oraer, or a l ocal rul e. The other changes are sty­
listic. 

Changes Made After Pttblication and Comment. No 
changes were made after publication and comment. 

Rule 9014. Contested Matters 

(a) MOTION. In a contested matter not other­
wise governed by these rules, r elief shall be re­
q uestea by motion, an reasonable notice and 
opportunity for hearing sha ll be afforded the 
party against whom relief Is sought. No response 
is requi red under this rule unless t he court di­
rects otnerwlse. 

(b) SERVICE. The motion sha ll be served in the 
manner provided for service of a summons and 
complaint by Rule 7004 and within the time de­
termined under Rule 9006(d). Any written re­
sponse to t h e mot ion sha ll be served within the 
t ime determined under Rule 9006(d). Any paper 
served a fter t he motion shall be served in the 
manner provided by Rule 5(b) F.R.Civ.P. 

(c) APPLICATION OF PART VII RULES. Except as 
otherwise provided In this rule, and unless t he 
court directs otherwise, t h e following rules shall 
a pply : 7009, 7017, 7021, 7025, 7026, 7028-7037, 7041, 
7042, 7052, 7054- 7056, 7064, 7069, and 7071. The fol­
lowing subdivisions of Fed. R . Civ. P. 26, as in­
corporated by Rule 7026, sha ll not apply in a 
con tested ma t ter un less the court directs other­
wise: 26(a)(l ) (mandatory disclosure), 26(a)(2) 
(disclosures regarding exper t testimony) and 
26(a)(3) (additiona l pre-t rial disclosure), and 26(f) 
(mandatory meeting before scheduling con­
feren ce/discovery plan). An en t ity that desires 
to perpetuate testi mony may proceed in t he 
same manner as provided In Rule 7027 for t he 
t a king of a deposit ion before an adversary pro­
ceeding. The court may a t any stage in a par­
t icula r matter direct that one or more of t he 
o ther rules In Pa r t VII shall a pply . The court 
shall give t he pa r t ies not ice of any order Issued 
under this pa ragraph to a fford them a reason­
able oppor tunity to comply wi t h the procedures 
prescr ibed by the order . 
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the Heal th Insurance Portability and Accountability 
Act of 1996. Pub. L. No. 104-191 (HIPAA). 

Subdivision (cl directs th e trustee to maintain proof 
of compliance with §351(1)(B ). but because t he proof of 
compliance may con tain patient names that should or 
must remain confident ial. It prohibi ts filing t he proof 
of compliance unless the cour t orders t he t rustee to file 
it under seal. 

Subdi vision (cl) requires t he trustee to file a report 
with t h e court regarding the destruction of pati en t 
records. This cer t ification Is Intended to ensure t hat 
the t r ustee properly completed the destruction process. 
However. because the report will be filed wl t h the court 
and ordinarily will be availabl e to t he public under 
§ 107. t he names. addresses, and other Identifying infor­
mation of patien ts are not to be Included in t he report 
to protect patient pri vacy. 

Changes Made After P1tblicatio11. Subdivision (b)(2) was 
amended to acid t he Attorney General of t he State 
where a health care facili ty Is l ocated to the list of en­
tities entitled to notice of the di sposal of patient 
records. 

PART VII-A7)VERSARY PROCEEDINGS 

Rule 7001. Scope of Rules of Part VII 

An adversary proceeding is governed by the 
rules of this Part VII. The following a re adve1·­
sary pr oceedings: 

Cl) a proceeding t o recover money or prop­
er ty, other t ha n a proceeding to compel t he 
debtor to deliver proper ty to the trustee, or a 
proceeding under §554(b) or §725 of the Code, 
Rule 2017, or Rule 6002; 

@ a pr oceeding to determine t he validityJ 
priority, or extent of a lien or other interest in 
prope1·ty, other than a proceeding under Rule 
4003(d); 

(3) a proceeding to obtain approval under 
§363(h) for t he sale of both t he interest of t he 
estate and of a co-own er in proper ty; 

(4) a proceeding to object to or revoke a dis­
charge, other than an objection to discharge 
under §§ 727(a){8), 1 (a}(9), or 1328(f); 

(5) a proceeding to revoke an orde1· of con­
firmation of a chapter 11. chapter 12. or chap­
ter 13 plan ; 

(6) a proceeding to determine the dis­
chargeabili ty of a debt; 

(7) a proceeding to obtain an injunction or 
other equitable relief. except when a chapter 9, 
cha pter 11, cha pter 12, or chapter 13 pla n pro­
vides for t he relief; 

(8) a proceeding to subordinate any allowed 
cla im or interest, except when a cha pter 9, 
chapter 11, chapter 12, or chapter 13 plan pro­
vides for subordination; 

(9) a proceeding to obtain a declaratory 
judgment relating to an y of the foregoing; or 

(10) a proceeding to de termine a claim or 
cause of action removed under 28 U.S.C. § 1452. 

(As amended Mar. 30, 1987, eff. Aug. 1, 1987; Apr . 
30, 1991, eff. Aug. 1, 1991; Apr. 26, 1999, eff. Dec. 1, 
1999; Apr. 28, 2010, eff. Dec . 1, 2010.) 

NOTES OF ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON RULES-1983 

The rules in Par t VII govern the procedural aspects 
of litigation involving t he matters referred to In this 
Rule 7001. Under Rule 9014 some of the Part VII rules 
also appl y to contested matters. 

These Part VII rules are based on the premise t hat to 
the extent possible practice before t he bankruptcy 

1 So In original. Probably should be only one secUon symbol. 

courts and t he district cour ts should be the same. 
These rules ei ther Incorporate or are adaptations of 
most of the Federal Rul es of Civil Proceclu1·e. Al though 
the Part VII rules of the former Bankruptcy Rules also 
relied heavily on the l~.R.Clv.P .. t he former Part VII 
rul es departed from t he ci vil practice In t wo significant 
ways: a t rial or pretrial conference had to be sch eduled 
as soon as the adversary proceeding was filed and 
pleadings had to be filed within periods shorter than 
those established by t he F.R.Cl v.P. These departures 
from t he civil practi ce have been eliminat ed. 

The con tent and numbering of these Part VII rules 
correlates to t he content and numbering of the 
F .R.Civ.P. Most. but not all , of the F.R.Civ.P. have a 
comparable Par t VII rule. When there i s no Part VII 
rule wi th a number corresponding to a par t i cular 
F.R.Civ.P .. Par ts V and IX of t hese rules must be con­
sul ted to determine I f one of the 1·ules In t hose parts 
deal s with t h e subj ect. The list below Indicates the 
F.R.Civ.P .. or subdi vision t h ereof. cover ed by a rule In 
ei t her Par t V or Part IX. 

F.R..Civ.P. 

6 
7(b) 
lO(a) 
11 
38,39 
47-51 
13,14,14.1 
45 
58 
59 
60 
61 
63 
77(a).(b),(C) 
77(d) 
79(a)-(d) 
8l(C) 
83 
92 

Rule In Part V or lX 

9006 
9013 
9004(b) 
9011 
9015(a)-(e) 
9015([) 
9017 
9016 
9021 
9023 
9021 
9005 
9028 
5001 
9022(d) 
5003 
9027 
9029 
9030 

Proceedings to which the rules In Part VII apply di­
rect ly Incl ude those brought to avoid transfers by t he 
debtor under §§544, 545. 547. 548 and 549 of the Code: sub­
ject to Important exceptions. proceedings to recover 
money or proper ty: proceedings on bonds under Rules 
5008(d) and 9025: proceedings under Rul e 4004 to deter­
mine whether a discharge in a chapter 7 or 11 case 
should be denied because of an obj ection gr ounded on 
§727 and proceedings In a chapter 7 or 13 case to revoke 
a discharge as provided In §§ 727(d) or 1328(e); and pro­
ceedings Ini tiated pursuant to §523(c) of the Code to de­
termine th e dischargeabillty of a parti cular debt. 
Those proceedings were cl assified as adversar y proceed­
i ngs under fo1·mer Bankruptcy Rule 701. 

Also lncluclecl as adversar y proceedings are proceed­
ings to revoke an orde1· of conf11•mati on of a plan In a 
chapte1· 11 or 13 ca.se as provided In §§ 1144 and 1330, to 
subor dinate under §510(c). other t han as par t of a plan. 
an allowed claim or Interest, and to sell under § 363(11) 
both t he Interest of the estate and a co-owner ln prop­
er ty. 

D eclaratory Judgmen ts wi t h r espect to the subject 
matter of the various adve1-sary proceedings are al so 
adver sary proceedings. 

Any claim or cause of action r emoved to a bank­
ruptcy court pm-suant to 28 U.S.C. §1478 is also an ad­
versar y proceeding. 

Unlike former Bankruptcy Rule 701, r equests for re­
lief fr om an automatic stay do not commence an adver­
sary proceeding. Section 362(e) of the Code and Rule 
4001 establish an expedited schedule for judicial disposi­
tion of requests for relief from the automatic stay. The 
formalities of the adve1-sary proceeding process and the 
time for serving pleadings are not well su ited to the ex­
pedited schedule. The m otion prac tice prescribed In 
Rule 4001 Is best sul ted to such requests because the 
court bas t he flexibili ty to fix hearing dates and oth er 
deadlines appropriate to t he particular situation. 
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Clause (l) contains important exceptions. A person 
with an Interest In property in the possession of t he 
trustee or debtor i n possession may seek to r ecover or 
reclaim t hat proper ty under §554(b) or § 725 of the Code. 
Since many attempts to recover or r eclaim prope1·ty 
under t hese two sections do not generate disputes. ap­
plication of the f01•maliti es of th e Part VII Rul es is not 
appropriate. A l so excluded from adversary proceedings 
is litigation arising from an examination under Rule 
2017 of a debtor's payments of money or transfers of 
property to an attorney representing the debtor in a 
case under the Code or an examination of a superseded 
administration under Rule 6002. 

Exemptions and objections thereto are governed by 
Rule 4003. F!llng of proofs of claim and the allowances 
t hereof are governed by Rules 3001-3005. and objections 
to claims are governed by Rul e 3007. When an objection 
to a claim is joined with a demand for relief of the kind 
specified In th is Rule 7001, the matter becomes an ad­
versary proceeding. See Rule 3007. 

NOTES OF ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON RULES-1987 
AMENDMENT 

Anot her exception Is added to clause (1). A trustee 
may proceed by motion to recover proper ty from the 
debtor. 

NOTES OF ADVISORY COMMl1'l'EE ON RULES-1991 
AMENDMENT 

Clauses (5) and (8) are amended to include chapter 12 
pl ans. 

COMM11'l'EE NOTES ON RULES-1999 AMENDME1'T 

This rule is amended to recognize that an adversary 
proceeding is not necessary to obtain Injunctive or 
other equitable relief that is provided for in a plan 
under circumstances in which substanti ve law permits 
t he relief. Other amendments are stylisti c. 

GAP Report on Rule 7001 . No changes since publica­
tion. except for stylistic changes. 

COMMn·rEE NOTES ON RULES-2010 AMENDMENT 

Paragraph (4) of the rule Is amended to create an ex­
ception for objections to discharge under §§ 727(a)(8). 
(a)(9). and 1328(0 of the Code. Because objections to dis­
charge on these grounds typically present issues more 
easily r esolved t han other objections to discharge. the 
more formal procedures applicabl e to adversary pro­
ceedings. such as commencement by a complaint. are 
not required. Instead. objections on these thr ee grounds 
are governed by Rule 4004(d). I n an appropriate case. 
however, Rule 9014(c) allows the court to order t hat ad­
ditional provisions of Part VII of the rul es apply to 
these matters. 

Changes Made After Publication. The proposed addition 
of subsection (b) was deleted. and the content of that 
provision was moved to Rule 4004(d). The exception in 
paragraph (4) of the rule was revised to refer to objec­
tions to discharge under §§727(a)(8). (a)(9), and 1328(f) of 
t he Code. The redes!gnation of the existing r ule as sub­
division (a) was also deleted. The Committee Note was 
revised to reflect t hese changes. 

Rule 7002. R eferences to Federal Rules of Civil 
Procedure 

Whenever a Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 
applicable to adversary proceedings makes ref­
erence to a nother Federa l Rule of Civil Proce­
dur e, t he reference shall be read as a reference 
to the Federal Rule of Civil Procedure as modi­
fied in this Part VII. 

NOTES OF ADVISORY COMMITfEE ON RULES-1983 

Rules 5. 12. 13, 14, 25, 27, 30. 41 and 52 F.R.C!v.P. are 
made applicable to adversary pr oceedings by Part VII. 
Each of t hose rules contains a cross reference to an­
other Federal Rule: howeve1·. the Part VII rule which 

Incorporates t he cross-referenced Federal Rule modifies 
t he Federal Rule in some way. Under t his Rule 7002 t he 
cross reference i s to t he Federal Rule as modified by 
Part VII. For example. Rule 5 F.R.Clv.P., which Is 
made applicabl e to adversary proceedings by Rule 7005, 
contains a reference to Rule 4 F.R.C!v.P. Under this 
Rule 7002. t he cross r eference Is to Rul e 4 F.R.C!v.P. as 
modified by Rule 7004. 

Rules 7. 10. 12, 13. 14. 19. 22, 23.2. 24-37. 41. 45. 49, 50, 52. 
55, 59. 60. 62 F.R.Civ.P. are made applicable to adver ­
sary proceedings by Part VII 01· generally to cases 
under the Code by Part IX. Each of t hose Federal Rules 
contains a cross reference to another Federal Rule 
which i s not moclified by the Part VII or Part IX rule 
which makes the cross-r eferenced Federal Rule applica­
ble. Since the cross-referenced rule Is not modified by 
a Part VII rule this Rule 7002 does not appl y . 

REFERENCES IN TEX1' 

The Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. referred to in 
text, are set out In t he Appendix to Titl e 28. Judiciary 
and Judici al Procedure. 

Rule 7003. Commencement of Adversary Pro­
ceeding 

Rule 3 F.R.Civ.P. a pplies in adversary proceed­
ings. 

NOTES OF ADVISORY COMMl'l'l'EE ON RULES- 1983 

Rule 5005(a) requires t hat a compl aint commencing 
an adversary proceeding be filed with the court In 
which the case under the Code Is pending unless 28 
U .S.C. § 1473 author izes the filing of th e compl aint In 
another district. 

REFERENCES lN TEXT 

The Federal Rules of Ci vii Procedure, referred to In 
text. ar e set out In t he Appendix to Title 28, Judiciary 
and Judicial Procedure. 

Rule 7004. Process; Service of Summons, Com­
plaint 

(a) SUMMONS; SERVICE; PROOF OF SERVICE. 
(1) Except as provided in Rule 7004(a)(2), 

Rule 4(a), (b), (c)(l), (d)(l), (e)-(j ), (l), and (m ) 
F.R.Civ.P. applies in adversary proceedings. 
Personal service under Rule 4(e}-(j) F.R.Civ.P. 
may be made by any person at least 18 years 
of age who is not a party, a nd the summons 
may be delivered by the clerl< to any such per­
son. 

(2) The clerk may sign , seal, and issue a 
summons electronically by putting an "s/" be­
fore the clerk's name a nd including the court's 
seal on the summons. 

(b) SERVICE BY FIRST CLASS MAIL. Except as 
provided in subdivision (h), in addition to the 
methods of service a uthorized by Rule 4{e)-{j) 
F .R.Civ.P., service m ay be m ade within the 
United States by first class mail postage prepaid 
as follows: 

(1) Upon a n individua l other than an infant 
or incompetent, by mailing a copy of the sum­
mons a nd complaint to the individua l 's dwell­
ing house or usual place of abode or to the 
place where th e individual regularly conducts 
a business or profession. 

(2) Upon an infant or an incompetent person, 
by mailing a copy of the summons a nd com­
plaint to the person upon whom process is pre­
scribed to be served by the law of the state in 
which service is made wh en a n action is 
brought agains t such a defendant in the courts 
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Court and t he Congress will thus be relieved of the bur­
den of considering the la rge number of complex forms 
used in bankruptcy practice. The use of the Official 
Forms has generally been held subject to a " rule of 
substantial compliance" and some of these rules. for 
example Rule 1002, specifica lly state t hat the filed doc­
ument need only "conform substantially" to the Offi­
cial Form. See also Rule 9005. The second sentence rec­
ognizes the propriety of combining and rearranging Of­
ficial Forms to take advantage of technological devel­
opments and resulting economies. 

The Director of the Administrative Office is author­
ized to issue acid! t!onal forms for the guidance of the 
bar. 

NOTES OF ADVISOltY COMMl'ITEE ON RULES-1991 
AMENDMENT 

Rule 9029 (9009] is amended to clarify that loca l court 
rules may not prohlblt or limit the use of the Offic ial 
Forms. 

COMMITTEE NOTES ON RULES-2008 AMENDMENT 
The rule is amended to provide that a plan proponent 

In a sma ll business chapter 11 case need not use an Offi­
cial Form of a plan of reorganization a nd disclosure 
statement . The use of those forms Is optional, and 
under Rule 3016(d) the proponent may submit a plan 
a nd disclosure statement in those cases that does not 
conform to the Officia l Forms . 

Changes Made After Publication. No changes were 
made after publication. 

COMMl'l' rEE NOTES ON RULES-2017 AMENDMl>NT 
This rule is amended and reorganized into separate 

subdivisions. 
Subc\ivislon (a) addresses permissible modifications 

to Officia l Forms. It requires that a n Official Form be 
used without alteration. except when another rule, the 
Official Form itself, or the national instructions appli­
cable to an Official Form permit a lteration. The former 
language generally permitting altera tions has been de­
leted. but the rule preserves the ability to ma ke minor 
modifications to an Official Form that do not a ffect the 
wording or the order in which informa tion is presented 
on a form. Permissible changes include those that 
merely expand or delete the space for responses as ap­
propriate or delete inapplicable Items so long as the 
filer Indicates that no response ls intended. For exam­
ple. when more space wlll be necessary to completely 
a nswer a question on a n Officia l Form without an at­
tachment. the answer space may be expanded. Simi­
larly. varying the wid th or orientation of columnar 
da ta on a form for cla rity of presentation would be a 
permissible minor change. On the other hand. many Of­
ficial Forms indicate on their face that certain changes 
a re not appropriate. Any changes that contravene the 
directions on an Official Form would be prohibited by 
this rule. 

The creation of subdivision (b) and subdivision (c) is 
stylistic. 

Rule 9010. Representation and Appearances; 
Powers of Attorney 

(a) AUTHORITY To ACT PERSONALLY OR BY AT­
TORNEY. A debtor, cr editor, equity security bold­
er, indenture trustee, committee or other pa rty 
may (1) a ppear in a case under the Code and act 
e ither in the entity's own behalf or by an attor­
ney authorized to practice in the court, and (2) 
perform any act not constituting the practice of 
law, by an a uthorized agent, attorney in fac t , or 
proxy . 

(b) NOTICE OF APPEARANCE. An attorney a p­
pearing for a pa r ty in a case under the Code 
shall file a notice of appearance with t h e attor­
ney's n a m e, office a ddress and teleph on e num­
ber, unless the attorney's appearance is other­
wise noted in the r ecord. 

(C) POWER OF ATTORNEY. The authority of any 
agent, attorney in fact, or proxy to r epresen t a 
creditor for any purpose other than the execu­
tion a nd filing of a proof of cla im or the accept­
ance or rejection of a plan sh a ll be evidenced by 
a power of attorney conforming substantia lly to 
the appropriate Official Form. The execution of 
any s uc h powe r of a ttorney shall be acknowl­
edged before one of the officer s enumerated in 28 
U .S.C. § 459, § 953, Rule 9012, or a person a u thor­
ized to administer oaths under the laws of the 
state where the oath is adminis tered. 

(As a m ended Mar. 30, 1987, eff. Aug . 1, 1987; Apr. 
30, 1991, e ff. Aug. 1, 1991.) 

NOTES OF ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON RULES-1983 
This rule is substantially the same as fo1·mer Bank­

ruptcy Rule 910 a nd does not purport to change prior 
holdings prohibiting a. corporat ion from appearing pro 
se. See / 11 re Las Colinas Development Corp .. 585 F.2d 7 
(1st Cir. 1978). 

NOTES OF ADVISORY COMMl'ITl>E ON RULES-1987 
AMENDMENT 

StLbdi vision (c) is amended to include a. reference to 
Rule 9012 which is amended to authorize a ba nkruptcy 
judge or clerk to administer oaths. 

NOTES OF ADVISORY COMMlT'l'EE ON RULES-1991 
AMENDMENT 

References to Official Form numbers in subdivision 
(c) a.re deleted In anticipation of future revision and re­
number ing of the Official Forms. 

Rule 9011. Signing of Papers; Representations to 
the Court; Sanctions; Verification and Copies 
of Papers 

(a) SIGNATURE. very petition, plea ding, wri t­
ten motion, and other paper, except a list, 
sch edule , or statem ent, or amendmen ts thereto, 
sh a ll be signed by at least one attorney of 
record in the attorney's individual name. A 
party who is not represen ted by an attorney 
shall s ign all papers. Each mi.per sh a ll state t he 
signer 's address and telephone numbe r, if any. 
An unsigned paper sh a ll be stricken unless omis­
sion of t he sign ature is correctecl prompt ly after 
being called to the attention of the attorney or 
party. 

(b) REPRESENTATIONS TO THE COURT. By pre­
senting t o the court (wheth er by s igning, filing, 
submi t ting, or la ter advocating) a petition, 
pleading, written motion, or other paper, an at­
torney or unrepresented party i s certifyin g tha t 
to th e best of the person's knowledge, informa­
tion, a nd belief, formed a fter an inquiry r eason­
able under the circumstances,-1 

CD it is not being presented for any improper 
purpose, s uch as to harass o r to cause unneces­
sary delay or n eedless increase in t he cost of 
Ii tigati on; 

(2) the claim s, defenses, and other legal con­
ten t ions therein a r e warr anted by existing law 
or by a nonfrivolous argument for t h e exten­
sion , modification, or r eversal of existing aw 
or t he establishment of n ew law; 

(3) t he allegations and oth er factu a l conten­
tions have evidentia r y support or, if specifi­
cally s o fdentified, are like ly to have evi­
clentia ry support a f ter a reasonable OPJ!Or-

1 So In orig inal. The comma probably should not appear . 
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tuni ty for further investigation or discover y; 
a nd 

(4) the denia ls of factua l conten t ions a r e 
warranted 0ILthe evidence or, if specifically so 
ident ified, a re reasonably based on a 1ack of 
information or belief. 
(c SANCTIONS. If, after no t ice and a reasonable 

opport unity to responct t he cour de termines 
that suoclivision 5) has been violated , the court 
may, subject to the conditions stated below, im­
pose an appropriate sanction upon t he attor­
neys, law firms, or part ies that have viola ted 
suoaivision (b) or are responsiole for the viola­
t ion . 

(l) How Initiated. 
(A, By Motion. A motion for sanctions 

under this rule sha ll be made separately 
from other motions or requests and shall de­
scr ibe t he specific conduct alleged t o viola te 
subdivision (6)-:- It sha11 be served as provided 
in Rule 7004. T he motion for sanctions may 
not be filed with or presented to the court 
unless, wi thin 21 days after service of the 
motion (or such other period as the court 
may prescribe), tbe challenged paper, claim, 
defense, con tention, a llegation, or denia l ls 
not withdrawn or appropria t ely correct ed, 
except tbat this limitat ion shall not apply if 
the conduct alleged is the fil ing of a petition 
in violation of subdivision lb). If warranted, 
the cour t may award t o the party prevailing 
on the motion t he reasonable expenses and 
attorney's fees incurred in presen t ing or op­
posing t he motion. Absent exceptional cir­
cumstances, a law fi rm shall be held jointly 
responsible for violations committed by i ts 
par tners, associa t es, and employees. 

(B) On Court's In i tiative. On its own initia­
t ive, the court may en ter an order describing 
t he specific con uct that a ppears to violate 
subdivision (b) a nd directing an attorney, 
law firm , or party to show cause why it has 
not violated subdivision (b) wi tn respect 
thereto. 
(2) Nature of Sanct ion; L imitations. A sanction 

imposed for violation of this rule shall be lim­
ited to what is sufficient to deter repetition of 
such conduct or comparable conduct by others 
similarly si tuated. Su bject to the llmltations 
in subparagra phs (A) and (B), the sanction 
may consist of, or include, directives of a non­
monetar y nature, an order to pay a penalty 
into court, or, if imposed on motion and war­
ranted for effective deterrence, an order di­
recting paymen t to the movan t of some or a ll 
of the reasonable attorneys' fees and other ex­
penses incurred as a direct resul t of the viola­
t ion . 

[A Monetary sanctions may not be award­
ed against a repr esen ted par ty for a viola­
tion of subdivision (1JR2). 

(B) Monetary sanct ions may not be award­
ed on the court's initiative unless the court 
issues its order to show cause before a vol­
untary dismissal or se tt1ement of tbe claims 
made by or against the par ty which is, or 
whose attorneys a re, to be sanctioned. 
(3) Order. When imposing sanctions, tlle 

court shall describe the conduct determined t o 
constitute a violation of this rule and explain 
the basis for the sanction im_posed. 

(cl) INAPPLICABILI'l'Y To DISCOVERY. Subdivi­
sions (a) t hrough (c) of this rule do not apply to 
disclosures and discovery requests, responses, 
objections, and motions that a re subject to the 
provisions of Rules 7026 through 7037. 

(e) VERIFICATION. Except as otherwise specifi­
cally provided by these rules, pa pers filed in a 
case under t he Code need not be verified. When­
ever verification is required by tnese rules, an 
unsworn decla ration as provided in 28 U.S.C. 
§ 1746 satisfies t he r equirement of ver ifica t ion. 

(0 COPIES OF SIGNED OR VERIFIED PAPERS. 
When these rules r equire copies of a signed or 
verified paper , it shall suffice if the original is 
signed or verified and the copies a r e conformed 
to the original. 

(As amended Mar . 30, 1987, eff. Aug. 1, 1987; Apr. 
30, 1991, eff. Aug . 1, 1991; Apr. 11, 1997, eff. Dec. 1, 
1997.) 

NOTES 0~' ADVISORY C0MMJTIEE ON RULES-1983 

Subdivision (a). Excepted fr om the papers wh ich an at­
torney for a debtor must sign ar e lists, sclieclul esJ 
statements of financial affairs, statements of executory 
cont racts. Chapter 13 Stat emen ts and amenclm en ts 
t hereto. Rule 1008 requi res that t hese documents be 
verified by the deti or . :Al th ough the petition m ust al so 
be ver ified. counsel for t he debtor must sign the I!fil;i ­
t !on. See Official F orm No. 1. An unrepr esented party 
must sign all papers. 

T he last sentence of this subdivision author i zes a 
broad range of sancti ons. 

T he wor d 'document" i s used in t his subdivisi on to 
refer to all pape1·s wh ich tJie attomey or par ty is r e­
quired to sign. 

Subdivision (b) extends to all papers filed i n cases 
under t he Code t he policy of m!n!mi z!ng rel!ance on t he 
formalit i es of veri fication wh ich is r eflected i n th e 
third sentence of Rule 11 F.R.Civ.P . The second sen­
tence of subdiv i sion (b) perm i ts t he substitution of an 
unsworn declarati on for t he verificati on. See 28 U.S.C. 
§ 1746. R ules requ i ring verificat ion or an affidavi t are as 
follows: R ule 1008. peti tions. schedules, statem ents of 
financial affairs. Chapter 13 Statements and am end­
men ts; Rule 2006(0). list or mul tiple proxies and state­
ment of facts and ci rcumstances r egarding t heir acqui­
si tion ; Rule 4001(c), motion for ex par te relief from 
stay; Rule 7065. i ncor porating Rule 65(bTF.R.Ci v .P. gov­
erning i ssuance of tem porary r estraini ng order; Rule 
80ll(d) , afficlavit in support of emergency motion on ap­
peal. 

NOTES 01' ADVISORY C0MMl'J'TEE ON RULES-1987 
AMENDMENT 

The statem en t of Intent i on of the debtor under 
§ 521(2) of th e Code i s added t o t he docum ents which 
counsel l s not requi r ed to si gn . 

NOTES OF ADVIS0liY C0MMl'l'l'EE ON RULES-1991 
A MENDMENT 

Subdivision (a) ls amended to conform to Rule 11 
F.R.Civ.P . wh ere appropriate, bu t al so to cl ar i fy t hat it 
applies to t he unnecessar y defay or needless increase in 
t he cost or t he aclm!nist rati on of the case. Deleti on of 
the refer ences to speci fic statements t hat are excl uded 
from t he scope of this subdivi si on is stylistic . As used 
i n subdivision (a) of this rule. · ·statement" ls limited t o 
t he statem ent of financial affai rs and th e stat emen t of 
i ntention 1·equired to be filed under Rule 1007. Del etion 
of.the reference to th e Chapter 13 Statement i s consist­
ent with t he amendment to R ule 1007(b). 

NOTES OF' ADVISORY C0MMl'l'fEE ON RULES-1997 
AMENDMENT 

This rule Is amended to conform to the 1993 changes 
to F.R.C!v.P. 11. For an explanation of these amend-
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ments. see the advisory committee note to the 1993 
amendments to F.R.Civ.P. 11. 

The ·•safe harbor" provision contained In subdivision 
(c)(l)(A). which prohibits the filing of a motion for 
sanctions unless t he challenged paper is not withdrawn 
or corrected within a prescribed t ime after service of 
t he motion. does not apply if the challenged paper Is a 
pet i tion. The fili ng of a petition has immediate seri ous 
consequences. including t he i mpositi on of the auto­
mati c stay under §362 of the Code. which may not be 
avoided by the subsequent wit hdrawal of t he peti t i on . 
In adcUtlon, a petition for rel ief under chapter 7 or 
chapter 11 may not be withdrawn unless the cour t or­
ders dism i ssal of the case for cause after notice and a 
hearing. 

GAP Report on Ru le 9011. The proposed amendments to 
subdivisi on (a) were r evised to cl arify that a party not 
represented by an attom ey must si gn lists, schedules. 
and statements. as well as other papers that are filed. 

Rule 9012. Oaths and Affirmations 

(a) PERSONS AUTHORIZED TO ADMINISTER 
OATHS. The following persons may administer 
oaths and a ffi rmations and take acknowledg­
m ents: a bankruptcy judge, clerk, deputy clerk, 
Uni ted States trustee, officer authorized to ad­
m inis ter oaths in pr oceedings before the courts 
of t he United S ta tes or under the la ws of the 
state where t he oa th is t o be taken , or a diplo­
matic or consular officer of tne United States in 
any foreign country. 

(bJ AFFIRMA'rION IN LIEU OF OATH. When in a 
case under the Code an oath is required to be 
take n a solemn affirmation m ay be accepted In 
lieu t hereof. 

(As amended Mar. 30, 1987, eff. Aug. 1, 1987; Apr. 
30, 1991, eff. Aug. 1, 1991.) 

NOTES OF ADVISORY COMM.l'l'rEE ON RULES--1983 

This rule i s derived from Rule 43(d) F.R.Civ .P. 
The provi sions of former Bankruptcy Rule 912(a) re­

l ating to who may administer oaths have been deleted 
as unnecessary. Bankruptcy judges and the clerks and 
deputy cl erks of bankruptcy courts are authorized by 
statute t o administer oaths and affirm ations and to 
take acknowledgments. 28 U.S.C. §§459, 953. A per son 
desi gnated t o preside at t h e m eeting of cr edi tors has 
authori ty under Rule 2003(b)rl J to administer t he oaLh. 
Administration of t he oath at a deposit ion ls govem ed 
by Rule 7028. 

NOTES OF ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON RULES-1987 
AMENDMENT 

Subdivision (a) has been added to t he rule to authorize 
bankruptcy Judges and cl erks to administer oaths. 

NOTES OF ADVISORY COMMITl'EE ON RULES--1991 
AMENDMENT 

This rule is amended to conform to t he 1986 am end­
men t to §343 which provides t hat t he United States 
trustee may administer t he oath to t he debtor at the 
§341 meeting. This rule al so allows t he Uni ted States 
t rustee to a min ist er oaths and a ffirmati ons and to 
take acknowl edgments in ot her si t uat ions. This 
amendment al so affects Rule 9010(c) relating to the ac­
knowledgm ent of a power of attorney . The words 
"United States t rustee'' Include a designee of t he 
United States trustee pursuant to Rule 9001 and§ 102(9) 
of t he Code. 

Rule 9013. Motions: Form and Service 

A request for an order, except when an appli­
cation Is a uthorized by the rules, shall be by 
written motion, unless made during a hearing . 
The motion sha ll state with particularity the 

grounds therefor, and shall set for th the relief or 
order sought. Every written motion, other than 
one which may be considered ex parte, shall be 
served by the moving party within the time de­
termined under Rule 9006(d). The moving party 
sha ll serve tne motion on: 

(a) the trustee or debt or in possession and on 
t hose en t i t ies specified by these rules; or 

(b) the en t ities the court directs if these 
rules do not require service or specify the enti­
ties to be served. 

(As am ended Mar. 30, 1987, eff. Aug. 1, 1987; Apr. 
16, 2013, eff. Dec. 1, 2013.) 

NOTES OF ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON RULES--1983 

This rule is c\erivec\ from Rule 5(a) and Rule 7(b)(l) 
F.R.Civ.P. Except when an application is specifically 
authorized by these rules. for example an application 
under Rule 2014 for approval of the employment of a 
professional, all requests for cour t action must be made 
by motion. 

COMMITI'EE NOTES ON RULES-2013 AMENDMENT 

A cr oss-reference to""Rule 9006(d) is added to t his r ule 
to call attention to the time llm1ts for t he service of 
motions. supporting affl ilavits, and wri tten responses 
to motions. Rule 9006(d) rescribes time llmi ts t hat 
apply unless oth er limits are fixed by these rules, a 
court order , or a local rule. The ot her chang es are sty­
listi c. 

Chcmges Made After PtLblication and Comment. No 
changes were made after publication and comment. 

Rule 9014. Contested Matters 

(a) MOTION. In a contested ma tter not other­
wise governeo by t hese r ules, relief shall be re­
quested by motiQ!!.. and reasonable notice and 
opportunity for hearing sha ll be a fforded the 
pa rty against whom relief is sought. No response 
is required under this ru e unless t he court di­
rects otherwise. 

(b) SERVICE. The motion sha ll be served in the 
ma nner provided for service of a summons and 
compla int by Rule 7004 and within the time de­
termined under Rule 9006(d). Any written re­
sponse to the motion shall be served within the 
time determined under Rule 9006(d). Any paper 
served after the motion sha ll be served in the 
manner provided by Rule 5(b) F.R.Civ.P. 

(c) APPLICATION OF PART VII RULES. Except as 
otherwise provided in this rule, and unless the 
court direc ts otherwise, the following rules shall 
apply: 7009, 7017, 7021. 7025, 7026, 7028-7037, 7041, 
7042, 7052, 7054-7056, 7064, 7069, and 7071. The fol­
lowing subdivisions of Fed. R. Civ. P. 26, as in­
corporated by Rule 7026, sha ll not apply In a 
contested matter unless the court directs other­
wise: 26(a)(l) (manda tory disclosure), 26(a)(2) 
(disclosures regarding expert testimony) and 
26(a)(3) (additional pre-trial disclosure), and 26(0 
(mandatory meeting before scheduling con­
ference/discovery plan). An enti ty that desires 
to perpetuate testimony may proceed in t he 
same manner as provided In Rule 70'2:7 for the 
taking of a deposition before an adversa1·y pro­
ceeding. The court may at any stage in a par­
ticular matter direct that one or more of the 
other rules In P art VII sha ll apply. The court 
sha ll give t h e pa rties notice of any order issued 
under this pa ragraph to afford them a reason­
able opportunity to comply with the procedures 
prescribed by the order. 
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EFFECTIVE DATE OF 2005 AMENDMENT 

Amendmen t by Pub. L. 109-8 effecti ve 180 days a fter 
Apr. 20. 2005. and not applicable with r espect to cases 
commenced under this t i t le before such effecti ve elate. 
except as otherwise provlclecl, see section 1501 of Pub. L. 
109-8. set out as a note under section 101 of this t itle. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 1994 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by Pub. L. 103-394 effective Oct. 22. 1994. 
and not applicable wl t h respect to cases commenced 
under this title before Oct. 22. 1994. see section 702 of 
Pub. L . 103-394. set ou t as a note under section 101 o f 
this titl e. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 1990 AMENDMENT 

Pub. L. 101-508. title III. §3007(a)(3). Nov. 5. 1990. 104 
Stat. 1383-28. provided that: " The amendments made by 
this subsection [amending this section and section 541 
of t his title] shall be effective upon date of enactment 
of this Act [Nov. 5. 1990]." 

Pub. L. 101-508, t itle III. §3008. Nov. 5. 1990. 104 Stat. 
1386-29. provided that t he amendments made by sub­
title A (§§3001-3008) of title III of Pub. L. 101- 508. 
am ending t his section. sections 541 and 1328 of this 
ti tie. and sections 1078. 1076-1. 1076-7, 1085. 1088. and 1091 
of Title 20. Education, and provisions set out as a note 
under section 1076-1 or Title 20. were to cease to be ef­
fective Oct. 1. 1996. prior to repeal by Pub. L. 102-325. 
title XV. § 1558. July 23. 1992, 106 Stat. 841. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 1986 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by secti on 257 o f Pub. L. 99-554 effecti ve 
30 clays after Oct. '}{I, 1986. but not applicabl e to cases 
commenced under this ti t ie befor e that elate, see sec­
tion 302(a). (C)( l ) of Pub. L. 99-554, set out as a note 
under section 581 of 'l' ltle 28, Judiciary and Judicial 
Procedure. 

Amendment by secti on 283 of Pub. L. 99-554 effective 
30 clays after Oct. '}{I, 1986. see section 302(a) of Pub. L. 
99-554. 

Pub. L. 99-509. t itle V. § 500l (b), Oct. 21. 1986, 100 Stat . 
1912. provided t hat : "The amendments made by sub­
section (a) of this section [amending this section] shall 
apply only to petitions filed under section 362 of title 
11. Uni ted States Code. which a r e made after August 1. 
1986 .•• 

EFFECTIVE D ATE OF 1984 AMENDMENT 

Amendmen t by Pub. L. 96-353 effective with r espect 
to cases filed 90 clays after July 10. 1984, see section 
552(a) of Pub. L. 96-353. set out as a note under section 
101 of t his t i t i e. 

R EPORT TO CONGRESSIONAL COMMITTEES 

Pub. L. 99-509. title V. §500l(a). Oct. 21. 1986. 100 Stat. 
1911. d irected Secretar y of Transpor tation and Sec­
r etary of Commerce. before Jul y 1. 1989, to submit re­
ports to Congress on the effects of amendments to 11 
U.S.C. 362 by t his subsection. 

§ 363. Use, sale, or lease of prope rty 

(a) In this section. "cash collateral" means 
cash, negotiable Instruments, documents of 
t it le. securit ies, deposit accounts, 01· other cash 
equivalen ts whenever acquired in which the es­
tate and an entity other tha n the estate have an 
interest a nd includes the proceeds, products, off­
spring. rents. or profits of property a nd the fees, 
charges, accounts or other payments for the use 
01· occupancy of rooms and other public facili­
t ies In hotels, motels, or other lodging prop­
erties subject to a security interest as provided 
In section 552(b) of this title. whether exis ting 
before or after the commencement of a case 
under this tit le. 

(b)(l) T he tr ust ee. after 11otj_ce a nd a J10aril,1g . 
may use, sell. or lease, other than In the orcli-

nary course of business, property of the estate, 
except that if the debtor in connection with of­
fering a product or a service discloses to an indi­
vidual a policy prohibit ing the transfer of per­
sonally identifiable information about individ­
uals to persons that are not affiliated with the 
debtor and if such policy is in effect on the elate 
of the commencement of the case, then the 
trustee may not sell or lease persona lly identifi­
able information to any person unless-

(A) such sale or such lease ls consistent with 
such policy; or 

(B) after appointment of a consumer privacy 
ombudsman in accordance with section 332. 
and after notice and a hearing, the cour t ap­
proves such sale or such lease-

(!) giving due considera tion to t he fact s, 
circumstances, a ncl condi t ions of such sale 
or such lease; a nd 

(ii) finding t hat no showing was made that 
sucl.1 sale or such lease would violate appli ­
cable non ba nk ruptcy law. 

(2) If notification is required under subsection 
(a) of section 7A of the Clayton Act in the case 
of a transaction under this subsection, then-

(A) notwithstanding subsection (a) of such 
section. the notification required by such sub­
section to be given by the debtor shall be 
given by the trus tee; and 

(B) notwithstanding subsection (b) of such 
section, the required waiting period shall encl 
on the 15th day after the elate of the receipt, 
by the Federal Tracie Commission and the As­
sistant Attorney Genera l in charge of the 
Antitrust Division of t he Department of Jus­
tice, of the notification required under such 
subsection (a), unless such waiting period ls 
extenclecl-

(l) pursuant to subsection (e)(2) of such 
section. In the same manner as such sub­
section (e)(2) applies to a cash tender offer; 

(ii) pursua nt to subsection (g)(2) of such 
section; or 

(iii) by the court after notice and a hear­
ing. 

(c)(l ) If the business of the debtor is author­
ized to be operated under section 721, 1108, 1203, 
1204. or 1304 of this title and unless the court or­
ders otherwise, the trustee may enter into 
transactions, including the sale or lease of prop­
erty of the estate, Jn the ordinary course of busi­
ness. without notice or a hearing, and may use 
property of the estate in the ordinary course of 
business without notice or a hearing. 

(2) The trustee may not use, sell. or lease cash 
collateral under paragraph (1) of this subsection 
unless-

(A) each entity that has an interest in such 
cash collateral consents; or 

(B) the court, after notice and a hearing. au­
thorizes such use, sale, or lease in accordance 
with the provis ions of t his section. 
(3) Any hearing under parngraph (2)(B) of t his 

subsection may be a preliminary hearing or may 
be consolidated with a hearing under subsection 
(e) of this section, but shall be scheduled In ac­
cordance with the needs of the debtor. If the 
hearing under paragraph (2)(B) of t his sub­
section is a preliminary hearing, t he court may 
authorize such use, sale, or lease only if there is 

363(n)(l) l WAS DUE A NOTICE AND A HEARI NG BY THE TRUSTEE, S HORTLY AFTER MY EX-WIFE (SECRETLY) FILED FOR 

BANKRUPTCY. MY EX - WIFE HAD COMMITTED TO PAYING THE MORTGAGES AS THE VOLUNTARY PRIMARY BREADW I NNER FOR 

OUR FAM I LY S I NCE 201 1. I H AD NO ACCESS TO T H E A CCOUNT S, THE S TATEMENTS O R NOT I CES . l HAD NO KNOWLEDGE, 

NOTICE, OR MEANS OF KNOWI NG T H AT A S I NGLE MORTGAGE PAYM ENT WAS L ATE, LET ALONE THAT SEVERAL WERE 

DEFAULTED UPON, AND OUR MUTUALLY I NVESTED I N (CASH ), PURCHASED, AND DEEDED PROPERTY WAS AT RISK! 
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a reasonable likelihoocl that the t rust ee will pre­
vail a t the fina l hear ing under subsection (e) of 
this section. The court shall act prompt ly on 
any request for a uthorization under paragra ph 
(2)(B) of this subsection. 

(4) Except as provided in paragraph (2) of this 
snbsection, the trus tee shall segregate and ac­
count for any cash collateral in the trustee's 
possession, cus tody, or control. 

(d) The trus tee may use, sell. or lease proper ty 
under snbsection (b) or (c) of t his section-

(1) in the case of a debtor tha t is a corpora­
tion or t rus t that is not a moneyed business, 
commercia l corpora tion, or t rus t, only in ac­
cordance with nonbankruptcy law applicable 
to the trnnsfer of property by a debtor tha t is 
such a corporation or trus t: and 

(2) only to the extent not inconsis tent with 
any relief granted under subsection (c), (cl), (e), 
0 1· (f) of section 362. 
(e) Notwithstanding any other provision of 

this section. at any time, on request of an entity 
that has a n intel'est in proper ty used, soJcl, or 
leased, or proposed to be used, sold, orleased. by 
tbe trustee. tbe conrt, witl1 OI' witbou t a 1ear­
ling. shall prohibit o • condition such_use, sale, or 
lease as is necessal'y to prnvide adequate protec­
tion of such intel'est. This snbsection a lso ap­
plies to property t ha t is subject to any un­
expired lease of personal proper ty (to the exclu­
sion of such proper ty being subject to an order 
t o grant relief from the stay under sect ion 362). 

(f) Tbe trustee may sell property under sub­
section Cb) or (c) of this section free ancl c ear of 
any interest in.such proper ty of an ent ity otner 
than the estate, on1y if-

(11 applica15le nonbankruptcy Jaw permits 
sale of such property free and cleal' of such in ­
terest; 

(2) such ent ity consents: 
(3) such interest is a lien and the price a t 

which such property is to be sold is greater 
t han the aggregate value of all liens on such 
proper ty: 

(4) such interest is in bona fide dispute: or 
(5) such entity could be compelled, in a legal 

or equi table proceeding, to accept a money 
satisfac tion of such interest. 
(g) Not wit hstanding subsection (f) of this sec­

t ion, the trustee may sell proper t y under sub­
section (b) or (c) of t his section free and clear of 
any vested or cont ingent right in t he nature of 
dower or curtesy. 

(h) Notwithstanding subsection (f) of this sec­
t ion, the trnstee may sell oth t he estate's in­
tel'est, under subsection Cb) or (c) of t his section, 
and the interest of any co-owner in property in 
which the debtor had, at the t ime of the com­
mencement of the case. a n nndivided ·otel'est as 
a tenant in common. joint tenant. or tenant by 
the entirety. Qrily if-

rn partition in ldrul o( such pl'operty among 
the estate and such. co-owners is impractica­
ble: 

.(2) sale oi the estate's tu1dividecl interest in 
such property wouJd realize significantly ess 
for the estate t ha n sale o( such property J ree 
of the interests o(.such co-owners; 

'(3) t he benefit to the estate of a sale or sttch 
prnperty free of the interests of co-owners out-

weighs the detriment, if any, to such co-own­
ers: and 

(4) such proper ty is not used in the produc­
t ion, transmission , or dis tribution, for sale, of 
electric energy or of na tural or synthetic gas 
for hea t, light, or power. 
( i) Before the consummation of a sale of prop­

er ty to which subsection (g) or (h) of t his sec­
tion applies, or of property of t he estate tha t 
was community property of the debtor a nd the 
debtor's spouse immediately before t he com­
mencement of the case, the debtor 's spouse. or a 
co-owner of such property, as the case may be, 
may purchase such proper ty a t t he price at 
which such sa le is to be consummated. 

(j ) After a sa le of property to which subsect ion 
(g) or (h ) of this section a pplies, the trustee 
shall distribute to the debtor 's spouse or t he co­
owners of such propert y , as the case may be, and 
to the est a te, the proceeds of such sale, less t he 
cos ts a nd expenses, not including a ny compensa ­
t ion of the t rustee, of such sale. according to t he 
int erests of such spouse 0 1· co-owners, a nd of the 
estate. 

(k ) At a sale under subsection (b) of this sec­
t ion of proper ty t ha t is subject to a lien t ha t se­
cures a n a llowed claim, unless t he cour t for 
cause orders ot herwise t he holder of such cla im 
may bid a t such sale, and, if the holder of such 
cla im purchases such property, such holder may 
offset such cla im against t he purchase price of 
such propert y. 

(I) Subject to the provisions of sect ion 365, t he 
trust ee may use, sell , or lease property under 
subsection (b) or (c) of this section, or a plan 
under cha pter 11, 12, or 13 of this t i t le may pro­
vide for the use, sale, or lease of property, not­
wi thstand Ing any provis ion in a con tract, a 
lease, OI' applicable l aw that is condi tioned oru 
the insolvency or financial condj tion of the 
debtor , on the commencement of a case nnder 
this tit;le concerning the deotor , or on the ap­
pointment of 0 1· the taking possession by a 
trustee in a case under this t i t le or a custodian, 
and t hat effects, or gives an option. to effect, a 
forfeiture, .Jnodi(ication, or termination o the 
debtor's interest in sucb pi;operty. 

(m) The reversal or modification on appeal of 
an authorization under subsection (b) or (c) of 
t his section of a sale or lease of proper ty does 
not affect t he validity of a sale or lease under 
such a ut horization to an entity tha t purchased 
or leased such property in good faith, whether or 
not such entity knew of the pendency of the ap­
pea l, unless such authorization a nd such sale or 
lease were s t ayed pending appeal. 

(n) The t rus t ee may avoid a sale under this 
section if the sale price was controlled by a n 
agreement a mong potent ial bidders a t such sale. 
or may recover from a party to such agreement 
any a mount by which the value of the proper t y 
sold exceeds t he price a t which such sale was 
consummated. and may recover any costs, attor­
neys' fees, or expenses incurred in avoiding such 
sale or recovering such a mount. In addit ion to 
any recovery under the preceding sentence, the 
court may grant judgment for punit ive da mages 
in favor of the esta te a nd against a ny such party 
tha t entered into such a n agreement in willful 
disregard of t his subsection. 

(o) Notwiths tanding subsection (f). if a person 
purchases a ny interest in a consumer credit 

I WAS I N POSSESSION OF TH E PROPE RTY, I HAD TENANTS (ELDERLY & HANDICAPPED) W ITH LEG ITIMATE L EASES, 

PROTECTED BY BANKRUPTCY LAW, STATE LAW, ADA, AND THE PROTECTING TENANTS AT FORECLOSURE ACT. l OFFERED TO 

BRING THE MORTGAGES CURRENT AT MY 8/1/2019 H EAR I NG IN CHANCERY COURT, WH I LE ATTORNEY VIRG INIA LEE STORY 

TO LD ME THAT IT WAS ALREADY TOO LATE . THAT T HE BANKRUPTCY PROCEED INGS WERE TOO FAR ALONG, WH ICH I S A 

V IO LAT IO N OF MY CONSTITUTI O NAL RIGHTS FOR PROTECTING MY CRITICAL PROPERTY INTERESTS, WITH MY RIGHTS 

UNDER FEDERAL HUD /ADA/FED/FRBP CRIMINAL & CIVIL LAWS! ADVERSA RIAL PROCEEDING REQU I RED BY LAW! 
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transaction that is subject to the Truth in Lend­
ing Act or any interest in a consumer credit 
con tract (as defined in section 433.1 of title 16 of 
the Code of Federal Regulations (J anuary 1, 
2004). as amended from time to time), and if such 
interest is purchased through a sale under this 
section. then such person shall remain subject 
to a ll claims and defenses that are related to 
such consumer credit transaction or s uch con­
sumer credit contract, to the same extent as 
such person would be subject to such c laims and 
defenses of the consumer had such interest been 
purchased at a sale not under this section. 

(p) In any hearing under this section-
(1) the trustee bas the burden of proof on the 

issue of adequate protection: a nd 
(2) the entity asserting an interest in prop­

erty has the burden of proof on the issu e of t he 
validity, priority, or exten t of such interest. 

(Pub. L. 95-598, Nov.6.1978, 92 Stat. 2572: Pub. L. 
98-353. title III, §442, July 10. 1984, 98 Stat. 371; 
Pub. L. 99-554. title II, §257(k), Oct. 27, 1986, 100 
Stat. 3115: Pub. L. 103--394. t itle I , § 109, title II, 
§§214(b), 219(c). title V, §501(d)(8), Oct. 22, 1994, 
108 Stat. 4113, 4126, 4129, 4144; Pub. L. 109-8, t itle 
II. §§204. 231(a). title XII, §1221(a), Apr. 20, 2005, 
119 Stat. 49, 72, 195: Pub. L. 111-327, § 2(a)(l3), 
Dec. 22, 2010, 124 Stat. 3559.) 

HJSTORICAL AND REVISION NOTES 

LEGISLATIVE STATEMENTS 

Section 363(a) of the House amendment defines "cnsh 
collateral" as defined In the Sennte amendment. 'l'he 
broader definition of "soft collnteral" contained In 
H.R. 8200 as passed by the House Is deleted to remove 
limitations thnt were placed on the use. lease. or snle 
of Inventory. accounts. contract rights, general Intan­
gibles. and chattel paper by the trustee or debtor In 
possession. 

Section 363(c)(2) of the House amendment Is derived 
from t he Senate nmendment. Similarly. sections 
363(c)(3) and (4) are derived from comparable provisions 
in the Senate amendment In lieu of the contrary proce­
dure contained In section 363(c) as passed by the House. 
The policy of t he House nmenclment will generally re­
quire the court to schedule a p1·ellmlnary henrlng In ac­
cordance with the needs of the debtor to nuthorlze the 
trustee or debtor In possession to use. sell. or lease 
cash collateral. The trustee or debtor In possession 
may use. sell. or lease cash collatera l in the ordina ry 
course of business only " after notice nncl a henrlng." 

Section 363(0 of the House amendment adopts an 
Identical provision contained In t he House bill. as op­
posed to an a lternative provision contained In the Sen­
ate amendment. 

Section 363(11) of the House amendment adopts a new 
pa ragraph (4) representing a compromise between the 
House bill a nd Senate amendment. The provision acids 
a limitation Indicating that a t rust ee o • debtor in JlOS­
sesslon sell Jointly owned property only If the property 
is not used In the production, transmission. or distribu­
tion for sale. or electric energy or or natural or syn­
thetic gas for heat. light. or power. This limitation Is 
Intended to protect public utilities from being deprived 
or power sources because of the bankruptcy of a Joint 
owner. 

Section 363(k) of the House a mendment Is derived 
from the t hird sentence or section 363(e) or the Senate 
amendment. The p1·ovlslon indicates that a secured 
creditor may bid In the full amount or t he creditor's al­
lowed claim. including t he secured portion and any un­
secured portion t hereof In the event the creditor Is 
undorsecured. wl th respect to property that Is subject 
to a lien that secures the a llowed cla im or t he sale or 
t he property. 

SENATE REPORT NO. 95-989 

This section defines t he right and powers of the t rust­
ee with respect to the use. sale or lease of property a nd 
the rights or other parties t hat have Interests In the 
property Involved. It applies in both liquidation and re­
organl7,atlon cases. 

Subsection (a) defines ·'cash collateral .. as cash. ne­
gotiable instruments. documents or title. securities. de­
posit accounts. or other cash equivalents In which t he 
estate and an entity other than the estate have an In­
terest . such as a lien or n co-ownership interest. The 
definition is not restricted to proper ty o r t he estate 
that Is cash collateral on the date of the filing or the 
peti tion. Thus . If "non-cash" collateral Is disposed of 
and the proceeds come within t he definition of "cash 
collnteral" as set forth In t his subsection. the proceeds 
would be cash collateral as long as they remain subject 
to the or ig inal lien on the •·non-cash" collateral under 
section 552(b). To Illustrate. rents received from real 
property before or a fter t he commencement of the case 
would be cash collateral to the extent that t hey are 
subject to a lien. 

Subsection (b) permi ts the trustees to use. sell. or 
lease, other t han In the ordinary course or business. 
property or the estate upon notice and opportunity for 
objections and hearing thereon. 

Subsection (c) governs use, sale. or lease In the ordi­
nary course or business. If the business of the debtor Is 
a ut horized to be operated under §721. 1108, or 1304 of the 
bankruptcy code, t hen the trustee may use. sell. or 
lease property ln the ordinary course of business or 
enter Into ordinary course transactions without need 
for notice and hearing. This power Is subject to several 
limitations. First, the court may restrict t he t rustee's 
powers In the order authorizing operation of the bus i­
ness. Second. with r espect to cash collateral. the trust­
ee may not use. sell , or lease cash collateral except 
upon court authorization a fter notice and a hearing. or 
with the consent of each entity that has an Interest in 
such cash collateral. The same preliminary hearing 
procedure in the automatic stay section applies to a 
hearing under this subsection. In addition, the trustee 
Is required to segregate and account for a ny cash col­
lateral In t he trustee's possession. custody, or control. 

Under s ubsections (cl ) and (e). the use. sale. or lease 
or property Is fur ther limited by the concept of ade­
quate protection. Sale. use. or lease or property In 
which an entity other than the estate has an Interest 
may be effected only to the extent not Inconsistent 
with any relief from the stay granted to thnt lnterest·s 
bolder . Moreover. the court may prohibit or condition 
the use. sale. or lease as is necessary to provide nde­
qunte protection of tlmt interest. Again. the trus tee 
has the burden of proof on the Issue of adequate protec­
tion. Subsection (e) a lso provides that where a sale of 
the property is proposed. an entity that has an Interest 
In such property may bid at the sale thereof and set off 
against the purchase price up to the amount or such en­
tlty·s claim. No prior valuation under section 506(a) 
would limit t his bidding right. s ince the bid at the sale 
would be determinative of value . 

Subsection (f) permits sale or property free and clear 
of any interest In the property of an entity other than 
the estate. The t rustee may sell free and clear If appli­
cable nonbankruptcy law permits It. If tbe other enti ty 
consents. if the interest Is a lien and the sale price or 
t he property Is greater than the amount secured by the 
lien. If the Interest Is In bona fide dispute. or If the 
other entity could be compelled to nccept a money sat­
is faction of t he Interest in a legal or equi table proceed­
ing. Sale under this subsection Is subject to the acle­
quate protection requi rement . Most often. adequate 
protection In connection with a sale free and clear of 
other Interests will be to have t hose interests attach to 
the proceeds or the sale. 

At a sale free and clear or o ther Interests. any holder 
of any Interest In t he property being sold will be per­
ml ttecl to bid. Ir thnt holder Is the high bidder, he will 
be pe rmitted to offset the value or his Interest against 

363(H) TH I S WAS A BURDENSOM ASSET, AS LONG AS I COULD BR I NG THE PAYMENTS CURRENT AND KEEP PAYING THEM 

ON TIME, THE BANKRUPTCY TRUSTEE WOULD HAVE HAD TO REMOVE OUR HOM E FROM THE BANKRUPTCY ESTATE, OR PAY 

TO RELOCATE MY TENTNATS, AND PAID TO RELOCATE AND REIMBURSE ME FOR MY INVESTMENT, NOT A FORCED 

AUCTI ON, WHERE WE INSTANTLY LOST OVER $200 . WHILE OUR IIOME I S WORTH $SOOK TODAY! SCAM BETWEEN COURTS! 
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the purchase price o f the property. Thus, In t he most 
common si t uation. a holder or a lien on property being 
sold may bid a t the sale and, i f successful. may offset 
the amount owed to him that l s secured by the lien on 
the property \but may not offset other amounts owed 
to him) against t he purchase pri ce, and be liable to the 
trustee for the balance o f the sale price. If any. 

Subsection (g) permits the trustee to sell free and 
c lear or any vested or contingen t righ t In t he nature of 
dower or curtesy. 

Subsecti on \h) permjts_sale of a co-owner ' s luterest l u 
property In which the c ebtor had an undivided owner ­
ship inter est such as a j oint tenancy . a tenancy i n com­
mon. or a tenancy l>Y t he en t irety. Such a sale i s per ­
missible onl y if par t ition i s i mpracticable. I f sale of tJ1e 
estate's Interest would r ealize significantl y less for tbc 
estate t ha t sale or the proper ty free of t he lnt-0rests or 
t he co-owners. and I f t he benefit to t he estate of such 
a sal e outweighs any detr imen t to t he co-owners. This 
subsection does not apply to a co-owner's Inter est In a 
public utility when a disruption of the utilities services 
coul d r esult. 

Subsection \i) pr ovides protections for co-owners and 
spouses with dower. curtesy, or comm unity property 
r ights. I t gi ves a right of first refusal to the co-owner 
or spouse at the price at which the sale Is to be con­
summated. 

Subsection (j) requires the trustee to distribute to 
the spouse or co-owner the appropriate portion of the 
proceeds of the sal e. less certain administrative ex­
penses. 

Subsection (k l [enacted as (/)] permits t he t rustee to 
use. sell. or lease property notwithstanding certain 
banlffuptcy or ipso facto clauses that terminate the 
debtor's Interest In t he property or t hat work a forfeit­
ure or modification of that Interest. This subsection Is 
not as broad as the anti-Ipso facto provision In pro­
posed 11 U.S.C. 54l(c)(l). 

Subsecti on (/) [enacted as (ml] protects good faith 
purchasers of property sold under this section from a 
reversal on appeal of the sale au t horization. un less the 
au thorization for the sale and the sale Itself were 
stayed pending appeal. The purchaser's knowledge of 
t he appeal Is irrelevant to the Issue of good faith. 

Subsecti on (ml [enacted as (n)J ls dir ected at collu­
sive blclcllng on proper ty sold under this secti on. I t per ­
mits the t rustee to void a sale If the price of the sal e 
was contr olled by an agreem ent among potential bid­
ders. T he t r ustees may a lso r ecover the excess of t he 
value of t he proper ty over t he purchase price, and may 
recover any costs. attomey's fees. or expenses incurred 
in voi ding t he sal e 01· recovering t he cllfference. In addi­
tion. the court is authorized t o gmnt judgment In favor 
of t he estate and against t he collusi ve bidder if the 
agreem ent controlling the sal e price was en tered Into 
In willful disregard of this subsecti on. The subsection 
does not specify t he preci se measure or damages. but 
simpl y provides for punitive damages, to be fixed In 
light of t he circumstances. 

REFERENCES IN T EXT 

Section 7A of the Clayton Act, referred to In subsec. 
(b)(2). Is c lassified to secti on 18a of Title 15, Commerce 
and Tracie. 

The •r rnth In L ending Act. refer red to In subsee. (o). 
ls title I or Pub. L. 90-321. May 29. 1968. 82 Stat. 146. as 
amended. which Is elasslflecl generally to subchapter I 
(§1601 et seq.) of chapter 41 of Title 15, Commerce and 
Tracie. For complete c lassification of t his Act to t he 
Code. see Shor t Tit l e note set out under secti on 1601 of 
Tl tie 15 and Tables. 

AMENDMENTS 

2010-Subsec. (cl). Pub. L. 111- 327. §2(a)(13)(A). struck 
out "only" befor e dash a t end of Introductory provi­
sions. 

Subsec. (d)(l ). Pub. L. 111-327. §2(a)(l3)(B). amended 
par. (l) generally. Prior to amendment. par. (1) read as 
follows: ''In accordance with applicable nonbankrnptcy 

law that govem s the transfer of property by a corpora­
tion or t rust that Is not a moneyed, business, or com­
mercia l corporati on or t rust: and" . 

Subsec. (d)(2). Pub. L. 111-327. §2(a)(13)(C), i nserted 
"only" before "to the extent". 

2005--Subsec. (b)(l). Pub. L. 109-8, §23l{a). substituted 
", except t hat If t he debtor In connecti on with offering 
a product or a servi ce d iscloses to an Individual a pol ­
i cy prohibiting the transfer of personally identifiabl e 
i nformation about Individuals to persons that are not 
affiliated with the debtor and If such policy ls In effect 
on the date of the commencement of the case. then the 
trustee may not sell or l ease per sonally Identifiable in­
formation to any person unless-" and subpars. (A) and 
(B) for period at end. 

Subsec. (d). Pub. L . 109-8. § 122l (a), substituted 
" only-•· and pars. (1) and (2) for ·•onl y to the extent 
not Inconsi stent with any relief gr an ted under section 
362\c). 362(d). 362(eJ. or 362(0 or t his titl e." 

Subsees. (o). (p), Pub. L. 109-8. §204. added subsec. (o) 
and reclesignated former subsec. (O) as (p). 

1994-Subsec. (a). Pub. L. 103-394, §214(b). Inserted 
" and t he fees, charges, accounts or other pay men ts for 
the use or occupancy of r ooms and other public facili­
ties In hotels. motels. or other lodging proper ties" 
after " property". 

Subsec. (b)(2}. Pub. L. 103-394, §§ 109. 50l (d)(8)(A). 
struck out "(15 U.S.C. 18a)" a fter "Cl ayton Act'' and 
amended subpar s. (A) and (B) generally . Prior to 
amendment. subpars. (A) and (B) read as follows: 

"(A) notwithstanding subsection (a) o f such section. 
such notification shall be g iven by t he trustee; and 

"(Bl notwithstanding subsection (b} or such section. 
the required wai ting period shall end on t he tent h day 
after the date or the receipt of such notification, unless 
the court, after notice and hearing, orders o therwise. " 

Subsec. (c)(l). Pub. L. 103-394. §501(d)(8)(B), sub­
stitu ted " 1203. 1204, or 1304'' for "1304, 1203. or 1204' ', 

Subsec. (e). Pub. L. 103-394, §219(e). Inserted at end 
" T his subsection al so applies to property that l s sub­
ject to any unexpired lease of personal proper ty (to the 
exclusion of such property being subject to an order to 
grant relief from the stay under secti on 362). ·• 

1986- Subsec. (c)(l). Pub. L . 99-554. §257(k)(l), Inserted 
reference to sections 1203 and 1204 of this title. 

Subsec. (/). Pub. L. 99-554. §257(k )(2). Inserted r ef­
er ence to chapter 12. 

1984-Subsec. (aJ. Pub. L . 9s-353. §442(a), Inserted 
"whenever acquired" aft er "equival en ts'' and " and In­
cludes the proceeds. products. offspring, rents, or prof­
i ts of property subject to a security Interest as pr o­
vided In section 552(b) or this titl e. whether existing be­
fore 0 1· after the commencement or a case under t h is 
titl e" after "Interest". 

Subsec. (b). Pub. L. 98-353. §442(b). cleslgnatecl exist­
ing pr ovisions as par. (1) and added par. (2). 

Subsec. (e). Pub. L. 9s-353. §442(c}, Inserted •·, with or 
without a hear ing," after "court'' and strnck out " In 
any hearing under this section. the trnstee has t he bur­
den of proof on the Issue o f adequate protection". 

Subsee. (0(3). Pub. L. 9s-353, §442(d). substituted "all 
liens on such property" for "such Interest•·. 

Subsec. (h ). Pub. L . 9s-353, §442(e), substituted "at t he 
t ime of' for "immedi ately before" . 

Subsee. (J). Pub. L. 98-353, §442(0. substituted "com­
pensati on" for " compenation". 

Subsec. (k). Pub. L . 9s-353, §442(g). substituted " un­
less the court for cause orders other wi se the hol der of 
such claim may bid at such sale, and, If t he holder" for 
" If t he holder" . 

Subsec. (/). Pub. L. 9s-353. §442(h). substi tuted " Sub­
ject to the pr ovisions or section 365, the trustee" for 
" The t rustee", "condition" for "condi t i ons", "or t he 
taking'' for " a taking•·. and "Interest " for " interests", 

Subsec. (n). Pub. L. 98-353. §442(1). substituted 
"avoid" for "void", "avoiding" for "voiding", and " In 
addi tion to any r ecovery under the preceding sentence. 
t he court may grant judgment for punitive damages In 
favor of the estate and against any such party t hat en­
tered Into such an agr eement In w illful disregard of 

363(H) WOULD HAVE ONLY ALLOWED THIS SALE (PROVIDED ] COULD BRING THE PAYMENTS CURRENT AND MAINTAIN 

THEM) IF TH E BENEFIT TO T HE BK ESTATE FHOM SUCH A SALE OUTWEIGHED ANY DETRIMENT TO T HE CO- OWNERS . 

W HI CH WAS LITERALLY IMPOSSIBLE. S HE HAD ROUGH LY $40K OF UNSECURE DEBTS, OUR MAR ITAL DEBTS LEFT IN MY NAME 

WERE NEVER GI VEN ANY CONS IDERATION , NOR WAS A PENNY APPLIED TO MY MARITAL DEBTS OR PAID TO ME 

FOR MY I NVESTMENTS . WE I NSTANTLY LO ST OVER $200K FROM O UR CASH I NVESTMENTS PLUS 
1

J LOST A MILLION , 
DOLLAR RETIREMENT I NVESTMENT, WHICH THIS PROPERTY WAS THE WHOLE OF. WORTH $800K TODAY, WITH ONLY $300K OWED! 
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this subsection"' for " The court may gran t judgment In 
favor of the estate and against any such party that en­
ter ed Into su ch agreemen t In w illful disregard of t his 
subsection for punitive damages In addition to any re­
covery under the preceding sen tence". 

Subsec. (o). Pub. L. 98--353. §442(Jl. added subsec. (o). 

En'ECTIVE DATE OF 2005 AMENDMENT 

Pub. L. 109-8, title XII. § 122l(d), Apt·. 20. 2005. 110 Stat. 
196. provided that: "The am endments ma.de by thi s sec­
tion [amending this secti on and sections 541 and 1129 of 
this t i t l e and enacting provisions set out as a note 
under thi s section] shall appl y to a case pending under 
t i t i e 11. United States Code. on t he date of enactment 
of this Act [Apr. 20, 2005]. or filed under t hat titl e on or 
after t hat date of enactment. except that the court 
shall not confirm a plan under chapter 11 of title 11. 
United States Code. without conslde1·l ng whether t h is 
section would substant ially affect the righ ts of a party 
In Interest who first acquired righ ts with respect to the 
debtor af ter the date of t h e fil ing of the petition. The 
parties who may appear and be heard In a proceeding 
under this section include the attorney general of the 
State In which the debtor Is Incorporated. was formed. 
or does business." ' 

Amendment by sections 204 and 231(a) o f Pub. L. 109-8 
effective 180 clays after Apr. 20, 2005. and not applicable 
with respect to cases commenced under t his title befor e 
such effective date. except as otherwise provided. see 
section 1501 of Pub. L. 109-8. set out as a note under sec­
tion 101 of this t itle. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 1994 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by Pub. L. 103-394 effective Oct. 22. 1994. 
and not applicable wl t h respect to cases commenced 
under t his t itle before Oct. 22. 1994. see section 702 of 
Pub. L. 103-304, set ou t as a note under secti on 101 of 
t his title. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 1986 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by Pub. L. 99-554 effective 30 clays after 
Oct. 27. 1986. bu t not applicabl e t o cases commenced 
under this titl e before t hat elate. see section 302(a). 
(C)(l) of Pub. L. 99-554. set out as a note under section 
581 of Ti tle 28, Judiciary and Judicial Procedure. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 1984 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by Pub. L. 98--353 effecti ve with r espect 
to cases filed 90 clays af ter July 10. 1984. sec section 
552(a) of Pub. L. 96--353. set out as a note under section 
101 of this t itle. 

CONSTRUCTION OF SECTION 1221 OF PUB. L . 109-8 

Pub. L. 109-8. titl e XII. § 1221(e). Apr. 20. 2005, 119 Stat. 
196. provided that: ·'Nothing in this section [see Effec­
t i ve Date of 2005 Amendment note above] shall be con­
strued to require the court In which a case under chap­
ter 11 of title 11. Uni ted States Code. Is pending to r e­
mand or r efer any proceeding. Issue. or con troversy to 
any other court or to require the approval of any other 
court for the transfer of property:· 

§ 364. Obtaining credit 

(a) If the trustee is authorized to operate t he 
business of the debtor under section 721, 1108, 
1203, 1204. or 1304 of this t itle, unless t he court 
orders otherwise, t he trustee may obtain unse­
cured credit and incur unsecured debt In the or­
dinary com-se of business a llowable under sec­
tion 503{b){l ) of this tit le as a n administrative 
expense. 

(b) The court, a fter notice and a hea ring, may 
authorize the t rustee to obtain unsecured credit 
or to incur unsecured debt other than under sub­
section (a) of this section, a llowa ble under sec­
tion 503(b )(1) of this ti tie as an administrative 
expense. 

(c) If t he trustee is unable to obtain unsecured 
credit a llowable 1mder section 503(b)(l) of this 
title as an administrative expense, the court, 
a fter notice and a hearing, may authorize the 
obtaining of credit or the incurring of debt--

(1) with priori ty over any or all administra­
tive expenses of the kind specified in section 
503(b) or 507(b) of this title; 

(2) secured by a lien on property of the es­
tate t hat is no t otherwise subject to a lien; 01· 

(3) secured by a junior lien on property of 
the esta t e that is subject to a lien. 

(d)(l ) The court. after not ice and a hearing, 
may authorize the obtaining of credit or the in­
curring of debt secured by a senior or equal lien 
on property of the estate that is subject to a lien 
only lf-

(A) t he trustee ls unable to obtain such cred­
it otherwise; and 

(B) there is adequa t e protection of the inter­
est of the holder of the lien on the property of 
the estate on which such senior or equal lien 
ls proposed to be granted. 

(2) In any hearing under this subsection, t he 
t rustee has t he burden of proof on the issue of 
adequa t e protection. 

(e) The reversal or modification on appeal of 
an authorization under this section to obtain 
credit or incw· debt, or of a grant under this sec­
tion of a priority or a lien. does not affect the 
validity of any debt so incurred, or any priority 
or lien so gran ted. to an entity that extended 
such credit in good faith, whether or not such 
en tity knew of the pendency of t he appeal, un­
less such authorization and the incurring of 
such debt, or the granting of such priority or 
lien, were stayed pending appeal. 

(f) Except with respect to an entity that is an 
underwriter as defined in section 1145(b) of this 
t itle, section 5 of the Securities Act of 1933, the 
Trust Indenture Act of 1939, and any State or 
local la w requiring r egistration for offer or sale 
of a security or registration or licensing of an 
issuer of, underwriter of, or broker or dealer in, 
a security does not apply to the offer or sale 
under this section of a security that is not an 
equity security. 

(Pub. L. 95-598. Nov. 6, 1978, 92 Stat. 2574; Pub. L. 
99-554, title II, §257(1). Oct. 27, 1986, 100 Sta t. 3115: 
Pub. L. 103-394, title V, §501(d)(9), Oct. 22, 1994, 
108 Stat. 4144.) 

H ISTORICAL AND REVISION NOTES 

LEGISLA'rlVE STATEMENTS 

Section 364(f) of th e H ouse amendmen t Is new. Tbls 
provi si on continues the exemption foun d In section 
3(a)(7) of t he Securl ties Act of 1933 (15 U .S.C. 77c(a)(7)] 
for certificates or Indebtedness Issued by a t rnstee In 
bankrnptcy. The exemption applies to any debt secu­
rity Issu ed under section 364 of t i tle 11. 'rite section 
does not Intend to change presen t law which exempts 
such secm·tttes from the Trust Indenture A ct, 15 U.S.C. 
77aaa, et seq. (1976). 

SENATE REPORT NO. 9;,-989 

T his section I s derived from provisions In current l aw 
governing cer t ificates or indebtedness. but Is much 
broader. I t governs all obtaining o f c redit and Incurring 
of debt by the estate. 

Subsection (al au thorlzes the obtaining of unsecured 
cr edit and t he Incurring of unsecured debt In t he or cll -

363( H) PLUS THIS FORCED AUCTION RENDERED ME HOMELESS WITHOUT ANY I NCOME, STRAIGHT FROM A BEAUTIFUL 

HOME WITH PROVISION PAID DY MY TENANTS. THIS DEPRIVED ME O F MY PROPERTY I NTEREST IN MY ONLY STREAM OF 

INCOME, MY PROPERTY I NTEREST IN MY SHELTER, MY PROVISION, AND THE WHOLE OF MY PREMARITAL 

RETIREMENT SAVINGS , WITHOUT ONE PENNY TO MY DENEFIT, OR NOTICE DY WHICH I COULD SAVE MY PROPERTY 

INTEREST, OR AT LEAST TRY TO M ITIGATE MY LOSSES IN MY PROPERTY INTERESTS! WHILE THE BANKRUPTCY WAS 

FILED MONTHS DEFORE T H E DIVORCE, GI V ING CIRCUIT COURT JURISDICTION! CR I ME DETWEEN COURTS & COUNSEL! 
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Editorial Notes 

AMENDMENTS 

2010-Subsec. (b). Pub. L. 111-327 substituted "Sch ed­
ules. and Statement of Financial Affairs. and In some 
cases a Statement of Intention." for "Schedules and 
Statement of Financial Affa i rs. as well as in some 
cases a Statement of Intention" in t hird sentence of 
fourth uncleslgnated par. 

Statutory Notes and Related Subsidiaries 

E F'FECTIVE DATE 

Section effective 180 days after Apr. 20. 2005. and not 
applicable with r espect to cases commenced under t his 
title before such effective elate. except as otherwise 
provided. see secti on 1501 of Pub. L. 109-8. set out as an 
Effective Date of 2005 Amendment note under section 
101 of t his ti t i e. 

§ 528. Requirements for debt relief agencies 

(a) A debt relief agency shall-
(1) not later than 5 business days after the 

first date on which such agency provides any 
bankruptcy assistance services to an assisted 
person, but prior to such assisted person's pe­
tition under this title being filed, execute a 
written contract with such assisted person 
that explains clearly and conspicuously-

(A) the services such agency will provide 
to such assisted person; and 

(B) the fees or charges for such services, 
and the terms of payment; 

(2) provide the assisted person with a copy of 
the fully executed and completed contract; 

(3) clearly and conspicuously disclose in any 
advertisemen t of bankruptcy assistance serv­
ices or of the benefits of bankruptcy directed 
to the general public (whether in general 
media, seminars or specific mailings, tele­
phonic or electronic messages. or otherwise) 
that the services or benefits are with r espect 
to bankruptcy relief under this title; and 

(4) clearly and conspicuously use the fol­
lowing statement in such advert isement: "We 
are a debt r elief agency. We help people file for 
bankruptcy relief under the Bankruptcy 
Code. " or a substantially similar statement. 

(b)(l ) An advertisement of bankruptcy assist-
ance services or of the benefits of bankruptcy di­
rected to the general public includes-

(A) descriptions of bankruptcy assistance in 
connection with a chapter 13 plan whether or 
not chapter 13 is specifically mentioned in 
such advertisement; and 

(B) statements such as " federally supervised 
repayment plan" or " Federal debt restruc­
turing help" or other similar statements that 
could lead a reasonable consumer to believe 
that debt counseling was being offered when in 
fact t he services were dir ected to providing 
bankruptcy assistance with a chapter 13 plan 
or other form of banlffuptcy relief under this 
title. 

(2) An advertisement, directed to the general 
public , indicating that the debt relief agency 
provides assistance with r espect to credit de­
fau lts, mortgage foreclosures, evic tion pro­
ceedings, excessive debt, debt collection pres­
sure, or inability to pay any consumer debt 
shall-

(A) disclose clearly and conspicuously in 
such advertisement that the assistance may 
involve bankruptcy relief under this title; and 

(B) include the following statement: "We are 
a debt relief agency. We help people file for 
bankruptcy relief under the Bankruptcy 
Code." or a substantia lly simila1· sta tement. 

(Added Pub. L. 109-8, title II, §229(a), Apr. 20, 
2005, 119 Stat. 71.) 

Statutory Notes and Related Subs idiaries 

E~'F'ECTIV E D ATE 

Section effective 180 clays after Ap1·. 20, 2005, and not 
applicable with respect to cases commenced under t his 
t i t l e before such effective date, except as otherwise 
provided, see section 1501 of Pub. L. 109-8. set out as an 
Effective Date of 2005 Amendment note under section 
101 of t his title. 

SUBCHAPTER III- THE ESTATE 

§541. Property of the estate 

(a) The commencement of a case under section 
301, 302, or 303 of this t i t le creates an estate. 
Such estate is comprised of a ll the following 
property, wherever located and by whomever 
held: 

(1) Except as providecl in subsections (_b) and 
(c)(2) of this section, all legal or equitable in­
terests of the de6tor in proper ty as of the com­
mencement of the case. 

(2) All interests of the debtor and the debt­
or's spouse in communi ty property as of the 
commencement of the case that is-

(A) under the sole, equa l, or joint manage­
ment and control of the debtor; or 

(B) liable for an allowable claim against 
the debtor, or for both an a llowable claim 
against the debtor and an allowable claim 
against the debtor's spouse, to the extent 
that such interest is so liable. 
(3) An y interest in property that the trustee 

recovers under section 329(b), 363(n), 543, 550, 
553, or 723 of this title. 

(4) Any interest in property preserved for the 
benefit of or ordered transferred to the estate 
under section 510(c) or 551 of this title. 

(5) Any interest in property that would have 
been property of the estate if such interest had 
been an interest of the debtor on the date of 
the filing of the petition, and t hat the debtor 
acquires or becomes entitlea to acquire within 
180 days after such date-

(A) by bequest, devise, or inheritance; 
(B) as a result of a proper ty settlemen t 

agreement with the debtor's spouse, or of an 
interlocu tory or final divorce decree; or 

(C) as a beneficiary of a life insurance pol­
icy or of a death benefit plan. 
(6) Proceeds, product, offspring, rents, or 

profits of or from property of the estate, ex­
cept such as are earnings from services per­
formed by an individual debtor after the com­
mencement of the case. 

(7) Any interest in property that the estate 
acquires after the commencement of the case. 
(b) Property of the estate does not include-

(!) any power that tbe debtor may exercise 
solely for the benefit of an enti ty other than 
the debtor; 
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(2) any interest of the debtor as a lessee 
under a lease of nonresidential real property 
that has terminated at the expiration of the 
stated term of such lease before the com­
mencement of the case under this title, and 
ceases to include any interest of the debtor as 
a lessee under a lease of nonresidential real 
property that has terminated at the expiration 
of the stated term of such lease during the 
case; 

(3) any eligibility of the debtor to partici­
pate in programs authorized under the Higher 
Education Act of 1966 (20 U .S.C. 1001 et seq.; 42 
U.S.C. 2751 et seq.),1 or any accreditation sta­
tus or State licensure of the debtor as an edu­
cational institution; 

(4) any interest of the debtor in liquid or 
gaseous hydrocarbons to the extent that---

(A)(i) the debtor has transferred or has 
agreed to transfer such interest pursuant to 
a farmout agreement or any written agree­
ment directly related to a farmout agree­
ment; and 

(ii) but for the operation of this paragraph, 
the estate could include the interest referred 
to in clause (i) only by virtue of section 366 
or 544(a)(3) of this title; or 

{B)(i) the debtor has transferred such in­
terest pursuant to a written conveyance of a 
production payment to an entity that does 
not participate in the operation of the prop­
erty from which such production payment is 
transferred; and 

(ii) but for the operation of this paragraph, 
the estate could include the interest referred 
to in clause (i) only by virtue of section 366 
or 542 of this title; 
(5) funds placed in an education individual 

retirement account (as defined in section 
530(b)(l) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986) 
not later than 365 days before the date of the 
filing of the petition in a case under this title, 
but-

(A) only if the designated beneficiary of 
such account was a child, stepchild, grand­
child, or stepgrandchild of the debtor for the 
taxable year for which funds were placed in 
such account; 

(B) only to the extent that such funds-
(i) are not pledged or promised to any 

entity in connection with any extension of 
credit; and 

(ii) are not excess contributions {as de­
scribed in section 4973(e) of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986); and 
(C) in the case of funds placed in all such 

accounts having the same designated bene­
ficiary not earlier than 720 days nor later 
than 366 days before such date, only so much 
of such funds as does not exceed $5,000; 2 

(6) funds used to purchase a tuition credit or 
certificate or contributed to an account in ac­
cordance with section 529(b)(l)(A) of the Inter­
nal Revenue Code of 1986 under a qualified 
State tuition program (as defined in section 
529(b)(l) of such Code) not later than 365 days 
before the date of the filing of the petition in 
a case under this title, but-

1 See References in Text note below. 
2 See Adjustment or Dollar Amounts notes below. 

(A) only if the designated beneficiary of 
the amounts paid or contributed to such tui­
tion program was a child, stepchild, grand­
child, or stepgrandchild of the debtor for the 
taxable year for which funds were paid or 
contributed; 

(B) with respect to the aggregate amount 
paid or contributed to such program having 
the same designated beneficiary, only so 
much of such amount as does not exceed the 
total contributions permitted under section 
529(b)(6) of such Code with respect to such 
beneficiary, as adjusted beginning on the 
date of the filing of the petition in a case 
under this title by the annual increase or de­
crease (rounded to the nearest tenth of 1 per­
cent) in the education expenditure category 
of the Consumer Price Index prepared by the 
Department of Labor; and 

(C) in the case of funds paid or contributed 
to such program having the same designated 
beneficiary not earlier than 720 days nor 
later than 366 days before such date, only so 
much of such funds as does not exceed 
$5,000; 2 

(7) any amount-
(A) withheld by an employer from the 

wages of employees for payment as contribu­
tions-

(i) to-
(1) an employee benefit plan that is 

subject to title I of the Employee Retire­
ment Income Security Act of 1974 or 
under an employee benefit plan which is 
a governmental plan under section 414(d) 
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986; 

(II) a deferred compensation plan 
under section 457 of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986; or 

(ill) a tax-deferred annuity under sec­
tion 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code 
of 1986; 

except that such amount under this sub­
paragraph shall not constitute disposable 
income as defined in section 1325(b)(2); or 

(ii) to a health insurance plan regulated 
by State law whether or not subject to 
such title; or 
{B) received by an employer from employ­

ees for payment as contributions-
(i) to-

(1) an employee benefit plan that is 
subject to title I of the Employee Retire­
ment Income Security Act of 1974 or 
under an employee benefit plan which is 
a governmental plan under section 414(d) 
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986; 

(II) a deferred compensation plan 
under section 457 of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986; or 

(ill) a tax-deferred annuity under sec­
tion 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code 
of 1986; 

except that such amount under this sub­
paragraph shall not constitute disposable 
income, as defined in section 1325(b)(2); or 

(ii) to a health insurance plan regulated 
by State law whether or not subject to 
such title; 
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(8) subject to subchapter III of chapter 5, any 
interest of the debtor in property where the 
debtor pledged or sold tangible personal prop­
erty (other t han securities or written or print­
ed evidences of indebtedness or title) as collat­
eral for a loan or advance of money given by 
a person licensed under law to make such 
loans or advances, where-

(A) the tangible personal property is in the 
possession of the pledgee or transferee; 

(B) the debtor has no obligation to repay 
the money, redeem the collateral, or buy 
back the property at a stipulated price; and 

(C) neither the debtor nor the trustee have 
exercised any right to redeem !Provided 
under the contract or State law, in a timely 
manner as provided under State law and sec­
tion 108(b); 

(9) any interest in cash or cash equivalents 
that constitute proceeds of a sale by the debt­
or of a money order that is made-

(A) on or a fter the date that is 14 days 
prior to the date on which the petition is 
filed; and 

(B) under an agr eement with a money 
order issuer that prohibits the commingling 
of such proceeds with property of the debtor 
(notwithstanding that, contrary to the 
agreement, t he proceeds may have been 
commingled with property of the debtor), 

unless the money order issuer had not taken 
act ion, prior to the filing of the peti t ion, to 
require compliance with the prohibition; 

(10) funds placed in an account of a qualified 
ABLE progr am (as defined in section 529A(b) 
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986) not later 
than 365 days before the date of the filing of 
t he petition in a case under this title, but-

(A) only if the designated beneficia ry of 
such account was a child, stepchild, grand­
child. or stepgrandchild of th e debtor for the 
taxable year for which funds were placed in 
such account: 

(B) only to the extent that such funds-
(i) are not pledged or promised to any 

entity in connection with any extension of 
credi t; and 

(ii ) are not excess contributions (as de­
scribed in section 4973(h) of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986); and 

(C) in t he case of funds placed in all such 
accounts having the same designated bene­
ficiary not earlier than 720 days nor later 
than 365 days before such date, only so much 
of such funds as does not exceed $6,225; 2 or 

(11) recovery rebates made under section 6428 
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. 

Paragraph (4) shall not be construed to exclude 
from the estate any consideration the debtor re­
tains, receives, or is enti t led to receive for 
transferring an interest in liquid or gaseous hy­
drocarbons pm·suant to a farmout agr eement. 

(c)(l) Except as provided in paragraph (2) of 
this subsection, an interest of the debtor in 
property becomes property of the estate under 
subsection (a)(l), (a )(2), or (a)(5) of this section 
notwithstanding a ny provision in an agreement, 
transfer instrument, or applicable nonbank­
ruptcy law-

(A) that restricts or conditions transfer of 
such interest by the debtor; or 

(B) t hat is conditioned on the insolvency or 
financial condition of the debtor, on the com­
m encem ent of a case under t his title, or on the 
appointment of or taking possession by a 
trustee in a case under this title or a custo­
dian before such commencement, and that ef­
fects or gives an option to effect a forfeiture, 
modification, or termination of the debtor's 
interest in property. 

(2) A restriction on the transfer of a ben eficia l 
interest of the debtor in a trust that is enforce­
able under applicable nonbankruptcy la w is en­
forceable in a case under this title. 

(d) Property in which the debtor holds, as of 
the commencement of the case, only legal title 
and not an equitable interest, such as a mort­
gage secured by real property, or an interest in 
such a mortgage, sold by the debtor but as to 
which the debtor retains legal title to service or 
supervise the servicing of such m ortgage or in­
terest, becomes property of the estate under 
subsection (aJ(l) or (2) of this section only to the 
extent of the debtor's legal t i t le to such prop­
erty, but not to the extent of any equitable in­
terest in such property that the debtor cloes not 
hold. 

(e) In determining whether any of the rela­
tionships specified in paragraph (5)(A) or (6)(A) 
of subsection (b) exists, a legally adopted child 
of an individual (and a child who is a member of 
an individua l 's household, if placed with such in­
dividual by an authorized placement agency for 
legal adoption by such individual), or a foster 
child of an individua l (if such child has as the 
child's principal place of abode the home of the 
debtor and is a member of t he debtor 's house­
hold) sha ll be t reated as a child of such indi­
vidual by blood. 

(f) Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
t i t le, property that is held by a debtor that is a 
corporation described in section 501(c)(3) of the 
Interna l Revenue Code of 1986 and exempt from 
tax under section 501(a) of such Code may be 
transferred to an entity t hat is no t such a cor­
poration, but only under the same conditions as 
would apply if the debtor had not filed a case 
under this title. 

(Pub. L. 95-598, Nov. 6, 1978, 92 Stat. 2594; Pub. L. 
98-353, title III, §§363(a), 456, July 10, 1984, 98 
Stat. 363, 376; Pub. L. 101- 508, title III, 
§3007(a)(2), Nov. 5, 1990, 104 Stat. 1388-28; Pub. L. 
102-486, title XXX, §3017(b), Oct. 24, 1992, 106 
Stat. 3130; Pub. L. 103-394, t i t le Il, §§208(b), 223, 
Oct. 22, 1994, 108 Stat. 4124, 4129; Pub. L. 109--8, 
title II, §225(a), t i t le III, §323, title XII, §§ 1212, 
1221(c), 1230, Apr. 20, 2005, 119 Stat. 65, 97, 194, 196, 
201; Pub. L. 111-327, §2(a)(22), Dec. 22, 2010, 124 
Stat. 3560; Pub. L. 113-295, div. B, t i t le I , § 104(a), 
Dec. 19, 2014, 128 Stat. 4063; Pub. L. 116-260, div. 
FF, title X, §lO0l(a), Dec. 27, 2020, 134 Stat. 3216.) 

AMENDMENT OF SUBSECTION (b) 

Pub. L. 116-260, div . FF, title X, §100l(a)(2), 
Dec. 27, 2020, 134 Stal. 3216, provided that, ef­
fective on the date that is 1 year after Dec. 27, 
2020, subsection (b) of this section is amended: 

(1) in paragraph (9), in the matter follow ing 
subparagraph (B), by adding "or" al the end; 
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(2) in paragraph (JO)(C), by striking "; or" 
and inserting a period; and 

(3) by striking paragraph (11). 

See 2020 Amendment note below. 

HIST ORICAL AND REVISION NOTES 

LEG ISLATIVE S'l'A'l'EMEN'l'S 

Section 541(a)(7) Is new. The provis ion clarifies t ha t 
any Interest in property that the estate acquires after 
the commencement of t he case is proper ty of t he es­
tate: for example. if the estate enters Into a contract. 
afte1· the commencement of t he case. such a contract 
would be property of the estate. The addltlon of t his 
provision by the House amendment merely clarifies 
that section 541(a) Is an a ll-embracing definition which 
includes charges on property. such as liens helc\ by t he 
debtor on property of a third party, or beneficial rights 
and interests that the debtor may have In property of 
another. However. only the debtor's interest in such 
property becomes property of the estate. If t he debtor 
holds ban legal title or holds property In t rus t for an­
other, only those righ ts whicb t he debtor would have 
otherwise ha d emanating from such Interes t pass to the 
estate uncler section 541. Ne! t her t his section nor sec­
tion 545 will a ffect various statutory provisions t hat 
g ive a creditor a lien that Is valid both inside and out­
side bankruptcy agai nst a bona fide purchaser of prop­
er ty from the debtor. or t hat creates a t rust fund for 
the benefit of creditors meeting s imilar cri teria. See 
Packers ancl Stockyards Act §206, 7 U.S.C. 196 (1976). 

Section 541(c)(2) follows t he position taken in the 
House bill a ncl rejects t he posl tlon taken In t he Senate 
amendment with respect to Income limi tations on a 
spend-thr ift trust. 

Section 541(d) of the House amendment Is clerlvec\ 
from section 541(e) of the Senate amendment ancl reit­
erates the general principle that where the debtor holds 
bare legal title without a ny equita ble interest, that the 
estate acquires bare legal title without a ny equi table 
Interest In t he property. The purpose of section 541(d) 
as applied to t he secondary mortgage ma rket is Iden­
tical to the purpose of section 54l(e) of t he Senate 
amendment and section 541(d ) will accomplish t he same 
result as would have been accomplished by section 
541(e). Even If a mortgage seller retains for purposes of 
servicing legal ti tle to mor tgages or Interests In mor t­
gages sole\ In t he secondary mortgage market. the 
trustee woulc\ be required by section 54l(d) to tum over 
the mor tgages or interests in mor tgages to the pur­
chaser of those mor tgages. 

The seller of mortgages in the secondary mor tgage 
market will often retain the original mortgage notes 
and related documents a ncl t he seller will not endorse 
the notes to reflect t he sale to t he purchaser. Simi­
larly. the purchaser will often not record t be pur­
cbaser·s ownership of t be mortgages or Interests In 
mortgages under State recording statutes. These facts 
are Irrelevant and the seller's retention of t he mort­
gage documents a nd the purchaser 's decision not to 
record c\o not cha nge the t rustee's obligation to tum 
the mortgages or Interests In mortgages over to t he 
purchaser. The application of section 541(c\) to sec­
ondary mortgage ma rket transactions will not be af­
fected by the terms of t he servicing agreement between 
the mortgage servicer and the purchaser of t he mor t­
gages. Under section 541(cl). t he trustee is required to 
recognize t he purchaser·s ti tie to the mortgages or In­
terests In mortgages ancl to turn this property over to 
the purchaser. I t makes no difference whether the serv­
icer and the purchase1· chat·acterize t heir relationship 
as one of trust. agency. or Independent contractor. 

The purpose of section 541(d) as applied to the sec­
ondary mortgage market Is therefore to make certain 
that secondary mortgage ma rket sales as they are cur­
rently structured are not subject to challenge by ba nk­
ruptcy trustees a nc\ that purchasers of mortgages will 
be able to obtain t he mortgages or interests in mort­
gages which they have purchased from trustees without 

t he trustees asserti ng that a sale of mor tgages is a loan 
from the purchaser to t he seller. 

Thus. as section 541(a)(l ) clearly states. the estate Is 
compr ised of all legal or equitable Interests of t he debt­
or in property as of the commencement of t he case. To 
the extent such an interest Is limited In the hands of 
t he debtor. It Is equally limited In the hands of t he es­
tate except to the extent that defenses which a re per­
sonal against the debtor are not effective against the 
estate. 

Property of the estate: The Senate amendmen t pro­
vided that property of the estate does not lncluc\e 
amounts helc\ by the debtor as trustee and any taxes 
witW1eld or collected from others before the com­
mencement of t he case. The House amendment removes 
these two provisions. As to proper ty held by the debtor 
as a t rustee, the House amendment provides that prop­
er ty o( t he estate w!Jl include what eve1· interest t he 
debto1· h eld In t he property at t he commencement of 
the case. Thus. where t he debtor held only l egaJ t i tie to 
the property ancl t he beneficial Interest In that prop­
erty belongs to another, such as exists in the case of 
proper ty held i.n t rust. the pi:operty of the estate In­
cludes the legal t itle. but not the beneficial Interest In 
the proper ty. 

As to withheld taxes. t he House amendment deletes 
the rule In the Sena te bill as unnecessary s ince prop­
er ty of the estate does not include the beneficial Inter­
est in proper ty helc\ by the debtor as a trustee. Under 
t he Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (section 7501) (26 
U.S.C. 7501), the amounts of withheld taxes are held to 
be a special rune\ In trust for t he United States. Where 
t he Internal Revenue Service can demonstrate tha t the 
amounts of taxes withheld are still In the possession of 
the debtor at the commencement of the case. then If a 
trust Is created. t hose a mounts are not property of the 
estate. Compare In re Slwkesteers Coffee Shops. 546 F.2d 
821 (9th Cir. 1976) with I n re Glynn Wholesale Building 
Materials, I nc. (S.D. Ga. 1978) anc\ In re Progress Tech Col­
leges, Inc .. 42 Aft r 2d 78-5573 (S.D. Ohio 1977). 

\Vhere it is not possible for the Internal Revenue 
Service to demonstrate that the a mounts of taxes with­
held a re still In the possession of the debtor at the com­
mencement of the case. present law generally lncluc\es 
amounts of withheld taxes as property of the estate. 
See. e.g., United States v. Randall. 401 U.S. 513 (1973) (91 
S. Ct. 991, 28 L.Ed.2c\ 273) and In re Tamaslw Town and 
Country Club. 483 F .2c\ 1377 (9th Cir. 1973). Nonetheless, 
a serious problem exists where "trust func\ taxes·• with­
held from others at·e held to be property of the estate 
where the withheld a mounts a re commingled with 
othet· assets of the debtor . The courts sboulc\ permit 
the use of reasonable assumptions under which the In­
ternal Revenue Service, and other tax authorities. can 
demonstrate that amounts of withheld taxes are still In 
the possession of t he debtor at the commencement of 
the case. Fot· example. where t he debtor had commin­
gled that amount of withheld taxes In h is general 
checking account. it might be r easonable to assume 
that any 1·ema lning amounts in that account on the 
commencement of the case are the wlthhelc\ taxes. In 
acldltlon, Congress may conslc\er future a mendments to 
t he Internal Revenue Code [t itle 26) ma king clear that 
amounts of wi thheld taxes are held by the clebto1· In a 
trust rela tionship and, consequently, t hat such 
amounts are not proper ty of t he estate. 

SENATE REPORT NO. 9&-989 

This section defines property of the estate. ancl speci­
fies what property becomes property of t he estate. The 
commencement of a bankruptcy case creates an estate. 
Under paragraph (1) of subsection (a). the estate Is com­
prlsec\ of a ll legal or equitable interest of the debtor In 
proper ty. wherever located, as of t he commencement of 
the case. The scope of t his pa ragraph is broad. It In­
cludes all kinds of proper ty, Including tangible or in­
ta,nglble property, causes of action (see Bankruptcy Act 
§ 70a(6) [section 110(a)(6) of former title 11)). anti all 
other forms of property cu1-rently specified in section 
70a of the Bankruptcy Act §70a [section ll0(a) of former 
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title 11). as well as property recovered by the trustee 
under section 542 of proposed title 11, If t he property re­
covered was merely out of the possession of the debtor. 
yet remained " proper ty of t he debtor.' ' The debtor's in­
terest In property a lso Includes "tit le" to property. 
which is an interest, just as are a possessory interest. 
or lease-hold interest. for example. The result of Segal 
v. Rochelle. 382 U.S. 375 (1966). is followed. and the right 
to a refund is property of t he estate. 

Though this paragraph will include choses In action 
and claims by the debtor against others. It is not in­
tended to expand the debtor's righ ts against othe1·s 
more than they exist at the commencement of the case. 
Fot example. If the debto • has a claim that Is bari:ed at 
the time of t he commencement of t he case by the stat­
ute of limitations, then the trustee would not be able 
to pursue that claim. because he too would be barrecl. 
He could take no greater righ ts tha n the debtor himself 
liacl. But see proposed 11 U.S.C. 108. which would permit 
the trustee a tolling of the s tatute of limitations If It 
had not run before the elate of the filing of the petition. 

Pa ragraph (1) has the effect of overruling Lockwood v. 
Excha11ge Bank. 190 U.S. 294 (1903). because It Includes 
as proper ty of t he estate all proper ty of t he debtor. 
even that needed for a fresh start. After the prope1·ty 
comes Into the estate. t hen the debtor Is permitted to 
exempt it under proposed 11 U.S.C. 522. and the court 
will have jurisdiction to determine what property may 
be exempted and what remains as property of the es­
tate. 'rhe broad jur isdictiona l grant In proposed 28 
U.S.C. 1334 would have the effect of overruling 
Lockwood independent ly of the change made by this 
provision. 

Paragraph (1) also has t he effect of overruling Lines 
v. Freclerick, 400 U.S. 18 (1970). 

SI t uatlons occasionally arise where proper ty osten­
sibly belonging to the debtor will actually not be prop­
erty of t he debtor. but will be held In t rust for another. 
For example . If the debtor has incurred medical bills 
t hat were covered by Insurance. and the Insurance com­
pany had sent the payment of the bills to the debtor be­
fore the debtor had pa id t he bill for which the payment 
was reimbursement. the payment would actually be 
held In a constructive trnst for the person to whom the 
bill was owed. This section a nd proposed 11 U.S.C. 545 
also will not affect various statutory provis ions that 
give a creditor of t he debtor a lien that Is valid outside 
as well as Inside bankruptcy. or that creates a trust 
fund for the benefit of a creditor of t he debtor. See 
Packers and Stockyards Act §206. 7 U.S.C. 196. 

Bankruptcy Act §8 [section 26 of former title 11) has 
been deleted as unnecessary. Once t he estate ls created. 
no Interests In property of t he estate rema in in t he 
debtor. Consequent ly. If the debtor dies during the 
case. only property exempted from proper ty of the es­
tate or acquired by the debtor after t he commencement 
of the case and not Included as property of t he estate 
will be available to the representative of the debtor's 
probate estate. The bankruptcy proceeding will con­
t inue In rem with respect to property of the state. and 
the discharge will apply in personam to relieve t he 
debtor, and thus his probate representative. of liability 
for dlschargeable debts. 

The estate also Includes the Interests of t11e debtor 
and the debtor's spouse In community property, subject 
to certain limitations; property that the trustee recov­
ers under the avoiding powe-1:s; property that the debtor 
acquires by bequest. devise. inheritance. a proper ty set­
t lement agreement with t he debtoi:·s spouse, or as t he 
beneficiary of a life insurance policy within 180 days 
after the petition: a nd proceeds, product. offspring. 
rents. and profits of or from proper ty o( t he estate, ex­
cept such as are earning Crom services perfor med by an 
Individual debtor after the commencement of the case. 
Proceeds here Is not used In a confining sense, as de­
fined In t he Unlfonn Commercial Code. but Is Intended 
to be a btoacl term to encompass all proceeds of prop­
erty of the estate. Tile conversion in Corm o( property 
of the estate does not change its character as property 
of the estate. 

Subsection (b) excludes from property of t he estate 
any power. such as a power of appointment, that the 
debtor may exercise solely for the benefit of an entity 
other t ha n the debtor. This changes present law which 
excludes powers solely benefiting other persons but not 
other entities. 

Subsection (c) Invalidates restrictions on the transfer 
of property of the debtor, In order t hat a ll of the Inter­
ests of t he debtor in property will become property of 
the estate. The provisions Invalidated are those that 
restr ict or coiillltlon transfer of the debtor 's Interest. 
a nd those t hat a re conditioned on the Insolvency or fi ­
nancial condi tion of tlieclebtor, on the commencement 
of a bankruptcy case, or on the a ppclntment of a custo­
dian o( the debtor 's proper ty. Pa ragraph (2) of sub­
section (c), however, preserves restrictions on a tra ns­
fer of a spendthrift t rust that t he restriction Is enforce­
able nonbankruptcy la w to the exten t of the Income 
reasonably necessary for the support of a debtor and 
his dependents. 

Subsection (cl) [enacted as (e)J. derived from section 
70c of t he Bankruptcy Act [section ll0(c) of former t itle 
11). gives the estate t he benefit of all defenses available 
to the debtor as against an entity other than the es­
tate, Including such defenses as statu tes of limitations, 
statutes of frauds, usury, and other personal defenses. 
and ma kes waiver by the debtor after the commence­
ment of the case Ineffective to bind the estate. 

Section 541(e) [enacted as (cl)) confirms the ClllTent 
status under the Bankruptcy Act [former title 11) o f 
bona fide secondary mortgage market transactions as 
the purchase and sale of assets. Mortgages or Interests 
in mortgages sole\ in the seconda ry market should not 
be considered as pa rt of t he debtor's estate. To permit 
the efficient servicing of mortgages or interests In 
mortgages the seller often retains the original mort­
gage notes and rela ted documents. and the purchaser 
records under State recording statutes the purchaser's 
ownership of the mortgages or Interests In mortgages 
purchased. Section 541(e) ma kes clear tha t the seller's 
1·etention of the mortgage documents and the pur­
chaser 's decis ion not to record do not Impair the asset 
sale character of seconda1·y mortgage ma1·ket trans­
actions. The committee notes that In secondary mort­
gage market transactions the part ies may characterize 
their relationship as one of trust, agency. or Inde­
pendent contractor. The characterization adopted by 
the parties should not affect the statutes in bank­
ruptcy on bona fide secondary mortgage market pu1·­
chases and sales. 

Editorial Notes 

REF'ERENCES IN TEXT 

The Higher Education Act of 1965. referred to In sub­
sec. (b)(3), Is Pub. L. 89-329, Nov. 8, 1965, 79 Stat. 1219. 
which Is classified genera lly to chapter 28 (§ 1001 et seq. ) 
of Tit le 20, Education. Part C of title IV of the Act was 
formerly classified to part C (§ 2751 et seq. ) of sub­
chapter I of chapter 34 of Title 12. The Public Health 
a nd Welfare, prior to transfer to part C (§ 1087-51 et 
seq.) of subchapter IV of chapter 28 of Title 20. For 
complete c lassification of t his Act to t he Code, see 
Shor t Title note set out under section 1001 of Tit le 20 
and Tables. 

The Internal Revenue Code of 1986. referred to In sub­
secs. (b)(5) to (7). (10). (ll) and ( 0. Is classified genera lly 
to Title 26, In ternal Revenue Code. 

The Employee Retirement Income Secu1·lty Act of 
1974, referred to in subsec. (b)(7)(A)(l)(l), (B)(l)(l), Is 
P ub. L. 93-406, Sept. 2, 1974, 88 S tat. 829, as amended. 
Title I of the Act Is classified generally to subchapter 
I (§1001 et seq.) of chapter 18 of Title 29, Labor. For 
complete classification of t his Act to t he Code. see 
Short Tit le note set out under section 1001 of Tit le 29 
and Tables. 

AMENDMENTS 

2020-Subsec. (b)(ll). Pub. L. 116-260, § 1001(a)(2). 
struck out par . (11) which read as follows: " recovery re-
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bates mac\e under section 6428 of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986." . 

Pub. L. 116-260. § lOOl(a)(l). added par. (11). 
2014-Subsec. (b)(IO). Pub. L. 113-295 added par. (10). 
2010-Subsec. (b)(6)(B). Pub. L. 111-327 substituted 

"section 529(b)(6)" for "section 529(b)(7)". 
2005-Subsec. (b)(4). Pub. L. 109--8, § 225(a)(l)(A). strnck 

out "or'' at end. 
Subsec. (b)(4)(B)(li). Pub. L. 109---8. § 1212, inserted ''365 

or' ' before "542". 
Subsec. (b)(5). (6). Pub. L. 109--8, § 225(a)(l)(C), added 

pars. (5) and (6). Former par. (5) redesignated (9). 
Subsec. (b )(7). Pub. L. 109---8, §323, added par. (7). 
Subsec. (b)(8). Pub. L. 109---8, § 1230. added par. (8). 
Subsec. (b)(9). Pub. L. 109--8, § 225(a)(l)(B). redesig-

natecl par. (5) as (9). 
Subsec. (e). Pub. L. 109--8. § 225(a)(2), added subsec. (e). 
Subsec. (f). Pub. L. 109---8, §1221(c), added subsec. (f). 
1994-Subsec . (b)(4). Pub. L. 103- 394, §208(b), cles-

lgnatecl existing provisions of subpar. (A) as cl. (l) of 
subpar. (A), redesignatecl subpar. (B) as cl. (ii) of sub­
par. (A), substituted "the interest referred to in c lause 
(i)'' for ''such interest". substituted "; or" for period at 
encl of cl. (ii). and added subpa1·. (B). 

Pub. L. 103-394, §223(2), which directed t he a mend­
ment of subsec. (b)(4) by striking out period at encl and 
inserting "; or•·. was executed by inserting "or" after 
semicolon at encl of subsec. (b)(4)(B)(il), as aclclecl by 
Pub. L. 103-394, § 208(b)(3), to r eflect the probable intent 
of Congress. 

Subsec. (b)(5). Pub. L. 103-394, §223. added par. (5). 
1992-Subsec. (b). Pub. L. 102-486 added par. (4) and 

c losing provisions. 
1990-Subsec. (b)(3). Pub. L. 101- 508 added par. (3). 
1984-Subsec. (a). Pub. L. 98---353, §456(a)(l ), (2). struck 

out "under" after "under" and inserted "and by whom­
ever held" after "located". 

Subsec. (a)(3). Pub. L. 98-353. § 456(a)(3). inserted 
"329(b), 363(n). , •. 

Subsec. (a)(5). Pub. L. 98---353, §456(a)(4), s ubstituted 
'·Any'' for ''An" . 

Subsec. (a)(6). Pub. L. 98---353, § 456(a)(5), substituted 
"or profits" for " and profits" . 

Subsec. (b). Pub. L. 98---353. §363(a), amended subsec. 
(b) generally. Prior to amendment, subsec. (b) read as 
follows : "Property of the estate does not include a ny 
power that the debtor may only exerc ise solely for the 
benefit of an entity other tha n t he debtor." 

Subsec. (c)(l). Pub. L. 98---353, §456(b)(l). inserted " in 
an agreement, transfer, instrument, or applicable non­
bankruptcy law•·. 

Subsec. (cJ(l)(B). Pub. L. 98-353, §456(b)(2), substituted 
"taking" for "the taking", and inserted "before such 
commencement " after "custodian". 

Subsec. (d). Pub. L . 98- 353, §456(c), inserted "OJ or 
(2)" after "(a)' '. 

Subsec. (e). Pub. L. 98---353. §456(d), struck out subsec. 
(e) which read as follows: "The estate shall have the 
benefit of any defense available to the debtor as 
against an entity other than the estate, including stat­
utes of limitation. statutes of frauds, usury, and other 
personal defenses. A wa l ver of any such defense by th e 
debtor after the commencement of the case does not 
bind the estate.•· 

Statutory Notes and Related Subsidiaries 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 2020 AMENDMENT 

Pub. L . 116-260, div. FF, title X, §1001(a)(2), Dec. 27, 
2020. 134 Stat. 3216. provided that the amendment made 
by section 1001(a )(2) is e ffective on the date t hat ls 1 
year after Dec. 27, 2020. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 2014 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by Pub. L. 113-295 applicable with re­
spect to cases commenced under t his title on or after 
Dec. 19. 2014. see section 104(d) of Pub. L. 113-295, set 
out as a note under section 521 of this title. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 2005 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by section 1221(c) of Pub. L. 109--8 appli­
cable to cases pending under this title on Apr. 20. 2005, 

or filed under this title on or after Apr. 20, 2005, with 
certain exceptions, see section 1221(d) of Pub. L. 109--8, 
set out as a note under section 363 of this title. 

Amendment by sections 225(a), 323. 1212. and 1230 of 
Pub. L. 109--8 effective 180 days after Apr. 20, 2005, and 
not applicable with respect to cases commenced under 
this title before such effective elate, except as otherwise 
provided, see section 1501 of Pub. L . 109--8, set out as a 
note under section 101 of this title. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 1994 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by Pub. L. 103-394 effective Oct. 22, 1994. 
and not applicable with respect to cases commenced 
under this title before Oct. 22, 1994. see section 702 of 
Pub. L. 103-394, set out as a note under section 101 of 
this title. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 1992 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by Pub. L . 102-486 effective Oct. 24, 1992, 
but not applicable with respect to cases commenced 
under this title before Oct. 24, 1992, see section 3017(c) 
of Pub. L. 102-486. set out as a note under section 101 of 
this title. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 1984 AMENDMENT 

Amenclment by Pub. L. 98---353 effective with respect 
to cases filed 90 clays after July 10, 1984, see section 
552(a) of Pub. L. 98-353, set out as a note under section 
101 of this title. 

Court Rules and Judicial Documents 

ADJUSTMENT OF DOLLAR AMOUNTS 

The dollar amounts specified In this section we1·e ad­
justed by notices of the Judicial Conference of the 
United States pursuant to section 104 of this title as 
follows: 

By notice elated Feb. 5, 2019, 84 F.R. 3488. effective 
Apr. 1. 2019. In subsec. (b)(5)(C), (6)(C), (lO)(C), dollar 
amount "6,425" was ac\justecl to "6,825" . See notice of 
the Jucllclal Conference of the Uni t ee\ States set out as 
a note under section 104 of this title. 

By notice dated Feb. 16, 2016, 81 F .R. 8748. effective 
Apr. 1, 2016, in subsec. (b)(5)(C). (6)(C). dollar amount 
" 6,225" was adjusted to "6,425". 

By notice dated Feb. 12, 2013, 78 F .R. 12089, effective 
Apr. 1. 2013, in subsec. (b)(5)(C), (6)(C), dollar amount 
"5,850" was ac\Justecl to " 6,225" . 

By notice elated Feb. 19, 2010, 75 F .R. 8747. effective 
Apr. 1. 2010, in subsec. (b)(5)(C), (6)(C), dollar amount 
"5,475" was adjusted to "5,850". 

By notice datec\ Feb. 7, 2007, 72 F .R. 7082. effective 
Apr. 1, 2007, in subsec. (b)(5)(C). (6)(C). dollar amount 
"5,000" was adjusted to "5,475". 

§ 542. Turnover of property to the estate 

(a) Except as provided in subsection (c) or (d) 
of this section, an entity, other than a custo­
dian, in possession, custody, or control , during 
the case, of property that the trustee may use, 
sell , or lease under section 363 of this title, or 
that the debtor may exempt under section 522 of 
this title, shall deliver to the trustee, and ac­
count for, such property or the value of such 
property, unless such property is of incon­
sequential value or benefit to the estate. 

(b) Except as provided in subsection (c) or (d) 
of this section, an entity that owes a debt that 
is property of the estate and that is matured, 
payable on demand, or payable on order, shall 
pay such debt to, or on the order of, the trustee, 
except to the extent that such debt may be off­
set under section 553 of this title against a claim 
against the debtor. 

(c) Except as provided in section 362(a)(7) of 
this title, an entity that has neither actual no-
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(D) Subpam graphs (A) t hrough (C) shall not 
a pply , and the court may not dism iss or conver t 
a case based on any form of means testing-

(i ) if t he debtor is a disabled vet eran (as de­
fined in section 3741(1) of t i t ie 38), and the in­
debtedness occurred primarily during a period 
dtu•ing which he or she was-

(!) on active duty (as defined in sect ion 
lOl(d)(l ) of t it le 10); or 

(II) performing a homeland defense ac tiv­
i ty (as defined in section 901(1) of t i t le 32); or 

(ii) with respect to the debtor, while the 
debtor is-

(1) on, and during t he 540-day period begin­
ning immediately after the debtor is r e­
leased from, a period of active duty (as de­
fined in section lOl (d)(l ) of t itle 10) of not 
less than 90 days: or 

(II) per forming, and dur ing the 540-day pe­
riod beginning immedia tely a fter the debtor 
is no longer perform ing, a homeland defense 
ac tivity (as defined in section 901(1) of t itle 
32) performed for a period of not less than 90 
days; 

if a fter September 11, 2001, the debtor while a 
member of a reserve component of the Armed 
Forces or a member of the National Guard, 
was called to such act ive duty ot· performed 
such homeland defense activi ty. 
(3) In considering under paragraph (1) whe ther 

the grant ing of relief would be an abuse of the 
provisions of th is chapter in a case in which the 
presumpt ion in paragraph (2)(A)(i) does not a rise 
OL' is rebu tted, the court shall consider-

(A) whether t he debtor filed the petition in 
bad faith ; or 

(B) the totali ty of the circumstances (in­
cluding whether the debtor seeks to reject a 
personal ser vices con t ract and the financia l 
need for such r eject ion as sought by the debt­
or) of the debtor's fi nancia l situation dem­
onstra tes abuse. 
(4J[A) The court , on ·ts own iui t iative or on 

the motion of a pa t·ty in interest, in acco~·dance 
witll the proceaures clescrioecl in rule 9011 of tbe 
Federal Rules of Banlcruptcy Procedure, may 
order the attorney for t he clebtol' to rejmbUL'se 
the t rustee for all reasonable costs i_n prosecut­
ing a mot ion filecl w1cter section 707(15), including 
reasonable attol'l1eyif feesJ if-

(i) a trustee files a mot ion for dismissal or 
conversion under this subsection; and 

(i i) the court-
(!) gran ts such motion; and 
(II) finds that the action of t he attorney 

fot· the debtor in filing a case under this 
chapter viola ted r ule 9011 of t he Federa l 
Rules of Bankruptcy P rocedure. 

(B) If the court finds tbat the attorney fol' the 
i::lebtor violatea rule 9011 of tlle Federal--aules of 
Ba nJi:ruptcy P roceaure. the court, on its own ini­
t ia tive or on the motion of a party in interest, 
in accordance with such procedures, may orcler-

(i) the assessment of an a ppropriate civil 
penal ty against t he a t torney for the debtor; 
and 

(i i) the paymen t of s uch civil penalty to the 
t rus tee, the United States t rustee (or t he 
bankruptcy administm tor , if any). 

(_C) The signature of an attorney on a petition , 
pleading, or written motion srum constitute a 
certification that the attorney has-

(i) performed a reasonable investigation into 
the circumstances t hat gave r ise to the pe t i­
tion , pleading. or writt en motion: and 

(ii) determined that the pet ition , pleading , 
or wri t ten motion-

(!) is well grounded in fact; and 
(II) is warran ted by existing law or a good 

fai th argument for the extension, modifica­
t ion , or reversal of existing Jaw and does not 
constit ute an abuse under paragraph (1). 

i D) The signature of an attorney on the eti­
tion shall constitute a certification tha t the at­
torney has no knowledge after an inquiry that 
the information in the schedules filed with such 
petition is incorrect. 

(5)(A"') Except as providei::1 in subparagraph an 
a nd subject to paragraph (6), t he court, on its 
own init iative or on the motion of a party in in­
terest, in accordance with the procedures de­
scribed in rule 9011 of tbeFecleral Rules of Banlc­
rllj)tcy"Procedure, may award a debtor a ll rea­
sona ble costs (including reasona6le attorneys· 
fees) in con testing a motion filed by a party in 
interest Cother than a trustee or United States 
trustee or bankruptcy administrator, if any)) 
under this subsection if-

(i) the court does not grant the mot ion; a nd 
(ii) the court finds that-

(! ) the position of the party that filed the 
motion violated rule 9011 of the Federa l 
Rules of Bankruptcy Pr ocedure; or 

(II) the attorney (if any) who filed the mo­
t ion did not comply wit h the requirem ents 
of clauses (i) and (ii) of paragraph (4)(C), and 
the motion was made solely for the purpose 
of coercing a debtor int o waiving a righ t 
guaran teed to the debtor under this t itle. 

(B) A small business that bas a claim of an ag­
gregate amount less tha n $1,000 1 shall not be 
subject to subparagraph (A)(ii)(l ). 

(C) For purposes of this paragraph-
(i) the term " small business" means an un­

incorporated business , par tnersh ip, cor pora­
t ion, association , or organization that-

(! ) has fewer t han 25 full-t ime employees 
as de termined on the date on which the mo­
tion is fil ed; and 

(II) is engaged in commer cia l or business 
activity ; and 
(i i) the number of employees of a wholly 

owned subsidiary of a cor poration includes the 
employees of-

(!) a parent corpora tion; and 
(II) any other subsidiary corpora tion of the 

paren t corporation. 
(6) Only the judge or United States t rustee (or 

bankruptcy administrat or, if any) may file a 
motion under section 707(b), if t he curren t 
monthly income of the debtor, or in a join t case, 
t he debtor and the debtor's spouse, as of the 
da te of the order for relief, when mul t iplied by 
12, is equal to or less t han-

(A) in t he case of a debtor in a household of 
1 person, t he median family income of the ap­
plicable State for 1 earner; 

(B) in the case of a debt or in a household of 
2, 3. or 4 individua ls, the highest median fam-
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"CB) any amount by which t he percentage fee fixed 
under paragraph (l )(B) of t his subsection for all such 
cases exceeds-

'·(!) such individual's actual compensation for 
such cases. as ac\Justec\ unc\er subparagraph (A) o f 
t his paragraph; plus 

·'(II) the actual. necessary expenses Incurr ed by 
such lncllvldual as standing trustee In such cases." 

See section 586(b) anc\ (e) of Titl e 28, Judi ciary anc\ Ju­
dicial Procedure. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 2005 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by section 219(c) of Pub. L. 109-8 effective 
180 clays after Apr . 20. 2005. anc\ not applicabl e with r e­
spect to cases commenced uncler th i s t i t l e before such 
effective elate. except as otherwise prov lc\ecl. see section 
1501 of Pub. L. 109-8. set ou t as a note uncler secti on 101 
of this title. 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

Section effective 30 clays af ter Oct. 27. 1986, and before 
the a mendm en t by section 227 of Pub. L. 99-554. see sec­
tion 302(c)(2) of Pub. L. 99-554. set out as an Effective 
Dat e of 1986 Amendment note under section 581 of Tit l e 
28. Judiciar y and Judicial Procedure. 

Effective elate and applicability of am endment by sec­
tion 227 of Pub. L. 99-554 dependent upon the Judicial 
district Involved. see section 302(d), (e) of Pub. L . 
99-554. 

REFERENCES IN SUBSECTION (a) T EMPORARILY DEEMED 
TO B E REFERENCES TO 0THE1t PROVISIONS 

Until the amendments made by subti tle A (§§201 to 
231) o f title II of Pub. L. 99-554 become effective In a 
distric t and apply to a case. I n subsec. (a) of t his sec­
tlon-

(1) t he first two r eferences to the United States 
t r ustee are deemed to be r efe1·ences to t he court. and 

(2) any r eference to section 586(b) of Tit l e 28, Judici­
ary and Judicial Procedure. Is deem ed t o be a ref­
erence to subsec. (c) of t h i s sect i on, 

see secti on 302(c)(3)(8 ). (cl) , (e) of Pub. L . 99-554. set out 
as an Effective Dat e note under section 581 o f Tit l e 28. 

§ 1203. Rights and powers of debtor 

Subject t o such limitations as the court may 
prescribe, a debtor in possession shall have all 
t h e rights, o t her tha n the right to com pensation 
under section 330J a nd powers, and sha ll per form 
a ll the functions and dut ies, except t he du ties 
specified in pa ragraphs (3) and (4) of section 
1106(a), of a trus t ee serving in a case under chap­
ter 11, ncluding operat ing t he debtor 's farm or 
c ommer cia l fishing operation . 

(Added and a mended Pub. L . 99-554, ti t ie II, § 255, 
t i t le III, §302(f), Oct. 27, 1986, 100 Stat . 3107, 3124; 
Pub. L. 103-65, §1, Aug. 6, 1993, 107 Stat. 311; Pub. 
L . 105-277, div. C, title I, § 149(a), Oct. 21, 1998, 112 
Stat. 2681- 610; Pub. L. 106-5, §1(1), (2), Mar . 30, 
1999, 113 Stat. 9; Pub. L. 106-70. § 1, Oc t. 9, 1999, 
113 Stat. 1031; Pub. L. 107-8, §1, May 11, 2001, 115 
Stat. 10; Pub. L. 107- 17, § 1, J une 26, 2001, 115 
Stat. 151; Pub. L. 107- 170, §1, May 7, 2002, 116 
Stat. 133; P ub. L. 107- 171, t i t le X , §10814(a), May 
13, 2002, 116 Stat. 532; P ub. L. 107-377, §2(a), Dec. 
19, 2002, 116 Stat. 3115; P ub. L . 108-73, § 2(a), Aug. 
15, 2003, 117 Stat. 891; P ub. L . 108-369, §2(a), Oct. 
25, 2004, 118 Stat. 1749; Pub. L. 109-8, title X, 
§§ lO0l(a)(l ), (C) , 1007(c)(2), Apr. 20, 2005, 119 Stat. 
185, 186, 188.) 

CODIFICATION 

F or repeal of section effective Oct. 1. 1998. anc\ subse­
quent reenactment of section . see note set out preced­
ing section 1201 of thi s title. 

AMENDMENTS 

200S-Pub. L. 109-8. § 1007(c)(2), in ser ted " or comm er­
cial fishing operation" after " farm" . 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 2005 AMENDMENT 

Amendmen t by section 1007(c)(2) o f Pub. L. 109-8 ef­
fective 180 days after Apr. 20. 2005, and not applicabl e 
with respect to cases comm enced under th is titl e befor e 
such effective date. except as otherwise provided. see 
secti on 1501 of Pub. L. 109-8. set out as a note under sec­
tion 101 of t his t itl e. 

§ 1204. Removal of debtor as debtor in possession 

(a) On request of a pa r ty in interest , a nd a ft er 
notice a nd a hearing, t he court shal order t h at 
t heclebtor sha ll not be a debtor in possession for 
cause, including fraudJ dishonest y, incom­
petence, or g ross misma nagem en t of t he a ffairs 
of tlle debtor , ei t her befor e or a fter t he com­
mencem en t of t he case. 

(b) On request of a par ty in interest, a nd after 
notice and a hearing, the court m ay rninstate 
the debtor in possession. 

(Added and am ended P ub. L. 99-554, t itle II, §255, 
title ill, §302(0, Oct. 27, 1986, 100 Stat. 3107, 3124; 
P ub. L. 103-65, § 1, Aug. 6, 1993, 107 Stat. 311; Pub. 
L. 105-277, div. C, title I , §149(a), Oct. 21, 1998, 112 
Stat. 2681- 610; P ub. L. 106-5, § 1(1), (2), Mar . 30, 
1999, 113 Stat. 9; P ub. L . 106-70, § 1, Oct. 9, 1999, 
113 Stat. 1031; Pub. L . 107-8, § 1, May 11, 2001, 115 
Stat. 10; P ub. L . 107- 17, §1, June 26, 2001, 115 
Stat. 151; P ub. L. 107- 170, §1, May 7, 2002, 116 
Stat. 133; Pub. L . 107- 171, t itle X, §10814(a), May 
13, 2002, 116 Stat. 532; P ub. L . 107-377, §2(a), Dec. 
19, 2002, 116 Stat. 3115; Pub. L . 108-73, §2(a), Aug. 
15, 2003, 117 Stat. 891; P ub. L . 108-369, §2(a), Oct. 
25, 2004, 118 Stat. 1749; P ub. L . 109-8, t i t le X, 
§ lO0l(a)(l ), (c), Apr. 20, 2005, 119 Stat. 185, 186.) 

CODIFICATION 

For repeal of secti on effective Oct. 1. 1998, and subse­
quent r eenactment of section. see note set out preced­
ing section 1201 of t h1s t i t l e. 

§ 1205. Adequate protection 

(a) Section 361 does not apply in a case under 
t his chapter. 

(6) In a case under this ch apter, when ade­
quate protection is required under section 362, 
363, or 364 of this title of a n in terest of a n en t ity 
in property, such adequate protection may be 
provided by-

(1) requiring t he t rustee to make a cash pa y­
ment or per iodic cash paym ents to such en­
t ity, to the exten t t ha t t he stay under section 
362 of t his t i t le, use, sale, or7ease un der sec­
t ion 363 of t h is title, or a ny gr an t of a lien 
un der section 364 of t his tit le r esults in a de­
crease in t he value of proper ty secur ing a 
cla im or of an entity's ownership in terest in 
proper ty; 

(2) providing to such entit y a n additiona l or 
rep lacemen t lien to t he exten t t hat such stay, 
use, sale, leaseJ or gran t r esults in a decrease 
in t;he value of property securing a claim or of 
a n en tity's own ership inter est in pr operty; 

(3) paying t o such en t i ty for t he use of farm­
land th e reasona ble rent customa ry in t he 
comm unity wher e t he property is located, 
based upon t he rental value, net income, and 
earning capacity of t he property; or 
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(4) granting such ot h er reliet ot her t ha n en­
t i t ling sue 1 en t ity t o compensation a llowable 
under section 503(15)(1) of t his t i t le as an a -
ministrative expense, as will7illequately pro­
tect t he va lue of property securing a claim or 
of such en t ity's ownership inter est in prop­
er ty. 

(Added a nd amended Pub. L . 99-554, t i t le II, §255, 
t i t le III, §302(f). Oct. 27, 1986, 100 Stat . 3107, 3124; 
P ub. L. 103-65, § 1, Aug. 6, 1993, 107 S tat. 311; Pub. 
L. 105-277. div. C, tit le I, §149(a), Oct. 21, 1998, 112 
S tat. 2681-610; Pub. L. 106--5, § 1(1), (2), Mar. 30, 
1999. 113 Sta t . 9; Pub. L . 106--70, § 1, Oct. 9, 1999, 
113 S tat. 1031; Pub. L. 107-8, § 1, Ma y 11, 2001, 115 
S tat. 10: Pub. L. 107-17, § 1, June 26, 2001, 115 
Sta t . 151; Pub. L . 107- 170, §1, May 7, 2002, 116 
S tat. 133; Pub. L . 107-171, title X, §10814(a), May 
13, 2002, 116 Stat. 532; Pub. L. 107-377, §2(a), Dec. 
19, 2002, 116 S tat. 3115; Pub. L. 108-73, §2(a), Aug. 
15, 2003, 117 Stat. 891; Pub. L. 108-369, §2(a), Oct. 
25, 2004, 118 Stat. 1749; Pub. L. 109-8, title X, 
§ lOOl(a)(l ), (c), Apr. 20, 2005, 119 Stat . 185, 186.) 

CODIFICATION 

For repeal of section effective Oct. 1. 1998. a nd subse­
quent reenactment of section. see note set out preced­
ing section 1201 of t his title. 

§ 1206. Sales free of interests 

After...no tice nd a__]i_ea1:i,ng._jn_acldttion t o the 
auth od zation .con_tain.ed in s!tc.tton 363(!), the 
t rustee in a case under t his ch apter may sell 
pr oper ty under section 363(b) and (c) free a nd 
clear of any interest in such property of a n en­
t i ty other than the esta te if the proper ty is 
fa rmland, farm equipment, or property used t o 
carry out a commercial fishing oper a tion (in­
cluding a commercial fishing vessel), except 
that the proceeas of such sale sh all be subject to 
suc.h interest. 

(Added a nd a mended Pub. L. 99-554, t i t le II, §255, 
ti t le III, § 302(f) , Oct. 27, 1986, 100 Stat. 3108, 3124; 
P ub. L. 103-65, §1, Aug . 6, 1993, 107 S t a t. 311; P ub. 
L. 105-277, div. C, t i t le I , § 149(a), Oc t . 21, 1998, 112 
Stat. 2681-610; Pub. L. 106--5, § 1(1), (2), Mar. 30, 
1999, 113 Stat. 9; Pub. L. 106--70, § 1, Oct . 9, 1999, 
113 Stat . 1031; Pub. L. 107-8, §1, May 11, 2001, 115 
Stat. 10: Pub. L. 107-17, §1, June 26, 2001. 115 
Stat. 151; Pub. L . 107- 170, §1, Ma y 7. 2002, 116 
Stat. 133; P ub. L. 107-171, tit le X, § 10814(a), May 
13. 2002, 116 Stat. 532; Pub. L. 107-377, § 2(a) , Dec. 
19, 2002, 116 Stat. 3115; Pub. L . 108-73, § 2(a), Aug . 
15, 2003, 117 Stat. 891; Pub. L. 108-369, §2(a), Oct. 
25, 2004. 118 Stat. 1749; Pub. L . 109-8, title X, 
§§ lOOl(a)(l ), (c), 1007(c)(3), Apr. 20, 2005, 119 Stat . 
185. 186, 188.) 

CODIFICATION 

For repeal of section effective Oct. 1, 1998. a nd subse­
quent reenactment of section, see not e set out preced­
ing section 1201 of this title. 

A MENDMENTS 

2005---Pub. L. 109-8. § 1007(c)(3), subs tit uted " If t he 
proper ty is farmland, farm equipmen t . or property used 
to car ry out a commercia l fishing operation (including 
a commercial fishing vessel)" for "if t he proper ty is 
farmland or farm equipment". 

EFI-'ECTIVE DATE OF 2005 A MENDMENT 

Amendment by section 1007(c)(3) of Pub. L . 109-8 ef­
fective 180 clays after Apr . 20. 2005. and not applicable 

wit h respect to cases commenced under t his t i t le befo1·e 
such effective elate. except as otherwise provided. sec 
section 1501 of Pub. L. 109-8. set ou t as a note under sec­
t ion 101 of t his title. 

§ 1207. Property of the estate 

(aJ P roper ty of the estate includes, in addit ion 
to t he property specified in section 541 of tllis 
t i t le-

(1) a ll property of the kind specified in such 
section tha t the debtor acquires after the com­
mencement of the case but before the case Is 
closed, dismissed, or converted to a case under 
chapter 7 of this title, whichever occurs firs t ; 
and 

(2) earnings from services performed by the 
debtor after the commencement of the case 
but before the case is closed, dismissed, or 
converted to a case under chapter 7 of this 
t i t le, whichever occurs first. 

(b) Except as provided in section 1204, a con­
firmed plan , or a n order confirming a plan, the 
debt or shall rem ain in possession of a ll prope r t y 
of t he estate. 
(Added and a m ended Pub. L. 99-554, ti t le II, §255, 
t i t ie III, § 302(f), Oct. 27, 1986, 100 Sta t. 3108, 3124; 
Pub. L. 103-65, § 1, Aug. 6, 1993, 107 Stat . 311; Pub. 
L . 105-277, div. C, t itle I, §149(a), Oct. 21, 1998, 112 
Stat. 2681- 610; Pub. L. 106--5, § 1(1), (2), Ma r. 30, 
1999, 113 Stat. 9; Pub. L. 106--70, § 1, Oct. 9, 1999, 
113 Stat . 1031; Pub. L. 107-8, § 1, Ma y 11, 2001, 115 
Sta t . 10; Pub. L . 107- 17, §1, June 26, 2001, 115 
Sta t. 151; Pub. L . 107- 170, § 1, May 7, 2002, 116 
Stat . 133; Pub. L . 107- 171, t itle X, §10814(a), May 
13, 2002, 116 Sta t. 532; P ub. L. 107- 377, § 2(a), Dec. 
19, 2002, 116 Sta t. 3115; P ub. L. 108-73, §2(a), Aug. 
15, 2003, 117 S t a t. 891; Pub. L. 108-369, § 2(a), Oc t. 
25, 2004, 118 Sta t. 1749; Pub. L. 109-8, title X, 
§ lOOl(a)(l ), (c), Apr. 20, 2005, 119 Stat. 185, 186.) 

CODIFICATlON 

I~or repeal of section effective Oct. 1. 1998. and subse­
quent reenactment of section, see note set out preced­
ing section 1201 of t his t itle. 

§ 1208, Conversion or dismissal 

(a) The debtor may conver t a case under t his 
chapter t o a case under cha pter 7 of this t i t le at 
a ny t ime. Any wa iver of the r igh t to convert 
uncler t his subsection is unenforceable. 

(b) On request of t he debtor a t a ny t ime , if t he 
case has not been con ver ted under section 706 or 
1112 of t his title, the court shall dismiss a case 
under t his cha pter. Any wa iver of t he righ t to 
dismiss under t his subsection is unenforceable . 

(c) On request of a pa r t y in inter est, and a fter 
notice a nd a hearing , the court m ay dismiss a 
case under t his cha pter for cause, inc luding-

Cl) ulll'easonable delay, or gross misma nage­
ment, by the debtor that is prejualcla l t o 
credit ors; 

(2) nonpayment of a ny fees a nd charges re­
quired under cha pter 123 of t i t le 28; 

(3) fa ilure to file a pla n t imely under section 
1221 of this title; 

(4) fa ilure to commence making timely pay­
ments required by a confirmed pla n; 

(5) denia l of confirmation of a pla n under 
section 1225 of t his t itle and denia l of a r e­
quest made for additiona l time for filing a n­
ot her plan or a modification of a pla n: 
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t l on of " debtor "' as a debtor concerning whom a peti­
tion has been filed under t itle 11 for definiti on of 
"bankrupt"' as a debtor by or against whom a peti tion 
has been filed under t itle 11, and struc lc out defini t ion 
of ''bankruptcy•· as Incl uding any proceeding. arrange­
men t. or pl an pursuant to t i t l e 11. 

EFFEC'rl VE DATE OF 1978 AMENDMENT 

A mendm ent by Pub. L . 95-598 effecti ve Oct. 1. 1979, 
see section 402(a) of Pub. L. 95-598. set out as an E ffec­
tive Date note preceding secti on 101 of Titl e 11. Ban k ­
ruptcy. 

SA VINOS PROVISION 

A mendment by section 314 of Pub. L . 95-598 not to af­
fect t he application of chapter 9 (§ 151 et seq.). chapter 
96 (§ 1961 et seq.). or secti on 2516. 3057. or 3284 of t his 
t i tle to any act of any person (1) com mitted befo1·e Oct. 
1. 1979. or (2) comm! tted af ter Oct. I. 1979. In connection 
wi th a case com menced before such date. see section 
403(d) of Pub. L . 95-598. set out as a note preceding sec­
tion 101 of Ti tie 11. Bankruptcy. 

§ 152. Concealment of assets; false oaths and 
claims; bribery 

a person wbo-
(1) knowingly a nd fraudulen t ly conceals 

from a cus t odian , t rustee, ma rsha l, or ot her 
officer of th e court char ged wi th t he control 
or custody of pr oper ty, or , in connection wi t h 
a case under t i tle 11, from creditors or t h e 
Uni ted St ates Trus t ee, a ny property belonging 
to t he estate of a debtor; 

(2) knowingly a nd fraudulen tly makes a 
false oath or account in or in relation to any 
case under title 11; 

(3) knowingly and fraudulently makes a 
false decla ration, certificate, verification , or 
statement untler penalty of perjury as per­
mitted under section 1716 of title 28, in or in 
r elation to a ny case untler title 11; 

(4) knowingly a nd fraudulently presents any 
false claim for proof against the estate of a 
debtor, or uses any such claim in any case 
under title 11, in a personal capacity or as or 
through an agent, proxy, or attorney; 

(5) ,knowingly and fraudulen tly receives a ny 
matesia1 amount of property from a debtor 
af er e filing of a case w1der title 11, with 
intent to defeat t he provisions of title 11; 

(6) knowingly a nd fra udulently gives, offe1·s, 
receives, or attempts to obtain a ny money or 
property, remuneration. compensation, re­
ward, advantage, or promise thereof for acting 
or forbearing to act in any case under title 11; 

(7) in a personal capacity or as an agent or 
officer of a ny person or corporation , In con­
templation of a case under title U by or 
against the Jl_erson or any other person or cor­
poration , or wit h in tent to tlefeat the nrovi­
s ions of t itle 11, knowingly and fraudulent ly 
'transfers or conceals a ny of his property or 
the property of such otl1er person or corpora­
t ion ; 

(8) a fter t he filing of a case under t i t le 11 or 
in con templation thereof, knowingly and 
fra udulently conceals, destroys, mutilates, fal­
sifies, or makes a fa lse entry in a ny recorded 
information (including books, documents, 
records, and papers) relating to the property 
or finan cia l affairs of a debtor; or 

(9) a fter the filing of a case under title 11, 
knowingly a nd fraudulently withholds from a 

custodian, trustee, marshal, or other officer of 
t he court or a nited States Trustee entitled 
to its possession, any recorded information 
(incluaing books , documents, records, a nd pa­
pers) relating to t he property or financial af­
fairs of a debtor, 

shall be fined under this title, imprisoned not 
more tha n 5 years, or both. 
(Jun e 25, 1948, ch. 645, 62 S tat. 689; Pub. L. 8~ 19, 
§2, June 12, 1960, 74 Stat. 217; Pub. L . 86-701, 
Sept. 2, 1960, 74 Sta t. 753; Pub. L. 94-550, §4, Oct. 
18, 1976, 90 Stat. 2535; Pub. L. 95-598, t itle III, 
§314(a), (c), Nov. 6, 1978, 92 Stat . 2676, 2677; Pub. 
L. 100-690, title VII, §7017, Nov. 18, 1988, 102 Stat. 
4395; Pub. L. 103--322, ti t le xxxm, §330016(1)(1{), 
Sept. 13, 1994, 108 Stat. 2147; Pub. L. 103-394, t i t le 
III, §312(a)(l )(A), Oct. 22, 1994, 108 Stat. 4138; Pub. 
L. 104-294, t itle VI, §601(a)(l), Oc t. 11, 1996, 110 
Stat. 3497.) 

HISTORICAL AND REVISION NOTES 

B ased on section 52(b) of title 11. U .S.C., 1940 eel., 
Bankr uptcy (Jul y 1. 1898, ch . 541, §29b, 30 Stat. 554: May 
27, 1926. ch. 406. § 11 (part), 44 Stat. 665: June 22, 1938. ch. 
575, § 1 (part). 52 Stat. 855). 

Section was broadened to apply to one who gi ves or 
offers a bribe. 

M inor changes were made i n phmseology. 

AMENDMENTS 

1996-Pub. L. 104- 294 substit uted " fined under t his 
t itle" for " fined not m or e than S5.000" i n closing prov i­
si ons. 

1994-Pub. L . 103-394 amended secti on generally . des­
i gnating undeslgnated pars. as openi ng provisions, par s. 
(1) to (9). and cl osing provisi ons. and in pars. (1) and (9) 
I nser t ing r eference to United States Trust ee. 

Pub. L. 103-322 substituted " fined under this t i t l e" for 
" fined not more than S5,000" in l ast par. 

1988-Pub. L . 100-690 substi t uted "penal ty of perjury" 
for "penal ty or perjury" in third par . 

1978-Pu b. L . 95-598 substit u ted. wherever appearing , 
" debtor " for "bankrupt" . "case under tit l e 11" for 
"bankruptcy proceeding•·. and " provisions of t itle 11" 
for " bankruptcy law"; and substituted " a custodian" 
for "the receiver. custodian" . wherever appearing. and 
" recorded Information. including books. documents. 
r ecords, and papers, r elating t o t he proper ty or finan­
cial affai rs" for " document affecting or r elating to the 
propert y or affairs''. in two places. 

1976-Pub. L. 94-550 inserted paragr aph cover i ng t he 
k nowing and f raudulent making of a fal se declaration. 
cer tificate. verification. 0 1· statement under penal ty of 
perjury as permitted under section 1746 of titl e 28 or in 
r elation to any bankruptcy proceeding . 

1960-Pub. L. 86-701 included fraudulent transfers and 
concealment of proper ty by persons i n t heir individual 
capaci ty in sixth par. 

Pub. L . 86-519 struc k out " under oath" after "know­
ingl y and fraudulentl y presents" In t hird par. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 1994 AMENDMEN'I' 

A mendmen t by Pub. L. 103-394 effecti ve Oct. 22. 1994, 
and not applicable with respect to cases commenced 
under T itl e 11. Bankruptcy, before Oct. 22. 1994. see sec­
tion 702 of Pub. L . 103-394, set ou t as a note under sec­
tion 101 of T itl e 11. 

EFFEC'r! VE DATE OF 1978 AMENDMENT 

A mendmen t by Pub. L . 95--598 effective Oct. l , 1979. 
see section 402(a) of Pub. L . 95-598. set out as an Effec­
t ive Date note prececling section 101 of T i tle 11. Bank­
ruptcy. 

SA VJNGS P ROVISION 

Amendmen t by section 314 of Pub. L. 95-598 not to af ­
fect t he application of ch apter 9 (§ 151 et seq.). chapter 
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96 (§ 1961 et seq.), or section 2516. 3057. or 3284 of this 
title to any act of any person (1) committed before Oct. 
1. 1979. or (2) committed af ter Oct . 1. 1979, In connection 
with a case commenced before such elate, see section 
403tcl) of Pub. L. 95---598. set out as a note preceding sec­
tion 101 of Title 11, Bankruptcy. 

§ 153. Embezzlement against estate 

(a) On' ENSE.-A person aescribed in subsection 
(b) who knowingly and fraudulently appr o­
priates to the person's own use, embezzles, 
spends , or transfers a ny property or secretes or 
aestroys a ny ocument 6elonging to t he estate 
of a debtor sha ll be fined under t his title, im­
prisoned not more than 5 year&, or both. 

(b) P ERSON TO WHOM SECTION APPL1ES.- A per­
son described in this s ubsection is one who has 
access to property or documen ts belonging to an 
estate by virtue of t he person's participation in 
the administrat ion of t he estate as a trustee, 
custoaian, marsh al, attorney, or other officer of 
the court or as an agent, employee, or other per­
son engaged by such an officer to perform a 
service with respect to the estate. 

(June 25, 1948, ch. 645, 62 Stat. 690; Pub. L. 95-598, 
t i t le ill. § 314(a)(l ), (d)(l ), (2), Nov. 6, 1978, 92 
Stat. 2676, 2677; Pub. L. 103-322, title XXXill, 
§330016(1)(K), Sept. 13, 1994, 108 Stat. 2147; Pub. 
L. 103-394. t itle III, § 312(a)(l )(A), Oct. 22, 1994, 108 
Stat. 4139; Pub. L. 104- 294, title VI, §601(a)(l), 
Oct. 11, 1996, 110 Stat. 3497.) 

1-l!STORICAL AND REVISION NOTES 

Based on section 52(a) of ti tle 11. U .S.C .. 1940 eel .. 
Bankruptcy (Jul y 1, 1898. ch. 541. §29a. 30 Stat. 554: May 
27. 1926. ch. 406. § 11 (par t). 44 Stat . 665: June 22. 1938. ch. 
575. § 1 (part). 52 Stat. 855). 

Minor changes were made in phraseology. 

AMENDMENTS 

1996-Subsec. (a). Pub. L. 104-294 substituted "fined 
under t his title" for " fined not more t han S5.000". 

1994- Pub. L. 103-394 amended secti on generally. Prior 
to amendmen t. section read as follows: " Whoever 
knowingl y and fraudulen t l y appropriates to his own 
use, embezzles. spends, or transfers any proper ty or se­
cretes or destroys any document belonging to the es­
tate of a debtor which came Into his charge as trustee. 
custodian. marshal. or ot her officer of the court. shall 
be fined under thi s titl e or Imprisoned not more t han 
five years. or both.'' 

Pub. L. 103-322 substituted "fined under t his title" for 
•' fined not more t han $5.000". 

1978-Pub. L . 95---598 struc k out ", receiver" after 
" trustee·• In section catchllne and In text struck out 
" recei ver." before "custodian" and substituted " debt­
or" for ' 'bankrupt•·. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 1994 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by Pub. L. 103-394 effective Oct. 22. 1994. 
and not applicable with respect to cases commenced 
under Title 11. Bankruptcy. before Oct. 22. 1994. see sec­
t ion 702 of Pub. L. 103-394. set out as a note under sec­
tion 101 of Title 11. 

EF'FECTIVE DATE OF 1978 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by Pub. L. 95---598 effective Oct. 1. 1979. 
see section 402(a) of Pub. L. 95---598. set out as an Effec­
t ive Date note preceding section 101 of Title 11. Bank­
ruptcy. 

SAVINGS PROVISION 

Amendment by section 314 of Pub. L. 95---598 not to a f­
fect the applicati on of chapter 9 (§ 151 et seq.). chapter 
96 (§ 1961 et seq.). or secti on 2516. 3057. or 3284 of this 

titl e to any act of any person (1) committed before Oct. 
1. 1979. or (2) committed after Oct. 1. 1979. In connection 
wit h a case commenced before such elate. see section 
403(d) of Pub. L. 95---598. set out as a note preceding sec­
tion 101 of Title 11. Bankruptcy. 

§ 154. Adverse interest and conduct of officers 

A person who, being a custodian, trustee, ma r­
shal, or other officer of t he court--

{!) knowingly purchases, directly or indi­
rectly, any property of the estate of which the 
person is such an officer in a case under title 
11; 

(2) knowingly refuses to permit a r easonable 
oppor_tunity forthe inspect ion by parties in in­
terest of the documents and accounts relating 
to the affairs of estates in the person's charge 
by parties when directed by the court to do so; 
or 

(3) knowingly refuses to permit a reasonable 
opportunity for the inspection by the United 
States Trustee of the documen ts and accounts 
relating to the affairs of an estate in the per ­
son's charge, 

shal e illfilL..u.n._de • t.his_ t i t.le an..cu;hall...!one.il; 
.tll.e.__rul.rsnn:s_oJfice,__whic.h-.shal t.h.er..eupo_n_b_e.:, 
come_vacan_t_. 

(June 25, 1948, ch. 645, 62 Stat. 690; Pub. L. 95-598, 
title III, §314(a)(2), (e)(l ), (2), Nov. 6, 1978, 92 
Stat. 2676, 2677; Pub. L. 103-322, title XXXIII, 
§330016(1)(G), Sept. 13, 1994, 108 Stat. 2147; Pub. 
L. 103-394, title III, §312(a)(l )(A), Oct. 22, 1994, 108 
Stat. 4139; Pub. L. 104-294, title VI, § 601(a)(l), 
Oct. 11, 1996, 110 Stat. 3497.) 

HISTORICAL AND R EVISION NOTES 

B ased on section 52(c) of t itle 11. U.S.C .. 1940 ed .. 
Bankruptcy (July 1. 1898, ch. 541, §29c, 30 Stat . 554; June 
22. 1938. ch. 575. § 1 (par t). 52 Stat. 856). 

Minor changes were made In phraseology. 

AMENDMENTS 

1996-Pub. L. 104-294 substituted '•fined under this 
title" for " fined not more than $5.000" In closing provi­
sions. 

1994- Pub. L. 103-391 amended sect i on generally. Prior 
to amendment. section r ead as follows: 

" Whoever. being a custodian. t rustee, marsha l. or 
other officer of t he court, knowingl y purchases. di­
rectl y or Indirect ly. any proper ty of t he estate of which 
he Is such officer In a case under title 11: or 

" Whoever being such officer. knowingl y refuses to 
permit a r easonable opportunity for the Inspecti on of 
the documents and accoun ts relating to the affairs of 
estates In his charge by par ties In Interest when di­
r ected by the cow·t to c\o so-

" Shall be fined under this title. and shall forfeit his 
office. which shall th ereupon becom e vacant.·• 

Pub. L. 103-322 substi t uted " fined under this t itle" for 
"fined not more t han $500" In third par. 

1978-Pub. L . 95---598 struck out " referees and other" 
before "of[(cers" In section catchline, and In text 
struck out " Whoever knowingl y acts as a refer ee In a 
case In which he Is directl y or Indirectl y Interested: or" 
befor e "Whoever, being a" and "referee. receiver." be­
fore "custodian" and substituted "case under t i t l e 11" 
for "bankruptcy proceeding''. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 1994 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by Pub. L. 103-394 effecti ve Oct. 22. 1994. 
and not applicable wi t h respect t o cases commenced 
under 'l'ltle 11, Bankruptcy, before Oct. 22, 1994. see sec­
tion 702 of Pub. L. 103-394. set out as a note under sec­
tion 101 of Tl t ie 11. 
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§ 155 TITLE -iB-CRIMES AND CRIMINAL PROCEDURE Page 42 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 1978 AMENDMENT 

AmendmcnL by Pub. L. 95-598 effective OcL. l. 1!J79. 
see section 402(a) of Pub. L. 95- 598, set ouL as an Effcc­
Live Date noLe preceding secti on 101 of Ti Lie ll. Bank­
ruptcy. 

SAVINGS PROVISION 

Amendment by section 31'1 of Pub. L . 95-590 not to af­
fccL t he application o f chapter 9 (§151 et seq.). chapter 
96 (§ 1961 et seq.). or secti on 2516. 3057. or 3284 of this 
Li Li e to any act of any person(]) committed before OcL. 
l. 1979. or (2) committed after Oct. l. 1979. in con nection 
with a case commenced before such date. see section 
103(d) of Pub. L. 95-590. set out as a note preceding sec­
tion 101 of Title 11. Bankmptcy. 

§ 155. F ee agreem ents in cases under title 11 and 
r eceiverships 

Whoever., being a party in interest, whethe;- as 
a debtor . creclitor, receiver., trustee or represent­
ative of any of t hem, or attorney for any such 
party in interest, in any r eceiversl1ip or case 
uJ1cler title 11 in a ny United States court or 
uncle1· its supervision, knowingly at:@ frauau­
lently enters into any agreement, express or im­
plied, with, a nother such par ty in interest or at­
torney for another such party in inter est, for 
the purpose of fix ing t he fees or other compensa­
tion to be paid to any party in interest or to any 
attorney for any party in in terest fo • services 
rendered in connection t herewith. from the as­
sets of the estate, sba11 be fined under t his title 
or im_prisoned not more than one year, or fiotl1. 

(June 25, 1948, ch . 645, 62 Stat. 690; May 24, 1949. 
ch. 139, § 4. 63 Stat. 90; Pub. L. 95-598, title III, 
§314(f)(l ). (2). Nov. 6. 1978, 92 Stat. 2677: Pub. L. 
103-322, t i t le XXXIII , §330016(l )(K), Sept. 13, 1994. 
108 Stat. 2147.) 

HISTORICAL AND R EVISION NOTES 

1940 ACT 

Based on secLion 572a o f t itle 20. U.S.C .. 1910 ed .. Judi­
cial Code ancl Judiciary (Aug. 25. 1937. ch. 777. 50 StaL. 
010.) 

Words "upon conviction" were deleted as surplusage 
since punishment can be imposed only after a convic­
tion. 

A fine of "$5.000" was substiLuLed for "$10.000" and 
·•one year" for ' ·five yea1·s··. to rnduce the offense to 
the grade o f a misdemeanor and t he punishment to an 
amount and Lerm proportionate Lo t he gravity of the 
offense. 

Minor changes were m ade in phmseol ogy. 

1949 AC"I' 

This amendment [see secti on 4] c larifies secLion 155 o f 
Li Lie 18. U .S.C .. by restaLing t he first paragraph thereof 
in closer confo1·mity wiLh the origi nal law. as it exi sted 
aL Lhe t ime of the enactment o f t he revision o f title 18. 

A~IENDMENTS 

1994-Pub. L. 103- 322 substi t uLe<l "fined under this 
Li Li e" for " fi ned no t more t han $5.000". 

1970-Pub. L. 95-590 substituted " cases under t i t l e 11 
and receiver ships" for "banl,rupLcy proceedings" I n 
section catch Ii ne and in text "01· case under Li t i e 11" 
for " . bank1•uptcy or rno1·ganization proceed ing··. in­
ser Led "knowingl y and fraudulently " a fter "super­
vision ... . and strucl, ou t penalty provision for a j udge of 
a United States cour t Lo knowingly approve the pay­
m enL of any fees or compensation Lhat wer e fixed. 

1949-Act M ay 24. 1949. inserted references to attor­
neys for any party i n inter est in three pl aces. and sub­
sLiLuted '•in any United States courL or unde1· i ts supe1·-

v i sion" for ' •in or under t he super v i sion of any court o f 
t he UniLed States". 

EFFECTI VE DATE OF 1978 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by Pub. L. 95- 590 effective Oct. 1. 1979. 
see secLion 402(a) of Pub. L. 95-598. set out as an Effec­
tive DaLe note preceding section 101 o f Ti t l e 11. Bank­
ruptc.y. 

SAVINGS PitOVISION 

Amendment by section 31'1 of Pub. L. 95-598 not to af­
fect t he applicati on of chapLcr 9 (§ 151 ct seq.). chapter 
96 ( § 1961 et seq.). 01· section 2516. 3057. 01· 320,1 of th is 
t i t le to an y act o f any person (1) committed before Oct. 
l. 1979. or (2) committed after Oct. l. 1979. in connecti on 
with a case commenced before such date. see section 
403(d) of Pub. L. 95- 598. set ouL as a noLe preceding sec­
tion 101 o f T i t le 11. BanlcrupLcy. 

§ 156. Knowing disregard of bankruptcy law or 
rule 

(a) DEPINl'J'!ONS.- l n this section-
(1) t he term " ban kruptcy petition preparer" 

m eans a person, other than t he debtor·s attor­
ney or an employee of such an attorney. who 
prepal'es for compensation a docu ment for fil­
ing; a nd 

(2) the term " document fo1' fi ling" means a 
pet ition or any other document prepared for 
filing by a debtor in a United States bank­
r uptcy court or a United States clis trict court 
in connection wi t h a case under t itle 11. 

(ID O1>FENSE.- If a bankruptcy case or related 
proceecling fs'clismissed because of a knowing at­
tem_pt by a bankruptcy peti tion preparer in any 
manner t::o disregard the requirements of tit::lell , 
'United States Code, or the Feclera1 Rules of 
'Banln·npt::cy Procedure~ the bankruptcy petition 
preparer shall be fined under this ti t ie, impris­
onecl not mor e than 1 year, or both. 

(Added Pub. L. 103-394. ti tie III, § 312(a)(l )(B). 
Oct. 22. 1991 , 108 Stat. 4110; amended Pub. L. 
109-8, title XII, §1220, Apr. 20, 2005, 119 Stat. 195.) 

REFERENCES IN T EXT 

The Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure. referred 
to in subsec. (b). a1·e set ouL i n t he Appendix to Title 
11. Banlo·uptcy. 

AMEND~II;N'l'S 

2005-Subsec. (a). Pub. L. 109--8. in first par .. inser ted 
" (l) t he term" beforn .. ·bankmpLcy peti t i on preparer· .. 
and subsLituted "; and" for period at end and. in second 
par .. inser ted ''(2) the ter m ' ' beforn "'document for fil­
ing· .. and substlLuted "title 11" for ' ·Lhls Li t le'·. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 2005 AMENDMENT 

Amendm ent by Pub. L. 109-8 effective 180 days after 
Apr. 20. 2005, and not appli cabl e wi t h r espect to cases 
com menced under T itl e 11. Bankruptcy. before such ef­
fective date. except as otherwise provided. see secti on 
1501 or Pub. L. 109- 8. set ou t as a note under section 101 
o f Ti Lie 11. 

EFI'ECTIVE DATE 

Section effecti ve Oct. 22. 1994. and not applicable w i t h 
1·espect Lo cases commenced under 'l'it l e 11. Bank­
mptcy. before Oct. 22. 1991. see secti on 702 of Pub. L . 
103- 391. se t out as an Effective Date o f 1994 Am endment 
note under secti on 101 of Ti t l e ll. 

§ 157. Bankruptcy fraud 

A person who, having devised 01· intending to 
devise a schem e or artifice to defra ud ana foi-
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Page 43 TITLE IS-CRIMES AND CRIMINAL PROCEDURE § 175 

t1ie purpose of executing or concealing such a 
sche me or artifice or attempting to co so-

(1) files a petition under t i t le 11, inc ludi ng a 
fraudulent involuntary petition under section 
303 of snch t i tle : 

(2) fil es a docmnent in a proceeding under 
title 11; or 

(3) makes a false 01· fraudulent representa­
t ion, cla im, or promise concerning or in rela­
tion to a proceeding un der t it le 1 , at a ny time 
before 01· after the fil ing of t he petition, or in 
rela tion to a, proceeding falsely asser ted to be 
pending mwer such title. 

slw] be fined w1der this t i t le, imprisoned not 
m ore Ellan 5 years, or both. 

(Added Pub. L. 103-394, title III, § 312(a)(l)(B). 
Oct. 22, 1994 , 108 Stat. '1140; amen decl P ub. L. 
109-8. title III. §332(c), Apr. 20, 2005, 119 Stat. 103; 
Pub. L. 111- 327, §2(b), Dec. 22. 2010, 124 Stat. 
3562.) 

AMEND~IENTS 

2010-Par. (I). Pub. L . lll - 327. §2(b)(l ). sLruck out 
'·banl<rupLcy " after "involuntary''. 

Pa1·s. (2). (3). Pub. L . lll -327. §2(b)(2). sLruck out 
... including a fraudulent involuntu.ry banl<ruptcy pet i­
tion under secLi on 303 of such Litle" after "ti Lie 11 ... 

2005-Pars. {l) t o (3). Pub. L. 109- 8. which directed in­
sertion or •·. including a fraudulent involunta1·y ban k­
rupLcy petiLion under section 303 or such LILie" after 
"ti t i e 11 ... was execuLed by mal,ing t he i nser t ion afLe1· 
·'tiLle ll" wherever appearing. to reflect the probabl e 
in tent of Congress. 

EFFECTIVE DATE Oli" 2005 AMI>NDMl>N'I' 

Amendment by Pub. L. 109-8 effecLive 180 days a fLer 
Apr. 20. 2005. and not applicable with respecL to cases 
commenced u nder T ILi e 11 , Bankmptcy. befor e such ef­
fective date. except as otherwise provided. see section 
1501 of Pub. L. 109-8. set ou t as a noLe under secti on 101 
of TILie 11. 

Er'FEC'l'IVE DATls 

Section effective Oct. 22. 199'1. and noL applicable wiLh 
respect to cases commenced under Title Jl. Bank­
rupLcy. before Oct. 22. 1994. see sec Lion 702 of Pub. L . 
103-394. set out as an Effective Date or 1994 AmendmenL 
note under section 101 of Ti t le ll. 

§ 158. Designation of United States attorneys and 
agents of the Federal Bureau of Investigation 
to address abusive reaffirmations of debt and 
materially fraudulent statements in bank-
1·uptcy sche dules 

(a) 1N GENERAL.- The Attorney General of the 
United States shall designa te the individuals de­
scrll5ed in subsec tion (b) to have _primary respon­
sibili ty in carrying out en forcement activit ies 
in a a ressiJ1g violations of section 152 or L57 re­
latin to abusive J.'eaffirmations of debt. In addi­
t ion to addressing the violations r eferred to in 
the preceding sentence, the individuals de­
scribed under subsection (b) sha ll address viola­
tions of section 152 or 157 relating to materially 
fraudulent statements in bankruptcy schedules 
that are intentiona lly false or inten tionally 
misleading . 

(bTl]NlTED STA'l'ES A'l"l'ORNEYS AND AGENTS OF 
r.I'.HE .FEDEBAL BUREAU OF TNVESTIGATlON.-The 
individuals r efer:rec1 to ln subsection (a) a re-

(1) the United Sta tes attorney for each judi­
cia l district of the United States: a nd 

(2) a n agent of the Feder:al Bureau of Inves­
tigation for each field office of the Feder al Bu­
r eau of Iuvestigation. 

(C) BANK1Wl".'.l'C' NVESTIGA'rIONS.- Each united 
States attorney designated under t his section 
sh an , in addition t o any other responsibilities, 
have pr imary responsibili ty for carryi ng· out the 
duties of a n ited States attorney under section 
3057. 

(d) BANKRUP'l'CY PROCEDURES.- The bank­
ruptcy courts shall establish procedures fo • re­
ferring any case that m ay con tain a materia lly 
fraudulent statement in a bankruptcy schedule 
to the individuals designa tecl under this section. 

(Added Pub. L . 109-8. title II , § 203(b)(l ), Apr. 20, 
2005, 119 Stat. 49.) 

EFl•'EC'I'IVE DA'm 

Section effective 180 days after Apr. 20. 2005. and not 
applicabl e w i th respect to cases commenced under T i Lie 
11. Bankmptcy, before such effective date. except as 
otherwise pr ovided. see secLlon 1501 o f Pub. L. 109-8. set 
out as an Effective Date of 2005 AmendmenL note under 
sec Lion 101 of 'l'i t ie 11. 

CHAPTER 10-BIOLOGICAL WEAPONS 

Soc. 
175. P rohibi t i ons with respect to biological weap-

ons. 
175a. Requests for mili tary assistance to enforce 

prohibiLion in cer tain emergencies. 
1751J. Select agents: certain other agents. • 
175c. Varlol a virns. 
176. Seizure. forfeitw·e. and dcstmction. 
177. Injunctions. 
178. D efin i tions. 

AMENDMI,;NTS 

200<l-Pub. L. 108- 158. t itle VI. §69ll(b). Dec. 17. 200•1. 
ll8 Stat. 3775. added item 175c. 

2002-Pub. L. 107- 188. t i t l e II. §231Cb)(2). June 12. 2002. 
JJ6 Stat. 661. substiLuted ·'Sel ect agents; certain oLher 
agcnLs• · for "Possession by restricted persons" i n ! Lem 
175b. 

2001-Pub. L. 107- 56. titl e VIII. §817(3). Oct. 26. 2001. 
115 Stat. 386. added iLem 175b. 

1096-Pub. L. 10•1- 201. div. A. t i t l e XIV. §J1l6(c)(l )(B). 
Sept. 23. 1996. 110 Stat. 2723. added i tem 175a. 

§ 175. Prohibitions with respect to biological 
weapons 

(a) IN GENERAL.- Whoever knowingly develops, 
produces, stockpiles, transfers, acquires, re­
tains, or possesses any biological agent, toxin, 
or delivery system for use as a weapon, or know­
ingly assists a foreign state or any organizat ion 
to do so, or attempts, t hreatens, or conspires to 
do the same. sha ll be fined under t his t i t le or· 
im prisoned for life or a ny term of years, or both. 
Th ere is extraterri torial F ederal j urisdiction 
over a n offense under this section commit t ed by 
01· against a nationa l of t he Uni ted States. 

(b) ADDl'l'TONAL OFFENSE.-Wh oeve1· knowingly 
possesses any biological agent. toxin. or delivery 
system of a type or in a quantity t hat, under the 
circum stances. is not reasonably justified by a 
prophylactic, protective, bona fide r esearch , or 
other peaceful purpose, sha ll be fined under t h is 
title. imprisoned not more t ha n 10 years, or 
both. In this subsection, the terms "biological 

1 So in original. Docs not. conrorm to sect.Ion catch line. 
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acted in 1861 there were no possessions. and hence the 
use of the words "State or Territory " was sufficient to 
describe t he area then subject to Lhe jurisdiction of the 
United States. The word "District" was inser ted by th e 
codifiers of the 1909 Cr iminal Code. 

AMENDMENTS 

2002-Pub. L. 107- 273 substituted "under thi s title" 
for · 'not m ore t han $5.000". 

§ 373. Solicitation to commit a crime of violence 

(a) Whoeve1·, with ·nteut that another person 
engage in conduct constitu t ing a felony t hat has 
as a1 element the use~ attemru;ed use_, or threat­
ened use of physica l force against property or 
against tlle person of anotber in violation of the 
[laws of tlie nited Sta tes, an under circum­
stances strongly corroborative of that intent, 
solicits. commands, induces, or otherwise en­
deavors to per suade such other person to engage 
in such conduct, shall be imprisoned not more 
than one-half the maximum term of imprison­
ment or (notwithstanding section 3571) fined not 
more than one-half of the maximum fine pre­
scribed for the punishment of the crime solic­
ited, or both; or if the crime solicited is punish­
able by life imprisonment 01· cleath, sball be im­
prisoned for not more than twenty years. 

(b) I t is a n affirmative defense to a prosecu­
t ion under this section that, under circum­
stances manifesting a voluntary and complete 
renunciation of his criminal intent, the defend­
ant preven ted the commission of the crime so­
licited. A renunciation is not "voluntary and 
comple te·• if it is mot ivated in whole or in par t 
by a decision to postpone the commission of t he 
crime until another t ime or to substitute an­
other victim or another but similar objective. If 
the defendant raises the affirmative defense at 
t rial, the defendant has the burden of proving 
t he defense by a preponderance or the evidence. 

(c) It is not a defense to a prosecution under 
t his section that the person solicited could no t 
be convicted of t he crime because he lacked the 
state of mind r equi red for its commission , be­
cause he was incompetent or irresponsible, or 
because he is immune from prnsecution or is not 
subject to prosecution. 
(Added Pub. L. 98-473. ti tie ll, § 1003(a), Oct. 12, 
1984. 98 Stat. 2138; a mended Pub. L . 99-646, §26, 
Nov. 10, 1986, 100 Stat. 3597; Pub. L. 103- 322, title 
XXXllI, § 330016(2)(A). Sept. 13, 1994, 108 Stat. 
2148. ) 

AMJ,NDMJ,;N'l'S 

199'1- Subsec. (a). Pub. L. 103-322 inserted "(notwith­
standing section 3571) " before "fined not more than 
one-hal f' . 

1986---Subsec. (a). Pub. L. 00-646 substituted "property 
01· against the person of another " for " the person or 
proper ty of another" and i nserted ·' life imprisonment 
or" before "death ... 

CHAPTER 21-CONTEMPTS 

Sec. 
401. Power o( court. 
402. Cont empts constitu t ing crimes. 
1103. Protection o( t he privacy of child victims ancL 

child wjtnesses. 

AMJ,;NOMJ,N'l'S 

1090- P ub. L . 101-647. tiLl e II. §225(b)(2). Nov. 20. 1090. 
104 Stat. 4806. added item 403. 

1049- Act May 24. 1949, ch. 139. §8(a). (b). 63 Stat. 90, 
struck out "CONSTITUTING CRIMES" in chapter 
heading and substit u ted " Contempts consti t u t ing 
crimes" fo1· ' ·Criminal contempts" in i tem 102. 

§ 401. Power of court 

A court of the nited States shall h ave power 
to punish by fine or imprisonment, o • both, at 
its discretion, such contempt of i ts authority_, 
arm llone other, as-

(1) Misbehavior of any person in its presence 
or so near thereto as to obstruct the adminis­
tra tion of justice; 

(2) Misbehavior of any of its officers ln their 
offi cial transactions; 

(3) Disobedience or resistance to its lawful 
writ, process, order, rule, decr ee, or command. 

(June 25, 1948. ch. 645. 62 Stat. 701; Pub. L. 
107- 273, div. B, title ill, §3002(a)(l ), Nov. 2, 2002, 
116 Stat. 1805.) 

HIST Oltl CAL AND REVI SION N OTES 

Based on section 385 of titl e 28. U .S.C .. 1940 ed .. Judi­
cial Code and Judici ar y (Mar. 3. 1011. ch. 231. §268. 36 
Stat. 1163) . 

Sai d secti on 385 conferred t wo powers. 'l'be first part 
au thorizing courts o f t he Uni ted States to impose and 
admin!ste1· oaths wili remain in titl e 28. U.S.C .. 1940 
ed .. Judicial Code and Judiciary. The second par t rela t­
ing to contempt of court consti tutes this section. 

Changes l n phraseology and arrangem ent were made. 

AMENDMENTS 

2002-Pub. L. 107- 273 inserted •·or both." after "fi ne or 
imprisonment.• · in int roductory provisions. 

§ 402. Contempts cons tituting crimes 

Any person, corporation or association will­
fu.l[y isobeying any lawful writ, process, order, 
rule, decree, or command of any aistr ict cou1·t or 
the IDted Sta es or any court of the District of 
Columbia , y doing any act or thing t her ein, or 
thereby forbidden, if the act or thing so done be 
of such character as to constitute a lso a crimi­
J1a l offense under any statu te of the United 
States or un er the laws of any State in which 
the act was committed, shall be prosecuted for 
such. contempt as provided in section 3691 oft h is 
title and shall be punisb ed by a fine under this 
title or imprisonment , or both. 

Such fine shall be paid to the United States or 
to the complainant or other party inju1·ed by the 
act constit ut ing the contempt. or may, where 
more than one is so damaged, be divided or ap­
portioned a mong them as the court may direct, 
but in no case shall the fine to be paid to the 
United States exceed, in case the accused is a 
natural person , the sum of $1,000, nor shall such 
imprisonment exceed t he term of six months. 

This sect ion shall not be construed to rnlate to 
contempts committed in the presence of the 
court . or so near thereto as to obstruct tlle ad­
minis tration of justice, nor to contempts com­
mitted J n disobedience of any lawful wri t, proc­
ess, order. rule, decree, or command enter ed in 
any sui t 01· action brought or prosecuted in the 
na me of, or on behalf of, t he United States, but 
the same, and all otl10r cases of con tempt not 
specifically embraced in this section may be 
punished in conformity to the prevailing usages 
at law. 

For purposes of this section, the term "State" 
includes a State of the United States, the Dis-
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§241 TITLE 18---CRIMES AND CRIMINAL PROCEDURE Page 82 

Sec. 
249. Hate crime acts. 

AMENDMENTS 

2009-Pub. L. 111-84. div. E, §4707(b), Oct. 28, 2009. 123 
Stat . 2841. added i tem 249. 

1994-Pub. L. 103--322. title XXXIII. §330023(a)(l), Sept. 
13. 1994. 108 Stat. 2150. substituted " Freedom of access 
to c linic entra nces" for "Blocking access to reproduc­
tive health services" in item 248. 

Pub. L. 103--259. §4. May 26, 1994. 108 Stat. 697. aclcled 
item 248. 

1988----Pub. L. 100-690. title VII. §7018(b)(2). Nov. 18. 
1988. 102 Stat. 4396. struck out "of citizens" a fter 
"rights" in item 241. 

Pub. L. 100--346. §3. June 24. 1988, 102 Stat. 645. adcle cl 
item 247. 

1976-Pub. L. 94--453. §4(b). Oct. 2. 1976. 90 Stat. 1517. 
added I t e rn 246. 

1968----Pub. L. 90-284. tit le I.§ 102, Apr. 11. 1968. 82 Stat. 
75, added item 245. 

§ 241. Conspiracy against rights 

If two or more persons conspire to injure, op­
press, threaten, or intimidate any person in any 
State, Territory, Commonwealth, Possession, or 
District in the free exercise or enjoyment of any 
right or privilege secured to him by the Con­
stitution or laws of the United States, or be­
cause of his having so exercised the same; or 

If two or more persons go in disguise on the 
highway, or on the premises of another, with in­
t ent to prevent or hinder his free exercise or en­
joyment of any right or privilege so secured-

They shall be fined under this title or impris­
oned not more than ten years, or both; and if 
death results from the acts committed in viola­
tion of this section or if such acts include kid­
napping or an attempt to kidnap, aggravated 
sexual abuse or an attempt to commit aggra­
vated sexual abuse, or an attempt to kill , they 
shall be fined under this t i tie or imprisoned for 
any term of years or for life , or both, or may be 
sentenced to death. 

(June 25, 1948, ch. 645, 62 Stat. 696; Pub. L . 90-284, 
title I , § 103(a). Apr. 11, 1968, 82 Stat. 75; Pub. L. 
100-690, title VII, §7018(a), (b)(l), Nov. 18, 1988, 102 
Stat. 4396; Pub. L. 103-322, t itle VI, § 60006(a), 
title XXXII, §§320103(a), 320201(a), t i t le XXXIII, 
§ 330016(1)(L), Sept . 13, 1994, 108 Stat. 1970, 2109, 
2113, 2147; Pub. L. 104-294, title VI. 
§§604(b)(14)(A), 607(a), Oct. 11, 1996, 110 Stat. 3507. 
3511.) 

H.ISTORICAL AND REVISION NOTES 

Based on t i t le 18. U.S.C .. 1940 ed., §51 (Mar.4. 1909, ch. 
321. § 19. 35 Stat. 1092). 

Clause making cons pirator ineligible to hold office 
was omitted as Incongruous because it attaches ineli­
gibility to hold office to a person who may be a private 
c itizen and who was convicted of cons piracy to violate 
a specific statu te. There seems to be no reason for Im­
posing such a penalty in t he case of one lncllvlclual 
crime. In view of the fact that other crimes clo not 
carry such a severe conseque nce. The experience of t he 
Department of Justice Is t ha t t his unusua l penalty has 
been an obstacle to successful prosecutions for vio la ­
tions of the act. 

Mandatory punishm ent provision was rephrased In 
the alternative. 

Minor cha nges In phraseology were made. 

AMENDMENTS 

1996-Pub. L. 104-294, §607(a), s ubstitu ted "any State. 
Terri tory, Commonwealth. Possession, or District•· fo r 
"any State. Territory. or District" in first par. 

Pub. L. 104-294. §604(b)(l4)(A). repealed Pub. L. 
103-322. §320103(a)(l). See 1994 Amendment note below. 

1994- Pub. L . 103--322. §330016(1)(L ), substituted " They 
shall be fined unde r this title" for " They sha ll be fined 
not more than Sl0,000" In t hird par. 

Pub. L. 103--322, §320201(a). substi t uted " person in a ny 
State•· for " inha bitant of any State" in first par. 

Pub. L. 103--322, §320103(a)(2)-(4). in third par., sub­
stituted " results from the acts committed in violation 
of t his section or if such acts include kidnapping or a n 
attempt to kidnap. aggravated sexual abuse or an at­
tempt to commit aggravated sexua l abuse. or a n at­
tempt to kill. they sha ll be fined under this title or im­
pr isoned for any term of yea1-s or for life, or both" for 
"results. t hey s ha ll be s ubject to Imprisonment for any 
term of yea1-s or for life" . 

Pub. L. 103--322. §320103(a)(l). which provided for 
a m enclm ent Identical to Pub. L. 103--322. §330016(1)(L). 
a bove, was repealed by Pub. L. 104- 294. §604(b)(l4)(A). 

Pub. L. 103--322. §60006(a). s ubstituted " . or may be 
sentenced to death ." for period at encl of third pa r. 

1988----Pub. L. 100-690 struck out "of c i t izens" after 
"rights" in section catchllne and s ubstituted "inhab­
ita nt of any State. Territory. or District' ' for "citizen" 
in text. 

1968----Pub. L. 90-284 Inc reased limitation on fines 
from SS,000 to Sl0.000 and provided for imprisonment for 
a ny term of yea1-s or fo r life when death results. 

EFFECTIVE DATE 0~' 1996 AMENDMENT 

Amenc\ment by section 604(b)(14)(A) of Pub. L . 104-294 
effective Sept. 13, 1994, see section 604(d) of Pub. L. 
104- 294. set out as a note under section 13 of this title. 

SHORT TITLE OF 1996 AMENDMENT 

Pub. L. 104- 155, § 1, July 3. 1996. 110 Stat. 1392, pro­
vided that: "This Act [amending section 247 of t his title 
and section 10602 of Title 42, The Public Health and 
Welfare, enacting provisions set out as a note unde r 
section 247 of this t it le. a nd am ending provisions set 
out as a note unde r section 534 of Tit le 28. Jucllciar y 
and Judicial Procedure] may be cited as t he 'Church 
Al-son Prevention Act of 1996' :· 

§ 242. Deprivation of rights under color of law 

Whoever, under color of any law, statute, ordi­
nance, regulation, or custom, willfully subjects 
any person in any State, Territory, Common­
wealth, Possession, or District to the depriva­
tion of any rights, privileges, or immunities se­
cured or protected by the Constitution or laws 
of the United States, or to different punish­
ments, pains, or penalties, on account of such 
person being an alien, or by reason of his color, 
or race, than are prescribed for the punishment 
of citizens, shall be fined under this title or im­
prisoned not more than one year , or both; and if 
bodily injury r esults from the acts committed in 
violation of this section or if such acts include 
the use, a ttempted use. or threatened use of a 
da ngerous weapon, explosives, or fire, shall be 
fined under this title or imprisoned not more 
than ten years, or both; and if death r esults 
from the acts committed in violation of this sec­
t ion or if such acts include kidna pping or an at­
tempt to kidnap, aggravated sexual abuse, or an 
attempt to commit aggravated sexual abuse, or 
an attempt to kill, sha ll be fined under this 
title. or imprisoned for a ny t erm of years or for 
life, or both, or may be sen tenced to death. 

(June 25, 1948, ch. 645, 62 Stat. 696; Pub. L. 90-284, 
title I , § 103(b), Apr. 11, 1968, 82 Stat. 75; Pub. L . 
100-690, title VII, §7019, Nov. 18. 1988, 102 Stat. 
4396; Pub. L. 103--322, title VI, §60006(b), title 
XXXII, §§320103(b), 320201(b), title xxxm, 
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18 u.s.c. § 1951 

Section 1951 - Interference with commerce by threats or violence 

(a) Whoever in any way or degree obstructs, delays, or affects commerce or the movement 

of any article or commodity in commerce, by robbery or extortion or attempts or conspires 
so to do, or commits or threatens physical violence to any person or property in furtherance 

of a plan or purpose to do anything in violation of this section shall be fined under this title 

or imprisoned not more than twenty years, or both. 
(b) As used in this section-

(_!) The term "robbery" means the unlawful taking or obtaining of personal property from 

the person or in the presence of another, against his will, by means of actual or threatened 
force, or violence, or fear of injury, immediate or future, to his person or property, or 
property in his custody or possession, or the person or property of a relative or member of 

his family or of anyone in his company at the time of the taking or obtaining. 

(2) The term "extortion" means the obtaining of property from another, with his consent, 

induced by wrongful use of actual or threatened force, violence, or fear, or under color of 
official right. 

(3) The term "commerce" means commerce within the District of Columbia, or any 

Territory or Possession of the United States; all commerce between any point in a State, 

Territory, Possession, or the Distri ct of Columbia and any point outside thereof; all 

commerce between points within the same State through any place outside such State; and 
all other commerce-over which the United States has jurisdiction. 

(c) This section shall not be construed to repeal, modi fy or affect section 17 of Title 15, 
sections 52, 10 1-11 5, 15 1-1 66 of Title 29 or sections 151-1 88 of Title 45. 

/8 u.s.c. § 1951 

June 25, 1948, ch. 645, 62 Slat. 793; Pub. L. 103-322, title XXX III , §33001 6( 1)(L), Sept. 

13, 1994, 108 Stat. 2147. 
fl/S TORICAL AND REVISION NOTES8ased an title 18. U.S.C .. /9./0 ed .. §§420a-420e-l (J1111e 18. /934. cli. 

569. §§1-6. 48 Stat. 979. 980: July J. 1946. ch. 537. 60 Swt. 420).Section co11sofidates sections 420a to 420e-l of 

Title I 8. U.S. C.. I 940 ed .. ll'ith changes in phraseology 011d arra11geme11111ecessm,• to effect 

co11so/idatio11.Provisio11s desig11a1i11g offense as felony ll'ere omilled as 111111ecessm,• in viell' of defi11ifil:e section I 

of this title. (See reviser's 1101e under section 550 of this title.) Subsection (c) of the revised section is deril'ed jium 

title II of the 1946 ame11d111e11t. It substitutes references to spec{fic sections of the United States Code, /940 ed .. i11 

place of references ta 11ume1um acts of Congress. in co11fom1i~v to the s~vle of the revision bill. S11bsectio11 (c) as 

rephrm·ed will preclude a11y co11stmclio11 of implied repeal of the lpecijied acts of Congress codified in tlie 

sections enumerated. The ,rords "al/empts or conspires so to do" ll'ere substit111ed for sections 3 and 4 of tlie 1946 

act. 0111i11i11g as u1111ecessm,· the ll'Ords "participa1es i11 au a11emp1" and 1he ll'Oirls "or ac1s i11 co11cer1 ,ri//1 

01101/,er or ll'ilh others". i11 vie11• of sec1io11 2 of this title 11'11icli makes a11y person ll'lio participa!es i11 011 1111/a11f11/ 
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1 
,, 

No one shall be subjected to torture or to cruel, inhuman or 
degrading treatment or punishment. 

UNIVERSAL D ECLARATION OF HUMAN RIGHTS (1948, art. 5) 
INTERNATIONAL COVENANT ON CIVIL AND POLITICAL RIGHTS ( 197 6, aii. 7) 

[T]he term "torture" means any act by which severe pain or 
suffering, whether physical or mental, is intentionally inflicted on a 
person for such purposes as obtaining from him or a third person infor­
mation or a confession, punishing him for an act he or a third person 
has committed or is suspected of having committed, or intimidating 
or coercing him or a third person, or for any reason based on discrim­
ination of any kind, when such pain or suffering is inflicted by or at 
the instigation of or with the consent or acquiescence of a public offi­
cial or other person acting in an official capacity. It does not include 
pain or suffering arising only from, inherent in or incidental to lawful 
sanctions. 

CONVENTION AGAINST TORTURE AND OTHER CRUEL, INHUMAN OR 

D EGRADING TREATMENT OR PUNISHMENT (1984, art. 1, para.1) 
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, 

1111:::.; Ll B RARY OF -= CONGRESS 

A bill of rights as provided in the ten original amendments to the constitution of the 
United States in force December 15, 1791. [n. p. 195-]. 

A Bill of Rights as provided in the Ten Original Amendments to The Constitution of the United States 
in force December 15, 1791 . 

Article I 

Congress shall make no law respecting an establishment of religion, or prohibiting the free exercise 
thereof; or abridging the freedom of speech, or of the press: or the right of the people peaceably to 
assemble, and to petit ion the Government for a redress of grievances. 

Article II 

A well regulated Mil itia, being necessa ry to the security of a free State, the right of the people to keep 
and bear Arms, shal l not be infringed. 

Article Ill 

No Soldier shall, in time of peace be quartered in any house, without the consent of the Owner, nor 
in time of war, but in a manner to be prescribed by law. 

Article IV 

The right of the people to be secure in their persons, houses, papers, and effects, against 
unreasonable searches and seizures, shall not be violated, and no Warrants shall issue, but upon 
probable cause, supported by Oath or affirmation, and particu larly describing the place to be 
searched, and the persons or things to be seized. 

Article V 

No person shall be held to answer for a capita l, or otherwise infamous crime, unless on a 
presentment or indictment of a Grand Jury, except in cases arising in the land or naval forces, or in 
the Militia, when in actual service in time of War or public danger; nor shall any person be subject for 
the same offence to be twice put in jeopardy of life or limb; nor shal l be compelled in any Criminal 
Case to be a witness against himself, nor be deprived of life, liberty, or property, without due process 
of law; nor shall private property be taken for public use, without just compensation. 

Article VI 

A bill of rights as provided in the ten original amendments to the constitution of the United States in force December 15, 1791. [n. 

p. 195-]. http://www.loc.gov/resource/rbpe.24404400 
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determination of personal inju1y awards or wrongful 
death claims from the bankruptcy court's core judicial 
authority. 28 U.S.C. § I 57(b )(2)(0). 

Bankruptcy courts may also hear "related 
non-core" proceedings. Cf In re Gallucci, 93 1 F.2d 
738 ( I I th Cir. 1991) (bankruptcy court may not hear 
non-core, nonrelated matters). A proceeding "relates 
to" a bankruptcy case if its outcome affects the 
amount of property available for distribution of the 
allocation of property to creditors. In re Emerald 
Acquisition Co,p., 170 B.R. 632 (Bankr. N.D. Ill. 
1994). In a non-core related case, absent the consent 
of the parties, the bankruptcy court must submit 
findings of fact and conclusions of law to the district 
court, which then enters judgment in the case. 28 
U.S.C. § 157(c)(l) and (2). Case law has defined 
"related proceedings" as those proceedings that, in the 
absence ofa petition in bankruptcy, the parties could 
bring in a state or district court. See Moody v. Amoco 
Oil Company, 734 F.2d 1200 (7th Cir. l 984) cert. 
den'd, 469 U.S. 982 ( 1984). See also, In re Best 
Prod. Co., Inc. , 168 B.R. 35 (Bankr. S.D. N.Y. 1994). 

The bankruptcy judge determines whether a 
matter is core or non-core. Eubanks v. Esenjay Petro. 
Co,p., 152 B.R. 459 (E.D. La. 1993). The judge may 
make this determination on her own motion or upon 
the timely motion ofa party. 28 U.S.C. § 157(b)(3). 
The bankruptcy judge's dete1mination that a 
proceeding is core -- either express or implied from his 
entering a final order -- is presumably subject to 
review on appeal. However, tmless the objecting party 
appeals the detennination in a timely fashion and the 
cou11 reverses its decision, the final judgment or order 
will bind the parties even though the matter may have 
been truly non-core. See Du Voisin v. Foster (In re 
Southern lndust. Banking Corp.), 809 F.2d 329, 331 
(6th Cir. 1987). 

5. Jurisdiction Over Property 
28 U.S.C. § J334(e) grants the bank ruptcy court 

exclusive jurisdiction over all property, wherever 
located, of the debtor and the estate as of the 
conunencement of the case. This section makes clear 
that a bankruptcy proceeding constitutes, in large 
measure, an in rem action for the purposes of 
collection, liquidation, and distribution of an estate. 
To this end, the bankruptcy court has exclusive 
j urisdiction over virtually all the debtor's p roperty 
interests, dispute~ ownership or lien interests in that 
property and about its disposition. In general, the 
property is accorded the bankruptcy court's protection, 
even if it was subject to the jurisdiction of another 
court at the time the bankruptcy petition was filed. 
This j urisdictional provision directly affects any 

Advanced Family Law Course 

divorce action the non-debtor spouse may seek to 
commence or which is ongoing when the bankruptcy 
proceeding is filed. Absent abstention by the 
bankruptcy court of its exclusive jurisdiction over the 
debtor's property, the state court may not exercise 
jurisdiction over property of the debtor or property of 
the banlauptcy estate. See e.g., ln re Palmer, 78 B.R. 
402, 405-06 (Bankr. E.D.N.Y. 1987). 

F. Bankruptcy Administration 
One matter causing confusion and frustration to 

non bankruptcy practitioners is the number of parties 
involved in the administration of the bankruptcy case. 
These parties include the bankruptcy judge, the United 
States Trustee's office, a panel or private trustee, the 
estate's professionals and, in limited circumstances, 
examiners. While a detailed discussion of the roles of 
each of these parties to a bankruptcy case would 
provide a topic for an entirely separate paper, a brief 
description is necessary for understanding the basics 
ofbankrnptcy. 

l. The Banknmtcy Judge 
Although technically not an "administrator," the 

bankruptcy judge (as described above) presides over 
cases and proceedings before the bankruptcy court. 
The role of the bankruptcy judge is comparable to that 
of other judges, i.e., to act as a finder of fact and to 
make conclusions of law based on presentation of 
evidence and argument to the court. The absence of 
the bankruptcy judge in administration is a noteworthy 
development of modem bankruptcy. Prior to the 
enactment of the Bankruptcy Code, the bankruptcy 
judge not only exercised judicial decision-making 
authority, but also supervised the administration of 
bankruptcy cases. The dual-role of the bankruptcy 
judge was, in the opinion of many, the most glaring 
defect in the former bankruptcy system. The very 
nature of administrative duties imposed by the court 
under the Bankruptcy Act encouraged, if not required 
informal contact among the bankruptcy judge, 
lawyers, and others participating in the bankruptcy 
administration. For this reason, the Bankruptcy Code 
separates the judicial and administrative functions. 
The United States Trustee's Office performs the 
administrative functions previously handled by 
bankruptcy judges. 
2. The United States Trustee 

The United States Trustee operates under the 
supervision of the United States Attorney General. 
The twenty-one regions, which consist of groups of 
federal judicial districts, comprise the United States 
Trustee system. 28 U.S.C. § 58 1 (a). The Attorney 
General appoints a United States Trustee for each 
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§ 1334 TITLE 28-JUDICIARY AND JUDICIAL PROCEDURE Page 346 

Stat. 1091. 1160; Oct. 6. 1917. cb. 97. §§1. 2. 40 Stat. 395; 
June 10. 1922. cb. 216. §§ 1. 2. 42 Stat. 634) . 

Section consolidates cer tain prov isions of secti ons 
41(3). 371(3) and 371(4) of t i t l e 28. U.S.C., 1940 eel. Ot her 
prov i si ons of sections 41(3) and 371(4), r elat ing to sei­
zures. ar e Incor por at ed in section 1356 of this tit le. (See 
reviser·s note t her eunder.) 

The " saving to suitors" clause in secti ons 41(3) and 
371(3) of t i t l e 28. U.S.C .. 19•10 eel .. was changed by sub­
stituting the words "any other remedy to whi ch he i s 
o therwise entitlec1·· for t he words " the r ight of a com­
mon l aw r emedy where t he common law is compet ent 
t o give i t :· The substi t u ted l anguage Is si mpler and 
m or e expressive of the or ig inal Int ent of Congress and 
is i n conformi ty wit h Rule 2 of t he F ederal Rules of 
Civil Procedure abolishing t he distinction between l aw 
and equity . 

Provisi ons of section 41(3) of ti tle 28. U.S.C .. 1940 ed .. 
based on t he 1917 and 1922 amendments. relating to 
remedies under State work men's compensation laws. 
wer e deleted. Such amendm ents wer e held unconst i tu­
tional by t he Supreme Court. (See Knickerbock er Ice Co. 
v . Stewart, 1920. 40 S.Ct. 438, 253 U .S. 149, 64 L .Ecl. 834. 
and State of Washington v. W. C. Dawson & Co., 1924. 44 
S.Ct. 302. 264 U.S. 219. 68 L .Ecl. 646.) 

Words " libellan t or petitioner" were subst i t uted for 
"sui t ors·· to descr ibe m oving party in admiral t y cases. 

Changes were m ade i n phraseology. 

1949 ACT 

This sect ion amends section 1333(a)(l) of t itl e 28, 
U .S.C .. by substi tuti ng "suitors" for " libellant or peti ­
tioner •· t o conform to t he l anguage of t he l aw i n exist­
ence at the time of t he enact ment of t he revision of 
t i t l e 28. 

AMENDM ENTS 

1949- Subcl. (1) . Act May 24, 1949, substituted "sui t ­
ors" for " llbellant or petit ioner " . 

§ 1334. Bankruptcy cases and proceedings 

(a Except as provided in subsection (b) of th is 
section, the district courts shall have original 
and exclusive jurisdiction of all cases under title 
11. 

(b) Except as providecl in s ubsection (e)(2), and 
notwithstanding any Act of Congress t hat con­
fers exclusive jurisdiction on a court or cou1·ts 
other than the district courts, the district 
courts shall have original but not exclusive ju­
risdiction of a ll civil proceedings arising under 
t i t le 11, or a rising in or related to cases under 
title 11. 

(c)(l ) Except with respect to a case under 
chapter 15 of t i t le 11, nothing in this section pre­
vents a district couTt in the interest of justice, 
or in the interest of comity with State courts or 
respect for State law, from abstaining from 
h earing a pa rticula r proceeding aris ing under 
t i tle 11 or a rising in or related to a case u nder 
title 11. 

(2) Upon timely motion of a party in a pro­
ceeding based upon a State law claim o • State 
law cause of action, related to a case under title 
11 but not arising under title 11 or arising in a 
case under title 11, with respect to which an ac­
tion could not have been commenced in a court 
of the United States absent jurisdiction under 
this section, t he district court sha ll abstain 
from hearing such proceeding if an action is 
commenced, and can be timely adjudicated, in a 
State forum of appropriate jurisdiction. 

(d) Any decision to a bs tain or not to abstain 
m ade under subsection (c) (other th an a decision 
not to abstain in a proceeding described in sub-

sect ion (c)(2)) is not revlewable by appeal or 
oth er wise by the court of appeals under section 
158(d), 1291, or 1292 of this t i t le or by the Su­
preme Court of t he Uni ted Stat es under sec tion 
1254 of this tit le . Subsection (c) and this sub­
section sha11 not be construed to limit the appli­
cability of the stay provided for by section 362 of 
title 11, United States Code, as such section ap­
plies to an action a ffecting the property of the 
estate in bankruptcy. 

(e) The district court in which a case under 
t itle 11 is commenced or is pending shall have 
exclusive jurisdict ion-

(D of all the property, wherever located, of 
the debtor as of the comm encement of such 
case, and of property of the estate~ and 

(2) over a ll claims or causes of action that 
involve construction of section 327 of title 11, 
United States Code, or rules relating to disclo­
sure requirements under section 327. 

(Jun e 25, 1948, ch . 646, 62 Stat . 931; Pub. L. 96--598, 
t i tle II, §238(a), Nov. 6, 1978, 92 S ta t. 2667; P ub . L. 
98---353, title I , § lOl(a), July 10, 1984, 98 Stat . 333; 
P ub. L. 9~54, t itle I , § 144(e), Oc t . 27, 1986, 100 
Stat. 3096; P ub. L . 101- 650, t i t le m , §309(b), Dec. 
1, 1990, 104 Stat. 5113; Pub. L. 103'"'394, tit le I , 
§ 104(b), Oct. 22, 1994, 108 Stat. 4109; Pub. L. 109-8, 
t i t le III , §324(a), title VIII, §802(c)(2), title XII, 
§ 1219, Apr. 20, 2005, 119 Stat. 98, 145, 195.) 

HISTORICA L AND R EVISION NOT ES 

Based on titl e 28, U.S.C .. 1940 eel., §§41(19) and 371(6) 
(Mar . 3. 1911. ch. 231. §§ 24. par. 19. 256. par. 6. 36 Stat. 
1093, 1160). 

Changes In phraseology were made. 

AMEN DMENT S 

2005-Subsec. (b). Pub. L . l Os-8. §324(a)(l), substituted 
" Except as provided In subsect ion (e)(2). and notwit h­
standing" for "Notwithstan ding". 

Subsec. (c)(l ). Pub. L. lOs-8. §802(c)(2). substituted 
" Except with r espect to a case u nder chapter 15 of t i t l e 
11, not h ing in " for " Nothing In " . 

Subsec. (cl). Pub. L . 109-8. § 1219, substitu ted ·•made 
under subsection (c)"" for " made under this subsection·· 
and " Subsection (c) and th is subsection" for " This sub­
sect i on " . 

Subsec. (e). Pub. L. 109-8. §324(a)(2), aclcled subsec. (e) 
and st ruck out f01•mer subsec. (e) wh ich read as follows; 
" The distric t cour t I n whi ch a case under t i tle 11 is 
commenced or i s pending shall have excl usi ve jurisdic­
t i on of all of t he propert y. wher ever l ocated, of the 
debtor as of t he com mencemen t of such case, and of 
proper t y of t he estate.,. 

1994-Subsecs. (c)(2), (d). Pub. L. 103--394. § 104(b )(2). i n­
ser ted ' ·(ot her than a deci si on not to abstain in a pro­
ceeding clescribecl in subsection (c)(2))" after "sub­
section" in second sentence of subsec. (c)(2) and cles­
lgnatecl that sen tence and t hi rd sentence of subsec. 
(c)(2) as subsec. (cl). Former subsec. ( cl) r ecleslgnatecl (e) . 

Subsec. (e). Pub. L. 103--394, § 104(b)(l ) , recleslgnatecl 
subsec. (cl) as (e). 

1990-Subsec. (c)(2). Pub. L. 101-650 Inserted in second 
sen tence " or not to abstain" af ter "to abstain" and "by 
t he court of appeal s under section 158(d) . 1291, or 1292 of 
t hi s t i tle or by t he Supreme Cour t of t he Uni t ed States 
under section 1254 of t his t i t le" before period at end. 

1986-Subsec. (cl). Pub. L. 99-554 substit uted "and of 
property of the estate·· for ··and of t he estate··. 

1984-Pub. L. 913-353 i n amending section generally . 
substi t uted ·'cases" for " matters•· in section ca tchllne. 
clesi gnatecl existing provision as subsec. (a), and In sub­
sec. (a) as so clesignatecl. substi tuted " Except as pro­
v l clecl I n subsect ion (b) of th i s section, the district" for 
" The distri c t •· and " or i gi nal and excl usive jurisdic tion 
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of all cases under title 11'' for "original Jurisdicti on. 
exclusive of t he courts of the States. of all matters and 
proceedings in bankruptcy•·. and added subsecs. (b) to 
(d). 

1978--Pub. L. 95-598 directed t he general amendment 
of section to relate to bankruptcy appeals. whi ch 
amendment did not become effective pursuant to sec­
t i on 402(b) of Pub. L. 95-598. as amended. set out as an 
Effective Date note preceding secti on 101 of Ti tle 11. 
Bankruptcy. 

EFFECTIVE D ATE OF 2005 AMENDMENT 

Pub. L . 109-8. title III. §324(b ). Apr. 20. 2005. 119 Stat. 
98. provided that: " This section [amending this secti on) 
shall only appl y to cases filed af ter the date of enact ­
ment of t his Act [Apr. 20. 2005)." 

Amendment by sections 802(c)(2) and 1219 of Pub. L. 
109-8 effecti ve 180 days after Apr.20. 2005. and not appli­
cable with r espect to cases comm enced under Title 11. 
Bankruptcy. before such effective date, except as oth er­
wise provided. see secti on 1501 of Pub. L. 109-8. set out 
as a note under section 101 of Title 11. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 1994 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by Pub. L. 103-394 effective Oct . 22, 1994. 
and not applicabl e wi t h 1·espect to cases commenced 
under T itle 11. Bankruptcy. before Oct. 22. 1994, see sec­
t i on 702 of Pub. L. 103-394. set out as a note under sec­
t ion 101 of Titl e 11. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 1986 AMENDMlsNT 

Amendment by Pub. L. 99-551 effective 30 days after 
Oct. 27. 1986. see section 302(a) of Pub. L . 99-554. set out 
as a note under section 581 of this title. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 1984 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by Pub. L. 98-353 effective July 10, 1984. 
except t hat subsec. (c)(2) not applicabl e with respect to 
cases under Title 11. Bankruptcy, that are pending on 
July 10. 1984. or to proceedings arising in or related to 
such cases. see section 122(a). (b) of Pub. L. 98--353. set 
out as an Effective Date note under section 151 of t his 
t i t l e. 

JURISDICTION OVER AND TRANSFER OF BANKRUPTCY 
CASES AND PROCEEDINGS 

Pub. L. 98--353. t i t l e I. §115. July 10. 1984. 98 Stat. 343, 
provided t hat: 

" (a) On the date of the enactment of t his Act [Jul y 
10. 1984) the appropriate distr ict court of the United 
States shall have Jurisdicti on of-

"(1) cases. and matters and proceedings in cases. 
under t he Bankruptcy Act [forme1· Title 11. Bank­
ruptcy) that ar e pending immediatel y before such 
date in the bankrnptcy cour ts con tinued by section 
404(a) of the Act of November 6. 1978 (Public L aw 
95-598: 92 Stat. 2687) [former l y set out as a note pre­
ceding section 151 of t his titl e) . and 

"(2) cases under titl e 11 of t he United States Code, 
and proceedings arising under titl e 11 of t he United 
States Code or arising In or related to cases u.ncler 
t i t l e 11 of the United States Code. t hat are pending 
Immediately before such elate In t he bankruptcy 
courts continued by section 404(a) of t he Act of No­
vember 6. 1978 (Public L aw 95-598: 92 Stat. 2687). 
"(b) On t he date of the enactmen t of t his Act (July 

10. 1984). t here shall be transferred to t he appropriate 
distr ict court of the United States appeal s from final 
judgments. orders. and decrees of t he banlcruptcy 
courts pending immediately before such elate in the 
bankruptcy appellate panels appointed under section 
405(c) of t he Act of November 6. 1978 (Public L aw 95-598: 
92 Stat. 2685) [formerly set out as a note preceding sec­
t i on 1471 of t his titl e]." 

§ 1335. lnterpleader 

(a) The district courts sha ll have original ju­
r scliction of any civil action of interpleader or 

in the nature of interpleacler filed by any per son, 
firm, or corpora tion, associa tion, 01· society ha v­
ing in his or its cus tody or possession money or 
proper ty of the value of $500 or more, or having 
issued a note , bond, cer t ificate, policy of insur­
ance, or other instrument of vafue or amount of 
$500 or more, or providing for the delivery or 
payment or the loan of money or proper ty of 
such amount or va lue, or being under any obli­
gation written or unwritten to the amount of 
$500 or more, if 

(1) Two or more adverse c la imants, of diverse 
citizenship as defined in subsection (a) or (d) of 
section 1332 of this title, ar e cla iming or may 
claim to be entitled to such money or property, 
or to any one or more of the benefi ts arising by 
virt ue of any note, bond, certificate, policy or 
other instrument, or a rising by virtue of any 
such obligation; and if (2) the plaintiff has de­
posited such money or property or has paid the 
amount of or the loan or other value of such in­
strument or the amount due under such obliga­
tion into the registry of the cour t, there to 
abide the judgment of the court, or has given 
bond payable to the clerk of the court in such 
amount and with such surety as the court or 
judge may deem proper, conditioned upon the 
compliance by the plaintiff with the fut ure 
order or judgment of the court with respect to 
the subject matter of the cont roversy. 

(b) Such a n action may be ente1·tained a l­
though the titles or claims of the conflicting 
claimants do not have a common origin, or are 
not ident ica l, but are adverse to and independ­
ent of one another. 
(June 25, 1948, ch. 646, 62 Sta t. 931; Pub. L. 109-2, 
§4(b)(l), Feb. 18, 2005, 119 Stat. 12.) 

HISTORICAL AND REVISION NO'l'ES 

Based on title 28. U.S.C .. 1940 ed .. §41(26) (Mar. 3. 1911. 
ch. 231. §24. par. 26. as aclded J an. 20. 1936, ch. 13. §1. 49 
Stat. 1096). 

Words "ci vil action·· were substi t u ted for "sui ts in 
equity· •; word "plaintiff' was substit uted for "com­
plainant": and word "Judgment" was substituted for 
"decr ee." i n order to make t he language of t his section 
conform wit h t he Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. 

The words "duly ver ified" following " in the nature of 
interpleader:· near t he beginning of the section. wer e 
omi tted. Under Rule 11 of the Federa l Rul es of Civil 
Procedure pleadings are no longer required to be veri­
fied or accompanied by a ffidavit unless specially re­
quired by statute. A l though verification was specially 
required by section 41(26) of title 28. U .S.C .. 1940 eel .. t he 
need t her efor i s not apparent. 

Provisions of section 41(26)(b> of t itle 28. U.S.C .. 1940 
ed .. relating to venue are the basi s of section 1397 of 
this ti t i e. (See. also. revi ser's note under sai d section.) 

Subsections (c) and (d) of said section 41(26) relating 
to issuance of injunctions constitute section 2361 of 
t his title. (See reviser 's note under said section.) 

Subsection (e) of such section 41(26). relating to de­
fense In nature of interpleader and joinder of additional 
parties, was omitted as unnecessary, such matters 
being govemed by t he F eder al Rules of Civil Procedure. 

Changes wer e made in phraseology. 

AMENDMEN'l'S 

2005-Subsec. (a)(l ). Pub. L. 109-2 inserted "subsection 
(a) or (d) or• before •·section 1332" . 

EFFECTIVE DATE m• 2005 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by Pub. L . 109-2 applicable t o any civil 
action commenced on or after Feb. 18. 2005, see secti on 
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attach thereto an affidavit, made by himself or 
by his duly authorized attorney or agent having 
knowledge of the facts, that such item is correct 
and has been necessarily incurred in the case 
and that the services for which fees have been 
charged were actually and necessarily per­
formed. 

(June 25, 1948, ch. 646, 62 Stat. 957.) 

HISTORICAL AND REVISION NOTES 

Based on title 28. U.S.C .. 1940 eel., §831 (R.S. §984: June 
10. 1921. ch. 18. §304. 42 Stat. 21). 

Section a,s revised conforms to existing Federal Prac­
tice. See note to subdivision (cl) of Rule 54 of the Fed­
eral Rules of Civil Procedure. For discussion as to ver­
ification of bill of costs under exi sting practice, see-8 
Hughes. Federal Practi ce. Jurisdiction and Procedure­
Civil and Criminal. § 6441. 

Words "or allowed by th e General Accounting Office•· 
were omitted as unnecessary. That office will not allow 
items in a t ax b ill for costs against the United States 
unless such bill has been taxed by t he cour t, and the 
court. under this section. cannot tax as costs i tems in 
an unverified bil l. 

Changes were made in phraseology. 

§ 1925. Admiralty and maritime cases 

Except as otherwise provided by Act of Con­
gress, the allowance and taxation of costs in ad­
miralty and maritime cases shall be prescribed 
by rules promulgated by the Supreme Court. 

(June 25, 1948, ch. 646, 62 Stat. 957.) 

HISTORICAL AND REVISION NOTES 

This section was drafted to mal,e possible the pro­
mulgation of comprehensi ve and uniform r ules govern­
ing costs in admiralty. Various enactments of Con­
gress. all over 100 years old. relate to particular fea­
tures of such matter. but do not set forth any compre­
hensive and uniform procedure. See, for example, sec­
tions 818. 826. ancl 827 of title 28. U .S.C .. 1940 ed. 

§ 1926. Court of Federal Claims 

(a) The Judicial Conference of the United 
States shall prescribe from time to time the fees 
a nd costs to be charged a nd collected in t he 
United States Court of Federal Claims. 

(b) The court and its officers sh all collect only 
such fees and costs as the Judicial Conference 
prescribes. The court may require advance pay­
ment of fees by rule. 

(June 25, 1948, ch. 646, 62 Stat. 957; Pub. L. 97-164, 
title I, §139(p)(l ), Apr. 2, 1982, 96 Stat. 44; Pub. L. 
102-572, title IX, § 902(b). Oct. 29, 1992, 106 Stat. 
4516.) 

HJSTORICAL AND REVISION NOTES 

Based on title 28, U.S.C .. 1940 ed .. §304 (Mar. 3, 1911. 
ch. 231. §191. 36 Stat. 1144) . 

For distribution of other provisions of section 304 of 
t i tle 28. U.S.C .. 1940 ed .. see Distr ibution Tabl e. 

Changes were m ade in phraseology. 

AMENDMENTS 

1992-Pub. L. 102--572 substitu ted " Court of Federal 
Claims'" for "Cl aims Court" as section catchline and 
"United States Court of Federal Claims·• for "Un ited 
States Claims Court·· in subsec. (a). 

1982-Pub. L. 97- 164 substituted "Claims Court·· for 
"Court of Customs and Patent Appeals'" as section 
catchline and. in text substituted provi si ons directing 
t he Judicial Conference of the United States to pre­
scribe from tim e to time t he fees and costs to be 

charged and collected in the United States Claims 
Court and directing the court and its officers to collect 
only such fees and costs as the Judicial Conference pre­
scribes. with the cour t au thorized to require advance 
payment of fees by rule for prov isions which had di ­
rected that fees and costs in the Court of Customs and 
Patent Appeals be fixed by a table of fees adopted by 
such cmtrt and approved by tile Supreme Court . t hat 
the fees and costs so fixed not exceed t he fees and costs 
charged in the Supreme Cour t. and that the fees be ac­
counted for and paid over to the •rreasury. 

EFl-"ECTIVE DATE 01' 1992 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by Pub. L . 102--572 effective Oct. 29. 1992. 
see section 911 of Pub. L. 102--572. set out as a note 
under section 171 of this title. 

El'F'ECTI\IE DATE OF 1982 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by Pub. L. 97- 164 effective Oct. 1. 1982. 
see section 402 of Pub. L. 97- 164. set out a,s a note under 
section 171 of t his title. 

COURT FEES FOR ELECTRONIC ACCESS TO I NFORMATION 

Judicial Conference to prescribe reasonable fees for 
collection by cou1·ts under thi s secti on for access to in­
formation avail able t hrough automatic data processing 
equipment and fees to be deposited in Judiciary Auto­
mat ion Fund, see section 303 of Pub. L. 102--110. set out 
as a note unde1· section 1913 of this title. 

§ 1927. Counsel's liability for excessive costs 

Any attorney or other person admitted to con­
duct cases in any colll't of the United States or 
any Territory thereof who so multiplies the pro­
ceedings in any case unreasonably and vexa­
t iously may be required by t he court to satisfy 
personally t he excess costs. expenses, and attor­
neys' fees reasonably incurred because of such 
conduct. 
(June 25, 1948, ch. 646, 62 Stat. 957; Pub. L. 96-349, 
§3, Sept. 12, 1980, 94 Stat. 1156.) 

HJSTORICAL AND REVISION NOTES 

Based on title 28. U.S.C .. 10,10 eel., §829 (R.S. §982). 
Word "personally'" was i nserted upon authori ty of 

Motion Picture Patents Co. v. Steiner et al., 1912. 201 F. 63, 
119 C.C.A. 401. Reference to " proct or· • was omitted as 
covered by the r evised section. 

See definition of "court of the United States•· i n sec­
tion 451 of this t i tle. 

Changes were made in phraseology. 

AMENDMENTS 

1980- Pub. L. 96-319 substituted judici al authorization 
to require attorneys to satisfy excess costs, expenses. 
and attorneys· fees reasonably i ncurred because of mul­
tiplication of proceedings for such prior authori ty to 
impose liability for increased cost s based on mul ­
tiplication of proceedings. 

§ 1928. Patent infringement action; disclaimer 
not filed 

Whenever a judgment is rendered for the 
plaintiff in a ny patent infringement action in­
volving a part of a patent and it appears that 
the patentee, in his specifications. claimed to 
be . but was not. the original a nd first inventor 
or discoverer of any material or substantia l part 
of t he thing patented, no costs shall be included 
in such judgmen t, unless the proper disclaimer 
has been filed in the Uni ted States Patent and 
Trademark Office prior to the commencement of 
t h e action. 
(June 25, 1948, ch. 646, 62 Stat. 957; Pub. L. 
106-113, div. B. §1000(a)(9) [title IV. §4732(b)(17)], 
Nov. 29, 1999, 113 Stat. 1536, 1501A-585.) 
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AMENDMENT S 

2008- Subsecs. (e) to (h). Pub. L. 110-325 added s ub­
secs. (e) to (h). 

EFFECTIVE DATE 0~' 2008 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by Pub. L . 110-325 effective J a n . 1. 2009. 
see section 8 of Pub. L. 110-325. set out as a note under 
section 705 or Title 29. Labor. 

§ 12202. State immunity 

A State shall not be immune under the elev­
enth amendment to the Constitution of the 
United States from an action in I Federa l or 
State court of competent jurisdiction for a vio­
lation of this chapter. In any action against a 
State for a violation of the requirements of this 
chapter, remedies (including remedies both at 
law and in equity) are available for such a viola­
tion to the same extent as such remedies are 
available for such a violation in an action 
against any public or private entity other than 
a State. 

(Pub. L. 101-336, title V, §502, July 26, 1990, 104 
Stat. 370.) 

R EFERENCES I N T EXT 

This chapter. r eferred to in text. was in t h e origina l 
'·this Act··. meaning Pub. L. 101-336. July 26, 1990. 104 
Stat. 327. which ls c lassi fied principally to t his chapter . 
For complete c lassification or t his Act to t he Code. see 
Short Title note set out under section 12101 or this t itle 
a nd Tables. 

§ 12203. Prohibition against retaliation and coer­
cion 

(a) Retaliation 
No person shall discriminate against any indi­

vidual because such individual has opposed any 
act or practice made unlawful by this chapter or 
because such individual made a charge, testified, 
assisted. or participated in any manner in an in­
vestigation. proceeding, or hearing under this 
chapter. 
(b) Interference, coercion, or intimidation 

It shall be unlawful to coerce, intimidate, 
threaten, or interfere with any individual in the 
exercise or enjoyment of, or on account of his 01· 
her having exercised or enjoyed, 01· on account 
of his or her having aided or encouraged any 
other individual in the exercise or enjoyment of, 
any right granted or protected by this chapter. 
(c) Remedies and procedures 

The remedies and procedures available under 
sections 12117, 12133, and 12188 of this ti tie shall 
be available to aggrieved persons for violations 
of subsections (a) and (b), with res pect to sub­
chapter I, subchapter II and subchapter III, re­
spect! vely. 

(Pub. L. 101- 336, title V, §503, July 26, 1990, 104 
Stat. 370.) 

R EFERENCES IN T EXT 

This chapter. r efe rred to in subsecs. (a) a nd (b) . was 
in t he origina l "this Act··. meaning Pub. L. 101- 336. 
July 26. 1990. 104 Stat. 327. which ls c lassified prin­
cipally to this chapter. For complete c lassification or 
t his Act to t he Code. see Short Ti tle note set out under 
section 12101 of this t i tie and Tables. 

1 So In orig inal. Probably should be " In a "". 

CONS'l'l'l'U'l'IONALl'l'Y 

For constitutionali ty or section 503 or Pub. L. 101- 336, 
see Congressional Research Service. The Constitution 
or the United States or America: Analysis and Interpre­
tation, Appendix 1, Acts of Congress Held Unconstitu­
t iona l in Whole or in Part by the S upreme Court or the 
United States. 

§ 12204. Regulations by Architectural and Trans­
portation Barriers Compliance Board 

(a) Issuance of guidelines 
Not later than 9 months after July 26, 1990, the 

Arch itectural and Transpor tation Barriers Com­
pliance Board shall issue minimum guidelines 
that shall supplement the existing Minimum 
Guidelines and Requirements for Accessible De­
sign for purposes of subchapters II and m of this 
chapter. 
(b) Contents of guidelines 

The supplemental guidelines issued under sub­
section (a) shall establish additional require­
ments, consis tent with this chapter, to ensure 
that buildings, facilities, rail passenger cars, 
and vehicles are accessible, in terms of architec­
ture and design, transportation, and commu­
nication, to individua ls with disabilit ies. 
(c) Qualified historic properties 

(1) In gene ral 
The supplemental guidelines issued under 

subsection (a) shall include procedw·es and re­
quirements for a lterations that will threaten 
or destroy t he his toric significance of quali­
fied historic buildings and facilit ies as defined 
in 4.1.7(1)(a) of the Uniform Federa l Accessi­
bility Standards. 
(2) Sites eligible for listing in National Reg ister 

With respect to a lterations of buildings or 
facili t ies that are eligible for listing in the Na­
t ional Regis ter of Historic Places under divi­
sion A of subtitle m of t itle 54, the guidelines 
described in pa ragraph (1) shall , at a min­
imum, maintain the procedw·es and require­
ments established in 4.1.7(1) and (2) of the Uni­
form Federal Accessibility Standa1·ds. 
(3) Other s ites 

With respect to alterations of buildings or 
facilities designated as historic under State or 
local law, the guidelines described in para­
graph (1) shall establish procedures equivalent 
to those established by 4.1.7(1)(b) and (c) of the 
Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards, and 
shall require, at a minimum, compliance wi th 
the requirements established in 4.1.7(2) of such 
standards. 

(Pub. L. 101-336, t itle V, §504, July 26, 1990, 104 
Stat. 370; Pub. L. 113-287, §5(k)(5}, Dec. 19, 2014, 
128 Stat. 3270.) 

REFERENCES I N TEXT 

This chapter. refer r ed t o in subsecs. (a) a nd (b), was 
In th e origina l "this Act". meaning Pub. L. 101- 336, 
July 26. 1990. 104 Stat. 327. which ls c lassified prin­
c ipally to this cha pter. For complete classification or 
this Act to t he Code. see Shor t T it le note set out under 
section 12101 or this tit le a nd Tables. 

AMENDMENT S 

2014- Subsec. (c)(2). Pub. L. 113- 287 s ubstituted " divi­
s ion A of s ubt l tie III of title 54" for "the Nat ional His­
toric Preservation Act (16 U.S.C. 470 et seq.)"'. 
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285.13 for standards defining when a 
"delinquency" is " resolved" for pur­
poses of this prohibition. 

(b ) Suspension or revocation of eligi­
bility for licenses, permits, or privileges. 
Unless prohibited by law, Treasury en­
tities should suspend or revoke li­
censes, permits, or oth er privileges for 
any inexcusable or willful failure of a 
debtor to pay a debt. The Treasury en­
t i ty responsible for distributing the li­
censes, permits, or other privileges will 
establish policies and procedures gov­
erning suspension and r evocation for 
delinquent debtors. If applicable, 
Treasury entities will advise the debtor 
in the notice required by § 5.4 of this 
part of the Treasury enti t ies' ability to 
suspend or r evoke licenses, permits or 
privileges. See§ 5.4(a)(16) of this part. 

§ 5.18 How does a debtor request a 
special review based on a change in 
circumstances such as catastrophic 
illness, divorce, death, or disability? 

(a) Material change in circumstances. A 
debtor who owes a Treasury debt may, 
at any time, r equest a special review 
by the applicable Treasury entity of 
t he amount of any offset, administra­
tive wage garnishment or voluntary 
payment, based on materially changed 
circumstances beyond the cont rol of 
t he debtor such as, but not limited to, 
catastrophic illness, divorce, death , or 
disability. 

(b) Inability to pay. For purposes of 
this section, in determining whether an 
involuntary or voluntary payment 
would prevent the debtor from m eeting 
essential subsist ence expenses (cost s 
incurred for food, housing, clothing, 
transportation., and m edical care), the 
debtor shall submit a detailed state­
ment and supporting documents for the 
debtor, his or her spouse, and depend­
ents, indicating: 

(1) Income from all sources; 
(2) Assets; 
(3) Liabilities; 
(4) Number of dependents; 
(5) Expenses for food, housing, cloth-

ing, and transpor tation; 
(6) Medical expenses; and 
(7) Exceptional expenses, if any. 
(c) Alternative payment arrangement. If 

the debtor r equests a special review 
under t his section , t he debtor shall 
submit an alterna tive proposed pay­
ment schedule and a statement to the 

31 CFR Subtitle A (7-1-19 Edition) 

Treasury ent ity collecting th e debt, 
with supporting documents, showing 
why the cur rent offset, garnishment or 
r epayment schedule imposes an ex­
t reme financial hardship on the debtor. 
The Treasury ent ity will evalua t e the 
st a tement and documentation and de­
t ermine whether the current offset , 
garnishment, or r epaym ent schedule 
imposes extreme financial ha rdship on 
t he debtor. The Treasury enti ty sh all 
notify the debtor in writing of such de­
terminat ion, including, if appropria t e, 
a revised offset , garnishment, or pay­
m ent schedule. If t he special review r e­
sults in a r evised offset, garnishment, 
or repayment schedule, the Treasury 
ent i ty will notify the appropria t e agen­
cy or other ersons about the new 
t erms . 

§ 5.19 Will Treasury entities issue a re­
fund if money is erroneously col­
lected on a debt? 

Treasury en t it ies shall promptly re­
fund to a debtor any amount collect ed 
on a Treasury debt when the debt is 
waived or otherwise found not to be 
owed to the United States, or as other­
wise r equired by law. Refunds under 
this part shall not bear interest unless 
required by law. 

Subpart C-Procedures for Offset 
of Treasury Department Pay­
ments To Collect Debts Owed 
to Other Federal Agencies 

§ 5.20 How do other Federal agencies 
use the offset process to collect 
debts from payments issued by a 
Treasury entity? 

(a) Offset of Treasury entity payments 
to collect debts owed to other Federal 
agencies. (1) In most cases, Federal 
agencies submit eligible debts to t he 
Treasury Offset Progr am to collect de­
linquen t debts from payments issued 
by Treasury en t ities and other Federal 
agencies, a process known as "central­
ized offset." When centralized offset is 
not available or appropriate, any Fed­
eral agency may ask a Treasury entity 
(when acting as a "payment agency") 
to collect a debt owed to such agency 
by offsetting funds payable to a debtor 
by the Treasury entity, including sal­
ary payments issued to Treasury enti­
ty employees. This section and § 5.21 of 
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I was not on State or Federal Assistance in Tennessee, but that was only because I was NOT 
provided with any NOTICE that I NEEDED to be. To have any chance at SURVIVING without being 
geographically DISPLACED, by hundreds of miles, to meet my most basic needs of SHELTER 
and FOOD. I never imagined I would be destroyed by a Court that refused to even HEAR me. 

§570.602 

(b) Execut ive Order 11063, as amended 
by Executive Order 12259 (3 CFR, 1959-
1963 Comp., p. 652; 3 CFR, 1980 Comp., p . 
307) (Equal Opportunity in Housing), 
and implementing regulations in 24 
CFR part 107, a lso apply . 

[61 FR 11477. Mar. 20. 1996, as a mended at 80 
FR 42368. July 16, 2015) 

§ 570.602 Section 109 of the Act. 
Section 109 of the Act requires that 

no person in the United States shall on 
the grounds of race , color, national ori­
gin, religion, or sex be excluded from 
participation in, be denied the benefits 
of, or be subjected to discrimination 
under any program or activity receiv­
ing Federal financia l assistance made 
available pursuant to the Act. Section 
109 a lso directs t hat the prohibitions 
against discrimination on the basis of 
age under the Age Discrimina tion Act 
and the prohibitions against discrimi­
nation on the basis of disability under 
Section 504 shall apply to programs or 
activities receiving Federal financial 
assistance under Title I programs. The 
policies and procedures necessary to 
ensure enforcement of section 109 are 
codified in 24 CFR par t 6. 

[64 FR 3802, J an. 25, 1999) 

§ 570.603 Labor standards. 
(a) Section ll0(a) of the Act contains 

labor standards that apply to nonvol­
unteer labor financed in whole or in 
part with assistance r eceived under the 
Act. In accordance with section ll0(a) 
of the Act, the Contract Work Hours 
and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327 
et seq.) a lso applies. However, these re­
quirements apply to the rehabilitation 
of r esidential property only if such 
property contains not less than 8 units. 

(b) The regula tions in 24 CFR part 70 
apply to the use of volunteers. 
[61 FR 11477. Mar. 20, 1996) 

§ 570.604 Environmental standards. 
For purposes of section 104(g) of the 

Act , t he regulations in 24 CFR par t 58 
specify the other provisions of law 
which further the purposes of the Na­
tional Environmenta l Policy Act of 
1969, and the procedures by which 
grantees must fulfill t heir environ­
menta l responsibilit ies. In cer tain 
cases, grantees assume these en viron-

24 CFR Ch. V (4-1-17 Edition) 

mental review, decisionmaking, and 
action responsibilities by execution of 
grant agreements with the Secretary . 

[61 FR 11477, Mar. 20, 1996] 

§ 570.605 National Flood Insurance 
Program. 

Notwithstanding the date of HUD ap­
proval of the recipient's application 
(or , in the case of grants made under 
subpart D of this part or HUD-adminis­
tered small cities recipients in Hawaii, 
the date of submission of the grantee's 
consolidated plan, in accordance with 
24 CFR part 91), section 202(a) of the 
Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 
(42 U.S.C. 4106) and the regulations in 
44 CFR parts 59 through 79 apply to 
funds provided under this part 570. 

[61 FR 11477, Mar. 20, 1996) 

* 570.606 Displacement, relocation, ac• 
quisition, and replacement of hous­
ing. 

(a) General policy for minimizing dis­
placement. Consistent with the other 
goals and objectives of this part , grant ­
ees (or States or state recipients, asap­
plicable) shall assure that they have 
taken a ll reasonable st eps to minimize 
the displacement of persons (families, 
individuals, businesses, nonprofit orga­
nizations, and farms) as a result of ac­
tivities assisted under this part. 

(b ) Relocation assistance [or displaced 
persons at URA levels. (1) A displaced 
person sha ll be provided wi th reloca­
t ion assistance a t the levels described 
in, and in accordance with the require­
men ts of 49 CFR part 24, which con­
tains the government-wide regulations 
implementing the Uniform Relocation 
Assistance and Real Property Acquisi­
t ion Policies Act of 1970 (URA) (42 
u.s .c. 4601-4655). 

(2) Displaced person. (i) For purposes 
of paragraph (b) of this section, the 
term "displaced person" means any per­
son (family, individual, business , non­
profit organization, or farm) tha t 
moves from real property, or moves his 
or her persona l property from real 
property, permanently and involun­
tarily, as a direct result of rehabilita­
t ion , demolition, or acquisi tion for an 
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I was FORCED out of my HALF-MILLION-DOLLAR BRENTWOOD HOME, with just a FIVE-DAY 
NOTICE, based entirely upon "Fraud Upon the Court by Officers of the Court", a Conspiracy Against 
my Rights, Under Color of Law, while denying my tenant's & I any LAWFUL (or ADA) considerations, 
required by LAW! PROFITTING NO ONE other than the COURT, COUNSEL and their "FRIENDS"! 

Ofc. of Asst. Secy., Comm. Planning, Develop., HUD §570.606 

activity assisted under this part. A per­
manent, involuntary move for an as­
sisted activi ty includes a permanent 
move from real property that is made: 

(A) After notice by the grantee (or 
the state recipient, if applicable) to 
move permanently from the property, 
if the move occurs after the initial offi­
cial submission to HUD (or the State, 
as applicable) for grant, loan, or loan 
guarantee funds under this part that 
are later provided or granted. 

(B) After notice by the property 
owner to move permanently from the 
property, if the move occurs after the 
date of the submission of a request for 
financia l assistance by the property 
owner (or person in control of the site) 
that is later approved for the requested 
activity. 

(C) Before the date described in para­
graph (b)(2)(i)(A) or (B) of this section, 
if either HUD or the grantee (or State, 
as applicable) determines that the dis­
placement directly resulted from ac­
quisition, rehabilitation, or demolition 
for t he requested activity. 

(D) After the "initiation of negotia­
tions" if the person is the tenant-occu­
pant of a dwelling unit and any one of 
the following three situations occurs: 

(1) The tenant has not been provided 
with a reasonable opportunity to lease 
and occupy a suitable decent, safe, and 
sani tary dwelling in the same building/ 
complex upon the com_pletion of the 
project, including a monthly rent that 
does not exceed the greater of the ten­
ant's monthly rent and estimated aver­
age utility costs before the initiation 
of negotiations or 30 percent of the 
household's average monthly gross in­
come; or 

(2) The tenant is required to relocate 
temporarily for the activity but the 
tenant is not offered payment for all 
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses in­
curred in connection with the tem­
porary relocation, including the cost of 
moving to and from the temporary lo­
cation and any increased housing costs, 
or other conditions of the temporary 
relocation are not reasonable; and the 
tenant does not return to the building/ 
complex; or 

(J) The tenant is required to move to 
another uni t in the building/complex, 
but is not offered reimbursement for 

a ll reasonable out-of-pocket expenses 
incurred in connection wi t h the move. 

(ii) Notwithstanding the provisions of 
paragraph (b)(2)(i) of this section, the 
term "displaced person-" does not in­
clude: 

(A) A person who is evicted for cause 
based upon serious or repeated viola­
tions of material terms of the lease or 
occupancy agreement. To exclude a 
person on this basis, the grantee (or 
State or state recipient, as applicable) 
must determine that t he eviction was 
not undertaken for the purpose of evad­
ing the obligation to provide relocation 
assistance under this section; 

(B) A person who moves into the 
property after the date of the notice 
described in paragraph (b)(2)(i)(A) or 
(B) of t his section, but who received a 
written notice of the expect ed displace­
ment before occupancy. 

(C) A person who is not displaced as 
described in 49 CFR 24.2(g)(2). 

(D) A person who the grantee (or 
State, as applicable) determines is not 
displaced as a direct result of the ac­
quisition, rehabilitation, or demolition 
for an assist ed activity. To exclude a 
person on this basis, HUD must concur 
in that determination. 

(iii) A grantee (or State or state re­
cipient, as applicable) may, at any 
time, request HUD to determine wheth­
er a person is a displaced person under 
this section . 

(3) Initiation of negotiations. For pur­
poses of determining the type of r e­
placement housing assistance to be 
provided under paragraph (b) of this 
section, if the displacement is the di­
rect resul t of privately undertaken re­
habilitation, demolition, or acquisition 
of real property, the term "initiation of 
negotiations" means the execu t ion of 
the grant or loan agreement between 
the grantee (or State or state recipi­
ent, as applicable) and the person own­
ing or controlling the real property. 

(c) Residential antidisplacement and re­
location assistance plan. The grantee 
shall comply with the requirements of 
24 CFR part 42, subpart B. 

(d) Optional relocation assistance. 
Under section 105(a)(ll) of the Act, the 
grantee may provide (or the State may 
permit the state recipient to provide, 
as applicable) relocation payments and 
other relocation assistance to persons 
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Judge Michael W. Binkley of the Will iamson County Chancery Court, in Franklin Tennessee, 
Attorney Virginia Lee Story, Attorney Kathryn Lynn Yarbrough, Clerk & Master Elaine Beaty Beeler, 
Bankruptcy Attorney Mary Beth Ausbrooks, Attorney Alexander Sergey Koval, Chapter-13 Trustee 
Henry Edward Hildebrand leveraged the WCSO in the commission & enforcement of FELONIES! 

§570.607 

displaced by activities that are not 
subject to paragraph (b) or (c) of this 
section. The grantee may also provide 
(or the State may also permit the state 
recipient to provide, as applicable) r e­
location assistance to persons receiv­
ing assistance under paragraphs (b) or 
(c) of this section at levels in excess of 
those required by these paragraphs. 
Unless such assistance is provided 
under State or local law, the grantee 
(or state recipient, as applicable) shall 
provide such assistance only upon the 
basis of a written determination that 
the assistance is appropriate (see, e .g., 
24 CFR 570.201(i), as applicable). The 
grantee (or state recipient, as applica­
ble) must adopt a written policy avail­
able to the public that describes the re­
location assistance that the grantee (or 
state recipient, as applicable) has 
elected to provide and that provides for 
equal relocation assistance within each 
class of displaced persons. 

( e) Acquisition of rnal property. The ac­
quisition of real property for an as­
sisted activity is subject to 49 CFR 
part 24, subpart B. 

(f) Appeals. If a person disagrees wi th 
the determination of t he grantee (or 
the state recipient, as applicable) con­
cerning the person's eligibility for, or 
the amount of, a relocation payment 
under this section , the per son may file 
a written a ppeal of t hat determination 
with the grantee (or s ta t e recipient, as 
a pplicable). The appeal procedures to 
be followed are described in 49 CFR 
24.10. In addition, a low- or moderate­
income household that has been dis­
placed from a dwelling may file a writ­
ten request for review of the grantee's 
decision to the HUD Field Office. F or 
purposes of tne State CDBG program, a 
low- or moderate-incom e household 
may file a written request for review of 
the stat e recipient's decision with the 
State. 

(g) Responsibilit'IJ of grantee or State. 
(1) The grantee (or State, if applicable) 
is r esponsible for ensuring compliance 
with t h e requirements of this section, 
notwithstanding any third party's con­
tractual obligation to the grantee to 
comply with t he provisions of this sec­
tion. For purposes of the State CDBG 
program, the State shall require state 
r ecipients to certify that they will 

24 CFR Ch. V (4-1-17 Edition) 

comply with the requirements of this 
section. 

(2) The cost of assistance required 
under this section may be paid from 
loca l public funds, funds provided 
under this part, or funds available from 
other sources. 

(3) The grantee (or State and state 
r ecipien t, as applicable) must maintain 
records in sufficient detail to dem­
onstrate compliance with the provi­
sions of t his section. 

(Approved by the Office of Management and 
Budget under 0MB control number 2506-0102) 

[61 FR 11477, Mar. 20, 1996, as amended at 61 
FR 51760, Oct. 3, 1996] 

§ 570.607 Employment and contracting 
opportunities. 

To the extent that they are otherwise 
applicable, grantees shall comply with: 

(a) Executive Order 11246, as amended 
by Executive Orders 11375, 11478, 12086, 
and 12107 (3 CFR 1964-1965 Comp. p. 339; 
3 CFR, 1966-1970 Comp., p. 684; 3 CFR, 
1966-1970., p. 803; 3 CFR, 1978 Comp., p. 
230; 3 CFR, 1978 Comp., p. 264 (Equal 
Employment Opportunity), and Execu­
tive Order 13279 (Equal Protection of 
the Laws for Faith-Based and Commu­
nity Organizations), 67 FR 77141, 3 CFR, 
2002 Comp., p. 258; and the imple­
menting regulations at 41 CFR chapter 
60; a nd 

(b) Section 3 of the Housing and 
Urban Development Act of 1968 (12 
U.S.C. 1701u) and implementing regula­
tions at 24 CFR part 135. 

[68 FR 56405, Sept. 30, 2003] 

§ 570.608 Lead-based paint. 
The Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Pre­

vention Act (42 U.S.C. 4821-4846), the 
Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard 
Reduction Act of 1992 (42 U.S.C. 4851-
4856), and implementing regulations at 
part 35, subparts A, B, J , K, and R of 
this part apply to activities under this 
program. 

[64 FR 50226, Sept. 15, 1999] 

§ 570.609 Use of debarred, suspended 
or ineligible contractors or sub­
recipients. 

The requirements set forth in 24 CFR 
part 5 apply to this program. 

[61 FR 5209, F eb. 9, 1996] 
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A bill of rights as provided in the ten original amendments to the constitution of the 
United States in force December 15, 1791. [n. p. 195-]. 

A Bill of Rights as provided in the Ten Original Amendments to The Constitution of the United States 
in force December 15, 1791 . 

Article I 

Congress shall make no law respecting an establishment of religion, or prohibiting the free exercise 
thereof; or abridging the freedom of speech, or of the press: or the right of the people peaceably to 
assemble, and to petit ion the Government for a redress of grievances. 

Article II 

A well regulated Mil itia, being necessa ry to the security of a free State, the right of the people to keep 
and bear Arms, shal l not be infringed. 

Article Ill 

No Soldier shall, in time of peace be quartered in any house, without the consent of the Owner, nor 
in time of war, but in a manner to be prescribed by law. 

Article IV 

The right of the people to be secure in their persons, houses, papers, and effects, against 
unreasonable searches and seizures, shall not be violated, and no Warrants shall issue, but upon 
probable cause, supported by Oath or affirmation, and particu larly describing the place to be 
searched, and the persons or things to be seized. 

Article V 

No person shall be held to answer for a capita l, or otherwise infamous crime, unless on a 
presentment or indictment of a Grand Jury, except in cases arising in the land or naval forces, or in 
the Militia, when in actual service in time of War or public danger; nor shall any person be subject for 
the same offence to be twice put in jeopardy of life or limb; nor shal l be compelled in any Criminal 
Case to be a witness against himself, nor be deprived of life, liberty, or property, without due process 
of law; nor shall private property be taken for public use, without just compensation. 

Article VI 

A bill of rights as provided in the ten original amendments to the constitution of the United States in force December 15, 1791. [n. 

p. 195-]. http://www.loc.gov/resource/rbpe.24404400 
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In all criminal prosecut ions, "the accused shall enjoy the right to a speedy and public trial, by an 
impartial jury of the State and district wherein the crime shall have been committed, which district 
shall have been previously ascertained by law, and to be informed of the nature and cause of 
the accusation; to be confronted with the witnesses against him; to have compulsory process for 
obtaining Witnesses in his favor, and to have the Assistance of Counsel for his defence. 

Article VII 

In Sui ts at common law, where the value in controversy shall exceed twenty dollars, the right of tria l 
by jury shall be preserved, and no fact tried by a jury shall be otherwise re-examined in any Court of 
the United States, than according to the ru les of the common law. 

Article VIII 

Excessive bai l shall not be required, nor excessive fines imposed, nor cruel and unusual 
punishments infl icted. 

Article IX 

The enumeration in the Constitution, of certain rights, shall not be construed to deny or disparage 
others retained by the people. 

Article X 

The powers not delegated to the United States by the Const itution, nor prohibited by it to the States, 
are reserved to the States respectively, or to the people. 

A bill of rights as provided in the ten original amendments to the constitution of the United States in force December 15, 1791 . [n. 

p. 195-]. http://www.loc.gov/resource/rbpe.24404400 
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CONSTITUTION ANNOTATED 
Ana lys is a nd Interpreta t io n of th e U .S . Co nsti t ut io n 

AmdtS.4.4.2.1 Deprivations of Liberty 

Fifth Amendment: 

No person shall be held to answer for a capital, or otherwise infamous crime, 
unless on a presentment or indictment of a Grand Jury, except in cases arising in 
the land or naval forces, or in the Militia, when in actual service in time of War or 
public danger; nor shall any person be subject for the same offence to be twice put 
in jeopardy of life or limb; nor shall be compelled in any criminal case to be a 
witness against himself, nor be deprived of life, liberty, or property, without due 

process of law; nor shall private property be taken for public use, without just 
compensation. 

With respect to liberty interests, the Court has followed a similarly meandering path. 

Although the traditional concept ofliberty was freedom from physical restraint, the 

Court has expanded the concept to include various other protected interests, some 

statutorily created and some not.1 Thus, in Ingraham v. Wright,2 the Court 

unanimously agreed that school children had a liberty interest in freedom from 

wrongfully or excessively administered corporal punishment, whether or not such 

interest was protected by statute. "The liberty preserved from deprivation without 
due process included the right 'generally to enjoy those privileges long recognized at 

common law as essential to the orderly pursuit of happiness by free men.' . . . Among 

the historic liberties so protected was a right to be free from, and to obtain judicial 

relief for, unjustified intrusions on personal security."3 

The Court also appeared to have expanded the notion of "liberty" to include the right 

to be free of official stigmatization, and found that such threatened stigmatization 

could in and of itself require due process. 4 Thus, in Wisconsin v. Constantineau, 5 the 
Court invalidated a statutory scheme in which persons could be labeled "excessive 

drinkers," without any opportunity for a hearing and rebuttal, and could then be 
barred from places where alcohol was served. 
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ro1.1nd~t1on -Jihe 14th Amendment and Due Process 

The 14th Amendment to the United States Constitution 

Section 1. No State shall make or enforce any law which shall abridge the privileges or immunities of citizens 
of the United States; nor shall any State deprive any person of life, liberty, or property, without due 
process of law: nor deny to any person within its jurisdiction the equal protection of the laws. 

Within months of the end of the Civil War, former 
rebellious Confederate states began passing Black 
Codes. These laws were designed to restrict the civil 
rights of recently freed African Americans. Though the 
13th Amendment had ended slavery, it did not 
specifically assure the rights of citizenship. Congress 
soon passed a Civil Rights Act to assure equal civic 
participation and protection for black people. But 
President Andrew Johnson vetoed it. He believed that 
Congress lacked the constitutional authority to enact the 
law. Congress overrode the veto, but a new 
constitutional amendment was needed to make sure that 
civil rights legislation would be constitutional. 

This was the 14th Amendment. To rejoin the Union, all 
rebel Southern states had to ratify the new amendment. 

1u1rn ... ,,r,-, 

Declared adopted on July 28, 1868, the amendment Dred Scott (Library of Congress) 

nullified (voided) the Supreme Court's decision in Dred Scott which denied citizenship fo r black 
Americans. It also provided a constitutional basis for civil rights leg islation. Ultimately the new 
amendment changed our constitution. 

The Constitution, in its original form, served only as a restriction on the power of the federal 
government. The rights and protections against government power in the Bill of Rights did not 
apply to the actions of state governments. Protections against state power depended on each 
state's constitutions and laws. What rights and protections a person had depended on in 
which state a person lived. 

The 14th Amendment contains the due process clauses. It forbids any state from depriving 
"any person ... life, liberty, or property without due process of law." And the due 
process clause applies to all "persons," not just citizens. 

© Constitutional Rights Foundation, 2016 

DOCUMENT PAGE: 45 

https://rico.jefffenton.com/evidence/2019-04-26_conspiracy-against-rights-under-color-of-law.pdf Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK (FENTON v. STORY et al.) 

Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK   ECF No. 39,  PageID.3496   Filed 03/25/24   Page 13 of 13



Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK   ECF No. 40,  PageID.3497   Filed 03/25/24   Page 1 of 73



Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK   ECF No. 40,  PageID.3498   Filed 03/25/24   Page 2 of 73



Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK   ECF No. 40,  PageID.3499   Filed 03/25/24   Page 3 of 73



Case 1:23-cv-01097-PLM-RSK   ECF No. 40,  PageID.3500   Filed 03/25/24   Page 4 of 73




